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Gallaher Limited

Strategic report

Principal activities

The strategy of Gallaher Limited (“the Company” or “*Gallaher’’) conunues te be the manufacture, marketing and selling
of tobacco products The Company sells its products 1n 1ts domestic market, mcluding duty free outlets (*UK") and
overseas markets (“Internattional”) The Company also acts as an investment holding company

Gallaher’s parent company 1s Japan Tobacco Inc (“JT”) JT 1s an international manufacturer of tobacco products,
headquartered in Tokyo, Japan The Company’s operations are integrated into the non-domestic tobacco business of JT,
namely Japan Tobacco International (“JTT"), headquartered in Geneva Switzerland

Overview of the business

The Company’s business activities are focused on selected geographical markets, notably the UK (both duty paid and
duty free), the Republic of Ireland and CIS territories {mainly Russia, Kazakhstan and Ukrame) In the UK market the
Company acts as a hmuted risk distnbutor and consignment manufacturer under contractual arrangements entered into
with the brand owner, JT International SA (“JTI SA™), while the Company undertakes its activities on 1ts own account
for brands 1t owns Gallaher Limited 1s the sole distributor of JTI products for UK customers In overseas territories, the
Company’s revenues principally derive from royalty income

Gallaher Limited’s management, admimstration and marketing functions are based at 1ts head office in Weybrnidge,
Surrey Manufactunng and research & development faciliies are located m Lisnafillan, Northern Ireland The
Company operates a National Distribution Centre 1n Crewe Sales teams are located and work all across the UK

Exceptional item

In October 2014, Gallaher recerved confirmation from JT1 SA that it was proposing to cease sourcing products from the
Company and that, 1f implemented, this proposal would lead to a reduction in volumes under the consignment
manufactuning agreement and ultimately termunation of that agreement Following this confirmation, the Company
reviewed the viabihty of retaiming 1ts manufacturing facilities for the production of its own brands and the directors aiso
assessed the hikelihood of securing altemative sources of contract manufacturing volumes Following the outcome of this
study, the Company announced a consultation on closing 1ts site at Lisnafillan Employees, works councils and trade
unions were informed The consultation process concluded in the first quarter of 2015

An exceptional charge amounting to £51m has been recogmsed in the financial statements for the year-ended
31 December 2014 Under the terms of the consignment manufacture agreement and other contractual arrangements m
place between the two compantes, JTI SA 1s hable to settle certain severance and outplacement costs in respect of
factory personnel Further details of the charge are set out 1n note 5 to the financial statements

The closure reflects declining volumes of tobacco product sales in European markets, impacted by tough economic
conditions, increasing regulation and excise duty rates, as well as growth in 1llicit trade

Production of tobacco products at Lisnafillan s anticipated to cease by the beginning of 2017 Thereafier, Gallaher will
no longer act as consignment manufacturer for JTI SA and consequently will cease to earn the margin that 1t currently
generates on the recharge of factory conversion costs to JTI SA

Following the closure of 1ts manufactuning facilities, Gallaher will continue to source 1ts products from other European
factonies within the JTI group

Key performance indicators

The Company’s key performance indicators are UK market share and both UK and International operating profit before
exceptional 1tems and exchange gains/(losses) These indicators are mncluded within the relevant sections of this
Strategic Report

UK market size and share

The Company estimates that the UK duty paid cigarette market contracted by 6 5% 1n 2014 as a consequence of
continuing economuc pressure and tax-led price increases, with the UK duty paid Roll Your Own (“RY0Q”} market
dechning by 0 8%

In 2014, the mcidence of non-UK duty paid products 1s estimated at 14 5% of ready-made cigarette consumption (2013

13 5%) and 46% of RYO tobacco consumption (2013 48%) Down-trading continued to accelerate in an increasingly
price sensitive market, with the value segment now representing 49% (2013 41%) of the ready-made ciparette market

RYO tobacco, although having declined shghtly in volume, now represents 31 5% (2013 30 4%) of the combined
cigarettes and RY O market
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The Company’s estimated cigarette market share, measured by Nielsen, was 40 7% (2013 40 6%), for RYO products
42 5% (2013 40 8%) and for combined cigarettes and RYO 41 3% (2013 40 7%)

Regulatory environment

Plain packaging

The Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2015 were made into law on March 19, 2015 The
Regulations require that RMC and RYO products are sold in plain packaging The Regulations do not apply to the
supply before May 21, 2017 of products produced before May 20, 2016 This means that retailers will have a one year
sell through peniod JTI and the other tobacco manufacturers have issued judicial review proceedings agamst the UK
Government 1n response to the legislatton and a Court Hearing 1s histed for six days commencing December 10, 2015

Minimum Excise Tax

On 26 August 2014 HM Treasury published a consultation on Mmimum Excise Tax (MET) The consultation document
outlined that a recent trend i the cigarette market has been the signuficant growth of the cheapest cigarette category, a
development which 1f indicative of a market shift towards cheaper cigarettes, could present a nisk to the effectiveness of
tobacco policy The Government’s consultation was a first step towards assessing whether a MET could help reduce this
nisk

The consultation closed on 15 October 2014 Dunng the Summer Budget in July 2015, the Chancellor made no
reference to the consultation and we still await the Government’s official response

Tobacco Levy

On 10 December HM Treasury launched a consultation on a tobacco levy, seeking views on the potential design of a
levy on tobacco manufacturers and importers and possible wider impacts As part of the Summer Budget m July 2015,
HM Treasury confirmed that the Government would not be introducing a levy on tobacco manufacturers and importers,
and stated that analysis of responses received to the consultation showed the impact of a levy on the tobacco market
would be sumilar to a duty nse, with tobacco manufacturers and importers passing the levy onto consumers

Tobacco display ban

The tobacco display ban came into force mn large shops (defined as having a selling area of more than 280 square
metres) 1t England, Wales and Northern Ireland on 6 Apnl 2012 On 29 Apnl 2013, the display ban came into force in
large shops n Scotland, i addition to the ban on sales from vending machines (the latter of which had also already been
mmplemented n England, Wales and Northern Ireland} The tobacco display ban came into force for all remaming stores
in England, Wales, Northern Ireland and Scotland on 6 April 2015

The size of display allowed while serving customers or carrywg out the other authorised activities in England, Wales
and Northern Ireland 1s 135 square metres, for shops i Scotland, the permitted size of display 15 1,000 square
centimetres

EU Tobacco Products Directive

On 29 Apnl 2014, the revised EU Tobacco Products Directive (or ‘TPD2’) was published i the Official Journal of the
European Umon The UK 1s expected to transpose the Directive 1into national law 1n April 2016 The Government has
consulied on aspects of the Directive for which options are available The consultation closed on 3 September 2015
After responses have been considered, 1t 15 anticipated that final regulations will be published 1 Q4 2015, however
shorter consultations will be necessary on further secondary legislation still bemg worked on by the EU (e g track &
trace regulations)

Non-compliant product will not be allowed to be manufactured in the UK after 20 May 2016 The UK sell-through
deadline for existing products 1s 21 May 2017

Smoking in cars

The Children and Famihies Act 2014 gave authority to the Secretary of State to introduce regulations to ban smoking m
cars with anyone under 18 present Regulations were passed by Parltament in February 2015 and come nto effect on
1 October 2015
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Proxy purchasing of tobacco

The Children and Families Act 2014 makes 1t an offence for a person aged 18 or over te buy, or attempt to buy, tobacco
or cigarette papers on behalf of a person under the age of 18 The Nicotine Inhaling Products (Age of Sale and Proxy
Purchasing) Regulations 20135, which were made mto law on 25 March 2015, extended the offence to micotine inhahing
products (including e-cigarettes)

E-cigarettes age of sale restriction

The Nicotine Inhaling Products {Age of Sale and Proxy Purchasing) Regulations 2015 prohibit the sale of nicotine
inhaling products (including e-cigarettes) to persons aged under 18 These regulations come into force on 1 October
2013

Anti-forestalling

As part of the 2014 Budget the Government announced 1ts mtention to consult on options designed to tighten existing
tobacco anti-forestalling controls On 23 June 2014 HM Revenue & Customs launched an informal consultatton wrth all
affected tobacco busmnesses The consultation asked several questions on potennal controls for change to the current
anti-forestalling restrichions on cigarettes The Company submitted a response to the consultation, which closed on 4
August 2014

On 3 December 2014 the Government published draft legislation for the Finance Bill 2015, which incorporated draft
tobacco duty anti-forestailing restnctions legislatton To ensure the legislation would work as intended, the Government
also launched a technical consultation on the draft legislation The Company submutted a response to this consultation on
3 February 2015

In the Budget 2015, the Government confirmed 1t “wall be introducing measures to tighten tobacco anti-forestalling rules
and apply penalties for non-compliance, in order to prevent tax avoidance The measures will apply to forestalling
behaviour ahead of Budget 2016 and beyond

The new ant-forestalling legislation was subsequently introduced in the Finance Act 2015 and the revised anti-
forestalling notice explaung the restrictions on the number of cigarettes that can be removed for home-use 1n the period
before Budget 2016 was published on 31 July 2015

Raw Tobacco

On 20 October 2014 HM Revenue & Customs published a consultation on the Control of Raw Tobacco, to which the
Company submutted a formal response The Government has decided to introduce controls on the holding and movement
of raw tobacco 1 order to reduce the nisk of evasion of excise duty and the use of raw tobacco n 1llegal manufacture
and sale In the Budget 2015, the Government confirmed 1t would be introducing a registration scheme for users and
dealers of raw tobacco before the end of 2016 1n order to prevent raw tobacco being diverted into the 1llegal market A
further technical consultation in the latter part of 2015 ts anticipated, before implementation

The Company continues to closely monitor all changes in the regulatory environment and any potential impacts, and
management have processes 1n place to address them in a manner consistent with local law and Group pelicy
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Financial performance
Operating profit

Operating profit in 2014 decreased by 23% to £133m (2013 £173m) Excluding exceptional charges of £51m (2013

£nil) and exchange gains of £10m (2013 losses of £2m), underlying operating profit from trading activities was broadly
level at £174m (2013 £175m) The trading performance of the Company’s two business segments, ‘UK and
“International”, are set out below

UK

UK turnover mcreased by 0 7% to £4,802m (2013 £4,766m) largely reflecting price and excise duty increases in the
domestic market Overall volume shipments declined by around 3 7% Within this volume decline, sales mix was
adverse, higher sales of value cigarettes and roll-your-own tobacco being more than offset by volume declines 1n the
premium, sub-premium and mid-price cigarette sectors, together with cigar and pipe, reflecting continued down-trading
by consumers

UK operating profit amounted to £153m (2013 £152m) Profit attnbutable to Gallaher’s own brands was down £9m,
higher pricing being more than offset by the impact of year-on-year volume declines Marketing mvestment behind
Gallaher’s brands was comparable with that in 2013 The profit earned on JTI SA distnbuted brands decreased by £7m,
reflecting lower contractual margin rates for JTI SA brands, coupled with adverse volume and mix, partly mitigated by
higher pricing Within cost of sales, factory charges were £4m favourable, reflecting plant impairments and inventory
write-offs 1n the prior year In 2013, the Company recognised a past service cost of £8m associated with a histoncal
pensions rescheduling 1ssue Other operating expenditure decreased by £5m compared to 2013 due to a combination of
lower headcount related overheads and reduced media, government relations and IT expenditure

International

International turnover decreased by 10% to £28m (2013 £31m) The decrease was driven by lower royalties from CIS
terntones, reflecting adverse exchange rates and lower sales volumes, and the cessation of a contract manufactunng
arrangement dunng the previous year

International operating profit of £21m was £2m (6%) lower than the previous year, reflecting the lower sales {£3m),
partly offset by lower research & development expenditure behind new product lines in CIS markets and favourable
trademark related expenditure (£1m)

Exchange gains/losses

Net exchange gains recogmsed dunng the year amounted to £10m (2013 net losses of £2m) Currency exposure relates
to on-gomng trading activity and the Company’s Euro denominated preference shares {note 13) Revaluation gains on the
preference shares amounted to £10m 1n 2014 (2013 losses of £2m)

Exceptional ttem

An exceptional item amounting to £51m has been booked within operating profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013 £ml) Thus charge relates to the Company’s announced closure of 1ts manufacturing and research & development
facilities 1n Lisnafillan, Northern Ireland Further details of the exceptional item are set out in the Strategic Report
(page 2) and n note 5 to the financial statements

Profits on disposal of subsidiaries, dividend income, interest and tax

Profit on disposal of subsihary undertakings of £3m duning the year relates to the sale of two captive insurance
subsidianies, The Galleon Insurance Company Limited and The Schooner Insurance Company Limited (note 10) Prior
to the sales, the Company received gross dividends from these subsidiaries amounting to £4m (2013 £1m)

Net interest and financing charges amounted to £5m (2013 £14m) This decrease 15 dnven by lower net interest paid
due to the repayment in April 2014 of a €494 05m intra-group loan which bore interest at a comparatively high histonc
fixed rate (see note 14) and the impact of positive cash flows from trading activities. These factors have been partly
offset by lower vanable rates of interest earned on intra-group deposits and loan receivables and the full-year impact of
the payment of a £2,000m otdtnary dvvidend by the Company to the shareholder in October 2013

Net retirement benefit financing credits amounted to £7m (2013 net charge of £2m), the favourable movement being
driven by a higher expected rate of return on pension scheme assets
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The Company’s tax charge on 1its profits for the year amounted to £72m An analysis of the charge together with a
reconcihiation to the UK statutory rate of corporation tax 1s presented in note 8

As a result of the above factors, the Company’s reported profit for the year was £70m (2013 £125m)
Net assets

The Company’s net assets at 31 December 2014 were £25m lower than at 31 December 2013 Profit for the year
amounted to £70m, while actuanal losses of £45m (after tax) related to the Company’s retirement benefit plans were
charged in the statement of total recognised gamms and losses In March 2014, the Company declared and paid an
ordiary dividend of £50m to the shareholder, Benson & Hedges Limuted

Cash flow

Management’s internal measure of “net cash” compnses bank balances and intra-group liquid deposits and loan
receivables, less bank overdrafts and intra-group loan payables Net cash at 31 December 2014 amounted to £1,206m,
up from £1,155m at 31 December 2013 The increase of £51m was due to £101m of net cash generated by the business
during the year, partly offset by the payment of a £50m ordinary dividend to the shareholder in March 2014

Risks and uncertainties

This principal risk and uncertainties section provides an overview of those key nsks affecting the business which the
Company has 1dentified as significant potential nisks to the successful performance of the Company’s business It 1s not
an exhaustive list of potential nsks faced by the Company and should not be relied upon as such

The prnincipal nsks and uncertainties that affect the Company include financial nisk, regulatory risk and commercial risk

Financial risks  Financial risks include interest rate nsk, hquidity nsk, foreign currency nsk and credit sk Further
information on financial risk management 1s contained in note 14 to these financial statements

Regulatory risk The tobacco market 1s subject to sigmficant regulatory influence from government and other regulatory
authorities (see pages 3 and 4 of this Strategic Report) Adverse regulatory development couid have an impact on sales
and profits This nsk 1s closely momtored and the management 1s fully aware of the regulatory 1ssues matenal to their
operating envircnment and have processes mn place to address them in a manner consistent with local law and Group
policy

Commercial risk  The Company primanly operates 1n the UK market, which 1s highly competitve The Company’s
comprehensive brand portfolio enables the Company to appeal to different market segments 1n order for the Company to
maximise sales and profits

Pension und retirement healthcare benefit plans  The directors are aware that the Company’s obligations relating to 1ts
pension and retirement healthcare benefit plans are accounted for using methods that rely on actuanal estimates and
best-estimate assumptions that amve at costs and liabilities for inclusion in the accounts The Company takes advice
from independent actuanics as to the appropriateness of the assumptions used and these esttmates and associated
assumptions are based on past expenience and other factors considered applicable at the time Any minor changes 1n the
assumptions can have a significant effect on the Company’s financial statements These estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and further details can be found in note 16

Assets held under trust by the Company’s pension plans for the sole purpose to fund the Company’s benefit obhgations
are reported 1n the accounts at fair market value
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EU co-operation agreement

In December 2007, JTI and the European Commussion (“EC”) together with 26 Participating Member States of the
European Union entered into a Cooperation Agreement to combat contraband products which impacts on the revenues
of Member States The mulu-year Agreement includes an efficient system to fight agamst future cigarette smugghng
and counterfeiting Through the Agreement, JTI will work wath the European Commussion, 1ts anti-fraud office OLAF,
and law enforcement authonties of the Member States to help in the fight against contraband, including the problem of
counterfeit cigarettes  Under the Agreement, JTI undertakes to make substantial payments to the EC over a fifteen year
penod and to deploy a techmcal solution to effectively track and trace all its products destined to any of the Participating
Member States In addition, upon notification by OLAF, ITI will pay ali indirect taxes due on any seizure of smuggled
product carrying 1its trademarks

In 2010, JTI and Gallaher signed a cost sharing and services agreement under which the EC payments, track and trace
deployment costs and taxes due to OLAF would be shared by JTI’s affiliate companies, based on brand ownershup On-
going track and trace project costs, which nclude certan modifications to the Company’s factory equipment and
logistics processes and the Company’s share of annual EC payments, and charges received from OLAF, are included
within “cost of sales™

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

Colton
Director

29 September 2015
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annuat report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
Results and dividends

The profit on ordinary activities after taxation 15 £70m (2013 profit of £125m) Ordmary dividends amounting to
£50m were declared and paid to the shareholder, Benson & Hedges Limuted, duning the year (2013 £2.000m) A
review of the Company’s operating performance during the year 1s set out wathin the Strategic Report (pages 2 to 7)

Going Concern

The directors are of the opinion that the Company 1s a going concern and the financial statements have been prepared
on that basis (see note 1)

Directors

The names of the directors, together with dates of appointment and resignation, are given on page 1 No director had
any mterest dunng the year in the shares of the Company or any subsidiary No director had any interests durning the
year i any matenal contract wath the Company or any subsidiary The Company has made qualifying third party
mdemmty provisions for the benefit of its directors which were made dunng the year and remain in force at the date of
this report

The directors held no share options or shares 1n the Company
Research and development

The Company takes a positive approach to research and development Significant expenditure has taken place over the
years and strenuous efforts will continue to be made to introduce new products, develop existing products and improve
operational efficiency

Environmental policy

The Company has an environmental policy that commuts 1t to ensuring that its activities are conducted 1n ways that
comply with the law and, so far as 15 reasonably practicable, do not harm the environment Responsibility for
compliance with the policy 1s vested at Board level

Donations

A total of £3,528,252 was pad during the year to UK chanties (2013 £3,938,611) No political contribution was
made duning the year (2013 £ml)

Employee involvement

The Company depends on the skills and commitment of its employees in order to achieve its objectives Staff at every
level are encouraged to make thewr fullest possible contnbution to Gallaher’s success Employees are kept regularly
informed, both on matters affecting them as employees and on 1ssues affecting the Company’s performance, through
mformation bulletins, team bnefings and the Company’s intemal newspaper and intranet There are a number of
consultative and negotiating bodies at national and divisional level

Equal opportunity policy

Gallaher has an equal opportumty policy and declaration of practice These principles are enshrined m specific
selection, training, development and promotion policies They ensure that all decisions are based on mernt The
Company practises equality of opportunity for all employees rrespective of ethmic ongin, religion, disabiiity, political
opmon, gender, mantal status, age or sexual onentation
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Supplier payment policy

The Company applies an overall policy of agreemng and clearly commumcating terms of payment as part of the
commercial agreements negotiated with suppliers and then endeavours to pay for all items properly charged m
accordance with these agreed terms The Company pays creditors on a imely basis, which periods vary, according to
the type of product and the termtory in which the suppliers operate The policy concerning the payment of the majonty
of trade creditors 1s to follow the CBI’s Prompt Payers Code

As at 31 December 2014 the Company’s trade creditors represented 53 days of trade purchases (2013 37 days)
Auditor
Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

e 50 far as the director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware,
and

e the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make humself / herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that mformation

This confirmation 1s given and should be nterpreted m accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Compames Act
2006

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue 1n office as auditor

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

John Colton
Director

29 September 2015
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are sausfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period In prepanng these financial statements, the directors
are required to

¢ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
e make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

o state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained 1n the financial statements, and

e prepare the financial statements on the gong concern basis unless 1t 1s mappropriate to presume that the Company
will continue tn business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Compantes Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other 1rregularities

10
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Gallaher Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Gallaher Limated for the year ended 31 December 2014 which comprnise the
profit and loss account, the statement of total recognised gains and losses, the reconciliation of movements i shareholders’
funds, the balance sheet and the related notes 1 to 23  The financial reporting framework that has been apphed 1n their
preparation 1s applicable law and Umted Kingdem Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an audrtor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permutted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explamned more fully i the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opimion on the financial statements m accordance with applicable law and
Internattonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Etlucal Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of financial statements

An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures m the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Company’s circumstances and have
been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant accountmg estimates made by the
directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the annual report to 1dentify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to 1dentify
any information that 1s apparently matenally tncorrect based on, or materally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by
us 1n the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opimion the financial statements

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of 1ts profit for the year then
ended,

s have been properly prepared in accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
e have been prepared n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Opinion on matter prescribed in the Companies Act 2006

¢ In our opinion the information given in the Sirategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, 1n our opinton

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

« the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

» certamn disclosures of directors’ remuneraton specified by law are not made, or

s we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

gﬁony Morns (Semor Statutory Audator)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

HScptember 2015

11
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Profit and loss account
Year ended 31 December 2014

Turnover

Duty

Exceptional item

Other cost of sales

Total cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution, marketing and selling costs
Administrative expenses

Exchange gains/(losses)

Other income

Operating profit
Profit on disposal of subsidiary undertakings
Income from ordinary shares in subsidiary undertakings

Net mterest and other finance charges
Net retirement benefit financing credits/(charges)
Total net interest and other finance charges

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

The turmnover and profit figures above relate to continuing operations

Note

2014 2013
£m £m
4,830 4,797
3,915) (3,935)
(51) -
(632) (571
(4,598) (4,506}
232 291
(57 (62)
(53) (54)
10 @
1 -
133 173
3 -
4 1
) (14)
7 (2)
2 (16)
142 158
a2 (33)
70 125

There 15 no difference between the profit on ordinary activities before taxation and the profit for the year siated above

and their historical cost equivalents

12
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses
Year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Note £fm £m
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 70 125
Actuanal loss recognised on retirement benefits 16 (56) (11)
Deferred tax relating to actuanal loss on retirement benefits 11 (1)
Total recognised gains for the year 25 113
Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
Year ended 31 December 2014
2014 2013
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 70 125
Dividends paid on ordinary equity shares (50) (2,000)
Retamned profit/(loss) for the year 20 (1,875)
Actuanal loss recogmised on retirement benefits (56) (11)
Deferred tax relating to actuanal loss on retirement benefits 11 (1)
Net decrease 1n shareholders’ funds (25) (1,887)
Shareholders’ funds at 1 January 944 2,831
Shareholders’ funds at 31 December 919 944

13
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Balance sheet
31 December 2014

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Investments

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors amounts falling due within one year

Debtors amounts falling due after more than one year
Cash at bank and 1n hand

Crediters amounts falling due wiathin one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities

Net assets excluding net retirement benefits asset
Net retirement benefits asset

Net assets including net retirement benefits asset
Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

Profit and loss account

Shareholders' funds

The financial statements of Gallaher Limited (registered number 1501573) were approved by the Board of Directors

on 29 September 2015
Signed on behalf of the Board

©hn Colton
Director

Note

11
12
12

13

t7
18

2014 2013
£fm £m
121 182

3 6

124 188
97 83
1,768 2,106
87 4

3 -

1,955 2,193

(642) (1,055)

1,313 1,138

1,437 1,326

(433) (405)
(89) -
915 921

4 23
919 944
50 50
869 894
219 944
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Gallaher Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2014

1. Accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, it accordance with the historical cost basis of
accounting and accounting standards currently applicable n the United Kingdom The Company’s principal
accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding year

As permitted under section 400 of the Compames Act 2006, the Company has not prepared consolidated financial
statements since 1t 1s a wholly owned subsidiary undertaking of Japan Tobacco Inc , a company registered 1n Japan,
which prepares consolidated financial statements

Going concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position are set out tn the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 7 The financial nsks of the Company, including 1ts hquidity
position are described it note 14 to the Financial Statements This imcludes an explanation as to how its financial risk
management and exposures 1o hquidity nsk are managed at the Group level, as well as how credit nsk 1s managed by
the Company The directors have considered the risks to the Company's trading performance and cash flows as a result
of the difficult UK and global economic envtronment

The Company currently has no rehance on bank overdrafis or loans Surplus cash balances are deposited with
financing entiies wathin the JT Group Cash deposits at the balance sheet date remain substantial, despite the payment
of a large dividend to the sharcholder during the year The Liqudity nsk management section in note 14 includes
amounts owed 10 Group undertakings that the Company could legally be called upon to repay within one year of the
balance sheet date Any habilites that do become repayable are more than covered by amounts due from Group
undertakings in the same pertod

The Company has been consistently profitable over the last few years, and helds the number 2 position in the UK
domestic tobacco market with an estimated combined market share of over 40% The Company’s comprehensive
portfolio of owned and distmbuted brands includes the two top selling cigarette brands in the UK, as well as the
number one RYQ brand and number two cigar brand

The directors fully expect that the Company will generate sufficient profits and cash to meet all its obligations as they
fall due

After making enqunes, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue n operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis n preparing the annual report and accounts

Cash flow

The Company has adopted the provisions of Financial Reporting Standard No 1 (Revised) Accordingly a cash flow
statement has not been included in these financial statements as the Company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary
undertaking of Japan Tobacco Inc , which prepares a consolidated cash flow statement that incorporates the cash flows
of the Company
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Gallaher Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2014

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Critical accounting judgment and areas of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group's accountmg policies, management has made the following assumptions and
Judgemenits in respect of the retirement benefit assets recogmsed in the financial statements

In assessing the recoverability of the pension asset, management have calculated the present value of the Labilities
expected to anse from future service of the employees (less any employee contnbutions) based on the year-end
FRS 17 assumptions and discount rates as detailed in note 16 to the financial statements

In assessing the Company's obhigations relating to retirement benefits, management has made key assumptions relating
to current and future mortality, expected returns on plan assets and discount rates as detailed in note 16

Foreign currencies

Assets and habilittes denominated in foreign currencies are translated into pounds sterling at rates of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date Gans and losses on exchange on transactions 1n foreign currencies are dealt with in the profit
and loss account

Turnover

Turnover represents amounts charged for goods sold, services supplied and licence fees, and inctudes excise duties but
not VAT or 1ts equivalent The Company recognises such turnover when the nsks and rewards of ownership are
transferred sigmficantly (which 1s generally when goods are recerved by the customer), and collection of the related
recetvable 1s reasonably assured

Sales and marketing incentives pad to distnbutors and vendors of the Company’s products are deducted from
turnover These incentives primarily comprise the following - retrospective payments made to customers for specific
performance, normally targeted volume sales, ranging and stock availabiiity, and payments to customers to support
shelf price reduction in relation to promotional activity

Certain financial recharges and profit equalisatton payments made 1n accordance with contractual arrangements
between the Company and related parties, including the consignment manufacture, distribution and general services
contracts with JTI SA, are not included within turnover Such amounts are netted aganst the appropnate functional
cost category within the profit and loss account where the imitia! expenditure has been recorded The directors are of
the opmnion that this presentation more fairly reflects the Company’s operating performance n the profit and loss
account

Excise duties

Excise duties mcurred by the Company are accounted for as a component of cost of sales and, accordingly, are not
shown as a deduction from turmover

Exceptional items

[tems that are both matenal in size, and unusual and infrequent 1n nature, are presented as exceptional items n the
profit and loss account The directors are of the opmmon that the separate recording of exceptional items provides
helpful information about the Company’s underlying busmess performance Examples of events, inter alia, which may
give nise to the classification of 1tems as exceptional include the restructuring of the business, gains and losses on the
disposal of individual assets, and asset impairments

Marketing

All marketing expenditure. including that related to new brands, is charged to the profit and loss account 1n the year 1n
which 1t 1s mncurred
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Gallaher Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2014

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Research and development

Research and development expenditure 1s charged to the profit and loss account as mcurred
Government grants

Grants related to expenditure on tangible fixed assets are treated as deferred income and credited to profit over a
penod approximating to the hives of qualifying assets Revenue based grants are credited to profit in the same penod as
the related expenditure

Leases
All leases are Operating lease and expenditure 18 charged over the lease term on a straight-line basis
Tangible fixed assets

Tangible assets are stated at cost less depreciation Depreciation 1s calculated 1o write down the cost of the tangible
assets to their residual value, on a straight-line basis, over their estimated useful lives, namely

Land and buildings
Freehold land Not depreciated
Freehold buildings up to 30 years
Long leasehold (lease term 50 years or more) up to 50 years
Plant and machinery 8-20 years
Fittings and equuipment (including computer hardware) 3-10 years
Assets 1n the course of construction Not depreciated

Assets 1n the course of construction relate mainly to new premises under construction and deposits paid 1n respect of
the installation of certain plant and machinery Depreciation commences when these assets become operational

Stocks

Stocks comprise consumables (principally machine spare parts) and fimshed goods The Company converts raw
materials owned and supplied by JTI SA nto finished goods under a consignment manufacturer contract The purchase
of finished goods by the Company from JTI SA takes place “ex-factory” at agreed transfer prices, which equate to the
cost of manufacture, ncluding all direct expenditure and production overheads based on the normal level of activity,
plus an mcremental margin which 1s set out in the distnbution contract entered into between the parties Finished
goods mclude excise duty where the liabality has crystallised Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net reahsable
value Provision 1s made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective items where appropnate

Current taxation

Current taxation, including UK corporation tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

The Company recognises provisions in respect of uncertain tax positions whereby additional current tax may become
payable 1 future penods The recognition of provisions for uncertain tax positions and the classification as current or
non-current liabilities 1s based upon management’s assessment of the likely outcome (and timing thereof) of 1ssues
associated with assumed nming differences and interest that may be applied, including the possible disallowance of tax
credits and penalties Provisions for uncertain tax positions are reviewed regularly and adjusted to reflect events such
as the expiry of lumtation penods for assessing tax, admmmstrative guidance given by the tax authornties and court
dectsions
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Gallaher Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2014

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 15 recognised 1n respect of all uming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet
date, where transactions or events that result m an obhigation to pay more tax mn the future or a nght to pay less tax n
the future, have occurred at the balance sheet date Timing differences are differences between the Company’s taxable
profits and its results, as stated in the financial statements. that anse from the inclusion of gains and losses n tax
assessments 1n periods different from those in which they are recogmised in the financial statements

A net deferred tax asset 1s regarded as recoverable and therefore recogmsed only when, on the basis of all available
evidence, 1t can be regarded as more hkely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future
reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the tuming
differences are expected to reverse, based on the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis

Pensions and retirement healtheare benefits

Pension and retirement healthcare benefits are accounted for in accordance wath FRS 17 (Retirement Benefits) The
regular cost of providing the retirement benefits to employees during the year and the full cost of providing
amendments to those benefits 1n respect of past service are charged to operating profit A credit representing the
expected return on assets held by the Company’s pension plans 15 included within net interest This expected return 15
based on the fair market value of those assets at the start of the financial year An interest cost 15 also included within
net mnterest This winterest cost s the expected increase duning the period 1n the present value of the Company’s benefit
obligations because the benefits are one penod closer to settlement Differences between actual and expected returns
on assets are recogmised n the statement of total reahised gans and losses, together with differences ansmg from
changes n actuanal assumptions The difference between the fair market value of the assets held in the Company’s
pension plans and the present value of the Company's benefit obligations 15 shown as an asset or hiability on the
balance sheet, net of deferred tax where appropnate

In addition, annual contnbutions paid by the Company mto 1ts sponsored defined contmbution plans are charged to the
profit and loss account on a cash basis

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are reported and measured n accordance with FRS 25, FRS 26 and FRS 29 Financial
mstruments comprise non-derivative financial assets and hiabilities and denvative financial instruments

Non-denvative financial assets are classified as fixed asset mvestments, debtors or cash

The Company uses denvative financial instruments to hedge exposure to foreign exchange nisks arising from financing
actrvities and to hedge exposure to mterest rate risks anising from financing and investung actuvities In accordance with
1ts treasury policy, the Company does not hold or 1ssue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes Further
details of derivatve financial instruments are disclosed 1n note 14 to the financial statements

Dertvattves are uutially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently
re-measured to their fair value at each reporting date The resulting gamn or loss 1s recogrused n profit or loss
immediately unless the denvative 1s designated and effective as a hedging instrument, 1n which event, the timing of the
recogmtion 1n prefit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship

The fair value of the derivatives 1s classified as a non-current asset or non-current liability if the remaining matunity of
the mstrument 15 more than 12 months and 1t 1s not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months
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Gallaher Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2014

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Fair value hedge

Changes 1n the fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded 1n the profit
and loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that 1s attnbutable to
the hedged nsk The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in the hedge items attnibutable
to the hedged nisk are recognised 1n the line of the income statement relating to the hedged items

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Company revokes the hedging relationship, or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting The adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged items ansmg from the hedged nisk s
amortised to the profit or loss from that date

Dervative financial instruments are separately recogrused at fair value 1n the financial statements Changes 1n the fair
value of derivative financial instruments are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account

The Company does not have any dertvative embedded 1n any other financial instruments or other host contracts
Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments are carried at cost less amortisation and/or provision for impairment, where appropnate
Trade and other debtors

Trade debtors and other debtors are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment
Cash

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks and interest receivable on money market deposits Interest
mcome 18 recognised by applying the effective interest rate

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the underlying contractual
arrangements

Trade and other creditors

Trade and other creditors are imtially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method

Borrowings

Interest-bearing loans and bank overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs Finance
charges, including premums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an
accruals basts to the profit and loss account using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of
the instrument to the extent that they are not settled 1n the period 1in which they arise All other borrowing costs are
recogmised 1n the profit and loss account in the period in which they are mcurred

Bank overdrafis are included wathin current liabilities on the balance sheet
Provisions

A provision 1s recognised when either a tegal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event exists at the balance
sheet date, 1t 1s probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obhgaucn and a
reasonable estimate can be made of the amount of the obhgation
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Gallaher Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2014

2. Segment reporting

The Company 1s engaged 1n a single business, namely the manufacture, marketing and selling of tobacco products
Accordingly, segment reporting 1s provided only by geographic region

In the UK market (domestic and duty free), the Company sells a comprehensive, umfied portfolio of tobacco products
This portfolio compnises brands distnbuted on behalf of JTI SA, as well as a small number of brands owned directly
by the Company Accordingly, the UK market operating profit includes margins eamed from acting as a limited nisk
distnibutor and consignment manufacturer under contractual arrangements entered into with JTI SA, together with
profit earned by the Company from the brands it owns

The International segment mainly compnses royalty income received by the Company n respect of brands 1t owns in
selected overseas markets, less specific costs incurred as brand owner, notably research and development charges,
marketing expenditure and trademark costs

The Company operates a centralised financing policy and considers that any segmental apportionment of interest and
exchange gains/(losses) would not be meamngful

The Company’s manufacturing assets, which are physically located in the UK, produce tobacco products for both UK
and overseas markets Accordmngly, any segmental apportionment of net assets and of exceptional items related to the
restructuring or closure of production facilitzes, would not be meaningful

2014 2013
£m £m
Turnover
UK (domestic and duty free) 4,802 4,766
International 28 31
4,830 4,797
Operating profit
UK (domestic and duty free) 153 152
International 21 23
Operating profit before exceptional 1tems and exchange gains/(losses) 174 175
Exceptional items (note 5) (51) -
Exchange gains/(losses) 10 (4]
133 173

Turnover for the UK domestic market includes excise duty amounting to £3,915m (2013 £3,935m) which 1s charged
within cost of sales
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Gallaher Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2014

3. Directors’ emoluments
2014 2013
£m fm
Directors’ remuneration
Aggregate emoluments (including bonuses and benefits 1n kind) 2.1 21
Awards under long-term incentive plans 0.9 09
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes 0.2 02
32 32

All of the current directors of the Company are members of a money purchase pension scheme

The remuneration above excludes that of Ohvier Chumits and Hubertus Qoms who are also directors of other Group
compames where they received remuneration They do not receive any remuneration specifically for therr services
provided to the Company

2014 2013
£m £m

Highest paid director
Apggregate emoluments (including bonuses and benefits 1n kind}) 0.7 04
Awards under long-term incentive plans 0.3 02
10 06

4, Employees

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Company during the year, including executive directors and
part-time employees, was

2014 2013
Number Number
Production, purchasing and research and development 903 922
Selling, marketing and distnibution 465 485
Central admimnsstration, [T and management 177 175
1,545 1,582
2014 2013
£m £m

Employment costs (for the above persons)
Wages and salaries - including termination benefits paid of £1m (2013 £ml) 87 85
Socaal security costs 9 9
Retirement benefit costs, including pensions - defined benefit plans current service cost 13 13
Retirement benefit costs - defined benefit pension plans past service cost - 8
Retirement benefit costs - defined benefit pension plans curtailment gan (13) -
Retirement benefit costs - money purchase pension scheme 5 4
101 119
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Gallaher Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2014

5. Exceptional item

As set out 1n the Strategic Report on page 2, in October 2014, the Company announced the closure of its
manufacturing and research & development factlities i Lisnafillan, Northern Ireland As a consequence of this
announcement, a pre-tax charge of £51m has been booked as an exceptional item within operating profit in the 2014
financial statements An analysis of the main components of the charge 1s set out below The tax credit associated with

this charge 1s £6m

Redundancy payments, covering severance packages and associated outplacement costs
Curtailment gain recogmsed on the Company’s defined benefit pension plan

Impairments of property, plant and equipment

Post-closure, site decommssioning and other costs

Amounts receivable from JTI SA as contractual reimbursement for certam severance costs

Net exceptional charge

No exceptional items were reported within operating profit mn the 2013 financial statements

6 Net interest and other financing charges

Interest recervable and other financial income
Loans to related group undertakings
Interest rate swaps

Interest payable and other finance charges

Loans to related group undertakings

Preference shares

Fair value loss on denvative financial instruments
Unwinding of discount on long-term habihties

Net interest and other financing charges

|
£m |

85
(13)
50
5
(76)
51
2014 2013
£fm f£m
3 1 |
- t \
3 12 }
5) an
3 3)
- (0
- 1)
8) (26)
6] (14)
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Gallaher Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2014

7. Profit before taxation

2014 2013
Profit on ordinary activities 1s stated after charging/(crediting) £m £m
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 28 23
Impairment of tangible fixed assets 50 -
Profit on sale of subsidiary undertakings 3) -
Research and development expenditure 4 5
Net exchange (gains)/losses (10) 2
Operating lease rentals - land and buildings 1 2

2014 2013
Auditor remuneration: £m £m
Audit fees payable 1n respect of the accounts of the Company 0.3 03
Non audit services tax compliance services 0.2 02
Total auditor remuneration 0.5 05
8. Taxation charge
a) Analysis of the charge for the year

2014 2013

£m £m

UK Corporation tax
Current tax on profits of the year 49 31
Adjustments to current tax charge in respect of prior penods 39
Current year group relief 3 5
Total current tax 91 38
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of uming differences (19) 4)
Adjustments to deferred tax in respect of prior perods - (0
Taxation charge 72 33

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year 1s higher (2013 higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax mn the UK at 21 5%
(2013 23 25%) The differences are explamned below

2014 2013
£m £fm
Profit before tax 142 158
Profit multiphied by standard rate of corporation tax 1n the UK of 21 5% (2013 23 25%) k)] 37
Effects of
Non-deductible expenditure and other items 4 1
Accelerated capital allowances and other tming differences 20 3)
Non-taxable income/ capital gain and credits received 3) l
Adjustments to tax charge 1n respect of prior periods 39 2
Current tax charge for the year 91 38
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Gallaher Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2014

8. Taxation charge (continued)
b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year (continued)
The corporation tax rate will decrease to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015 as enacted 1n the Finance Act 2013 Further

decreases have been announced to 19% from | Apnl 2017 and then to 18% from 1 April 2020, subject to the
enactment of future law

c) Analysis of deferred tax
2014 2013
£m £m
Movements during the year in the net deferred taxation liability
At 1 January 13 17
Amount (credited)/charged 1n the profit and loss account (19) 1
Amount credited 1n the profit and loss account - effect of tax rate change - ©)
Amount credited 1n the statement of total recogmsed gains and losses an 3)
Amount charged n the statement of total recogmised gains and losses - effect of tax rate
change - 4
At 31 December a7 13
The net deferred taxanon hability compnises
2014 2013
£m £m
Accelerated capital allowances (11) 3)
Retirement benefits 13 17
Caprtal losses ) (N
Other iming differences (18) -
Net deferred taxation (asset)/ liability an 13
2014 2013
fm £m
The net deferred taxation (asset)/liability 1s reconciled to the balance sheet as follows
Deferred taxation assets (note 12) (30) 4)
Deferred taxation relating to retirement benefits (note 16) 13 17
an 13

A deferred tax asset of £82m (2013 £82m) 1n respect of capital losses has not been recogmised because i the opimnion
of the directors 1t 1s not forecast to be utihsed 1n the foreseeable future
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Gallaher Limited

Notes to the accounts

Year ended 31 December 2014

9, Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At | January 2014
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications

At 31 December 2014

Depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2014

Depreciation charge for the year
Impairment charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2014

Net book value
At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013

Fittings Assets in the

Land and Plant and and course of

buildings machinery equipment c¢onstruction Total
£m £m £m £m £m

57 299 60 26 442

2 6 4 9 21
- 2) (13) - (15)

4 21 1 (26) -

63 324 52 9 448§
20 (197) (43) - (260)
(H (21) (6 - (28)
(23) (24) (N 2) (50)

- - 11 - 11
(44) (242) 3G9 2) (327)

19 82 13 7 121

37 102 17 26 182

The net book value of land and buildings relates to freehold property

Impairment charges of £50m relate to the wrnite-down of property, plant and equipment to their recoverable amount,
due to the announced closure of the Company’s manufactuning and research & development facilities in Lisnafillan,

Northern Ireland (note 5)
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Gallaher Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2014

10. Fixed asset investments

Provisions for Net book
Cost imparrment value
£m £m £m

Shares in subsidiary undertakings
At 1 January 2014 10 (4) 6
Disposals 3) - 3)
Impairments - - -
At 31 December 2014 7 (4) 3

In September 2014, the Company disposed of two captive insurance subsidianies, The Galleon Insurance Company
Limited (“Galleon™) and The Schooner Insurance Company Limited (“Schooner™ to a related company, JT
International Holding BV The transfers were made at fair market value for cash consideration of £2,089,000 for
Galleon and £3,411,000 for Schooner Gamns ansing on these transactions amounted to £1,839,000 for Galleon and
£811,000 for Schooner, and these gains have been included n the profit and loss account for the year ended
31 Decmber 2014

No immpairments have been 1dentified as part of the Directors’ annual review of the carrying value of the Company’s
mvestment n subsidiaries at 31 December 2014

The Company 1s the beneficial owner of all of the equity ordinary share capital of its subsidiaries The subsidianes at
31 December 2014, all of which are held directly and are unhsted, are shown below

Country of
Name incorporation Principal activity
Teofani Limited UK Dormant
Gallaher International Limited UK Dormant
JRF Realty, Inc USA In hiquidation
Hergall (1981) Limited UK In hquidation
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Gallaher Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2014

11. Stocks

Raw matenals and consumables
Finshed goods and goods for resale

2014 2013
£m £m
3 4

94 79
97 83

At 31 December 2014, provisions for obsolete, slow-moving or defective items amounted to £2m (2013 £1m) There

1s no material difference between the balance sheet value of stocks and their replacement cost

12. Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by Group undertakings - loan receivables and deposits
Amounts owed by Group undertak:ngs - interest recervable

Amounts owed by Group undertakings - trading balances

Amounts owed by Group undertakings - recervable from JTI SA (note 5)
Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - recervable from JTI SA (note 5}
Deferred tax assets (note 8c)

2014 2013
£m £m
507 505

1,203 1,569

- 1

35 29
19 -

1 -

3 2
1,768 2,106
587 -
30 4
87 4

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other debtors approximates to their fair value, due to the

short-term duration of the majonty of trade and other debtors

Trade receivables

At 31 December 2014, trade receivable balances within the UK business that are past due and have a provision for
impairment amounted to £0 3m (2013 £0 5m} The recoverability of all other trade receivable bzlances 1s considered

highly probable and this 1s supported by the collection hustory of the Company

The debtor days calculation for the year 1s 30 days (2013 30 days)

In 2014, the profit and loss account included a credit in respect of bad debts of £0 Im (2013 charge of £0 Im)
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13. Creditors

2014 2013
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdrafts - 1
Trade creditors 14 14
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - loan payables - 413
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - loan interest - 14
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - group rehef 3 5
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - trading balances 75 54
Corporate tax %] 13
Other taxes, duties and social security contnbutions 471 472
Liabulity under exit from joint venture arrangement (see below) - 22
Other creditors 2 1
Other accruals and deferred income 46 46
642 1,055
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Preference shares (see below) 153 163
Corporate tax (see below) 280 241
Accruals and deferred income - unamortised capital government grants - 1
433 405

The carrying value approximates the fair value
Preference shares

Preference shares compnse 195 million non-voting variable rate cumulative preference shares of €1 each
Shareholders receive dividends based on 3-month Eunbor plus 1 25% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears On
winding up, the preference shareholders rank above ordmary shareholders and are enutled to €1 per share and any
dividends accrued but unpaid 1n respect of their shares

Joint venture exit payments

RJ Reynolds-Gallaher International Sarl, a jont venture operated by Gallaher and Reynolds American Inc, was
termimated with effect from 31 December 2007 In February 2008, pursuant to the terms of the joint venture
agreement, an agreement was entered into whereby Gallaher Limited agreed to pay a subsidiary of Reynolds American
Inc a total of €265m The first instalment of this amount, compnsing 40% of the total, was paid in Apnl 2008, with
the remaining 60% being paid in s1x equal annual instalments, commencing April 2009 The liability was discounted to
present value at 31 December 2007 using EURIBOR plus 1 25% margin The final payment was made in April 2014

Corporate tax

Duning the year ended 31 December 2014 the corporation tax habihity was increased by £39m The total habthty
amountig to £280m has been presented as falling due after more than one year as 1t 15 considered to only become
payable upon the occurrence of future tnggering events which are not expected to occur within 12 months of the
balance sheet date
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14, Financial risk management

The management of financial nsks relating to the Company’s exposure to funding and hiquidity, interest rate and
foreign exchange 1s managed 1n line with the JT Group’s treasury policy framework

Foreign currency risk management

The Company has historically financed several fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate holding company, Japan Tobacco
Inc The Company has a number of foreign currency denominated intercompany and external debtors and creditor
balances and, consequently, the Company 1s exposed to foreign currency risk The majonty of foreign currency nisk 1s
managed at the Company level through the use of foreign currency deposits and borrowings, pius forward foreign
exchange contracts The key exposure nsk which 1s unhedged within the Company’s financial statements (that
associated with Euro denominated preference shares) 1s fully mitigated wathin JT's UK group of entities rather than at
the business unit level

In August 2009, as part of a wider UK corporate re-orgamisatton within the JT Group, Gallaher Group Limited
transferred three fixed interest rate loans payable to a related company, JTI (UK) Finance PLC, to Gallaher Limuted at
book value, including accrued interest The loans have principal values of £249 35m, €800 24m and €494 05m
respectively Consideration for the two loans denominated in Eure was by way of a fixed Sterling equivalent, based on
prevailing JTI corporate exchange rates The €800 24m loan was repaid 1n June 2011, the £249 35m loan was repard
in February 2013 and the €494 05m loan was repaid n Apnil 2014

Gallaher Group Limited’s denvative financial instruments, comprising interest rate swaps, were also transferred to
Gallaher Limited during 2009 at fair value as part of the restructuring These swaps matured in February 2013

As a result of the loan transfers noted above, together with other inter-group loan transactions undertaken duning 2009,
the Company substantially matched 1ts Euro denominated loan receivables with equivalent Euro denominated loan
payables by 31 December 2009 In additton, hedging arrangements were put i place during 2011 in respect of the
euro denomnated habilities associated with future joint venture exit payments However, a degree of foreign currency
exposure remaimns due to ongomg trading activity denominated in foreign currencies, and the Company’s Euro
denominated preference shares

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Company 15 mamly exposed to the Euro The exposure anses primanly on preference shares issued by the
Company The table below details the Company’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the sterling rate
against the Euro for both years, with all other variables remamning constant A 10% movement in exchange rate based
on the level of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and habilities, represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change mn foreign exchange rates The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items

Increase/(decrease)
in profit
2014 2013

£m £m
10% strengthening of sterling
Euro 14 15
10% weakening of sterling
Euro a7 (19)
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14.  Financial risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk management
The Company has both interest bearing financial assets and hiabilities

The Company’s financial assets are held for short penods before being used for working capttal funding and the
Company does not actively manage the interest rate nsk on these assets The mterest rate exposure on borrowings was
managed with an appropnate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings In 2009, as part of the corporate re-
orgamsation detailed on the previous page, the Company acquired interest rate swaps from Gallaher Group Limited
with a notional pnncipal of £250m These swap contracts, which matured 1n February 2013, effectively converted the
interest payable on the £249 35m loan from a fixed rate to a floatng rate

The sensitivity analyses below have been determuned based on the exposure to interest rates for both denvauve and
non-denvative instruments at the reporting date A 1% movement has been used and represents management's
assessment of a reasonable possible change

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other vanables were held constant, the tmpact on the profit/loss for
the year ended 31 December 2014 would be an increase/decrease of £11 0m (2013 increase/decrease of £14 Om) This
15 mainly attnbutable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on 1ts vanable rate cash deposits and borrowings

Credit risk management

The customer base of the Company 1s pnmanly based in the UK and thus 1s mainly in the wholesale and retail industry
The Company has implemented policies to ensure that sales of products are made to customers with an appropnate
credit history and obtains guarantees or other means of secunties to reduce the nsk where this 1s considered to be
necessary The credit information s supplied by independent rating agencies where available, and 1n addition, the
Company use other publicly available financial information and 1ts own trading records to assess the creditworthiness
of the major customers The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of 1ts customers are continuously monitored
and ongoing credit evaluation 1s performed on the financial condition of trade receivables Whalst there 1s a customer
concentration nsk, the credit nsk 1s not considered an 1ssue and there 15 no provision for impairment Thus 1s supported
by the history of collection by the Company

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, represents the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit nsk

Liquidity risk management

The settlement dates of financial instruments at the balance sheet date are set out below In the case of financial
denivatives, settlement 1s on a gross basis The Company manages the hqudity nsk of financial habilities by
mamtaining sufficient liquid financial assets and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities

At 31 December 2014 the Company held cash and cash equivalents of £3m (2013 £nil) and no undrawn overdrafi
facilities (2013 £ml) Surplus cash balances are deposited with financing entines within the J'T Group

At 31 December 2014, there are no financial habilities measured at fair value 1n the balance sheet (31 December 2013
£n1l) Accordingly, ne fair value hierarchy 1s presented i accordance with the amendment to FRS 29

At 31 December 2014, there were no amounts owed to group undertakings bearing fixed interest rates At
31 December 2013, amounts owed to group undertakings included a fixed interest bearing loan of €494 05m from
JTI (UK) Finance PLC which bore a fixed rate of interest of 4 6792% Thus toan was repaid at its scheduled matunty
date 1n Apnl 2014 unlising the proceeds from euro-denomnated loan receivables that were repaid to the Company at
that ime

At 31 December 2014, there were no amounts owed to group undertakings beaning vanable nterest rates (2013 £mil)

At 31 December 2014, the Company had no derivative financial mstruments outstanding (31 December 2013 £ml)
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14.  Financial risk management {continued)
Liquidity risk management (continued)

The table below analyses the maturities of the undiscounted cash flows relating to non-denivative financial habilites of
the Company based on the remainung penod to the expected maturity date at the balance sheet date Although certain
loans payable to other Group entities are repayable on demand, at the option of etther party, the loans, and the accrued
mterest thereon, are expected to be settled 1n line with the table below In respect of preference shares with no fixed
repayment date, the Company 1s subject to a stream of dividend payments n relation te this perpetual lLiability, based
on an nterest rate of 3-month Eurbor plus 1 25% per annum applied to the principal amount of €195,000,000 As at
31 December 2014, the annual undiscounted dividend amount payable in perpetuity 1s £2m (2013 £2m)

Less than Between 2 More than
lyear 1-2years andS5 years 5 years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Non-derivative instruments
Preference shares 2 2 6 153 163
Trade creditors 14 - - - 14
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 79 - - - 79
Other creditors and accruals 550 - - 241 791
645 2 6 394 1,047
At 31 December 2013
Non-derivative instruments
Preference shares 2 2 8 163 175
Trade creditors 14 - - - 14
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 490 - - - 490
Other creditors and accruals 557 - - 241 798
1,063 2 8 404 1,477

Trade payables, other creditors and accruals are interest free and mostly fall due within one year Therefore the
carrying amount for creditors due within less than one year equals the sum of future cash flows

15. Provisions for liabilities

£m
At | January 2014 -
Charge to profit and loss account 89
Utilised -
At 31 December 2014 89

Provisions at 31 December 2014 relate to the announced closure of the Company’s manufacturing and research &
development facilities i Lisnafillan, Northern Ireland (note 5) Provisions have been established in respect of
redundancy payments {covering severance packages and associated outplacement costs), post-closure and site
decommissioning costs, legal fees and commutted capital expenditure The majonty of the provisions are expected to
be utilised during 2016
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16.  Pension and retirement healthcare benefit plan assets and liabilities

Section (1) of this note contains the aggregated disclosures for the Company’s pension and retirement healthcare plans
Section (1) provides further details on the disclosure information related to the Company’s pension plans while section
(1) prowvides further details on the disclosure mformation related to the Company’s retirement healthcare plans
Section (1iv) provides five year summary informatton on the Company’s pension and retirement healthcare plans and

expenence gains/losses

i) Results for pension and retirement healthcare plans
Pension Retirement
plans healthcare plans Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m £m £m

The amounts recognised in the balance
sheet are as follows:
Present value of funded Liabilities 1,280 1,237 - - 1,280 1,237
Present value of unfunded lLiabilities 2 2 47 47 49 49
Fair value of plan assets (1,460) (1,328) - - (1,460) {1,328)
Funded status (surplus)/deficit (178) (89) 47 47 (131) 42)
Unrecoverable surplus 114 2 - - 114 2
Net (asset)/hability before deferred tax (64) 87 47 47 a7 40
Related deferred tax liability 13 17 - - 13 17
Net (asset)/liability (51) (70) 47 47 (4) (23)
Movements in plan liabilities:
At 1 January 1,239 1,122 47 50 1,286 1,172
Employer service cost 13 12 - 1 13 13
Curtailment gain (13) - - - (13) -
Past service cost - 8 - - - 8
Interest cost 54 49 2 2 56 51
Actuanal losses/(gains) 52 106 (1) (5 51 101
Contribution by plan participations - - - - - -
Benefits paid (63) (58) (1) (1) (64) (59)
At 31 December 1,282 1,239 47 47 1,329 1,286
Movements in plan assets:
At | January (1,328) (1,225) - - (1,328) (1,225)
Expected return on plan assets (63) 49) - - {63) (49)
Actuanial gains (107 (83) - - (107) (83)
Employer contributions (25) (29) - - 25) (29)
Contnbutions by plan participants - - - - - -
Benefits paid from plan assets 63 58 - - 63 58
At 31 December (1,460) (1,328) - - (1,460) (1,328)
Actual return plan assets 170 132 - - 170 132
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16. Pension and retirement healthcare benefit plan assets and liabilities (continued)

i) Results for pension and retirement healthcare plans (continued)
Pension Retirement
Plans healthcare plans Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m £m £m

The amounts recognised 1 the profit and
loss account are as follows:

Current employer service cost 13 12 - 1 13 13
Interest cost 54 49 2 2 56 51
Expected return on plan assets (63) 49) - - (63) (49}
Curtailment gain (see below) (13) - - - (13)

Past service cost recognised (sce below) - 8 - - - 8
Employer pension (1ncome)/expense &) 20 2 3 %)) 23
Analysis of STRGL:

Actuanal (gain)/loss (55) 23 (1) (5 (56) 18
Unrecoverable surplus mcrease/(decrease) 112 (N - - 112 &)
Total actuanal loss/(gain) 57 16 1) (5) 56 11

ii) Further details of the Company’s defined benefit pension plans

The Company operates two material funded final salary defined benefit pension plans in the UK Bath of these plans
arc admimstered and financed i accordance with local legislation and practice Pension assets are held in trust
separately from the assets of the Company

Both defined benefit pension plans were closed to new entrants on 30 June 2003 Because the plans are closed, the
average age of the active members 1s likely to increase m future, leading to an increasing current service cost of the
plan benefits This may be offset by a falling total pensionable salary resulting from leavers and retirements

The pension obligations and costs related to these plans are assessed 1n accordance with the advice of independent
qualified actuaries using the projected umit credit actuarial method The latest full actuanal valuations of both plans
were undertaken as at 31 March 2014, and the results of these valuations have been updated to 31 December 2014

The latest agreed contribution rates (as a percentage of pensionable pay) payable by the Company into the Company's
pension plans are 45 6% for the “A” Scheme and 45 6% plus £11 47m per annum for the “M” Scheme The total
expected Company contribution for 2015 1s around £24m

Duning 2014, the Company announced the closure of its manufactuning and research & development facilities 1n
Lisnafillan, Northern Ireland [t 1s expected that amongst the redundancies will be approximately 560 'A’ and 'M'
Scheme members On leaving employment with the Company these members will cease future benefit accrual and the
link between their accrued benefits and salanes will be replaced by statutory inflation based revaluation The schemes'
habilities will reduce reflecting removal of the salary link The hability reduction has been reflected 1n the profit and
loss account for the year ended 31 December 2014 as a curtailment gamn of £13m within exceptional items (comprising
£11m for the 'A' Scheme and £2m for the ‘M' Scheme) The curtailment gain has been calculated using 31 December
2014 market conditions and reflects expectations about members leaving the Company. and the schemes, between late
2015 and December 2016

In 2013, the Company and Trustees concluded an extensive investigation into an admimstration discrepancy m the “A”
and “M” Schemes related to “rescheduling” As a result of the investgation, the actuanal reserves of “A” and “M”
Schemes’ were increased by £8m 1n aggregate Thas amount was recognised 1n the profit and loss account for the year
ended 31 December 2013 as a past service cost

The Company also sponsors an unfunded individual retirement pension benefit to a former executive who 1s now
retired The obhgations and costs related to this arrangement are included in the disclosure results
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16.  Pension and retirement healthcare benefit plan assets and liabilities (continued)
i) Further details of the Company’s defined benefit pension plans (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used n the valuation of the Company’s pension plan liabihties are as follows

2014 2013

% %

Discount rate 3.6 4 4
Rate of increase 1n salaries 3.09 41
Rate of increase of pensions 1n payment 3.10 36
Rate of pnice inflation - RPI l.q0 36
Rate of price inflation - CPI 2.25 29
Expected rate of return on plan assets n/a 48
Life expectancy at age 60 for a male aged 60 at end of year 274 266
Life expectancy at age 60 for a maie aged 45 at end of year 28.9 278
Life expectancy at age 60 for a female aged 60 at end of year 29.6 29
Life expectancy at age 60 for a female aged 45 at end of year 311 303

A detailed investigation into the mortality experience of the Company’s pension plans 1s carried out as part of each full
actuarial valuation (every three years), with interim reviews performed between full valuations as appropnate Dunng
these reviews, the Company also considers any developments and their suitability for the Company’s pension plans m
terms of newly pubhshed mortality tables and/or life expectancy projections In 2014 the Company adopted revised
mortality tables in the valuations of 1ts pension plans as a result of the review that was carmed out during the year

The expected rate of return on assets assumption has been developed using a building block approach based on the
plan's target asset allocation at the measurement date and the expected return on assets for each asset category The
aggregate actual asset allocation of the Company’s funded pension plans 1s shown below which 15 broadly in line with
the target asset allocation at each reporting date

2014 2013
£m £m

Pension plan assets allocation
Equities 565 564
Debt secunties 792 689
Cash 41 16
Other 62 59
1,460 1,328

The Company’s pension plan assets do not include a matenal exposure to secunties of any companies related to the
Japan Tobacco group, or any real estate occupied by the Company

At 31 December 2014, £94m (2013 £2m) of the “A” Scheme’s accounting surplus and £20m (2013 £ml) of the “M”
Scheme’s accounting surplus 15 deemed “irrecoverable” The net surplus recogmsed by the Company 1n 1ts balance
sheet at 31 December 2014 in respect of pension plans has therefore been restricted to £64m (2013 £87m) The
trrecoverable surplus has increased significantly at this year end This 1s due to a combination of strengthening of the
funding positions for both schemes which mncreased the total surplus and reduction of expected future service costs
following the announced closure of the Company’s manufacturing and research & development facilities 1n
Lisnafillan, Northern Ireland which have reduced the amount of “recoverable™ surplus

This capping of the surplus results from the strict application of the accounting rules contained within the accounting
standard FRS 17 (Retirement Benefits) and has no impact on the Scheme’s members
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16.  Pension and retirement healthcare benefit plan assets and liabilities (continued)
iii)  Further details of the Company’s retirement healthcare plans

The method of accounting, actuanal assumptions and the frequency of valuations of these are similar to those used for
the Company’s defined benefit pension plans Other relevant assumptions are included below

2014 2013
Medical cost rend rate
- Imtial rate (%) 35 35
- Ultumate rate (%) 5.1 60
- Years to ultimate 3 3
The sensitivity analysis 1s outlined as follows
2014 2013
£m £m
Effect of one percentage point increase 1n assumed medical cost trend rate
- Increase 1n the liability 7.1 54
Effect of one percentage point decrease n assumned medical cost trend rate
- (Decrease) 1n the hability (5.9) (6 5)
iv) Five year summary
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m fm
Defined benefit pension plans
Defined benefit obligation 1,282 1,239 1,122 1,040 1,043
Plan assets 1,460 1,328 1,225 1,158 1,094
Surplus 178 89 103 118 51
Unrecoverable surplus 114 2 9 17 -
Expenence (gain)/loss on plan habilities 30 16 (55) (55) (1)
Retirement healthcare benefit plans
Defined benefit obligation 47 47 49 46 31
Expenence (gan)/loss on plan liabilities - - - (2) -
17.  Called up share capital
2014 2013
£fm £fm
Allotted, called up and fully paid
100,747,049 ordinary shares of 50p each 50 50

The Company has unlimited authonised share capital

The 195 mullion non-voting variable rate cumulative preference shares of €1 each have been disclosed as a financial

Lability
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18. Reserves

Profit
and loss
account

£m
At | January 2014 894
Profit for the year 70
Dividends paid on ordinary equity shares (50)
Actuanial loss recognised on retirement benefits (56)
Deferred tax relating to actuanal loss on retirement benefits 11

At 31 December 2014 869

At 31 December 2014, the profit and loss account reserve of the Company included a £10m surplus in respect of
retirement benefits (2013 surplus of £23m)

19.  Operating lease commtments

The Company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 December 2014 which expire as
follows

2014 2013

£m £fm

Within one year 1 -
Between two and five years - 1
1 i

These commutments relate mainly to land and buildings

20.  Capital commitments

At 31 December 2014 the Company had capital commitments of £22m (2013 £25m) in respect of contracts placed but
not provaded for in the accounts These commtments relate mainly to factory plant and machinery

21. Related party transactions

In accordance with the exemptions offered by Financial Reporting Standard No 8, there 15 no disclosure in the
financial statements of transactions with entities that are part of Japan Tobacco Inc and its subsidianes
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22.  Contingent habilities

At 31 December 2014, the Company had contingent liabilities for guarantees given 1in respect of Group undertakings
which amounted to £1m (2013 £1m) At 31 December 2014, the Company had no contingent habilities for guarantees
given n respect of third parties (2013 £ml)

There are a number of instances where liigation proceedings, hearings, or claims negotiations are pending or
threatened against Group companies To date, there has been no recovery of damages against any Group company in
any action alleging that its tobacco products have resulted n human 1llnesses It 1s not possible to predict the outcome
of the pending lingation Management believes that there are mentorious defences to these actions and claims and that
the pending actions will not have a matenal adverse effect upon the results of the operations, the cash flow, or
financial condition of the Company The pending actions and ¢laims wall be vigorously contested There can, however,
be no assurance that favourable dectsions will be achieved 1n the proceedings pending against Group compames, that
additnonal proceedings will not be commenced in the UK or elsewhere agamnst Group compamnies, that the Company
will not incur damages, or that, if incurred, such damages will not have a matenal impact on the Company’s operating
performance or financial condition Regardless of the outcome of the pending litigation, the costs of defending these
actions and claims could be substannal and will not be fully recoverable from the plaintiffs, wrrespective of whether or
not they are successful

There are a number of disputes between one of the Company's subsidiaries, Gallaher International Limited, and certamn
of its former distnbutors Full disclosure 1s given in the financial statements of Gallaher International Limited To date,
Gallaher Internationat Limited has successfully defended all clauns made against 1t, and the directors do not anticipate
that any matenal! loss will arise from these actions

23.  Ultimate heolding company and consolidation

The Company 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of Benson & Hedges Limited, a company incorporated 1in the UK and
registered in England and Wales

Japan Tobacco Inc, which s registered in Japan, 1s regarded as the ultumate holding company and the ultimate
controlling party, and 1s both the smallest and largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated
Copies of the consolidated financial statements of Japan Tobacco Inc may be obtaned from 2-2-1 Toranomon,
Munato-ku, Tokyo, 105-8422, Japan
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Unless the context indicates otherwise references in this Annual Report to
“wa”, "us” our Jopan Tobacco”, “JT Group or JT are to.Japan Tobacco
Inc and its consolidated subsidiaries Referances to "JTf are to JTI Holding
BV our consolidated subsidiary and its consolidated subsidianes
References to "TablaMark are to TableMark Hofdings Co Ltd TableMark
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only to Japan Tobacco Inc and references to JT International Holding B V'
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Forward-looking statements
Thus report contains forward-looking stataments These statements appear
in a number of places in this report and include statemants regarding the
intent belisf or current and future expectations of our management with
respect to our businass, financial condition and results of operations In
some cases, you can identify forward looking statements by terms such as
"may” “will” "should”, would", expect”™ “intend” “projact “plan” am”
seek , target , anticipate “beleve”, esimate” “predicl’ "potenual’ or
the negative cf these terms ar other similar terminology These statements
are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to various risks
and uncertainties Actual results, performance or achievements or those
of the industries in which we operale may differ matenally from any future

results performance or achievements expressed or implied by thase
forward-looking statements In addition these forward-looking statements
are necessanly dapendent upon assumptions estimates and data that may
be incorrect ar iImprecise and involve known and unknown rnigks and
uncertainues Forward-looking statements regarding operating results are
particularly subject to a vanety of assumpuons some or all of which may
not be realized

Hisks uncertainties or other factors that could cause actual results 1o differ

matarially from those expressed in any forward looking statement include,

without hmitation

1 decrease in demand for tobacco producis in key markets,

2 reswictions on promoting, marketing packaging labeling and usage
of tobacco products In markets in which we operate

3 ncreases in excise consumptian or other taxes on tobaceo products
In markets in which we operate

4 lugation around the world alleging adverse health 2ng financial effects
rasulting from or relating to tobacco products

5 ouwl ability to realize anucipated resuits of our acguisition or cther
similar investments

6§ competiion in markets in which we operate of inte which we seek
10 expand

7 detenoration in ecanomic condilions in areas that matter to us,

8 economic regulatory and pohtical changes such as nationalization
terrorism wars and civil urirest in countrigs in which wa aperate

2 fluctwations in foreign exchange rates and the costs of raw materals and

10 catastrophes including natural disasters
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Financial Highlights

FY2014 Results for the fiscal year ended December 3t 2014

In this fiscal year, the Company and its subsidiaries have
elected to unify their fiscal year ends to December 31
which will enhance and improve the efficiency of the
clesing and management systems

FY2014, a transitional period for the change in
accounting percd, covers mne months from Apnl 1,
2014 1o December 31, 2014 for the Japanese domestc
businesses and for the Company’s consolidated
subsidranies whose current closing date was other than
December 31 For the international tobacco business
and its subsidianes, accounting period remarns the
same, from January — December 2014 {Reported basis)

Like-for-Like basis

{January-December 2014)

For the purpose of fair business performance
comparsan, we are providing figures for the twelve-
month penod from January 1, 2014 to December
31, 2014 {Like-for-Like basis} with regard to all
business segments

= In Financial Statements and Notes, FY2014 results
are shown on a Reported basis

= Excluding Financial Statements and Notes, for the
purpose of farr companson of business performance
2014 results are shown on a January to December
(Like-for-Like) basis

Reported basis
{Nine months ended December 31 2014)

Adjusted Operating Profit
WPY BN)

660.1

Dividend Payout Ratio
%)

Adjusted EPS
UPY)

239.01

Results for FY2014

Year-on-year
change

+7. 8%

Year-on-year
change

1 T

Year-on-year change
Constant Exchange Rates

+10.6%

Year-on-year change
Constant Exchange Rates

+11.1%

FY2015 Forecasts

Adjusted Operating Profit
{JPY BN}

588.6

Dividend Payout Ratio
%)

Adjusted EPS

{UPY}

22475

2014 results (Like-for-Like basis, comparison with Jan-Dec 2013)

2015 forecasts (companson with Jan-Dec 2014)

Jan  Apr Ju Qect  Jan  Apr  Jul  Qct

Mar  Jun

Sep Dec Mar Jun

Sep Dec

Domestic J

International

2013 Jan - Dec

2014 Jan - Dec

Jan  Apr Qct  Jan Apr Jul Qct
Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec
Domastic i
International o o g
FY2014 FY2C15

Excluding Financial Statements and Notes

With regards to the forecast for FY2015 the figures are presented on

a January to December basis

2014 results (Reported basis)

Jan  Apr Jul Oct Jan Apr Jul Qect

Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun

Domaestic I

International I

Fy2013

Sep Dec

Financial Statements and Notes

JAPAN TOBACGCG INC ANNLAL RFPORT FY201 Oui

INIWIDYNYIN |

SISKIVNY 8 SNOLIVEHIJO |

M3IIATH TVIDNYNIJ |

SINIWILVLS TVIONYNID |

NOILYWHCANI H3HLO l NOILYWHOANI HIQTI0HIHVHS |







At a Glance

Consoiidated Five-year

Financial Summary

Message from the Chairman and CEQ
CEOQO Business Review

ANIWADYNYIN

Management Principle, Strategic
Framework and Resource Allocation
Business Plan 2015

Role and Prionty of Each Business
Performance Measures

e T D T R ot Tas
Lerxplrntns garore ss eper o mf 5T we nvestar.,
but nat o gromale sates of to aceo nroduecte ar to

e
i ok, Tor aar e




At a Glance

Our Businesses
FY2014 Resuits for 2014 January-December

The [T Group is a leading international lobacco company with operations i over 70 couniries Our products are
sold i over 120 countries and our mlernationally recograzed brands include Winston, Camel, MEVIUS and
LD We are also actrve in pharmaceutical, beverage’ and processed food businesses and we expect them to establish
a foundation for future profit coninbulion, as we strrve for sustainable growth

International Tobacco

Today the international tobacco business generates Results for 2014
more than 65% of the consoldated profit' and it 1s Strong double-digit profit growth at constant
expected to further increase its contnbution in the exchange rates
years to come, enabling the JT Group to continue
delvering sustamnable profit growth in the mid- to Key drivers
long-term * Robust pnicing
* GFB share of market gains
QOur brand portfolio 1s competitive and well-balanced, = Total and GFB share of value growth
allowing us to capture down-traders in mature * Broadened business base

markets and up-traders in emerging markets

We have structured our partfolio into three broad
categores including ready-made cigarettes, fine
cut and emerging products

8l Markats where JTG s SOM? 15 5% or higher a3 of 2014

Source Euvromoniior JTI Esumais
Note Tha prang rankings of Wins.on and
Camelinclude sales by Raynolds American Inc

Global brand ranking

(excluding China Naucnal Tobaceco Corp)

#9 e #5  Sov#g DN #13
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Revenue breakdown by business segment

Beverage Others
74% 05%
Pharmaceutical Processed
2 70/0 food
6 6%
Japanese domestic
tobacco - m})ematlonal
28 2% tobacco
54 6%

Japanese Domestic Tobacco

Tobacco business generated more than 80%

of the consolidated revenue In 2014, revenue
of Iternatumnal tobacco business and Japanese
domestic tobacco busmness increased 2 7% year-
on-year to fPY 2,013 9 bilhhon

We are the market leader in Japan one of the largest markets in
the world with over 60% market share mainly dniven by MEVIUS

Our Japanese domestic tobacco business continues to be a
significant profit contnbutor 1o the JT Group, generating over
35% of our consolidated profit!

Composition of JT SOM? as of 2014

Hope Others
Peace

Cabin

Caster
MEVIUS
Pianissimo

SevenStars

Pharmaceutical

of our SOM? 13 coming fram MEVIUS
showing resilignce «n the context of
® O ntensified compattion

Processed Food

We aim to build a unique, world-class pharmaceutical business
driven by R&D and to increase our market presence through
onginal and innovauve drugs Thea pharmaceutical business 1s
currently focusing on the development, groduction, and sale of
prescription drugs

During 2014 Group company Torn Pharmaceutical Co  Ltd launched
‘Riona Tablets 250mg’ and Cedartolen Sublingual Drop 1n Japan

Riona Tablets 250mg
For wreatment of hyperphosphaiemia

Cedartolen Sublingual Drop
Subhngual immunathecapy drug for
Japangsa cedar pollincsis

1 Consolidated proht Consohdated adjusied aperatung profit
2 S50M Share of market

With Group company TableMark Co, Lid taking a central role, the
processed food business 1s primanly engaged in business concerning
frozen and amhient processed food mainly staple food products
such as frozen noodles frozen rnice packed nce and frozen baked
bread and seasonings including yeast extracts and oyster sauce

We sohdified our number 3 position in the frozen food industry with
several top-selling preducts within respective categories, such as
frozen Udon noecdles and frozen Okonomiyaki

*  Wa announced the withdrawal from the rmanufscture and sale of J7 baverage products in February 2015
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Consolidated Five-year Financial Summary

Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

FY2014 Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014

FY2014 atransitional period for the change in accounting penod covers une months from Aprit 1 2014 to December 31 2014 for the Japanese domestic
business and for the Cempany's consolidated subsidianes whose current closing date was other than December 31 For the international tobacco business

and 115 subsidiaries, accounting period remains the same from January — Decembaer 2014 (Reported basis)

For the purpose of fairr business performance companson we are providing figures for the twelve-month penod {Lke-for-Like basis) with regard 1o all

business segments

Bilions of yen

FY2010 FY2011 Fy2012 FY2013 2013 2014
(IFRS) {IFRS) {IFRS) {IFRS} {Jan-Dec) {tan-Dec}
For the year
Revenue (Note 1) 20594 20338 21202 23998 23722 24335
Internaticnal Tobacco 9635 966 3 10i07 1,2700 1,2700 1,3280
Japanese Domestic Tobacco 6658 646 2 6871 7103 6305 6859
Pharmaceutical 441 474 532 644 58 2 658
Food 3675 3594 - - - -
Beverage 1888 1855 1845 1838 1813
Processed Food 1707 1687 156 9 1572 1612
Others 185 46 150 1386 126 13
Core revenue {Note 2}
International Tobacco 8878 894 6 9431 1,2007 1,2007 1,258 2
Japanese Domestic Tobacco 6322 8119 654 0 676 2 656 3 6498
Operating profit (Note 3} 401 3 4582 5322 6483 6427 571.8
International Tobacco 2259 2524 2894 3764 376 4 3795
Japanese Domestic Tobacco 2023 2093 2413 2681 2356 1815
Pharmaceutical {133 (135) (162 {90} {i3 7" {73}
Food {36) 20 - - - -
Beverage 45 23 {21) (2 1) {0 5)
Processed Food {25) 58 02) 07 (12)
Others {99} 90 212 250 457 199
Adjusted EBITDA/Adjusted operating profit (Note 3) 5220 5771 6220 6418 6126 6601
International Tobacco 2778 3148 3432 4108 4108 4471
Japanese Domestic Tobacco 2472 2623 2813 2577 234 6 2387
Pharmaceutical {9 8) {100 (127) 2 0) 37 (73)
Food 177 200 - - - -
Beverage 146 124 2Zn {21} {0 5)
Processed Food 54 74 06 086 14
Others Mo {98) {96 (162 (Y7 B} 19 3)
Depraciation and amortization {(Note 3} 180 1188 1165 1329 1327 1395
Profit (attnbutable to owners of the parent) {Note 4} 2433 3209 3436 4280 4430 3891
Free cash flow {FCF) (Note 5) 3004 4513 3160 2126 3164 455 4
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FY2014 Resuits for the fiscal year ended Decemnber 31 2014

Bilhons of yen

FY2010 Fy2011 Fy2012 FY2013 Fr2014
{IFRS) {IFRS) {IFRS) {IFRS) {IFRS}
At year-end
Assets 36552 36670 38526 46168 4,704 7
Interest-bearning Debts (Note 6) 7081 5024 3272 3759 228 2
Liabilities 20539 1952 4 1,9601 20207 2,082 2
Equity 16013 171486 1,8924 25961 2,6225
Major Financial Ratios
ROE (Note 7) 153% 20 3% 200% 19 9% 14 4%
ROA (Note 8} 10 2% 121% 13 5% 150%  108%
Equity Ratio {Noie 9) a1 7% 44 6% 46 9% 54 3% 539%
Amounts per share (in yen}
Diluted EPS (Notes 10/17) 26 207 168 44 18098 23535 19956
Book value per share (attnbutable to owners of the parent} {Note 11} 160180 858 09 99398 137857 1,39874
Dmidend per share (Note 11} 6800 50 68 96 1000
Dindend payout ratio {Note 12) 26 8% 29 7% 37 6% 40 8% 50 1%
Notes
1 Excluding tobaceo excise taxes and ravenus from agant transacuons 8§ Including leasa obligation
2 Excluding revenue from distribution business of imported tobacco among others 7 Return on equity {attnbutable o owners of tha parent company)
n the Japanese domasiic iobacco business in addiion 16 the distnbution private 8 ROA=(Profit balore Income taxes)/Total assets (average of beginning
labe! contract manufaciuring and other penphaeral businesses in tha Intarnatenal and ending balance of the period]
tobacco business 9 Eguity rano (atinbutable to owners of the parent company)
3 (Before FY2012) Adjusted EBITDA = Dparating profit + depreciation and 0 Based on profit (atirbutable 10 owners of the parent company)
amortizatian + adjusted itams (income and costs)* 11 A 700 for une shara splil (s dune «ffective as af July 1 2012
*adjusted items {incoma and co$is) = iImpairment logses on goodwill + Calculated on the assumpton that this share split was conducted at
restructuning mcemae and cosis & othars the beginring of FY2011 (April 1 2017
{Since FY2013) Adjustad operating profit = Operaung prafit + amoruization cost 12 Based on proht (attnbutable 10 owners of the parent company)
of acquired intangibles + adjusied tems (income and cosis}” 13 Financial data disclosed herein are bastcally rounded
“adjustad 1tems (Incame and costs) = Impairmant lossas on goodwill +
rastructuring ingome and cests + others
4 Under IFRS profit s presanted before deducung non controlling interasts
For comparison we show the profit attnibutabla 1o tha awners of the
parant company
5 FCF = (cash flows from operating acuvities + cash flows from investng acivities)
excluding the following items
From “cash tfows from operating activties” Interests and dividends raceived and
their tax effect/intarest paid and 115 1ax effect
From ~cash flows from invasting activiies” Purchasae of sacunties/croceeds from
sale and redemption of secunties/payments inlo ima deposite/Proceeds from
withdrawa) of ume deposiis/others (but not business relaled (nvesiment securities
which are inclucad in tha Investmant secunties 1iem)
JAPAN TOBACCO INC ANNLUAI RFPORT FY2014 007
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Message from the Chairman and CEO

In 2014 we once agan proved our abnlity to grow even in a challenging operating environment

We would like to celebrate with you ancther successful
year for the JT Group Despite a challenging operating
environment Illustrated by fragile economy, increased
regulations and intensified competition, our adjusted
operating profit and adjusted EPS grew strongly on

a comparable basis

Superior tobacco brands were key 1n delvening our
strong results Leveraging the equity of its brands,
the international tobacco business most contnbuted
to the Group's profit growth More impertantly, this
performance was achieved without compromising
investment We continued to strengthen our brands,
broaden geographical reach and expand capability in
emerging products for future top-line growth

In addition, we adapted to changing market dynamics
by re-shaping organizations tn Europe, we proposed
a restructurning plan for two manufacturing facilies
to optimize our manufactuning footprint In Japan,
the reorganization program for our tobacco business
operations, announced in October 2013, progressed
as planned Furthermore, in February 2015 we
announced the withdrawal from manufacturing and
sales operation of JT branded beverages following

a thorough business review and considering the
Group’s optrmal resource allocation

008 JAPAN 10BACCO INC. ANNUAT REPORT FY2014

Return to shareholders

Underpinned by robust business and financial
performances, our annual dividend per share was
increased from the previous year, even though,

in relation to the change in accounting period, the
Group's reported results for fiscal year 2014 included
only mne months of Japanese operations We have
consistently raised our dwvidend since the JT Group was
Isted in 1894, and dunng the recent six-year period to
2014, compounded annual growth rate of our annual
dividend well exceeded 20%

Moreover, on February 5, 2015, we announced

a share repurchase program of up to 100 billton yen, or
36 milion shares which has completed in March 2015
Implementation of this program further ensures high
single-dign growth rate of adjusted EPS for mid- to
fong-term on a currency neutral basis, which 1s one

of our management targets




4 Tamgo-
Yasutake Tango
Chairman of the Board

Sustainability

Our management principle, the "4S” model, best
describes the JT Group's approach to sustainabifity
Under the "48" model, we strive to balance the
interests of stakeholders and fulfill our responsibilibes
towards them

Gwven investors'’ Increasing interest in company s
agenda for social and envircnmental responsibilities
as well as governance, we have been reinforcing
communication of sustainability performances to
enhance visibility for our activities Such an effort

led to immediate outcomes In 2014 JT was included
in the Dow Jones Sustainability Index Asia Pacific for
the first tme JT Group Sustainability Report FY2014
will be 1ssued scmetime in June, in which you will find
more about our sustainability intiatives We continue
to contribute to society and remain responsible in
conducting businesses, while embracing diversity
within the Group

In the years to come

Our well-conceived strategy and its exceflent execution
drove the strong results in 2014 Looking ahead, the
operating environment 1s not expected to significantly
imprave anytime soon In fact, our plan for 2015

!

l
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Mitsuomi Koizumi
President and CEQ and Representauve Director

assumes mdustry volume declines in key markets for
our tobacco business and significant currency
headwinds which are forecast to impact financials on a
reported basis However, we stay on the nght course
towards future sustainable profit growth by prioritizing
business nvestment In 2015 and beyond, the JT Group
1S logking to adjusted operating profit growth rate of
mid- to high- single digit at constant currency, as we
beheve our business fundamentals are and will remain
sound and solid supported by investment

Thus firm belief in business fundamentals leads us to

a shareholder return commitment for 2015, dividend
payout ratio of 50%, which 1s a comparable range to
the global FMCG players we have been benchmarking
Accordingly, dwvidend per share will continue to increase
In addition, the completed share repurchase program
should contribute to EPS growth

We have confidence in our strategy, our people and
our brands Above all, we share the same value through
our management principle, which encourages and
motivates each member of the organization We have
goed reasons to beheve that the JT Group will continus
to grow In the years to come
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CEO Business Review

Business ivestment remains our first priority

We unll increase muestment i 2015 to secure long-term sustainable growth

Strong business momentum

The JT Group's profit growth continued After 2009
when severely hit by economic turmoil and negative
currency movements, our profit has been consistently
increasing In 2014, we grew adjusted operating profit
at 78% vear over year, or 10 6% excluding adverse FX
mmpact Our international tobacco business was the
growth driver, while the Japanese domestic tobacco
and other businesses delivered solid results

Tobacco industry experienced various challenges in
2014 Economy was fragile across the globe, excise
tax hikes were steep in several markets, geopolucal
tension was mounting In certain areas, and regulations
became increasingly restrictive As a result, we faced
severe industry contractions and accelerated down-
trading (n some of our key markets In addition, in the
competitive environment, aggressive tactical pncing
was observed in several markets, against which we
reluctantly responded in some cases

Despite these difficulties, our international tobacco
business repeated a double-digit adjusted operating
profit growth of 13 1% on a currency neutral basis
driven mainly by strong pricing and supplemented
by continued cost control

Our confidence in brand equity, bullt through continuous
investment particularly in GFB, allowed us to pursue
pricing opportunities in various markets including
Russig, the UK and Ukraine among others Furthermore,
efficiency was sought across operations, and we
successfully managed material cost increases and
inflation Consequently, the international tobacco
business overcame negative volume development

due to industry vofume decline and fulfilled its role

as the profit growth engine of the JT Group
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Mitsuomi Koizumi
President and CEQ
and Representative Director

At the same tme, eyeing on the future growth, the
international tobacco business ngorously expanded
earnings base both in geographical and product fronts
We started to build foundations for our cigarette
business in Braall, Egypt and Myanmar as well as

in markets where we are under-represented In the
emerging product area, we took a meaningful step in
the E-Vapor category through the acquisition of
Zandera, the owner of E-Lites brand The addition of this
well-established brand will accelerate our progress
toward leadership in emerging products

In Japan, consumption tax, generally known as value
added tax, was hiked in April 2014 The Government
requested all industnes including tobacco to take
approprtate pnce increases, indicating that companies
were advised not to look for excessive gains from
tax-led pricing Accordingly, we revised our price list
by taking htgher price increases for certain brands and
lower for others so that our average price Increase met
the Government’s intention

Impact of the price increase on industry volume was felt,
but within our expectation However, there has been

a noticeable change in the competitive tactics, which
concevably target down-traders In fact, competitors
launched a number of new extensicns below the
brand’s base price after the tax and price hike

Under such a crrcumstance, we clearly distinguished
ourselves and focused our sales efforts on brands of
higher price increase to retain consumers Mareover,
underpinned by strong brand equity, our new product
offerings were focused on higher end with an aim to
further Improve profitability Consequently, the Japanese
domestic tobacce business defended its market share
of over 60% despite intensified competition




Improved unnt selling price as well as efficient cost
management more than offset volume downside,
leading to year-on-year increase In adjusted
cperating profit

The pharmaceutical business 1s on the path to generate
profit and its step-by-step progress continued during
2014 Most notably, we introduced two promising new
drugs in Japan, Riona Tablets for hyperphosphatemea
and Cedartolen Sublingual Drop for Japanese cedar
polhnosis In addition, we out-icensed JTE-052, JAK
inhubitor for tomcal use in dermatological Indication
worldwide excluding Japan, to a partner renowned

in the relevant therapeutic area We believe that these
achievements, sold performance of Tor Pharmaceutical
and growing loyalty revenues from Strbild and Mekinist
will turn our pharmaceutical busmess to a profit
contnbutor in the foreseeable future, as early as in 2016

The processed food business weathered another difficult
year Japanese economy saw a sign of recovery, but the
deflationary mindset of the population persisted Matenal
cost increases mainly due to weaker yen and mcreased
competition among other factors put additional pressure
on earnings However, solid performance of staple

food products, our focus area, and successful cost
management resulted in adjusted operating profit
improvement from the previcus year

The beverage business expenenced unfavorable
weather condition in summer as well as intensive
competition, and these factors collectively brought
negative iImpact on our revenue Despite that,
additional focus on cast optimization contributed
1o a year-on-year earnings improvement

Reshaping foundation

In 2014 our businesses remained strong Notwithstanding,
with an aim to achieve sustainable profit growth for a
mid- to long-term, we engaged in Initiatives to strengthen
our business foundation, most of which required

tough decisions

In February 2015 we announced the exit from
manufacturnng and sales operations of JT branded
beverages, expecting the timing of the exit by the

end of September 2015 The JT Group started these
operations In 1988, and marketed several unigue
brands since then However, according to our analysis
the overall beverage industry has matured and certain
scale of business 1s required for the market players to
sustain profit growth After carefully considering the
growth strategy for these operations, we concluded
that it would be difficult for them to make a profitable
contnbution to the JT Group In the rmid- to long-term
Meanwhile, we will continue the beverage vending
machine operation conducted by our subsidiaries,
and seek vanious options for these subsidiaries

The imtermational tobacco business made a difficult
proposal to optimize product sourcing by adjusting
and relocating manufactuning capability within Europe
This inimiative 1s to respond to the expected market

development in this region, notably industry contraction
and the planned introduction of new regulations, known
as "Revised European Tobacco Product Directive”,
which will cause a significant impact on the entire EU
tobacco industry As of March 2015 we started discussing
the closure of manufacturing operations of two facilities,
one in Lisnafillan, Northern Iretand and the other in
Wervik, Belgium Under the current proposal, their
production as well as most of OTP manufacturing
function in Trier, Germany, will be moved to existing
factores in Poland and Romania

The processed food business will be imptementing a
program to transfer certain employees to the TableMark
Group companies in April 2015 This program tQ move
employees within the JT Group ensures the unity of

the TableMark Group employees coming from various
backgrounds after a senes of acquisitions

Reorganization of the Japanese domestic tobacco
business 1s on track, re-arranging the organizations and
preparing for office and factory closures As part of the
process, approximately 1,760 employees applied fora
voluntary retirement program, and most of the applicants
will leave the JT Group at the end of March 2015

Investing now, delivering in the future

The JT Group pricntizes business investment that leads
to sustainable profit growth This policy 1s reflected in
our 2015 plan to increase mvestment from the previous
year, notably with an aim to accelerate development of
emerging products and “seeding” markets These two
areas represent points of strategic emphasis on top of
continuous brand equity enhancement We are not
expecting Immediate return from the mnvestments in
these areas, rather we regard them as future growth
dnvers The current operating environment 1s all the
more challenging and uncertain Thinking short-term,
it would be tempting to reduce investment to secure
profit, but this approach cannot be sustanable
Instead, we think long-term, we continue to Invest
during this difficult ime, to enjoy the most benefit
from the investment when the envircnment stabilzes
This approach proved successful 1n the past in helping
us weather similar turmell Incorporating the additional
investments, the JT Group plans year-on-year adjusted
operating profit growth of approximately 7% in 2015 at
constant currency driven by our core tobacco business

Our proven strategies remain unchanged We will
continue to enhance our brand equity and broaden
earnings base for quality top-line growth In and after
2015, cost reduction will be realized from certain
imtiatives taken 1in 2014 We will stay committed to
pursuing efficiency to build a competitive cost base
Our efforts to further establish rabust business
foundation will continue We will respond to the
evolving environment and reshape our organizations
50 that our talented and diverse employees can perform
up to or even exceed their capabiities With these
strategies In place, the JT Group 15 well-positioned to
achieve sustainable growth in the mid- to long-term
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Management Principle, Strategic Framework

and Resource Allocation

Management Principle

The “45” model, our management principle, s the
most shared value among [T Group employees
across businesses and countries

Shareholders

Employses §

Strategic Framework

The "45” model 15 JT Group's core competency

Our dectsion making has been and will continue to be
based on this management prnciple To balance the
interests of and fulfill responsibilities towards
stakeholders and exceed their expectations,

* For our consumers, we will offer superior products
which meet or even go beyond their evolving needs
To achieve that, we will make the most of JT Group's
dwersity 10 enhance our capability in innovation

* For our shareholders, we will continue to seek an
optimal balance between profit growth through |
business investment and shareholder returns
comparable to global FMCG players

* [For our employees, we will further evoive to become
an attractive and respected company so that
employees feel proud to be a part of it For that,
we will highly value the employees with a strong
sense of commitment to deliverables and properly
reward theirr accomphshments

* The growth of the JT Group 1s dependent on
sustainability of society We will continue to
contribute to society and eventually enhance
our company value

Our track record proves that our strategy 1s night, and we beheve that it unll continue to underinn the strong

performance of the [T Group

Quality top-line growth

Among the strategic pillars, the JT Group places a
particular emphasis on quality top-line growth, which 1s
indispensable for sustamable growth We aim to grow
top-line by consistently offering innovative products For
example, In both international and Japanese domestic
tobacco businesses, innovative offerings such as XS and
capsule supported share of market and share of value
performances in 2014 Also, we emphasize on key
areas, brands or products to achieve fop-ine growth

In tobacco businesses, we continued to focus on GFB
and certain local brands Cur pharmaceutical business
concentrated its RED efforts on glucose and lipid
metaboltsm, virus research as well as immune disorders
and mflammation as in the past And staple foods
remained the focus area for processed food business

Competitive cost base

The JT Group has a history to proactively address cost
optimization, even before cost Increase becomes a
senous problem 2014 was no exception As explaned
in the previous sections, we Implemented various
initiatives across businesses which will enhance
efficiency More importantly, these initiatives were

Q12 FAPAN FOBACCO INC ANNUAI RFPORI FY2014

intended not merely to reduce costs, but to strengthen the
business operations We continuously seek to improve
cost base, while not compromising nvestments for
future sustamnable growth

Robust business foundation

Business environment surrounding the JT Group
has been changing fast In order to respond to and
even take advantage of the changes, we encourage
each employee and organization to challenge the
status quo for continuous iImprovement We believe
that our talented and diverse employees are the
cornerstone of business growth We have been
offenng various deveiopment opportunities for
them and histening to therr feedback via employee
engagement survey conducted regulariy
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Resource Allocation

First, we grow profit through business investment. Then, use this profit to return cash to our shareholders

Business investment and capital policy Under the Japan Tobacco Inc law, we are subject —
The JT Group 1s a growth company Investing for both to restriction in issuing new shares Given the

external and organic growth, we histonically increased circumstance, we plan to maintain a strong balance sheat

prcfit, and eventually corporate value We believe that for debt financing and not to cancel treasury stock

opportunities exist to expand earnings base especially With sufficient debt capacity, we can consider share

for tobacco business Our investment will mainly focus repurchase when the Government, who holds one-third

on this core business to fuel its growth As we expect of our outstanding shares, releases them, in whole or in
pharmaceutical and processed food businesses to part, In the future

contribute to the Group profit in the future, we will
allocate our funds to best utilize existing assets and
improve their profitability

Sharehclder Return Dividend per share
As profit increased, we have consistently improved HPY)

return 10 shareholders Our benchmark in this regard 1s
global FMCG players, not tobacco peers, and we aim

to offer shareholders a return comparable to FMCG
companies We set targets for dividend payout ratio

and EPS growth As for EPS, our objective 1s to grow
adjusted EPS at constant FX, which excludes one-off
financial influences from such as restructuring as well as
impact from currency movements VWe intend to achieve
the target for EPS growth through profit increase from
operations, however, we would consider a share
buy-back program to supplement the EPS growth,

if necessary to reach our target

Fr2010 FYz011 FYz012 Fy2013 Fr2014 FY2015
Forecast
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Business Plan 2015

The [T Group’s Business Plan covers a three-year period, and s rolled-over annually
to reflect the changes in our business entnronment including economacs, geopolitics
and competriion By leveraging and enhancing our ability to adapt to changes,

we unll achieve sustainable profit growth

Group profit target

¢ Adjusted operating profit at constant currency over mid- to long-term

— Mid to high single-digit annual average growth rate

Shareholder return targets:
* Consohidated dividend payout ratio

- Alevel comparable to global FMCG players and no less than 50%

- 50% in FY2015

* Adjusted EPS at constant currency over mid- to long-term

- High single-digit annuat average growth rate

* Adjusted items (income and costs] = impairment losses on geodwill £ restructuring income and costs + others

Forecast for FY2015

* Adjusted operating profit 1s forecast to grow
6 8% at constant currency International tobacco
business, the profit growth engine, 1s expected
to grow 1its currency neutral adjusted operating
profit at 8% driven by top-line Japanese domestic
tobacco business 1s projected to increase adjusted

operating profit at approximately 5% mainly through

cost optimization

¢ On a reported basis, adjusted operating profitis
forecast to dechine 11 4%, as negative currency
impact, most notably weak Russian ruble, exceeds
strong business performance

* We will achieve dvidend payout ratio of 50%
in FY2015 Accordingly, dividend per share will
continue to Increase and reach 108 yen In addition,
share repurchase program of up to 100 bilhon yen or
36 milhon shares was iniiated in February 2015 and
completed in ensunng month This program aims
to complement the EPS growth to ensure that we
achieve the target in Business Plan 2015 and beyond

Adjusted operating profit
JPY BN)

7050

660 1 4 5353'6& .
5850
2014 Busness Fr2015 Local JPY vs USD 2015
Jan Dec  momentum  {Jan Dec} cUrTency FX oftects [Jan Dac)
Foracast vs USD Faracast

arcurrant  FX effects
curency
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Dindend per share
WPY)

100 108

Fr2014 FY2015
Forecast
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Performance Measures

FY2014 Results for the fiscal vear ended December 31 2014

In our Business Plan 2015, targets we sel for adjusted Operating Profit growth rate at constant exchange
rates as well as consolidated dividend payout ratio and adpusted EPS growth rate al constant exchange
rates While they are mid- o long-term targets, we also morator these performance measures annually

In our strategic framework to achieve adjusted Operating Profit growth rate, the JT Group places a particular
emphasis on “quality top-line growth”, while, at the same tme, focusing on buillding a “competitive cost base”
and “robust business foundations” In ine wath our strategic emphasis, the measures to review our business
performance are skewed towards top-line related indicators As for shareholder return, we have selected
three indicators to monitor the improvement

Tobacco sales volume

Intermational tobacco
{BnlJ

Calandar

- - . -4 7% to 398 o@ BnU

For the international tobacco business total shipment volume

4385 4175 . :§9§_g includes fine cut cigars pipe tobacco and snus, but excludes
T contract manufactured products, waterpipe tobacco products
' » and emerging products
- oy -
2012 2013 2014

Japanese domestic tobacco
{Bn)

36%10 11204 BnU

. For fapanese domestic tobacco, total sales volume excludes sales
1162 1165 1124 volume of Japanese domesuc duty free and the China business

FY2012 2013 2014
Jan Dec Jar Dec

GFB shipment volume

GFB shipment volume
(BnU)

Calandar

o 20%t0 262 o 2 BnU

Shipment volume of GFBs namely Winston, Came!, MEVIUS
LD B&H Silk Cut Glamour and Sobranie in the international
tobacco business

2688 2675 2622

2012 2013 214
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Core revenues

International tobacco

[USS MM}
Calandar
year hasis
| 30 5 % at constant exchange rates to US$ 12 700 MM
For the international tobacco business US dollar-based core
! ) revenue includes revenue from waterpipe tobacco products
12,273 .91 and emerging products but excludes revenues from distributron
11,655 ' contract manufactuning and other penpheral businesses
202 203 Operauons 2014 EX 014
Restated* at constant
currency
* See glossary cf terms
Japanese domestic tobacco
(JPY BN)
1 0% to JPY 64]:9)0 8 BN
For the Japanese domestc tobacco business, core revenue
— excludes revenue from distribution of imported tobacco in
656 3
6540 Japan among others
649 8
FY2012 2013 2014
Jan Cec Jan Dec
Revenue
Revenue
{JPY BN)
+2 06% 10 JPY2 433 5 BN
Revenue on a consclidated basis which for the avoidance of
2,433 5 doubt excludes excise and other similar taxes as well as sales
23722
. ~ from transactions in which the JT Group acts as an agent
2,120 2
Fr2012 013 2034
Jan Dec Jan Dec

JAPAN TOBACCO INC ANNUAL RFPORT FY2014 at7
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Performance Measures contnued

FY2014 Results for the fiscal year ended December 31 2014

Adjusted Operating Profit

Adjusted Operating Profit
(JPY BN)
e— 106 78
658 ';‘t‘;_% A § a -] % L4 %
FL o ) - ‘
%ﬂ%}% 39} 3 at constani exchange rates meluding currency impact .
,“""’“‘7‘;%‘3" W o JPY 6778 BN to JPY 6601 BN |
TN R 76601 I
622 Of 6126 : N C Adjusted operating profit s calculated as follows :
o P . Adjusted operating profit = Operating profit + Amortzation cost of i
FY2012 2013 Operatons 2014 Fx T oama acquired intangibles + Adjustment items (Income and costs)*
Jan Dec at constan Jan Dec |
currency
* Adjustment itemns (income and costs} are impairment iossas on gaodwill
restructuning related income and costs and others
Dividend payout ratio
Dmidend payout ratio
(%}
Devidend per share divided by profit attnbutable to owners
501 of 1he parent cormnpany per share
40 8
376
FY2012 F¥2013 Fr2014

018

JAPAN TOBACCO ING ANNLAL RFPORT EFY2(14

adjusted operating profit {JPY) growth rate’ over the past five vears

1 The calculation was based on operatng profit for FY2010 FY2011 and FY2012
and adjusted operaung proht for Jan Oec 23 and 2014




1%

dividend per share growth over the past five years

. Dividend per share

Dmdend per share
P

96 100

68

Fraoz FYZ2013 Frzon4

| Adjusted EPS (diluted)

e 100 yEN

The sum of interim and year-end dividends per share the record
dates of which fall in the relevant fiscal year

Adjusted EPS (diluted)
JPY)

" M) VTARGE
a¥5g)
246 57 23901
22198
173 64
' N2 W03 Qparations 2014 at FX 2014
Jan Dec constant Jan Dec

curancy

7 7%

including currency iImpact
to JPY 23901

+1 1.1

at constant exchange rates
to JPY 246 57

Adjusted EPS s calculated as follows

Adjusted EPS = {Profit or loss attributable to owners of the
parent company + adustment tems (income and costs} + tax
and minonty interests adjustments) / {(weighted-average common
shares + increased number of ordinary shares under subscription
fights to shares)

T Agjustmaent inems {income and castst are impairment fossas on goodwill
restructuning relgted income ana costs and othars

IAPAN [OBACCO INC ANNLAL RFPORIT £Y2014 o1y
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Industry Overview

Tobacco

Tobacco industry

Market dynamics

There are many types of tobacco products availlable in
today's marketplace Cigarettes remain the most popular
choice for consumers, while fine-cut, cigars, pipe
tobacco, snuff, chewing tobacco and water-pipe tobacco
continue to draw consumers’ interest, with some of these
product categories increasing therr volumes worldwide

In addition, the next generation of emerging products such
as electronic cigarettes (e-cigarettes) have become widely
popular, particularly in the US and European markets
E-cigarettes use vaponzed hquid solutions often containing
nicotine, and vapor 1s inhaled to offer a different expenence
Recently, other type of emerging products referred to as
‘E-Vapar’ or 'Heat-not-Burn’ cigarette products, have
become available to consumers Unlike e-cigarettes,
E-Vapor products often use tobacco leaf and are therefore
taxed and regulated as cigarette products Although
market size for e-cigarettes or E-Vapors stilt small, further
innovation and product offerings are anticipated, as market
players take keen interest in this new growing category

Approximately 5 7 trillton cigarettes are consumed
around the world China s by far the largest market,
accounting for over 40% of global consumption, but it 1s
almost exciusively operated by a state monopoly Russia,
the US, Indonesia and Japan are the next four largest
markets, according to a survey conducted in 2013

In general, the market dynamics are distinctively different
between mature and emerging markets In mature markets,
industry volume tends to decline reflecting vanous factors
such as imited economic growth, tax increases, tightening
regulations, and demographic changes, among others

In addion, down-trading is prevalent in these markets
Consurmers are inchned to seek maore value as they feel
tobacco products become less affordable in the context

of imited growth of disposable ncome Recently, these
trends hawve been notable in EU countries, as weak
economic condtions accelerate industry contraction

and down-tracing

In emerging markets, on the other hand, total
consumption tends to Increase, driven by population
growth and economic development, particularly in
Asia, the Middle East and Africa As therr disposable
income Increases, consumers look for quality and
trade up to products in higher price bands

Overall, when we exclude China, global industry volume
has been slightly decreasing according to a survey
conducted in 2013* However, more importantly,

* Squr¢e Euromonitor excluding e cigarettas (2013 data)
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industry value continues to grow even in the current
difficult operating environment, mainly driven by price
increases This is a sign of the resilience of the industry
These trends - dechne in volume and increase in value
— are expected to continue in the years ahead

Regulations

The regulatory environment continues to be more
restrictive for the tobacco industry Restrictions on
promotions and advertsements are the most common
around the world An increasing number of markets

are introducing bans on smoking in public places and
promoting larger health warnings on product packaging,
1in some cases with pictonal health warnings

Recent regulations are focusing more on the product
itself Plain packaging has been introduced in some
markets and furthermore, regulators are becoming

more aggressive by restricting ingredients and ermissions,
following the guidelines on these attnbutes proposed by
the Framework Convention on Tobacco Centrol In
Europe, a revised European Tobacco Directive adopted
extended health warnings, reduction in the number of
pack formats or restrictions on the use of addtives,
among others We expect to see EU member states
complying with these restnctions by May 2017 These
moves to commoditize tobacco products will undermine
far competiion among tobacco manufacturers trying to
meet increasingly diverse consumer preferences Worse,
they could result in an undesired Increase in ilhcit trade, as
commoditized products with less uniqueness are easter
to counterfeit and more difficult to detect when smuggled

Excise taxes were raised in various markets during the past
year, and in general, tax Increases are passed onto prices
However, repeated tax increases in a short penod of time,
or steep tax increases, could lead to a decline In Industry
volume Qften, tax increases concide with an increase in
#hicit trade, which could in turn affect our business

Competition

Excluding China, two-thirds of world industry volume

1s produced by four major global tobacco companies,
namely Phiip Morns International Inc, British American
Tobacco Plc, Japan Tobacco inc and Impenal Tobacco
Group Pic* The competiion within the industry is intense
and, as consumers' needs and preferences continue to
diversify, a strong portfolio with established brands 1s
increasingly important to support market share gains
Therefare, major global companies are focusing on brand
equity enhancement to strengthen their brand portfolics
by introducing Innovative products In addition to the
pursuit of orgamc growth, M&A 1s an effective way to
supplement growth opportunities in this industry

Industry data will be updaiad on J7 wab sila around June 2015



Industry data will be updated on JT web-site around June 2015

Top 10 countnies by volume

Country
China
Russia

us
Indonesia
Japan
India
Turkey
South Korea
Philippines
Vietnam

Source Euromanitor

2009
2,22912
3900
3207
1738
2351
987
1075
94 2
94 8
760

Top market players

Philip Morris International Inc

British American Tobacco Plc

Japan Tobacco Inc

Impenal Tebacco Group Pl

Source Euromaonitor and JT estrnate
Excluding Ctina National Tobacco Corp ICNTC)

Top brands

Brand
Marlboro
Winston
Pall pall
&M
Mevius
Gold Flake
Kent
Gudang Garam
Camel
Dunhill

Source Euromonitor

Company

* Philip Morns Internaticnat Inc
¢ Japan Tobacce Inc

= British Amencan Tobacco Pl
= Philip Mornis International Inc
* Japan Tobacco Inc

s |ITC Ltd

* Briish Amenican Tobacco Plc
* Gudang Garam Tbk PT

+ Japan Tobacco Inc

* British Amenican Tobacco Pl

Excluding China National Tobacco Corp {CNTC)

2010 2011 2012
23187 2406 2 24779
3831 3751 3708
3091 2891 2927
816 1918 2031
179 1959 1974
986 1028 1021
934 912 953
905 899 833
014 974 1025
797 826 835

* Altnia Group Inc
* Reynolds American Inc
* Reynolds American Inc

» Briugsh American Tobacco Plc

* Reynolds Amertcan Inc

JAPAN

Bulior units

2013

26178
3472
2852
2212
19590
1009
922
885
867
853

2009
2272
195
166

89

2009
4257
1221
904

848
1037
603
576
48 8
687
458

2010
243
197
16 2
88

2010
4208
1224
994
847
952
530
570
523
639
4840

2011
246
200
155
87

2011
414 4
122 4
i0nQ
873
812
58 8
602
537
6G 2
471

LOBACLO ING ANNUAL RFPORT FY2014
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Share of market (%)

2012
251
202
16 2
886

2012
476 9
130 2
1016
881
84 4
616
636
578
596
470

2013
251
205
166

85

Billien units
2013
4027
136 3
045
895
837
627
618
605
587
515

023
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Industry Overview contimued

Pharmaceutical

Market dynamics

The global pharmaceutical market continues to grow,
reaching sales of approximately US$980 billion i
2013 according to IMS Health

In emerging countries, demand for modern medicine
1s rapidly growing due to muttiple factors including
growing consciousness of health, increase in
population, and development of public healthcare
systems, among others Mature markets also see a
value increase, though the pace of growth 15 moderate
Facing a rapidly aging society and a fiscal deficit, the
governments In these markets try to contain healthcare
costs through wider promotion of genenc drugs

In addrtion, patents of commercially successful

drugs have been expiring dunng recent years, which
accelerates the global trend of industry consolidation

Worldwide Pharmaceutical Market
{USS BN}

11400
800
700

500

Source 2014 IMS Health

Mature markets hold majority of share In global
pharmaceutical markets North Amenica 1s the largest
market and accounts for 37% of the worldwide market,
fallowed by Europe and Japan, representing 29% and
10%., respectively

024 [APAN TOBACCO ENC ANNUAL REPORI FY2014

2013 Regional Composition

(O 36 8% North America
® 29 2% Europe

® 956% Japan

@ 24 29 Others

Source 2014 IMS Health

In Japan, the main market for our pharmaceutical
business, prescription drugs comprise the majonity

of the market in terms of net sales The Japanese
genenic drug market for prescription drugs 1s still small
compared with that in the U S and Europe However,
it has been expanding more recently due In part to
government promotion of generic drugs in order to
control medical care expenses

In Japan, the government determines the price of
pharmaceutical products with revisions being made
every two years In April 2014, the latest round of price
revisions led to an industry-wide reduction of drug
prices by 5 6% on average excluding consumption

tax increase

Competition

The pharmaceutical industry 1s highly competitive
worldwide Our pharmaceutical business focuses

on building a R&D-led operational platform Based on
this platform, onginal compounds are developed and
marketed as leading preducts in major global markets
As such, we face competition with Japanese and
multinational pharmaceutical companies These
companies are also focused on their research

and development pipelines




Processed Food

Market dynamics

JT's processed food business i1s operated through our
subsidiary TableMark Co, Ltd ({TableMark) which plays
a central role in our processed food business TableMark
focuses on frozen food such as frozen noodles, frozen
nce and bread, ambient processed food represented

by packed-cooked rice, seasoning business utihzing our
yeast technology, and bakery business

The size of the Japanese frozen food market in 2013 on
a consumption basis including imports was ¥9771
billion, up 8 7% year-on-year {Source Japan Frozen
Food Association) This was due to an increase In
household consumption of frozen food artsing from
stronger preference for eating-in after the Great East
Japan Earthquake Product development efforts by
manufacturers also contributed to the growth, as well as
the use of frozen food in restaurants, so demand for
them remained solid throughout the year

Japanese Frozen Food Market
(JPY BN)

1100
800
700

s0 | . agas | s

2010 20n 2002

Source Japan Frozen Food Assaciation

For the Japanese processed food industry, we expect to
see additional price iIncreases \n imported raw matenals
and prices of raw materials remaining at high levels The

processed food business is also significantly impacted
by developments in the wholesale and retail sales
channels, particularly by their consohdation We will
continue to monitor the development of these channels,
especially in the area of M&A

In response to the April 2014 consumption tax increase,
whereby consumption tax was raised from 5% to 8%,
food manufacturers managed the tax hike in a number
of ways, for example by raising prices in conjunction
with product renewals or reducing cost by amending
product specifications

2013 Share of Market by Frozen Food Manufacture

O 21 4% Nichires

O 15 8% Maruha Nichiro

@ 12 6% TableMark

® 08% Ajnomoto

@ 80% Nissu

@ 31 4% Others

Source The Nikker Business Daily

Competition

TableMark 1s competing against major players hike
Nichirel, Maruha Nichiro, Ajinomoto and Nissui

as well as a multitude of mid-or small-scale producers
We are seeing a polarization of retaiiers as well as
reorganization and oligopolization of the wholesale
sector led by sogo-shosha, the general trading
companies, resulting in stronger price negaotiation
power against manufacturers VWe are also seeing

an increase i private label brands

JAPAN TOBACCO INC ANNLAL RFPORT FY 2014 025
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Review of Operations

Tobacco Business Value Chain

R&D Procurement

Create value for the business through Ensure stable supply of qualty tobacco leaf

innovation and quality * Tobacco leaf 1s the most important

* We focus on fundamental research matenal for our products, and we dedicate

026

and product technology development
taking advantage of our global research
platform n close collaboration with other
functions In particular focus areas in our
R&D activities are

— Develop products and analyucal
capabilities in ine with market needs
and our anticipation of regulatory trends

- Maintain existing products to comply
with reguiatory changes

- Develop new technologies and improve
production processes to maintain
competitiveness and increase efficiency

— Dnive product innovaion to enhance
brand eguity from varnous aspects
including tobacce leaves blends,
filters printing techniques and packaging

- Develop emerging products

JAPAN TOBACCO INC ANNUAL RFPORI EY2014

our efforts to strengthen our capability
to ensure a stable supply of quality leaf
in the long term

— Increase the proportion of leaf from
cur vertical integration bases in Africa
Brazil and the U S

- Enhance sustainability of tobacco
farming by helping farmers to improve
praductivity as well as taking initatives
10 support their communities

- Mantain good relationships with
external supplters to ensure sufficient
supply at competitive prices

With regard to non-tobacco-matenals

we aim 1o mitgate cost increases due

1o design enhancements and investment
In Innovative products by, among others
effectively managing procurement lot-size



Manufacturing

Support top-line growth by delivering
quality products

* Our emphasis on product quality
1S JNcreasing to meet consumer
expectations far innovative offenngs
In addittion we consistently pursue an
optimal manufactunng footpnnt which
ensures efficient and timely product
delivenes to markets

- Strengthen our alility for business
continuity In times of emergency

— Ensure high qualiiy of products and
enhance flexibility in the manufacturing
process, overcoming complexity
in manufactunng due to an iNcrease
in number of products

— Arthe same ume seek efficiency by
containing cost increases through
continuous improvement and
reviewing manufacturing footprint
for further optirization

- ¢} —
=
MEVIUS

imagineering the future

L/

Marketing

Enhance equity of flagship brands

* Qur strategic focus 1s placed on our
flagship brands and we strive to
enhance their equity through effective
communications with consumers

- Allccate appropriate resources
to suppoert GFB's equity bullding

- Implement effective marketing
programs, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations
as well as our own marketng code

SISATYNY B SNQOiLvHId0 '

Sales & Distnbution

Expand product avallabibty by leveraging
our trade markeung excellence

* There are various sales channels for
tobacco products such as supermarkets
convenience stores street and tran
station kiosks small independent retailers
and vending machines Key channels are
different depending on market and we
develop win-win relationships with them
lo increase the availabuity of our products

- Strengthen relationship with key
accounts leveraging our trained
sales forces

- Develop trade marketing mitiatives
for each market taking intc account
the channel develcpment as
well as consumer trends and
competitors actions

JAPAN TOBAC LO INC ANNUAI RFPORT FY2014 027




Review of Operations conunued

International Tobacco Business
FY2014 Results for the fiscat year ended December 31 2014

Thomas A McCoy
President & CEQ JTI

“In 2014, JTI yet again delivered strong financial results
with adjusted operating profit growing 13 1% at
constant rates of exchange driven by robust pricing
and share momentum

Our continued nvestment behind our brands enabled us
to maintarn our total share of market while growing total
share of value, despite industry volume contraction in
some key markets We also grew both Global Flagship
Brands (GFB} share of market and share of value

In the fine cut category, we continued to grow both
volume and share of market This was dnven by our GFBs
and strong brands like Amber Leaf and Old Holborn

JTH enhanced its presence In the growing emerging
products category with the acquisition of Zandera,
owner of E-Lites, a leading e-cigarette brand In the UK

Another cornerstone of our growth 1s our people

The recently awarded Top Employer Global 2015
certification recognizes the high standards we have
set ourselves globally in fostering a work environment
where employees can excel

Importantly, solid pricing, combined with cost efficiencies
and benefits refated tc Megapolis, resulted in another
year of double-cigit profit growth at constant currency

Far 2015, we forecast GFB volume growth and continued
market share momentum We will step up investments
in our emerging products portfolio while also enhancing
our organic growth by focusing on areas where our
presence 1s hmited and by pursuing opportunities to
expand into new markets

While the environment will remain challenging, we
expect our 2015 earnings to grow by 8% at constant
currency, enabling JTH to continue to be the profit engine
of the JT Group”

028 [APAN TOBAGCCO INC ANNUAL RFPORT FY20H

393.0

Total Sipment Volume (BnU)

262.2

GFB Shipmoant Volume (BnU)

11,911

-4 7%

Year on year change

2 0%

Year-on year change

-3.0% +3.5%

Coro Reavenue {US$ MM) Year-on year change Canstan! currancy

4,253 +1.1% 1314

Adjusted cperating profit (US$ MM)  Yaar-on year change Constant currancy

JTT represents the miternatimal actrenties of the [T Groufr's
lobaceo business [H manyfactures and sells some 90
brands m more than 120 couniries It 1s the profit grouth

enge of the Group, driven by us drersified geographac
profile and the strength of us brands and people

Our strategies

Cur prionties are to continue achieving quality top-ine
growth and brocadening our earmings base JTI's
business strategies are guided and underpinned

by the principle of continuous iImprovement

Qur key strategies are

* Build and nurture outstanding brands

+ Continuously enhance productivity

* Maintain focus on responsibility and credibdity

¢ Strengthen human resources as a cornerstone
of growth

Review of operations

Despite fine cut volume growing 11 1%, total shipment
volume was down 4 7% to 398 0 billion cigarette
equivalent units, due to significant industry contraction
Our total share of market remained at the same level as
2013 while our GFBs continued to gain market share,
burlding on therr momentum

We also grew total share of value and GFB share of value
This 1s the result of focused and consistent Investment
over many years to enhance the equity of our brands and
ensure the highest standards in our trade marketing

Another key success factor 1s the well-balanced
structure of our portfolio captunng both down-traders
and up-traders according to local market trends

Pricing was the key financial driver of our financial
growth Core revenue at constant currency increased
3 5% driven by pnce/mix improvements of US$958
milhion, mainly in Russia, Tawan, the UK and Ukraine
On a reporied basis, core revenue decreased 3 0%
due to unfavorable currency movements




Global Flagship Brands (GFB) Portfolio

Our GFBs form the core of our brand portfolio. We have eight GFBs
promding a well-balanced portfolio to address consumer needs globally

Winston Camel Y !

129 6 . First introduced in 1954, Winsion is one 46 4: . Launched in 1913 and onginator of the
U BnU of our key growth dnvers The second <X BnU Amencan blend Camel has stood the

Global Safes Global Sales

largest cigaretie brand worldwide since
2007, Winston 1s currently sold in mare
than 100 markets

In 2014 Winston gained share and global
reach It consolidated its number 2 global
ranking, growing 1ts market share 0 4ppt

to 9 6% Winston achieved record market
share In 27 markets including Russia where
1t 15 the leading brand Notable gains were
also achieved in Azerbaijan, Germany,
Sweden Switzerland and Taiwan where the
brand was histonically under-represented
Winston continued expanding with
launches in Brazil, Egypt, Hungary,

Oman and Sudan

Winston grew volume in 21 of its top

30 markets, reaching over 1 billion units

in 26 markets [n fine cut, shipment volurme
momenturn continued with an increase

of 34 1% and market share growing

across Europe

Baoth pillars of the Winston portfolio
architecture, Winston Core and
Winston XS contnbuted

Qur Core pillar delivers an authentic,

high quality, premium smoking experience
It continues to grow steadily driven by
rmainstream preducts such as Winston
King Size, Winston Super Shims and
Winston Fine Cut Our XS pillar offers

a mare style focused product created
specifically to open up new segments and
terntories to Winston Despile being a new
player, XS s the number 1 offening in the
King Size Super Shm segment and the
number 2 in fat shms globalty

{ Hfumo 2
| uccide

test of tme  It1s sold today in more than

85 countnes and 1s one of the top five
premium brands in many of our key markets
Camel continues to successfully reinvent
itself, buitding on its strong hentage and
genuine taste

SISATYNY 8 SNOILVYHIAH0 |

In 2014, Camel grew market share 0 bppt

to 3 6% and achieved new records in

the Czech Repubiic, Greece, the Netherlands
Poland and Turkey

Following its price repositioning in Turkey in
May 2014 Camel grew volume and share to
become the number 1 cigarette brand by the
fourth quarter Its market share mncreased
Sppt to reach 7 9%, with all ine extensions
contnbuting to the growth

On a global basss, all Camel ing extensions
grew volume including Black & White,
Essential and Activate Camel also grew its
fine cut volume and remasned the number
1 brand in the fine cut category in France
In 2014, Camel achieved a record high
shipment volume since the brand was
acquired by JTlin 1888

Camel volumes {bllion of ¢igaratie equivalent units)

a6 4

303

1999 204

Disclaimer market share for brands s based on the markets thay are sold in

Please be reminded that this section is intended to explain the business cperat ans of J¥ to
investors but not to promata sales of tobacco products or 10 enrourage smoking by consumers
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ReView Of Operations conbinued

International Tobacco Business continued

Adjusted operating profit grew 13 1% at constant
exchange rates driven by pnicing, cost efficiencies
and by broadening our business footprint which now
includes a 20% ownership in Megapolhs, a Russian
distnbutor Reported profit was impacted by
unfavorable foreign exchange rates, growing 11%

Adjusted Operating Profit

{USS MM)
. _ 36
938
= |
4,206
203 Voluma Price/ Other 2014 ; FX 2014
reponad Mix constant reported

FX

GFB shipment volume performance

In 2014, while their shipment volume declined 2% to
262 2 bilkon cigarette equivalent units, GFBs continued
to gain market share across the different markets they
are sold n

The strength and resilience of our GFBs, in combination
with innovative proposttions, resulted in a 0 bppt market
share increase versus the pnior year, reaching 14 3%

In addrtion, GFBs retained brand leadershup positions in
the Caucasus, lreland, Jordan, Russia, Tawan and Turkey

Overall, the weight of our GFBs in our total shipment
volume increased 18ppt to 65 9% This increase,
combined with pricing opportunities, enabled our
GFBs to also grow their share of value 0 6ppt to 14 4%

Cluster performance

Cluster breakdown

@ Rest of the World
«CIS+

.

LERAE @ North & Centrsl
. Europe
20% South & Wast
Eurcpe

15% 17% 16%

Shipmarnt Core Adjusted
vohima Revanue  Operating Profit
{reparted) {reported)
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BnlU
South & North &
West Central Rest-of-
Eurape Europe CiS+ the-World Total JTI
Total shipment
volume 598 516 1657 1208 3980
GFB shipment
volurme 514 278 ns7 672 262 2

South & West Europe

The economic environment showed early signs of
improverment throughout the second half of 2014 with
a slow down in the rate of industry volume dechne
compared to 2013

Total shipment volume declined 2 2% while GFB
shipment volume was flat as growth in Benelux
markets, Portugal and Span offset the decline n Italy

We grew share of market across almost the entire
cluster with gains (in Belgiumn, France, Greece,
Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Spain and Switzerland

In France, total and GFB shipment volumes declined
21% and 1 0% respectively, over-performing the industry
volume Fine cut shipment volume was up 71% Market
share gained 0 8ppt to 20 8% led by Winston and Camel

In ltaly, Benson & Hedges grew volume 28 6% following
its launch 1n the value segment Fine cut volume was

up B 3% led by our GFBs Our business fundamentals
remain solid and we anticipate a turnaround in the profit
contributicn in 2015

in Spain, total and GFB shipment volumes increased

0 6% and 4 9% respectively, driven by Winston, Camel
and Benson & Hedges Fine cut shipment volume also
grew 2 2% driven by Winston and Camel Qur market
share was up 0 7ppt to 21 7%

Core revenue and adjusted operating profit were
significantly impacted by the overall volume decline
and the lack of price increases in France and Italy Core
revenue was down 5 1% while adjusted operating profit
dechned 10 3%, both at constant currency rates




-

o
MEVIUS
Mevius imagineernng the future LD
Launched as Mild Seven in 1977 Mewvius 1s
17 8 BnU the top-seling brand in Japan Internationally, 44'9 Bnl
Global Sales Global Sales

MEVILS

Mewvius 18 present in over 18 countrtes, mainly
In Asia We have started expanding the reach
of Mewius with launches in Azerbayan and
Swatzerland, wath more markets planned for
the future

in 2014, Mewus delivered 17 8 billron
cigarette equivalent units affected by
downtrading In Taiwan

Market share dechined 0 1ppt to 2 4%

but Mewvius grew its share of the premium
segment In its top Asian markets Mevius
alsec became the number 1 premium
brand in the Far East region of Russia

KYPEHME
YBWBAET

¥

KYPEHWE
YBEUBAET

LD was faunched in 1399 in the Russran
market The brand achieved immediate
success and s now recognized as a
compelling international brand in the
value segment

Since 2007 LD has grown continuously in
all clusters, reaching 42 countnes LD has
also constantly expanded its portfolio to
meet consumer aspirations, including in
fine cut

in 2014, LD volume was almost {lat at

44 G billion cigarette equivalent umits
marnly impacted by industry contraction
and inlense competitwe pressure in Russia
Excluding Russia, LD grew volume a strong
7 3% driven by new slimmer formats and
1ts performance n fine cut

Overall the brand grew its share of market
by O 4ppt to reach 5 9%

Benson & Hedges Glamour

10 9 Onginally established n 1873 Benson & 7 2 Glamour is JTt's leading super slims brand,
+J BnU Hedges has a proud British hentage «4& BnU launched in 2005

Global Satos Global Salos

T

Silk Cut

In 2014, B&H volume delvered 10 9 bdhon
cigarette equivalent umits despite growth
in the North & Central Europe cluster BEtH
increased I1ts market share 0 1ppt 10 1 9%

Cotamorsr:

Sobranie

In 2014, due to ndustry contraction in
1Its main markets, its volume deciined
to 7 2 billion cigarette equivalent units
Glamour share of markert declhined
0lpptto 1 0%

2.9 BnU

Global Sales

Launched in 1964, Silk Cut established

its credentials as one of the first low tar
brands in the 1970s, long before 1t became
the norm of other manufacturers

In 2014 Silk Cut volume declined to
2 9 billien cigarette equivalent units
due 10 INdustry volurme comraguon
in ireland and the UK

Disclaimer markst share for brands 15 based an the markets they are sold in

“lease be rermunded that this secuon I1s sntended to explain the businass operat ons of JT 10

2.6 BnU

Globzl Salas

SOBRAN T

investars but not tn promota salea of tobaceo products ar to encourage smoking by consumers

Sobranie I1s one of the world's oldest
tobacco brands and has been synonymous
with luxury cigarettes since 1879

In 2014, despite the difficult environment
Sobranie grew volume by 151% 102 8
biiiton cigarette equivalent units Its market
snare grew 0 1ppt to 0 6%

JAPAN TOBACCO INC ANNUAI RFPORT FY2014 151}
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Review of Operations continued

international Tobacco Business continued

North & Central Europe

We achieved a strong overall performance in this
cluster in 2014 Total and GFB shipment volume were
up 0 8% and 5 4% respectively This pasitive volume
performance was manly driven by the Czech Republic,
Germany and Hungary

We continued to grow share of market and share of
value In this cluster, particularly in the Czech Republic,
Germany, Hungary, Ireland, Poland and the UK

In Austnia, GFB shipment volume grew 5 §% dnven
by Winston, Camel and Benson & Hedges while total
shipment volume decreased 2 0% Market share
dechned 0 2ppt to 32 0%

in the UK, despite industry volume contraction affecting
our volumes, we continued to grow share of market and
share of value to over 40% QOur consistent commitment
to invest In our brands secured our number 1 brand
ranking in the ready-made cigarettes wath Sterling and
the number 1 brand position in the fine cut category
wrth Amber Leaf Amber Leaf 1s now the number 1
tobacco brand in the UK

Thanks 1o a robust pricing environment and positive
volume performance, core revenue and adjusted
operating profit grew strongly by 77% and 12 8%
respectively, at constant currency rates

CIS+

Industry contraction in Kazakhstan, Russia and Ukraine
in 2014 resulted in a 10 5% decline In the cluster's total
shipment volume Despite the strong equity of our brands,
GFB volume declined 6 5% However, in the second half
of the year, trend in total shipment volume improved In
Russia driven by our GFBs

We grew GFB market share across the cluster

In Russia, the industry contracted 9 5% in 2014

yet uptrading into the sub-premium and mid-price
segments continued, both segments in which we lead
Winston continued its growth momentum achieving a
reccrd share of market of 15 0%, gaining 0 7ppt Camel
and Sobranie maintained their share of market level
compared to the previous year As expected, LD's
market share increased mn Q4

Driven by relatively predictable excise tax regimes,
pricing opportunities are still available in this cluster
As a result of such opportunries, core revenue and
adjusted operating profit grew 8 5% and 31 5%
respectively, at constant currency rates

032 JAPAN TOBACCLO INC ANNUATL RFPORT FY2014

Rest-of-the-World
Total and GFB shipment volumes increased 0 8% and |
2 1% respectively, despite continued geopalitical unrest

in several Middle East markets

We grew market share in Canada, Malaysta and Turkey

In Taiwan, we continued to lead both in share of market
and share of value Winston grew market share 1 Zppt
to 4 8%, partally offsetting the market share loss of
Mevius In the last quarter of 2014, we observed a
posiave turnaround in volume and market share

for Mevius

In Turkey, total and GFB shipment volumes grew 2 3%
and 0 7% respectively, driven by the continued growth
of Camel Overall market share was up 2 4ppt to 28 0%
with Camel and Winston now representing a combined
20% market share

Core revenue was flat while adjusted operating profit
declined 3 8%, both at constant currency

Outlook
JTI wiil continue to be the profit growth engine of the
JT Group

In 2015, we expect the operating environment to
remain very challenging and highly volatile across
a number of geographies GFB volume s forecast
to resume growth driven by our on-going share
of market momentum as we continue to enhance
our brand equity and geographic reach

Following the acquisition of Zandera, we plan to step

up Investments primarily in our emerging products

portfolio We will also enhance cur organic growth

in areas where we have imited presence and we will |
pursue opportunities to expand into new markets to !
secure future growth

Our 8% earnings target at constant currency for 2015
represents a balanced approach between short-term
profit delivery and investing to secure long-term
sustainable growth




Other Tobacco Products Portfolio

In line unth our strategy to broaden owr base for future growth, we have
carried out several acquisitions and enlered imio to expand our porifolio

Ploom & E-Lites

In November 2014 we acquired Zandera Limited the owner of E-Lites,
a leading e-cigarette in the UK E-Uites brings a wealth of knowledge
to our emerging products team

We are 1oday active in both the heat-not-burn and e-cigarettes
categortes 1n a number of markets Ploom 1s now available in 6
markets Austna, France, ltaly Japan Korea and the UK Currently,
E-Lites i1s only present in the UK

We consider ourselves to be sull in the learming phase of developing
our business In these categories We will continue to pioneer early
commeraal launches as we did with Ploem and Zero style This will
enable us to accumulate valuable experience of developing marketing
and selling our emerging products

In 2015, we will step up our Investments in our emerging products

portfolio We plan to upgrade and re-launch Ploom, expand E-Lites
and test new innovative propositions In a senes of markets

Fine Cut

SISAIVNY B SNOILYHIJO l

JT continued to grow ts fine cut presence in Europe This category
encompasses roll-your-own and make-your-own tobacco products
With an 11 1% increase, our fine cut volume growth has accelerated
n 2014 dnwven by the strong performance of our GFB fine cut
volume growing 32 7% This growth mainly came from Winston
Camel LD and, to a lesser exient Benson & Hedges

in additon our fine cut share of market in Europa reached 18 8%
an increase of 1 6ppt versus prior year following gamns in France,
Irefand, Poland Span Switzerland and the UK

Arnber Leaf continued to perform weli, growtng share in Ireland,
Spam and the UK Old Holborn increased market share in Greece
and the UK

JTI maintamned its number 1 or 2 market share position in Austria,
France, Greece, Ireland, Luxembourg Spain, Switzerland and the UK

Going forward we will continue 10 enrich our fine cut product pipeline

with innovative product features to keep delivering sold results in
this category

Shisha

We entered the shusha tobacco business in 2013 and since then we
have focused our attention on iImproving the quality of the products
rationalizing the portfolio and rejuvenating the offering

We have continued expanding our presence and consolidating our
posItIGns in existing markets

In 2014 shisha iobacco volume reached 21 thousand tons

Disclaimar market share for brands 1s based on the markats thay are sold in

]

1 e

T &
. \ " . Chill. Enjoy. Share
A

() N [

Please be rerminded that this section 1s intended to explain the business operations of JT to
investors but not 1o promote sales of tobacee products or to encourage smoking by consumers
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Review of Operations continued

Japanese Domestic Tobacco Business

FY2014 Resunts for Jan-Dec 2014 {Like-for-Like basis)

Akira Saek
President, Tobacco Business

. Japanese domestic tobacco business s a highly
competitive platform of profitabilaty In the year
ended December 2014, mdustry volume was 186 2
billion units m Japan, making o one of the largest
markets mn the world We oun 9 of the top 10 selling
products in this large market. We are the undisputed
market leader m _Japan with over 60% market share

Since the consumption tax hike in April 2014, we
have strengthened sales promotion activities to retam
! consumers, with a particular focus on our core brands

: The industry volume in Japan, however, has been

‘ decliming over the past years In this chailenging

| environment, we priortized qualty top-line growth by

\ investing in brand equity enhancement and launching
new products to meet consumers’ needs

After this summer, we have been actively launching new
extensions with additional value, most notably from the
Peace, Cabin and Caster brands

649.8

Coare Ravenue (JPY BN)

238.7

Adjusted Operating Profit (JPY BN)

-1.0%

Year on-year change

+1.8%

Year on year change

We continue to be a ssgnificant profit contnbutor to
the JT Group by further quality top-line growth and
continuous cost Improvement

Business results (vol /financial performance)
* Enhanced brand equity enabled price/mix
improvement
— JT sales volumes decreased 3 6% from the
previous year in line with our forecast in 2014
— Core revenue decreased 1 0% year-on-year to
¥649 8 hilhion as our average unit price improved,
supported by additional marketing investments
in brands with higher price increase as well as
successful launches of value-added products
- Adjusted operating profit grew 1 8% year-on year
to ¥238 7 bilhon driven by price/mix improvement
and effective cost management

Sales volume
(BnU)

1165 1154

203 2014

Jan Dec Jan Dec
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Core Revenue and Adjusted Operating Profit

(JPY BN)
L
656 3 6498
234 8 2387
2013 2014 2013 2014
Jan Dec Jan Dec Jan Dec Jan Dec




Our Core Brands

—
.,

MEVIUS

imagineenng the future

Please be reminded that this sectian i1s intended (o
explain the businass oparations of 4T to invesiors but
nat te promate salas of tobacco products or 10
encourage smoking by consumers

SevenStars
' o A 6 & & & ¢

* Qur leading brand in Japan 1s MEVIUS
evolved from Mild Seven in February
2013 MEVIUS inhents Miid Seven's
strong consumer base which has
commanded the number 1 share in
the Japanese domestic market for
mora than 30 years since 1978

The MEVIUS famiy encompasses 33

* Launched in 1869 Seven Stars featured
Japan's first domestcally produced
charcoal filter in pursuit of better taste

* Sinceits launch, Seven Stars has
consistently offered unique value n terms
of laste aroma and product design

* The Seven Stars family compnses a line-up
of 14 products (as of February 28 2015}

SISKIVNY 3 SNOLLYH3d0 I

products (as of February 28 2015}
reflecting the evolution that it has
undergone in step with the changing
trmas and brand expansion

Pianissimo

In August 1995 the Pianissimo farmily
saw the launch of Japan's first 1mg-tar
menthol cigarette product featunng
funcuon of less smoke smell™

The piarussimo farmuly comprnises a line-up
of 9 products {as of February 28, 2015}

;]

PIANISSIND

* Source TIOJ

** Less smoke small Less smeke s released from
tha np of cigarette based an a visual companson
with conventonal JT cigaretie products

JAPAN TOBACCO INC ANNUAL RFPORT FY20i4 0435
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Review of Operations conunued

Japanese Domestic Tobacco Business continued

FY2014 Resuits for Jan Dec 2014 {Like for-Like bass)

Business results {(market share performance)
* MEVIUS performance led to resilient market share
in the context of intensified competition
— In FY2014, JT market share decreased
01 percentage points to 60 4%

Share evelution of JT and MEVIUS
{%)

611 615 596 601 600
328 334 313 n7 319
Oct Dec Jan Mar Apr-Jun Jul Sap Oct Doc
2013 2014 2014 4 2014

o JT
o MEVIUS

In 2014, our market share has been resillient amud an
intensified competitive environment, where competitors
have been taking more aggressive marketing approach,
including strategic pricing

In particular, a MEVIUS has performed strongly, mainly
led by MEVIUS Premium Menthol Optton The strong
performance demonstrates the outstanding equity that
15 underpinned by the investments have made so far in
this brand

4 N
MEVIUS<> PREMIUM MENTHOL OPTION +30m

WL AYELEITRYADEEAN—2E5Y CRRE ESSCARNTHRRLBEI¢RMAEADET,
AMREOWNEE BNLHFSEREFLUTACRAEIHANRT, RUOLSFABOAATOIAL (T XA
ACLIMNURIIEITY ZJF-CINEBAGREFELET

Ptease be reminded that this section 1s intended to explain the business operations of JT to

Our strategies

We focus on quality top-hne growth by ncreasing share
of market and promoting consumers to shift to higher
unit pnce products In order to achieve this goal, we
will continue to Invest In brand equity enhancement
and business foundation bullding with a mid- to long-
term wision

In addition, we also conunue to pursue efficiencies
to further strengthen our profitability

* Priority on quality top-line growth
— Caontinue to strengthen our brand equity,
with focus on our core brands
— Grow or maintain market share in existing
key markets
— Develop emerging product categories
+ Continuous cost iImprovement

Outlook

In 2015, we start to operate under a new organizational
structure We will re-arrange our sales organizations to
strengthen consumer and trade marketing capabilities,
and consolidate manufactunng facilities in pursurt of
cost competitiveness

Competition in Japan has been intensifying With these
initiatives, the Japanese domestic tobacco business will
be able to develop insight into consumers’ needs and
promptly respond to therr changes In addition, we
continue to seek cost competitiveness

Furthermore, we will continue to invest in and build
brand equity, particularly of MEVIUS

Japanese domestic tobacco business 1s committed
to fulfiling its role as a highly competitive platform of
profitabiity This will be achreved by quality top-hne
growth as well as further pursuit of a competitrve
cost base

invesiars but not 10 promote sales of 1obacco products o 1o encourage smaoking by consumers
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Please be reminded that this ssctien s Intended ©
¢xplain the business operations of JT 1o 1nvestors but
not 10 promota szles of 1obacco products of 1o
encourage smoking by consumers
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Review of Operations conanued

Pharmaceutical Business
FY2014. Results for Jan-Dec 2014 {Like-for-Like basis)

Muneaii Fupmoto
President Pharmaceutical Division

In the pharmaceutwcal bustmess, we aim to budld a
umque, world-class pharmaceutical business drven
by R&’D, and to mcerease our market presence through
ongmal and mnovative drugs We strrve to strengthen
the profit base through value maximzation of each

product and RETD promotion for next generatwn of
strategic compounds

Strategy:

* Promote R&D of strategic compounds for next
generation and seek optimum timing to out
license them

* Maximize the vatue of each product

Performance overview
[Development in Japan)
* Product launch
- Riona Tablets 250mg {hyperphosphatermia)
— Cedartolen Sublingual Drop {Japanese
cedar pollinosis)
* TO-203 (house dust mite allergy) Torn Pharmaceutical
filed its New Drug Apphication in Japan (Jan 2015)

05.8 +7.6

Rovenue (JPY BN)

-7.3 +0.3

Adjusted operating profit (JPY BN) Year cn-year changs (JPY BN)

Yaar on year change (JPY BN)

[Licensed compounds]

» JTE-052 (JAK inhibitor) Exclusive nights to develop
and market for topical use in dermatological
indications worldwide excluding Japan out-licensed
to LEO Pharma

* Elwvitegravir (HIV infection)

- Vitekta (Standalone-agent} approved in the US
— E/C/FITAF (new single-tablet regimen} partner
submitted regulatory applications in the US and EU

* Trametinib {melanoma)

— Mekinist {Standalone-agent ) approved in EU
— For use in combination with dabrafenib approved
n the US

Business results {financial overviewy}

* Revenue grew ¥76 billion dnven by an increased
royalty from our license partners, most notably
related to Stnbild Torn Pharmaceutical's top-line
growth related to Riona and Stnbhd also contributed

* Operating loss improved by ¥6 3 billlon due to
revenue Increase

Revenue
[4PY BN)

658
58 2

2013 2na
Jdan Dec Jan Dec
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Adjusted Operating Profit
1JPY BN)

3

137 7
2013 2074

Jan Dec Jan Dec




Value Chan

e Manufacturing ¥§

. " Ensure aralistle
supply of quality
products

promm—m e — e

Sales & Promotion @y

Buid marketing
compeience
on our MRs

R&D

Continue to strengthen R&D capability a cornerstone of our
pharmaceutical business

A particular emphasis s placed on research and development in ine
with our mission to establish a unique R&D oriented business model
which can compete on a global basis By focusing our resources on
specific areas, we efficiently strengthen our R&D capability which
enables us to create iInnovative drugs

* Focus mainly on the fields of glucose and lipid metabohlism, virus
research and immune disorders and inflammation to best
leverage our expertise

Allocate adequate resources in R&D in hght of the increasingly
complex, time-consuming and therefore costly deveiopment
process due to stnngent regulations

Aiming at discovery of “fust-in-class compounds, enhance
pre-chimcal research capabihty and builld development strategtes
tailored to accomplish the objective

Translate nnovation into medicines that are both approvable
and commercialty viable

Manufactunng

Ensure a relable supply of quabty producis

Sustainable supply ¢hain to deliver high quality products to our

patents has been established Wa also pursue efficiencies in our

manufactunng arrangerments products marketed in Japan are mainly

produced by Torn Pharmaceutical to maximize intra-group synergies

while cutsourcing to contract manufacturers where appropnate

* Remain focused on quality assurance and safely control

* Marmntain optimal manufacturing arrangements

« Continuously strive to reduce environmental iImpacts, as
evidenced by operation and maintenance of the ISQ 14001
certificate by our Sakura plant

Sales & Promotion
Build markeung competence on our MRs

In the pharmaceutical industry, medical representatives {MRs) play a
crucial role in successtul sales and promotion by providing medical
and scientific knowledge wath clients At the same time they collect
valuable mformaton from the medical front which could be reflected
in the ongoing or future R&D activittes Torn Pharmaceutcal 1s
marketing our products in Japan through 499 highly-trained MRs
Qutside Japan, we do not have a sales function As such, instead of
directly marketing our products we recerve royalties based on sales
perfarmance from our license partners for the compounds for which
we out-hcense the nght to develop and market

Provide extensive training programs to MRs and expand
their knowledge to earn trust from our chents

Strengthen our marketing capabilities by leveraging the marketng
support system, which integrates information and needs from the
maechcal front line spread across functions

Build a sales and marketing strategy to meet the existing and
future market needs in the changing business envirenment

[APAN 10BACC O INC ANNLAL REPORT FY2014 039

SISAIVNY 8 SNOILvH320 |




Review of Operations conunued

Pharmaceutical Business continued

Japan Tobacco Inc Clinical Development (s of Fetruary 5, 2015)

In-house development

Coda Patental Indication/
{Geneanc name) Dosage form
JTK303 HIV intection/Orat
{elvitegravir)/

cobicistat/

emtricitabine/

ienofovir

alafenamide

JTT-851 Type 2 diabetes mellitus/Oral

JTZ-951 Anemia associated with

chronic kidney disease/Oral

JTE-051 Autormmune/allergic
diseases/Oral

JTE-052 Autoimmune/allergic
diseases /Oral Topical

JTE-151 Autaimmune/ailergic
diseases/Oral

JTE-350 Diagnostic product/Positive

{histamine cantrol solution in the skin

dihydrochlonde)  prick test

JTT-251 Type 2 diabetes mellitus/Oral

JTT-262 Type 2 diabetes mellitus/Oral

JTK-351 HIV infection/Oral

Chrucal trial phase presentad abova is basad on the hrst dose

Mechamsm

HIV integrase inhibitor/
Nucleoside reverse
transcriptase inhibitor

G protein-coupled
receptor 40 agonist

HIF-PHD inhibitor

Interleukin-2 inducible
T cell kinase inhibitor
JAK inhibitor

RORy antagonist

Histarmune receplor
agonist

PDHK inhibitor
SGLT1 inhibitor

HIV integrase inhibitor

Description
Suppresses blood HIV levels by inhibiting the activities of

integrase and reverse transcriptase enzymes involved In the
replication of HIV

Decreases blood glucose by stimulation of glucose-dependent
insulin secretion

Increases red blood cefls by stimulating production of
erythropoietin, an erythropoiasis-stimulating harmone,
wvia inhibition of HIF-PHD

Suppresses overactive Immuna response via inhibion of
the signal to activate T cells related to immune response

Suppresses overactive immuneg response via inhibiuon
of Janus kinase (JAK) related to \mmune signal

Suppresses overactive Immune response via inhibition of RORy
related to Th 17 actvation

Induces wheal and flare as histamine reactions
on the epiderrrus In the skin prick test

Decreases blood glucose by activation of pyruvate
dehydrogenase {PDH) related to carbohydrate metabolism

Decreases blood glucose by inhibition of sodium glucose
co-transporter 1 (SGLTT} in small intestine

Suppresses blood HIV levels by inhibiting the activity of
integrase, an enzyme involved in the replication of HIV

* One of the medical products pubhcly offered for a development company by the Study Group on Unapproved and Off-labal Drugs of High Madical Nead set up by the Ministry

of Health Labour and Waeltare

Licensed compounds

Compound
(JT s code) Licansea Machanism Note
elvitegravir  Gilead Sciences HIV Suppresses blood HIV levels by New Single Tablet Regimen
{(JTK-303) integrase inhibiting the activity of integrase {elvitegraviricobicistat/emtricitabine/
inhibitor an enzyme involved in the replication tencfovir alafenamide)
of HIV US and EU marketing approvals
submttted
trametimb GlaxoSrmithKhing* MEK Inhibnts cellular growth by specifically Metastatic melanoma
inhibstor inhibiting the activity of MAPK/ERK trametinib+dabraferub
Kinase {(MEK1/2) Phase3
Ant-ICOS Medimmune ICOS Suppresses overaclive Immune response
monoclonal antagonist via inhibition of ICOS which regulates

anttbody activation of T celis

JTE-052 LEQ Pharma JAK inhibitor Suppresses overactive immune response

via mhibition of Janus kinase (JAK)
related to immune signal

* Oncology products and pipeline campounds of GlaxoSmithKline were acgquired by Novarus on March 2 2015
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Location

Japan

Japan
Overseas
Japan
Overseas
Qverseas
Japan

Overseas

Japan

Qverseas
Qverseas

Japan

Phase 1

0 & & & 8686 & © &

Phase 2

~

-

Phase 3

OCO @ OOO0OOOOO

Prepanng to fife Filed

® O

ONONONN NONOCHONONONON®
OO0 @ OOOO0OQOCOO

Ongin

New Single Tablet Reqimen
JTK-303{eivitegravir)

In-house

Cobicistat Eminicitabine Tenofovir
Alafenamide

In-license

(Gllead Sciences)

In-house

In-house

In-house
In-house

In-house

in-hcense

{ALK-Abello)
Co-development with Torn

In-house
In-house

In-house

JAPAN TOBACCO INC ANNL Al RFPORI FY2014
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Review of Operations continued

Processed Food Business
FY2014 Resuits for Jan-Dec 2014 {Like-for-Like basis)

Miyoharu Hino
President & CEQ TableMark

If we are gong to prepare food for those who matter to
us most, we wsh to do so cordially and unth care Thes
15 our destre when runming our business at TableMark.
From 2010 orapards, TableMark began its operation
as a food manufacturer uwth frozen and ambient
processed food, bakery items and seasomang as our
business pullars In particular, we strwe to provide
high value-added products by focusing on staple food
such as frozen noodles, frozen rice, packed cooked rice
and frozen baked bread.

Strategy
e Achieve operating profit margin on par with industry
average and aim to make a profit contribution to the
JT Group
— Increase the attractiveness of our offerings with
a particular emphasis on staple food products by
meeting consumer needs with our own expertise
- Minimize negative impact of nsing raw materal
costs and weak yen

*Stagple tood products frozen noodles frozen nice packed cooked nce
2nd frozan baked bread

161.2

Revenue (JPY BN)

14

Adjusted operating prafit {(JPY BN)

+4.0

Year-on vear change (JPY 8N)

+0.8

Year on year change [JPY BN)

Performance Overview

* The processed food business 1s pnmarily engaged In
business concerning frozen and ambient processed
food, mainly staple food products such as frozen
noodles, frozen rice, packed rice and frozen baked
bread, bakery chain outlets in the Tokyo metropolitan
area, and seasonings including yeast extracts and
oyster sauce

* \We increased revenue In all of cur business area,
namely frozen and ambient processed food, bakery
and seasoning

Business results (financial performance):

* Revenue Increased ¥4 0 billion driven by growth
of staple products and frozen food for bento box use

* Adjusted operating profit increased ¥(0 8 billion
Revenue growth more than offset the effect of higher
matenal cost and weak yen

Revenue
{JPY BN)

%

1572 1612

2013
Jan Dec

2014
Jan Dec
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Adjusted Operating Profit
{JPY BN}

08

2013
Jan Dec

2014
Jan Dac




Value Chain

Food Safety Control

s i 01 1 Production

Prioritize safety and
- follow established

quality control

procedures

Y Marketing

Sales & Distribution My

Sirve ‘or effective
marketing 10 improve
product awarenass

Increase penetration
to retail outiets

SISATYNY 8 SNOILVH3d0 |

Ensure safety control at all levels of the value chain

|

R&D
Strive to develop innovative products to meet consumers needs

* Leveraging our own know-how we aim to develop value-added
products to meet diversified consumers needs

Frozen baked bread products have been developed

allowing consumers to enjoy the taste of freshly baked

bread at home TableMark s orginal techniques for fermentation
baking and freezing recreate and preserve

the taste and texture of fresh bread

* New process for making frozen udon noodles called
“Tamnenjikomi Aya Jyukusei-ho was developed This process
enables us to offer igher quality and value-added udon products

Procurement
Ensure procurement of safe and qualrty raw matenals
* Review of quality assurance certficates subrmitted by our suppliers

* Inspections and monitering of agrochermical residues and regular
inspection at processing plants in compliance with
JT Group s Internal standards the Food Sanitation Act and other
relevant laws

* Examination of safety of production sites for raw matentals
sourced abroad

* As for agncultural farms inspections are made not only for
soll and water but also in terms of how products are cultivated
and how agrochemicals are handled Breeding farms are
also inspected

Production
Prioritize safety and follow established quahity control procedures

» JT Group 1s pursuing the adoption of the HACCP system and ISO
22000 in our and business partners’ factories Under the ISO
22000 standard continuous improvements are made following
effective rules to controi sanitaton and other key tssues These
rules are based on the HACCP concept, ana
their effectiveness is tested using scientific evidence

* All of JT Group's 30 factories in and outside Japan as well
as our business partners’ factones that produce frozen foods
have achieved the ISO 22000 certification

Marketing
Strive for effective marketing to tmprove product awarenass

= \We analyze the market from consumers' paint of view and
by combining the technology owned by TableMark we strive
to prowide products with new values to increase our presence
in the market We stnve for effective marketing in order to improve
consumer awareness of our products

Sales & Distnbution
Increase penetratton to retail outlets

* Stnive to enhance profitability through initiatives to increase
our presence in supermarkets and convenience stores by offering
a wider range of products while also seeking better shelf space

* TableMark products are alse soid to restaurants and other public
facilities

Food Safety Control
Ensure safety controi at ail levels of the value chain

* Independent food safety management division 18 responsible for
overall safety control, ensurning that consumers ¢an continue to
enjoy our products safely

« Cross-functional {food safety imuatives within the JT Group
are promoted

* External food safety experts provide assessment and advice

regarding our inttiatives — therr knowledge and viewpoints
are actively incorporated into our business
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Review of Operations contnued

Beverage Business
FY2014 Resuits for Jan-Dec 2014 (Lixe-for-Ltke basis)

Goichi Matsuda
Head of Beverage Busingss

Business results (financial performance):

181.3

Hevenuo (JPY BN)

-0.5

Adjusted operating profit {JPY BN)

2.5

Year-on-yaar changa (JPY BN)

+1.6

Year on year change (JPY BN)

= Revenue dechned due to unfavorable summer weather and intensified competition at sales channels
¢ Operating loss was reduced by ¥1 6 billion as a result of cost containment efforts

Revenue
{JPY BN)
1838 4ay3
2013 2014
Jan Dec Jan Doc

Withdrawal from the Manufacture and Sale of JT
Beverage Products
Source JT press release on February 4th 2015

JT announced that it has decided to wathdraw from the manufacture
and sale of JT beverage products The manufacture and sale of JT
beverage products conducted by JT's beverage business division
and JT Beverage In¢ 15 expected to be discontinued by the end of
September 2015

The Company entered the beverage business in 1988 Since
then 1t has marketed innovative beverage products including
“Roots” and ‘Momono Tennen-sui * with a firm belief based on
the Company s management principle, the ‘4S* model, that
exceeding consumers” expectations leads 1o sustainable profit
growth in the mid- to long-term

However the operating environment of the beverage business

in Japan has become increasingly challenging The beverage
market matured and the scale of the business has become more
important for maintaireng and strengthening the competitiveness
Addinonally, the product Ife cycle has shortened In such an
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Adjusted Operating Profit
JPY BN)

-21
2013 2014
Jan Doc Jan Dec

environment, expanding business scale through active sales
promotion and constantly developing unique quality products
within a short time frame have become indispensable to
establish a sustanable profit platform After carefully considenng
the growth strategy for the manufacture and sale of JT beverage
products, the Company has concluded that it will be difficult to
make a profitable contribution to the JT Group in the mid- io
long-term From the perspeciive of optimizing the Group s
overall resource allocation tt was decided t¢ withdraw from

the manufacture and sale of JT beverage products, targeting

the end of September 2015

Japan Beverage Group and JT A-Star Group will continue the
vending machine operation business JT 1s to consider various
options for these subsidiaries

The Company would like to sincerely thank its consumers for
therr long-term support for JT beverage products

* Thera was no impact on tha JT s consolidated financial performance for the
fiscal year ended Decernber 31 2014 The effecis on the performance for the
hscal year ending Decamber 31 2015 have not bean canfrmad




JT Group and Sustainability

. Our approach to sustainability s governed by our management principles, known as the “45” model Under
the model we balance the interests of consumers, shareholders, employees and wider society, and fulfil our
responsibiliies towards them, aiming to exceed their expectations Using the “45" model, we strive for
sustainable growth over the mid- to long-term by continually delivening added valug to our consumers

We believe that pursuing this model enhances corporate value and helps us to meet and exceed stakeholders’
interest in the most balanced way possible

The Sustainability Report FY2014 s due to be available on our website around mid-June at
http /iwww |t com/csrfreport/index html

| 77 @y ers
ISASES b D) RV

Our People Responsible
Supply Chain

:
I
I
I

<0 - ——

Environment Product, The Bigger
Responsibihity Picture
and Consumer
Impact
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Risk Factors

The JT Group operales drverse businesses, namely tobacco, pharmaceutical, beverage™ and
processed food Im addition, we conduct our business on a global basis, extending to Europe,
CIS countries, Africa, the Middle East and others Due (o ithus drersity and these changing

enwvtronments, we are exposed to various risks

Considering such circumstances, we have put in place
a nsk management framework Under the framework,
relevant divisions are assigned to carefully monitor the
development of events that may adversely impact the
JT Group and prevent their materialization where possible
When these rnisks are maternalized, we promptly respond
in order to mimimize their unfavorable impacts

In reviewing risks, the magnitude of potential iImpact
and likelihood of occurrence are most prudently
assessed among other factors Maternal nisks, which
could have a significant impact an our sustainabie
profit growth and busmess continuity, are reported
to the CEO together with the request for approval

to Implement countermeasures against them

The following section describes certain risks which
potentially have a matenal impact on our business
operations and financial results, but 1s not intended to

be an exhaustive st of the risks we face In addition, 1t 1s
possible that nsks that are currently considered immatenal
or even unknown could turn out to be matenal i the
future, as the business environment changes

This section should be read together with the farward

looking and cautionary statements contained in this
annual report

* We announced withdrawal from tha manufaciure 2nd sale of JT beverage products
n February 2015
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1 Disruptive tax increases

Tobacco products are subject 10 excise or similar taxes in
addition to value-added tax Excise taxes are increasing
in most markets where we operate as governments
seek to secure their revenue or promote public health

In general, value-added tax 1s also Increasing As a
general principle, we fully pass on any tax increase

to consumers by adjusting our sales prices in addition,
to the extent possible, we Increase our prices more than
the tax increase, considering the financial impact of

an expected volume decline A tax increase within a
reasonable range 1s manageable through such a price
increase as well as our efforts to support top-line and
pursue effictency Most governments are aware that a
substantial tax increase or repeated tax increases can
reduce their revenue and they take a rational approach
However, In the past we have expenenced such tax
INcreases in some markets, which have disrupted

our business

Risk description and potential impact

A disruptive tax increase on tobacco products could
result in a large legitimate industry volume decline due
to lower consumption and, in many cases, increased
ilcit trade In addiion, down-trading te lower priced
preducts could be initiated or accelerated Qur shipment
volume, revenue and profit could decrease due to these
negative reactions by consumers

Measures to address the nsk

* Promote the understanding of relevant authonties
that a disruptive tax increase does not necessarly
serve their purpose

* Optimize our product offerings to capture the
potential changes in consumer preference

* Enhance our geographical portfolio to imit the
negative iImpact of a disruptive tax increase in
a specific market

e Further improve efficiency to protect earnings

* |f a disruptive tax increase takes place, find an
optimal price for each product which minimizes
the unfavorable influence In the market




2. Pressure from illicit trade

llhcit trade 1s a major concern not only for the tobacco
industry, but for wider society For the tobacco industry,
it undermines the legiimate tobacco busingss For society,
et trade reduces excise revenue for the government,
often fuels organized crime, and may increase health
concerns due to poor manufacturing standards and
mproper product handing The tobacco industry has
been fighting against the tlicit trade, which takes the
forms of contraband, counterfert and ilicit whites
llegally traded products in a market tend to increase
after a steep tax increase Regulatory actions seeking
to commoditize packages and products could also
tngger the acceleration of llicit trade because such
commoditization could make counterfeit manufacturing
easier and detection of illicit products more difficult

We take a zero tolerance approach towards all these
cnminal activittles with an emphasis on eimmnating
contraband products

Risk description and potential impact

Anncrease n llicit trades could reduce the legitimate
industry volume, leading to a dechne in our shipment
volume, revenue and profit In addition, the industry
bears the cost to combat illicit trades, resulting in
pressure to its earnings Furthermore, 1t 1s possible

that low guality counterfeits and improperly handled
smuggled products damage the credibility of the
genuine brands, as well as the reputation of their owner

Measures to address the nsk

* Engage with the governments, regulatory bodies and
law enforcement agencies to eradicate the ilicit trade

¢ Ensure we buy from and sell to only reputable
business partners following our ngorous compliance
Initiatives

¢ Raise awareness among indiwdual consumers of
the negative consequences of purchasing illegally
traded products

Working together with authonties

SISATYNY B SNOILvHI4O I

In 2007 JT Internatonal Holding 8V and JT International

S A, JT Group subsidianies, entered a cooperation agreement
with the European Commussion, the executve branch of the
European Unjon {(EUY and 26 EU Member States as part of
efforts to combat the licit trade In 2009, the United Kingdom
joined the agreement

Under the terms of the agreement the JT Group contnbutes
US$50 million annually in the first five years from its execution
and US$15 million annually :n the subsequent ten years

This financial contnbution 1S 10 be used 1o support ant-
smuggling and anti-counterfeting intiatives led by the EU

or EU Member States

In 2010 JTi-Macdonald Corp a2 J1 Group Canadian subsidsary
also signed a similar agreement with the Government and
Provinces of Canada

3. Tightening tobacco regulations

The tobacco industry 1s highly regulated in various
aspects, and regulations could influence our business
performance and financial results Among the regulations
on products, for example, we may incur additional costs
in order to comply with requirements for ingredient and
packaging

Furthermore, the regulatory attempt to commoditize
tobacco products could lead to an increase in the ilicit
trade and negatively influence our legitmate business

Business activities of tobacco companies are also
restricted With more prohibitive regulations on
communication with consumers, our ability to
effectively market products becomes further Imited,
and our top-line performance may be adversely impacted

As a responsible organization, the JT Group abides

by the laws and regulations wherever we operate

That said, we believe that laws and regulations shouid
differ country by country, reflecting 1ts legal, social
and cultural background We encourage governments,
regulators and stakeholders to take a reasonable and
balanced approach towards tobacco regulation
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Risk Factors conanued

Risk description and potential impact

Further tightening of tobacco regulations on marketing
activities could undermine our strategy for top-tine
growth as we lose opportunities to enhance brand
equity Morgover certain regulations may impose on
us addrtional comphance costs These may negatively
influence our volume, revenue and profit

Measures to address the nsk

¢ |dentify ongoing regulatory initiatives as early as
possible by promptly collecting accurate information

* Engage with the governments, regulators and
stakeholders, as necessary, to develop reasonable
and balanced regulations that mest their objectives
For further details, please refer to ‘Regulation and
Other Relevant Laws’ contained tn this annual report
on page 152

4. Country risks

Our tobacco business has consistently expanded our
earnings base to secure long-term growth by making
acquisitions, entenng new markets and increasing share
in markets where we had hmited presence Such a
geographical expansion increases our exposure to
country nsks In any market where we operate, we may
face economic, political or social turmoil which may
negatvely affect our operations and financial results

Risk description and potential impact

Political instability, economic downturn, social unrest
or other unfavorable developments in a certain market
could disrupt our business, leading to a lower volume,
revenue and profit in the market

Measures to address the nsk

* Avold overdependence on a small number of markets
as sources of profits by expanding the pool of highly
profitable markets

5 Instability in the procurement of key materials
Across the businesses, the JT Group procures raw
and processed matenals for product manufacturing

In particular, we strive to procure key materials in the
required quantity and at reascnable costs QOur key
matenals include agricultural products most notably,
tobacco leaf for the tobacco business, grains for the
processed food business Avallability of agricultural
products 15 often affected by natural phenomena
including climate In addition, there s a growing
concern that agricultural production costs may increase,
as a result of the high demand in energy resource and
other inputs due to a global population increase as
well as economic growth iIn emerging countries
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Risk description and potentiai impact

Insufficient supply of key matenals could lead to inability
to manufacture our products, subsequently resulting in

the loss of revenue and profit Furthermore, the increase

In procurement costs driven by higher production costs for
agricultural products would directly pressure our earnings

Measures to address the nsk

* Reinforce ability to procure key matenals by bullding
a strong relationship with suppliers In the case of
tobacco leaf, further promote internal sourcing

* Promote efficient use of matenals by continuously
reviewing the manufacturing process and product
specifications where possible

6 Unfavorable development in litigation

JT and some of its subsidiaries are defendants in
lawsuits filed by ptainuffs seeking damages for harm
allegedly caused by smoking As of December 31, 2014,
19 smoking and health-related cases were pending in
which one or more members of the JT Group wereg
named as defendant or for which JT may have certamn
indemnity obligations pursuant to the agreement for
JT's acquisition of RJR Nabisco Inc ‘s overseas (non-
U S ) tobacco operations JT and its subsichares, who
are defendants in such lawsunts, believe that we have
valid grounds to defend the claims in such lawsuits,
however, we cannot predict the outcome of any
pending or future itigation

Risk descnption and potential impact

A decrsion unfavorable to us couid matenally affect our
financial performance due to the payment of monetary
compensaton Critical media coverage of such lawsuits
may reduce social olerance of and strengthen regulations
on smoking Such media coverage may alsc prompt the
filing of 2 number of similar lawsuits against JT or its
subsidianies, resulting In increased ligation costs

Measures to address the risk

¢ Continue to bulld well-organized teams coordinating
with external legal counsel to defend ourselves
against these lawsuits

¢ Continue legitimate and appropnate business
operations For further details, see section regarding
‘Litigation’ on Page 149




7 Natural disasters

Our operations may be disturbed by natural disasters
such as earthquakes, typhoons, floods, volcano eruptions
and others Japan 1s one of the most important markets
for the JT Group's businesses and subject in particular
to vanious natural disasters The Great East Japan
Earthquake was devastating The impacts on the

JT Group included casualties among our employees,
physical damage to our factories, and shortage of
supply for certain matenal for tobacco products

Our tobacco business was forced to temporarily
suspend product shipment and lmit shipment

volume for an extended penod

We have developed a Business Continuity Plan to
minimize the impact of such disasters, with a particular
emphasis on the optimization of the global supply chain

Risk description and potential impact

Natural disasters could cause damage to the JT Group
as well as our suppliers, trades and consumers, leading
to disruption of our business and negatively impacting
financial results

Measures to address the nsk

¢ Continuously review the Business Continuity Plan
and revise 1t as necessary

* Carry out emergency dnlls to increase employees’
preparedness against disasters

* Insure key assets such as buildings, machinery,
equipment and inventory to recover financial losses
as appropriate

8. Currency fluctuations
As the JT Group 1s operating globally, we are exposed
to the nisks associated with currency fluctuations

The reporting currency of the JT Group consolidated
financtal statements 1s Japanese Yen, while the financial
statements of our international subs:diaries are reported
In other currencies such as Russtan ruble, Euro, British
pound, Tawanese dollar, US dollar, and Swiss franc

Therefore, exchange rate fluctuations of these
currencies against Japanese Yen influence the Group’s
reported financial results As for the financial reporting
of the international tobacco business, JT International
Holding BV ceonsolidates the financial results of the
international tobacco subsidiaries and reports its
consolidated financial statements in U S dollars We
often communicate the financial performance of our
mternational tobacco business inU S dollars, which 1s
affected by exchange rate fluctuations against the U S
dollar In principle, we do not hedge these nsks which
arise from the translatton of financial statements

However, we hedge against nsks which arise when
equity denominated In each functional currency of
the JT Group ts translated into Japanese yen to be
consolidated by using foreign currency-denominated
interest-beanng debts and part of these are designaied
as net investment hedges In addition, many group
companies make transactions in currencies other than
their reporting currencies for day-to-day operations
Such transactions also involve the risk of exchange
rate fluctuations We mitigate these transaction risks
through hedging activities, however, it 1s not possible
to completely eliminate them

Furthermore, if we lrquidate or sell our group subsichary
which we acquired in a currency other than Japanese
yen or impair a substantial value of such a subsidiary,
the gain or loss from the transaction includes the
currency fluctuation impact Specifically, the impact
comes from the difference in the exchange rates of the
relevant currency against Japanese yen at the tme of
the acquisiticn and at the time of such transaction

Risk description and potential impact

Fluctuations of exchange rates against Japanese yen
affect the JT Group's reported financial resuits Reported
financial results of our international tobacco busingss in
U S dollars are similarly influenced by the fluctuations
of exchange rates againstthe U S dollar In addition, we
are exposed to the exchange rate fluctuation nisks when
a group company makes a transaction in a currency
other than its reporting currency

Measures to address the risk

¢ Mitigate the rnisk through hedging actvities such as
derwvative contracts, possession of interest beanng
debts in a foreign currency stc
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Corporate Governance

Decision-Making, Business Execution, Supervision

Overview

In our belief, enhancement of corporate governance s one of the critical management initiatives in order to achreve
sustainable profit growth in this uncertain business environment We have enhanced our corporate governance

airning at "quality and prompt decision-making”,

o

efficient business execution” and “ngorous supervisory and

adwvisory function” We will continue to improve this framework to further strengthen our corporate governance

Initiatives to enhance corporate governance

Rigorous supervisory and adwisary funcliorn

Set up the Compliance Commutige
FY2000

Set up the Advisory Committee’

. FY2001

Set up the Compensation Advisory Panel
FY2006

* Aboliian of tha Advisory Commitiee on June 30 2074

Qur corporate governance system

Selact:on or dismussal af members

Audit Report

Efficient business execunon

Introduced executive officer system
FY200i

Qualiy and protnpt decisian making
Reduced number of directors
FY2000

Promoted the delegation of business
execution to the executive officers
FY2000, FY2008 and FY2011

Invited outside directors
FY2012

General Meeting of Sharcholders

Accounung audisOparating atedit

050

’ +—_—Introduction of compliance-refated mattams
+

four members

eght members. Rewew of
fincluding rwo the pohcc\lr {including two outside
ourside diectors) ond the rula € Aude & Superasory
relating to ) board membars)
rSIOn com| Bon e rmembers
21“3:. for bﬁ:nrd” {including three
performancs meambers outside members)
and executive
officers

five membaers.
pnciuding two outside
dirsctars and two
ouiskie auditors.
Internal i
audit "
BUCE_ - e Accounting audit"Oparating audit
Group -1,
audit L A
e et -
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General Meeting of Shareholders

A general meeting of shareholders resolves the matters
stipulated by law and our Articles of Incorporation
Under the Companies Act, certain matters are required
to be resolved at a shareholder meeting including,
most notably, the appointment and dismissal of the
directors, audit & supervisory board members and
external accounting auditors, dividend amount, loss
compensation, as well as change in the Articles of
Incorporation Our Articles of Incorporation do not
stipulate any additional matter to be resolved at our
shareholders’ meeting other than matters legally
required The Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting
1s held in March, and a special mesting of shareholders
shall be called by the Board of Directors, as necessary
The President chairs the shareholders’ meetings

Within the extent as permitted by law, requirements for
resolutions at our shareholders’ meeting were lowered
by amending our Articles of Incorporation A resolution
at a general meeting of shareholders can be adopted
by a majority of the voting nghts present or represented
at the meeting A resolution for the appointment of the
Company's director and audit & supervisory board
members additionally require a quorum, which 1s
one-third of the total number of voting nghts A special
resolution as stipulated under Section 2, Article 309 of
the Companies Act, such as amendment to the Articles
of Incorporation, requires the quorum of one-third of the
total number of voting rights and the approval of

at least two-thirds of the voting nights present or
represented at the meeting Certain matters resolved

at our shareholders’ meetings need further approval

by the Mintster of Finance in Japan

The Japan Tobacco Inc Act

JT was established pursuant to the Japan Tobacco,

Inc Act {“the JT Act") for the purpose of managing
businesses related to the manufactuning, sale and
imports of tobacco products The JT Act provides

that the Government of Japan must continue to hold
over one-third of all of the 1ssued shares except for the
class shares, which have no voting nght agamst all
matters that can be resolved at our shareholders’
meeting The JT Act also states that the issuance of new
shares and stock acquisiion rights requires the approval
of the Minister of Finance In the case of a share-for-
share exchange, the same approval 1s required for
1Issuance of new shares, stock acquisition nghts and
bonds with stock acquisition nghts Under the JT

Act, subject to the approval by the Minister of Finance,
JT 1s allowed to engage 1n businesses other than
manufacturing, sales and imparts of tobacco products
or tobacco-related business, provided that our
engagement in such businesses serves the purpose of
the Company JT 15 also reguired to obtain approval from
the Minister of Finance for certain matters, including the
appointment or dismissal of directors, executive officers
and audit & supervisory board members as well as
amendment to our Articles of Incorporation, distribution
of surplus {excluding loss compensation), merger,
corporate sphit, or dissolution In addition, within three
months after the end of each fiscal year, we are required
to Issue a statement of financial posttion, a statement of
income, and a business report to the Minister of Finance

The supplementary provisions of the Reconstruction
Financing Act’, which came into effect on December 2,
2011 states that the Government shall study by the year
ending March 31, 2023 the possibility of full disposal of
government-owned JT shares by reassessing the
Government's holdmng in JT shares considenng the
Government's involverment in the tobacco-related
industries based on the Tobacco Business Act

" Acion Special Measures for Securing Finangial Rasaurces Necessary
for Reconstruction from the Great East Japan Earthquake
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Corporate Governance continued

Decision-Making, Business Execution, Supervision continued

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors assumes responsibility in
making decisions for important 1ssues including the
Group strategy as well as supervising ali the activites
of the Group

A board meeting, in principle, 1s held every month and
a special board meeting may be called, as necessary
The Board of Directors decides those matters reguired
to be resolved by the Board of Directors under the
Companies Act, such as important business plans,
disposal or acquisition of important assets, significant
amount of borrowings, concluston of important
agreements For the purpose of supervising the
Company’s activities, the Board of Directors requires
directors to deliver a report on the progress of
operations at least on a quarterly basis In year ended
December 2014, we had 11 board meetings to discuss
important issues Including the management plan

Members - 8 {including two independent
outside directors}
Average rate of - Directors 97%
attendance - Audit &
Supervisory
Board

Members 98%
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The directors markad
with * are aiso the
execulive officers

o

Yasutake Tango |
Chairman of the Board |

Date of birth March 271 1851 |

Term of office 1 year and 9 months since
June 2014

Number of shares held 500

Aprt 1974
Enterad Ministry of Finance

October 2006
Director-General of the Financial Bureau

July 2007
Deputy Vice Minister

July 2008
Director-General of the Budget Bureau

July 2009
Administrative Vice Minister

July 2010
Retired from the office of
Admrmustrative Vice Minister

Decembar 2010
Corporate Auditor The Yomur Shimbun Holdings

December 2012
Speciai Advisor to the Cabinet

June 2014
Chairman of the Board {Current Position)




A

Mitsuorm Koizurm™

President, Chief Executive Qfficer
and Representative Director

Date of birth Apnil 15, 1957
Term of office 1 year and 9 months since

June 2014
. Number of shares held 24,400

Apnl 1981
Joined the Company {Japan Tobaceo and Salt
Public Corporation)

June 2001
Vice President of Corporate Planning Division

June 2003
Senior Vice Presigent and Head of Human
Rescurces and Labor Relations Group

June 2004

Serwor Vice President and Vice President of
Tobacco Business Planning Division
Tabacco Business Headquarters

June 2006

Executive Vice President and Vice President of
Tobacco Business Planning Division

Tobacco Business Headguarters

June 2007

Member of tha Board, Executive Vice President
and Head of Marketing & Sales General Division
Tabacco Business Headguarters

. July 2007

Member of the Board Executive Vice President
and Chief Markelng & Sales Olficer,
Tobacco Business Headquarters

June 2009
Representatve Diractor and
Exacutive Deputy President

June 2012
President Chief Executive Officer ang
Represantative Director {Current Position}

Yasushs Shingar”

Representative Director and
Executive Deputy President

Date of birth January 11 1956

Term of office 1 year and 9 months since
June 2014

Number of shares held 23 800

Apnl 1980
Jomed the Cormpany [Japan Tobacco and
Salt Pubhg Corporation)

July 2001
Vice President of Financral Planning Dwision

June 2004
Senior Vice President and Head of Finance Group
Vice President of Financial Planming Division

July 2004
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

June 2005
Member of the Board Seniar Vice President
and Chiet Financial Officer

June 2006
Member of the Board Executive Vice Presidem,
JT Internatonat 5 A

June 2011

Member of the Board Semor Vice President
and Executive Vice Prasident 1n chargs of
Internationat Tobaceco Business

June 2011
Representative Director and Executive Deputy
President {Current Position)

June 2014
Member of the Board (outside director) Recruit
Hoidings Co  Ltd (Currant Position)

Nonaki Okubo”

Representative Dwrector and
Executive Deputy President

SISATYNV B SNO!LVHIJO l

Date of birth May 22 1359

Term of office 1 year and 9 months since
June 2014 —_

Number of shares held 9,900

Apnl 1983
Joned the Company {Japan Tobacco and Salt
Pubhc Corporation)

Apnl 2000
Vice President of Business Development Dept
Pharmmaceutical Division

June 2002
Vice President of Business Planning Dept
Pharmaceutical Division

June 2004
Member of the Board Semior Vice Prasident
and President Pharmaceutical Business

June 2006
Mamber of the Board Executive Vice President
and President Pharmaceutical Business

June 2009
Member of the Board Senicr Executive Vice
President and President Pharmaceutical Business

May 2010

Member of the Board Senior Executive Vice
President and President Pharmaceuncal
Business, Vica President of Business Planning
Dept Pharmaceuncal Division

January 2011
Member of the Board, Semor Executive Vice
President and President Pharmaceutcal Business

June 2012
Reprasentative Director and Executive Deputy
President {Current Position)
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Corporate Governance contmued

Decision-Making, Business Execution, Supervision continued

Akira Saekr®

Representative Director and
Executive Deputy President

Date of birth August 25, 1960

Term of office 1 year and 9 months since
June 2074

Number of shares held 15 500

Aprl 1985
Joined the Company (Japan Tobacco Inc )

June 2005
Vice President of Corporate Strategy Division

June 2007

Sentor Vice President, Vice President
of Tobacco Business Planning Division
Tobacco Business Headquarters

May 2008

Senior Vice President Vice President of Tobacco
Business Planning Dwision Tobacco Business
Headguarters Head of China Division

Tobacco Business

June 2008

Senior Vice President Vice President of Tobacco
Business Planming Division Tobacco Business
Headguarters Chief Corporate Scientific &
Regulatory Aftairs Officer Tobacco Business
Head of Chuna Division Tobacco Business

July 2608

Senior Vice President Vice President of Tobacco
Business Planning Divigion Tobacco Business
Headquarters Chiaf Corporate Scientific &
Regulatory Affairs Officer Tobaceo Business

July 2009

Semor Vice President, Vice President of Tobacco
Business Planning Division Tobacgo Business
Headquarters Chiet Corporate Scientific &
Regulatory Affairs Qfficer Tobacco Business

June 2010

Executive Vice President, and Vice President
of Tobacco Business Planning Division,
Tobacco Businass Headguartars

June 2012
Representative Director and Executive Deputy
President {Current Position)

Hideks Miyazaki

Member of the Board and
Executive Deputy President

Date of birth January 22, 1958

Term of office 1 year and 8 months since
June 2074

Number of shares held 12 i00

Apn! 1980
Jotned Nomura Secunties Co  Ltd

July 2005
Jained the Company (Japan Tobacco Inc)

January 2006
Deputy Chie! Financial Qfficer

June 2008
Scnior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Vice President Tax Dwvision

October 2009
Senior Vice President and Chief Financral Officer

May 2010
Senior Vice President and Chiaf Financial Officer
Vice President Treasury Division

June 2010
Executive Vice President and Chief Financral
Ofiicer Vice President Treasury Dwision

July 2010

Executive Vice Prasident and Chief Financial
Ofiicer, Vice President Treasury Dvision and
Vice President Procurement Planming Division

August 2010
Execulive Vice President and Chiel Financial Officer

June 2012
Mamber of the Board and Executiva Vice
President {Current Position}
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Motoyuki Oka
Member of the Board (Outside director)

Date of birth September 15 1943

Term of office 1 year and @ months since
June 2014

Number of shares held 0

Aprid 1966
Joired Sumitomo Corporation

June 1994
Director Sumitomo Corporation

Apnl 1998
Managing Dwrector Sumitomo Carporatign

April 2001
Senior Managing Director Sumitomo Corporation

June 2001
President Chief Executive Officer
Susmitomo Corporation

June 2007
Charrman of the Board of Directors
Sumitormo Corporation

June 2012

Adwisor Sumitomeo Corporation
Member of the Board the Company
{Current Position)

June 2013
Meamber of the Board{outside director)
NEC Corporation {Currant Position)

The directors marked
with * are alsa the
expculive afficers

Main Kohda
Member of the Board {Outside director)

Date of birth April 25 1851

Term of office 1 year and 9 months since
June 2014

Number of shares held 0

September 1995
Started independently as Nowvelist
{Current Positon)

January 2003
Member of Financial System Counet,
Ministry of Finance Japan

Agpril 2004
Visiting professor Faculty of Economics
Shiga University

March 2005

Member of the Council for Transport Policy
Ministry of Land Infrastructure Transport
and Tounsm

November 2006
Member of the Tax Commssion Cabinet Office
Government of Japan

June 2010
Member of the Board of Governors Japan
Broadcasting Corporation

June 2012
Mernber of tha Boarg the Company
{Current Posibion}

Junea 2013
Member of the Board (outside director)
LIXIL Group (Current Positign)
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Corporate Governance contimued

Decision-Making, Business Execution, Supervision

The Audit & Supervisory Board

Entrusted by shareholders and ensured of its autonomy,
the Audit & Supervisory Board conducts accounting
audits as well as operating audits Currently, we have
four audit & supervisory board members including two
independent cutside audit & supervisory board members
Collectively, they have expenence In management, legal,
finance and accounting among other areas Audit &
supervisory board members have vanous statutory rights
in order to accomplish therr roles and responsibilities,
including making requests to deliver reports to the
directors, executive officers and employees, 1ssuing

an injunction to prevent illegal activities by directors,
and representing the Company in case of litigation
between any director and the Company In addition,

the Audit & Supervisory Board has a right to dismiss
the auditing firm which conducts accounting audit

The Audit & supervisory board members’ report
containing the results of both the accounting and
operating audits 1s submutted to the annual general
meeting of shareholders

if directors and executive officers find any 1ssue that
may cause a substantial damage to the Company, they
are obhged to report 1t to the Audit & Supervisory Board,
along with other relevant matters that coutd affect the
Company Audit & superwisory board members are
authornized to attend the meetings of the Board of
Directors and other important meetings Our directors
and executive officers respond in a prompt and
appropriate manner, when requested by audit &
supervisory board members to deliver documents

for thetr inspection, to arrange field audits and to

submit reports The Operational Review and Business
Assurance Division, which conducts internal audits,

as well as the Compliance Office, exchanges necessary
information and waorks together with audit & supervisory
board members

Members — 4 (including two Independent
outside audit & supervisary
board members)

Average rate of - 100%
attendance
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Futoshi Nakamura

Standing Audit &
Supervisory Board Members

Date of birth Nowvember 23, 1957
Term of office 4 years since March 2015
Number of shares held 4 800

April 1981
Jomned the Company (Japan Tobacco and Salt
Public Corporation}

July 2004
Head of Procurement Planning Division

July 2005
Senior Manager of Operational Review
and Business Assurance Dwision

September 2005

Senior Manager of Operational Review and
Business Assurance Division JT International
Holding BV Vice President

July 2009
Senmor Manager of Accounsing Division

July 2010
Head of Operaticnal Review and
Business Assurance Division

June 2012
Standing Audit & Supervisory Board Members
the Company [Current Position}




Tomotaka Kojima

Standing Audint &
Supervisory Board Members

Date of birth December 19, 1953
Term of office 4 years since March 2015
Number of shares held 0

Apnl 1976
Joined Mirustry of Finance

July 2000
Director of the Fukuoka Local Finance
Branch Bureau

Juiy 2002
Deputy Head of Finance Group of the Company

July 2004
Deputy Director General of Employee Welfare
Bureau Secretariat of Natonal Personnel Authonty

April 2007
Deputy Director General for Administrative Policy
Matters National Personnel Authority

January 2008

Director General of Equity and Investigaton
Bureau Secretariat of Natonal Personnel
Authority

August 2009
Executive Durector National Hospital Organization

March 2010
Retired from Exacutive Cirector
National Hospital Organization

Octobar 2010
Adwiser, Japan Association of Corporats Directors

Navamber 2010
Secretary General Japan Association
of Corporate Orzectors

June 2013
Standing Audit & Supervisory Board Membaers,
tha Company (Current Position)

Yoshinon Imai

Audit & Supervisory Board Members
(Outside Audit & Supervisory

Board Membaers)

Date of birth December 3, 1944

Term of office 4 years since March 2015
Number of shares held 700

Apnril 1968
Joined Japan Broadcasting Corporation

June 1995
Bureau Chief of General Bureau for Europe

May 2000
Director General
Planning & Broadcasting Department

Juna 2003
Executrve Editor and Program Host

January 2008
Executive Vice President

January 2011
Retred from Executive Vice President

Aprl 2011
Visiting Professor Ritsumeikan University
{Currant Position)

June 2011
Audit & Supervisary Board Members
the Company {Current Position)

Hiroshi Obayashi

Audit & Supervisory Board Members
(Qutside Audit & Supervisory

Board Members)

SISATVYNY 8 SNOILYHIJO l

Date of birth June 17 1947
Term of otfice 4 years since March 2015
Number of shares held 0

Apnl 1270
Judicial Apprentice

Apnl 1972
Appointed as Public Prosecutor

May 2001
Director-General of the Rehabilitation Bureau
Ministry of Justuce

January 2002
Deputy Vice-Minuster of Justice
Ministry of Justice

June 20048
Director-General of the Crirminal Affars Bureau
Ministzy of Justice

June 2006
Vice-Minister of Justice Mimstry of Justice

July 2007
Supenntending Presecutar Sappore High Public
Prosecutors Otfice

July 2068
Supernniending Prosecutor Tokyo High Public
Prosecutors Office

Prosecutor General

Decamber 2010
Reured lrom the office of Prosacutor-General

I
|
I
I
Juna 2010 }
i
\
March 2011 }
Registered as Attorney at Law |
Apri) 2011

Audit & Supervisory Board Members {outside

Audn & Supervisory Board Members) Daiwa

Securities Co Lid {Current Positon)

Juna 2013
Member of the Board {outside director) Mitsubish
Biectric Corporanon {Current Position)

June 2014

Audit & Supervisory Board Members {outside
Audit & Supervisory Board Members) NIPPON
STEEL & SUMITOMO METAL CORPORATION
{Current Posivon)

March 2015
Audit & Supervisory Board Members the
Company {Current Position)
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Corporate Governance conanued

Decision-Making, Business Execution, Supervision continued

Independence of Outside Directors and

Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Members

JT reports to the securities exchanges on which it 1s
Iisted that the two outside directors and two outside
audrt & supervisory board members are designated

as independent executives We have a cntena list to
assess the independence of an executive Based on the
criteria, the independence of the four executives has
been confirmed Motoyukt Cka, Main Kohda, Yoshinor
Imai and Hiroshi Cbayashi, who are outside directors
and outside audit & supervisory board members, serve
as members of the Compensation Advisory Panel

Critena list for independence of an executive
A person who fits any of the following descrnptions
is not designated as an independent executive
1 A person who belongs or belonged to JT or

an affilate or sister company of JT

2 A person who belongs to a company or any
other form of organization of which JT1s a
major shareholder

3 A person wha is a major shareholder of JT or
who belongs to a company or any other form of
organizatron which 1s a major shareholder of JT

4 A person who 1s 2 major suppher or customer of JT
{if the supplier or customer Is a company or any other
form of organization, a persan who belongs thereto)

5 A major creditor of JT including a majer loan lender

(if the creditor 1s a company or any other form of
organization, & person who belongs thereto)
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6 A certified public accountant who serves as an

accounting auditor or an audit adwisor of JT, or a
person who belongs to an auditing firm which serves
as an accounting audritor or an audit advisor of T

7 A person who recerves a large amount of fees from

JT 1n exchange for prowding professional services
for legal, financial and tax affairs or business
consulting services (If the recipient of such fee

IS @ company or any other form of organization,

a person who belongs thereto)

8 A person who receives a large amount of donation

from JT (f the recipient of such donation 1s a company
or any other form of organization, a person who
belongs thersta)

9 A person who has fit any of the descriptions in

2 to B above in the recent past

10 A close relative of a person who fits any of the

following descriptions

(a) A person who fits any of the descriptions In
2 to B above (if such descriptions apply to a
company or any other form of organization, a
person who performs important duties thereof)

(b) A director, audit & supervisory board member,
audit advisor, executive officer or employee of
JT or an affilate or sister company of JT

{c) A person who has fit the descriptions in 1 or 2
in the recent past




Support for Outside Directors and Outside

Audit & Supervisory Board Members

We provide supports to outside directors and outside
audit & supervisory board members The Corporate
Strategy Division aor Secretary Division explains the
agendas for board meetings in advance, submits
requested documents and delivers necessary information
to outside directors for them to contribute to the quality
of board discussion As an independent body entrusted
by shareholders, the Audit & Supervisory Board is
expected to monitor the performance of the directors
and executve officers, with an aim to underpin the
Company’s healthy and sustainable growth as well as
increase its credibility For ocutside audit & supervisory
board members to perform their expected roles, we are
supporting them by making necessary information
avallable and allocating adeguate human resources to
the Auditor Office which assists audit & supervisory
board members

Executive Officer System

JT employs the Executive Officer System to ensure
effective and efficient management by promptly
responding to the changing environment, and thus aims
1o Increase 1ts company value Executive officers are
appointed by the Board of Directors At the same time,
the board assigns certain responsibiities and delegates
relevant authonties to the executive officers in
accordance with the Rules Defining the Extent of
Responsibility and Authorty In addition, we have the
structure for quick decision-rmaking about plan and
strategy relevant to all business execution except the
matters which are submitted to the Board of Directors
This structure has been established by an articulate
decision-making process based on the Rules Defining
the Extent of Responsibility and Authority

Please refer to page 150 for the list of executive officers
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Corporate Governance contmued

Internal Control System & Risk Management System

Overview

JT devotes its efforts 10 ensure approprate business operation by reinforcing internal control such as compliance,
internal audit and nsk management among cther matters The developments of these internal control focuses are
reported regularly to the Board of Directors 1n addiion, we have the Auditor Qffice, a department dedicated to
support the Audit & Supervisory Board, for our audit & supervisory board mermbers to effectively perform their duties
Collaboration among the Group companies 1s encouraged to strengthen the framework for compfiance {which
includes the internal consultation and reporting), reliable financial reporting, internal audit and nsk management

Internal control framework

The Board of Directars

Reporting

Compliance

A Code of Conduct has been created based on cur
internal guidelines approved by the Board of Directors
Under the Code of Conduct, all directors and employees
are expected to fully comply with applicable laws,

our Articles of Incorporation, social norms and other
comphance standards In additton, the Board of
Directors has established a fair and effective
compliance framework as described below

* Set up the JT Group Comphance Committee, which
reviews and discusses compliance related matters,
then directly reports to the Board of Directors

* Assign responsibility for compliance to a director
(who also serves as an executive officer)

* Assign responsibility for compliance to an executive
officer without directorship

* Assess and approve the Compliance Policy as well
as the Compliance Implementation Plan

* Review the impiemented compltance initiatives

The Compliance Office 1s in charge of improving the
compliance framework, while identifying any issue in
the framework The Compliance Office also promotes
comphance by offering traiing programs to directors
and employees
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Extemal Audrtors.

Manitonng

The JT Group has both internal and external hothnes
through which employees may consult or repart any
misconduct they suspect to be taking place The
Compliance Office 1s responsible for investigating
consulted or reported cases and implementing
Group-wide measures to prevent the recurrence

of misconduct after discussing it with the divisions
concerned Matenal cases are reviewed by the

JT Group Compliance Cormmittee, and further
reported to the Board of Directors as necessary

The JT Group Compliance Committee ts headed by the
Chairman, and external members comprise the majority
The JT Group Compliance Commuttee met twice in the
year ended December 31, 2014, and discussed imhatives
to strengthen compliance throughout the Group among
other matters




Reliable financial reporting

In order to ensure the reliability of its financial reporting,
JT has introduced a relevant internal control system in
accordance with the Financial Instruments and Exchange
Act and other standards In addition, a dedicated division
has been created which reviews the internal control
system and reports the result of the assessment
Relability of our financial reporting s confirmed

by the external accounting auditor who makes an
assessment of our internal control system based

on the Internal Control Report prepared by us

Risk management

Financial risk management

JT has put in place the internal guidelines for financral
nisk management The executive officer in charge
updates the status of financial nsks together with

the countermeasures against these risks Meanwhile,
these nsks and the countermeasures against them
are reported to CEQ and the Board of Directors on

a quarterly basis

Crisis management and disaster control

In order to deal with possible crises or disasters, JT has
produced a manual for crisis management and disaster
control so that we can make a proper Inttial response

In the event of a crisis or a disaster, a project team led by
the President is immediately assembled In the project
teamn, the Corporate Strategy Division assumes the key
role to support the President Under the leadership of
the President, we respond promptly and properly,
ensunng close cooperation across the organization

The director in charge reports crisis or disaster incidents
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis

Management of other risks

In accordance with the Rules Defining the Extent of
Responsibility and Authority, management of other
nsks I1s delegated to relevant divisions, which identify
and monitor the risks in their areas of responsibility
Significant risks are reported to CEQ, together with the
request for approval to iImplement countermeasures
against them, where necessary

Please refer 10 page 46 for our nisk factors

Internal audit system

JT has an Operational Review and Business Assurance
Division, which is thoroughly independent of other

JT Group dimvsions and organizations engaging in
operations Under such a capacty, it conducts internal
audits and directly reports to the President The
Operational Review and Business Assurance Division
has unlimited access to all activities, records and
employees Group-wide to accomplish its roles and
responsibitities The head of the division 1s required to
report to the President the results of internal audits
along with their analysis and assessment, and also
reports to the Board of Directors The head of the
division has the night to contact the management of
JT and the Group companies regularly and as frequently
as needed
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Corporate Governance continued

Executive Remuneration

Overview

Remuneration for our directors i1s determined by resolution
at the Board of Directors, taking into account discussion
at the Compensation Advisory Panel Remuneration for
our audrt & supervisory board members 1s determined
through the deliberations of the Audit & Supervisory
Board The aggregate remuneration of directors and
audit & supervisory board members cannot exceed

the respective celings approved at a general meeting
of shareholders In determining remuneration, we refer
to research management remuneration conducted by
athird party, and benchmark Japanese manufacturnng
companies operating globally with a scale or profit
comparabie with ours

The Compensation Advisory Panel

The Compensation Advisory Panel has been established
as an adwisory body to the Board of Directors with an
aim to increase the objectiveness and transparency

of our executive remuneration The Compensation
Adwvisory Panel comprnses the Chairman, two outside
directors and two outside audit & supervisory board
members Upon request, the Pangl reviews and provides
advice on the policy, framewaork and calculation method
for remuneration of our directors and executive officers
It aiso monitors whether our executive remuneration
level 1s reascnable Durning the past fiscal year, the
Compensation Advisory Panel met twice to discuss

the level of remuneration among other matters

Based on the recommendation by the Compensation

Adwvisory Panel, the key policy for our executive

remuneration 1s as follows

* Set the remuneration at an adequate level to retain
personnel with superior capabilities

¢ Link the remuneration to company performance
S0 as to motivate executives to achieve their
performance targets

* Link the remuneration to company value In the
mid- to long-term

¢ Ensure transparency by implementing an objective
and quantitative framework
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Structure of executive remuneration

In accordance with the above policy, remuneration

for our executive comprises {1} “base salary” pard
monthly, {2} “executive banus” linked to our business
performance in the relevant year, and (3) “stock option
grants”, the value of which is nked to our mid- to
long-term company value In 2007, JT introduced a
stock option program as an incentive linked to the
mid- to long-term company value The Companies
Act requires a special resolution at a shareholders’
mesting if stock options are granted under particularly
advantageous terms or at particularly advantageous
prices This s not the case with our stock option
program, as our stock options are compensation for the
executives who perform their duties, and the options
are granted in exchange for certan considerations

Remuneration for the directors and audit & supervisory
board members are structured as follows

Remuneration for the directors who also serve as executive
officers compnses "base salary”, “executive bonus” and
“stock option grants” “Executive bonus” 1s included, as
they are responsible for the achievement of assigned

annual targets through their day-to-day management

As for the president or each executive deputy president,
the combined amount of “executive bonus” at a 100%
grant basis and “stock option grants” 1s targeted at
shghtly tess than B0% of respective annual base salary
The same scheme 1s introduced to set “executive
bonus™ and “stock option grants” for other directors,
while the combined amount Is targeting approximately
70% of respective annual base salary Excluding outside
directors, remuneration for the directors not serving as
executive officers comprises “base salary” and "stock
option grants”, as they focus on deciston-making on the
Group strategies in addition to supervision of business
and corporate activities Remuneration for outside
directors consists solely of “base salary” and does not
include performance linked compensation from the
perspective of sustaining their independence

Remuneration for the audrt & supenvisory board members
1s also composed of “base salary” alone, n ight of therr
key responsibilty to conduct audits




The maximum amount of the annual aggregate remuneration excluding “stock option grants” for the directors and
audit & supervisory board members was approved at our 22nd Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting in June 2007
The maximum remuneration for all the directors combined 1s ¥870 million and ¥190 million for all the audit &
superwvisary board members combined In addition, the ceiling for annual “stock option grants” for the directors
was approved at the same shareholders’ meeting The ceiling 1s 800 options in number and ¥200 midlion in value
The number of the stock optrons granted to the directors and the executive officers who are not directors 15

decided each year by the Board of Directors

The remuneration payments to the directors and audit & supervisory board members for the year ended
December 2014 are as follows

Total remuneration Tatal amount of remuneration and other payments by type (millon yen)

and other paymants Number to ba pad
Category {million yen) Basic remuneranton Director 8 bonus Stock option grants? {people)
Directors {excluding Qutside Directors) 423 235 102 86 8
Audit & Supervisory Board member
{excluding Outside Audit & Supervisory
Board members} 54 54 - - 2
Outside Directors and Cutside Audit &
Supervisory Board members 41 a1 - - 4
Total 517 329 102 86 14

1 Amoun!s ic ba pasd
2 Total amounts granted for the year endad December 2014

The remuneration payments to the directors and the audit & supervisory board members whose total remuneration
exceeds ¥100 mithon for the year ended December 2014 are as follows

Armount of consalidated remuneranon and other payments by type

{rmullion yen)
Name Category Company Basic ramunaration Dhractor s bonus Stock aption grants Total (millign yen)
Mitsuomi Koizumi Representative Director  JT 56 34 21 in

The stock options granted for the year ended December 2014 are as follows

Resolunion date Septamber 19 2014
Positions and number of pecple grants Directors [excluding outside Directors) six persons
Executive officers {excluding persons serving as Directors) 19 persons

Number of shares 35 600 shares to Directors (excluding outside Directors)
33 200 shares to Execuuve officers {excluding persons serving as Directors)
Total 68 B0OO shares (200 shares per stock acquisiton righi)
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Financial Review

Analysis of the Results

FY2014 Results for the fiscal year ended December 31 2014

About the unification of accounting penod

In this fiscal year, the Company and its subsidianes have unified therr fiscal years to end on December 31, in line with
overseas consolidated subsidiaries of the Group which will enhance and improve the efficiency of the closing and
management systems

FY2014, a transitional pentod for the change 1n accounting period. covers nine menths from Apnl 1, 2014 to
December 31, 2014 for the Japanese domestic businesses The same change in the accounting perod 1s applied
to those the Company's consolidated subsidiaries whose current closing date was other than December 31
(Reported basis)

For the purpose of fair comparnison of business performance, we are providing figures for the twelve-month period
from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 ({Like-for-Like basis} with regard to ail business segments

2014 results (Reported basis)

2014 results (Like-for-ike basis, Comparison with 2013 Jan - Dec)

Jan  Apr Jul  Oct
Mar  Jun  Sep Dec

Domestic I

International I

Jan  Apr  Jul  Qet Jan  Apr  Jul Qe¢t  Jan  Apr  Jul  Qct
Mar  Jun  Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar  Jun  Sep Dec
Domaestic l
{nternational

FY2013 FY2014 2013 Jan - Dec 2014 Jan - Dac

Japan domestic businesses From Apnil 1, 2074 to December 31, All bustness segments Twelve-month penod from January 1 to
2014 (Nine months} December 31 for 2013 and 2014 respecuvely

International business From January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014

{Twelve months}

Notos

Revanue operaling proiit adjusied operating prohit and profit attributed 1o ewners ot the parent company for January - December 2014 would be aisclosed i the Financeal Statements and
Notes which would be audited

For tha purposa of far comparison and reference the same accounting methads were appled (o both financial results of January - Decermnpar 2013and 2014 Financial results of January —
December 2013 would not ba audited
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1 Significant Accounting Policies

Having acquired RJR Nabisco's non-U $ tobacco
operation in 1999 and Gallaher Group Plc in the UK

in 2007, the JT Group has been growing steadily as a
global company wath operaticns in over 70 countries
and with our products soid in more thars 120 countries
and regions around the world In this context, the JT
Group has adopted IFRS from the year ended March 31,
2012 to improve international comparability of financiat
information in capital markets and to dwersify the
group’s sources of financing through international
capital markets

Effective from the current fiscal year, the Company

and those of its consolidated subsidianes with fiscal
year ends other than December 31 have changed their
fiscal year ends to December 31 for the purpose of
unifying the fiscal year end with overseas consolidated
subsidianes of the Group, which will enhance and
improve the efficiency of the closing and management
systems As a result of this change, the consoldated
fiscal year end date has been changed from March 31
to December 31, and the current fiscal year 1s the
nine-month period from April 1, 2014, through
December 31, 2014 In addition, the fiscal vear end date
of JT International Holding BY and its subsidiaries,
which operate the Group’s International Tobacco
Business, 1s already December 31 Consequently, the
financial results of these companies for the twelve-
month perncd from January 1, 2014, through December
31, 2014, have been consolidated into the Group's
consolidated financial results for the current fiscal year

For further detalls of significant accounting policies,
please refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements

2 Non-GAAP financial measures

The JT Group discloses certain additional financial
measures that are not required or defined under IFRS
These measures help grasp underlying performance

of each business and are used for internal performance
management We beleve that they are useful
information for users of our financral statements

to assess the Group's performance

For our international tobacco business, its consolidated
financial statements reported in US dollars are internally
reviewed and therefore revenue and adjusted operating
profit are externally communicated in US dollars These
non-GAAP financial measures should be treated as
supplementary information, rather than alternative
measures to corresponding financial numbers

prepared in accordance with IFRS

Core revenue

For the tobacco business, core revenue is disclosed
additionally as a breakdown of revenue Specifically,
the core revenue for the Japanese domestic tobacco
business 1s presented after deducting revenue
accounted for distribution of iImported tobacco
products, among other things, from revenue, while
core revenue for the international tobacco business
1s presented after deducting the revenue accounted
for the distribution business and contract manufacturing,
among other areas, from revenus

Adjusted Operating Profit

In order to provide useful comparative information

on our business perfermance, adjusted operating
profitis presented as operating profit plus amortization
of acquired intangibles and adjusted items (Income
and costs) Adjusted items {income and costs) are
imparrment losses on goodwill and restructunng
income and costs, and other tems Furthermore, for
the international tobacco business, adjusted operating
profit at constant rates of exchange which excludes
foreign exchange effects, 1s also presented as additional —
information Adjusted operating profit at constant

exchange rate for a relevant period in the international

tobacco business i1s calculated using the foreign

exchange rates of the prior year
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Adjusted EPS (diluted)

In order to provide useful comparative information
on our shareholder return, adjusted EPS {diluted) I1s
presented after making certain adjustments to dilute
EPS For the adjustments made for the adjusted EPS
{diluted), please refer to Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements ‘30 Earnings per share’

Consolidated dividend payout ratio

The consolidated dividend payout ratio is calculated by
dividing the annual dividend per share for the relevant

year {total of interm dividends and year-end dividends

for which the record dates are included in the relevant

year) by basic earnings per share

3 Analysis of consolidated financial results for
FY2014 {the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014)
Far analysis of 'Revenue’, ‘Adjusted Operaung Profit,
‘Operating profit” and "Profit attnibutable to owners of
the parent company’, it was disciosed based on the
results of January 1 to December 31, 2013 and 2014
{Like-for-Like base) for the Company and its subsidiaries
For analysis of financial results by business segment,
please refer to ‘Review of Operations’
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Financial Review continued

Analysis of the Results continued
FY2014 Resuits for the fiscal year ended December 31 2014

0 Actual Resulis © Decrease ® increase [Decreasa in casa of expeanse)

Revenue'

{bulions of yen}
2013 Jan - Dec 23722
N — L
Japanesa domesuc tobacco - 45
Pharmaceutcal I s
Beverage Bz
Processed Food | o
Others l 13
2014 Jan - Dec 24335

= Revenue increased ¥61 3 billion or +2 6% year-on-year to ¥2 433 § bilhon
» This was mainly the resulis of robust pricing and mix effect in the internaueonal tobacco business as well as the weak yen effect

Adjusted Operating Profit? / Operating Profit

{bithons af yen)

2013 Jan - Dec 6126

Intarnanonal tADACCa al CONSIANT Currency _ +638
itamenorul epacco st Locat crancy A -
vs USS$ Forex Effact

International tobacco USS vs Yen — +318

Farex Effect

Japanese domestic business . k1
Pharmaceutical - +63
Beverage -8
Processed Food { 08
Others a8
2013 Jan - Dec Adjusted Operating Prodit 6601
Adjustad total ,: "J?’*A Q‘Eif‘f”‘:{f < b :f;"ﬁ'}* s PPEY 3:’{;; ey AT S i"‘u"’! 883
2014 Jan - Dec Operating Proin 5718

Adjusted operating profit increased ¥47 5 bilion or +7 8% year-on-year to ¥660 1 billon driven by the tobacco business

+ InInternaticnal tobacco business adjusted operating profit growth was driven by strang price and mix effect as well as the weak yen effect

* InJapanese domestic tobaceo business  adjusted operating profit growth was driven by price/mix tmprovement resulting frem successful
consumer retention and the decrease In casts and sales promotion expenses

Operating profit at constant currency increased +10 6% year-on-year

Operating profit decreased ¥70 9 billon or -11 0% year-on-year to ¥571 8 bilicn

* Recognized the costs assaciated with measures to strengthan the competitiveness of the Japanese domestic tobacco business
+ Recognized the restructuring costs of manufacturing facilties in Eurgge in the International tobacco business

« Other income of proceeds from disposal of investment property decreased
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Profit’

(biltions of yen)

2013 Jan - Dec
Operating profit

Finsncial incomaTmancal cost — +140

Income tax/Proti attnbutable .
+28

o non-controlling interests
20114 tan - Dec

3891

= Profit decreased ¥54 0 billion or -12 2% year on-year to ¥389 1 billon as the decrease in operating profit more than the increase in net financial Income
* Finangial income/Financial costs improved year-on-year mainly due to the increase in interest income and the decrease in intergst expenses
* Income tax decreased (increased as in the above graph) due to the decrease in profit and post a deferred tax lkability

Revenue by business segment

Billons of yen

2013 2014

Adjusted Operating Profit and Operating
profit by business segment

Billions of yen

2013 2014
Jan-Dec  Jan-Dec Jan-Dec Jan-Dec
Revenue 23722 24335 Consohdated operatng profit 6427 5718
International tobacco 12700 1,3280 Adjustment total® (301} 883
I Core revenue* 12007 1,2582 Consolidated Adjusted operating profit 6126 6601
Japanese domestic tobacco 6905 6859 International tobacco Operating profit 3764 3795
l Core revenue® 6563 6498 Adjustment total® 344 676
Pharmaceutical 58 2 658 International tobaceo
Beverage 1838 1813 Adjusted operating profit 4108 4471
Processed Food 1572 161 2 Japanese domestic tobacco Operating profit 2356 1815
Others 126 n3 Adjustment total® {10} 572
Japanese domestc tobacco
Adusted operating profit 2346 2387
Pharmaceutical Operating profit {137 (73)
Average Exchange Rate Adustment 1o : -
2013 2014 Pharmaceutical Adjusted operating profit 137 (73)
Jan-Dec  Jan-Dec Beverage Operaung profit 21 (0 5}
YEN/USS 9773 10579 Adjustment total® - -
RUB/USS 3184 3840 Beverage Adjusted operating profit (21 (05)
GBP/USS 064 o8 Processed Food Qperating profit 07 {12)
EUR/JSS c75 075 Adjustment total® ©on 26
1 Exclude tobacco excise 1axas and agency iransacliens Processed food Ad]us{ed operaing prOflt 08 14
2 Adjusted Operating prafit = Operating profit + amortization of intangible assets of = Others/Elimination Qperating profit 457 199
adjusied items income and costs)* -
*Adjusted itams iIncome and costa) = Impairmant logses on goodwill £ res ruc unng Adjusiment total® (63 4) {391)
ingomae and costs + others
3 Profi a..ribu.abla 1o owners of the parent Others/Elimination
4 Excludes revenues from dis'ribLrion contract manufaciusing and ather penpheral Adjusted operating profit {176} (19 3)

5]

o

businesses

Excludes revenue form distnibution of imported tobacco in the Japanese domashc

webacca business among o her {actors

Amaruzation cost of acguired intangikles + adyustment itemsiincomse and cosn™

**Adjustmant items [income and costs) = impairment losses on goadwill =
restrucluring Income and costs = others

* For analysis of revenue core revenue and adjusted operating profit of each
business segment, please refer 19 section Review of Operations
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Financial Review contmued

Analysis of the Results continued
FY2014. Results for the fiscal year ended Decermnber 31 2014

{2) Adjusted EPS (diluted}
Adjusted profit for January - December, 2014 increased ¥277 billion year-on-year to ¥434 7 billion Adjusted EPS
{diluted} for January — December, 2014 increased ¥1703 or +7 7% year-on-year to ¥239 01

{Billions of yen)

2013 2014
Jan Dec Jan-Dec
Profit used for calculaton of adjusted diluted earrings per share 4430 3891
Adjustment items (iIncome} {65 1) {46 1)
Adjustment itermns (Costs) ap 1050
Adjustments on income taxes and non-controlling interests 200 (13 3)
Ad)usted profit for the year 406 9 4347
Weighted-average number of diluted ordinary shares dunng the year (thousands of shares) 1,833 237 1,818,590
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (yen} 22198 23501

{3) Resulits and plans of capital expenditures

Capital expenditures include outlays on property, plants and equipment such as land, buildings, and structures,
machinery, vehicles and others, and intangible assets such as goodwill, trademark, software, and others that are
necessary for enhancing the productmvity of our factones and other faciities, strengthening our compettiveness,
and operating 1n vanous business fields

{Billions of yen %)

2013 2014

Years ended March 31 Jan-Dec Jan-Dec
Capital expendrture 1686 140 9
International tobacco 785 74 2
Japanese domestic tobacco 612 410
Pharmaceutical 35 47
Beverage 154 107
Processed Food 48 47
Other/Elimination and corporate 51 55

Total amount of capital expenditures amounted to ¥140 9 billion from January 1to December 31, 2014

In the international tobacco business, capital expenditures amounted to ¥74 2 billion which was spent on expanding
production capacity, maintenance and replacement of facility, and for improvement of product specifications in the
Japanese domestic tobacco business, capital expenditures amounted to ¥41 0 billion which was spent on initiatives
to strearmline manufactunng processes, to strengthen our ability to respond flexibly to supply and demand
fluctuations with an increasingly diverse range of products, and to develop new products

In the pharmaceutical business, capital expenditures amounted to ¥4 7 billion which was spent on the development
and reinforcement of R&D capabilities

In the beverage business, capial expenditures amounted to ¥10 7 bilion, which was spent cn maintaining and
renewing the vending machine network, among other areas

In the processed food business, capital expenditures amounted te ¥4 7 bilhon, which was spent on enhancing
and mamtaining the production capacity

These capital expenditures were internally funded through cash generated by operations
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Plans for new instailations and disposal of facilities
Regarding the mid- to long-term resource allocation of the JT Group, we waill place top priority on business
investments that will lead to sustainable profit growth in the mid- to long-term based on our management
principles We position the international and Japanese domestic tobacco business as the core business and profit
growth engine and place top priority on business investments that wiil lead to their sustainable profit growth

Meanwhile, regarding the pharmaceutical business and processed food business, we will strive to strengthen
foundattons that will lead to future profit contribution, and we will make investments to that end Based on this
policy, we plan capital expenditures totaling ¥161 0* billion for FY2015

As JT and JT Group companies have wide-ranging plans for capital expenditure, figures are disclosed by segment
Our actual capital expenditures may differ significantly from the planned figures mentioned above as a result of a
number of factors, including those discussed in "Risk Factors’

Capital Expenditure plan
{Buhons of yen}

Main purpose of investment

Funding

International tobacco

Investment for improvement of product specifications, expansion
of producuon capacity maintenance and upgrading of faciites

Internally funded

Investment in production and sales facilities for the purpose of brand

equity enhancement

Same as above

Investment for the maintaining and reinforcing of R&D

Same as above

Investrnent for the maintenance and reinforeing trade marketing

Same as above

MIIAIH TWIONVYNIA |

business 850
Japanese domesug

tobacco 410
Pharmaceutical 65
Beverage 30
Processed food 70

Investment for enhancing and mantaining production capacity

Same as above

* Tha businass impact and cosls ralatad to the withdrawal from the manufacture and sale of JT beverage products announced in February 2015 was not included in the planned

capital expanditures lor FY2015
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Financial Review continued

Analysis of the Results continued
FY2014" Results for the fiscal year anded December 31 2014

{4) Consohdated financial results for FY2014 (Consolidated balance sheet)
Analysts of consolidated statement of financial position {assets, debt and equity) ended December 31, 2014 was
disclosed as below

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Assets)

{tstions of yen)
March 31 2014 46183
Cosh s ashsquavaors I 5 ;
Trada and other recenvables l 82
Inveniory _ +369
Property plant and equipment n 39
Goodwill IRERNERE <1
Trademark u -193
Other assats : -15
Decamber 31 2014 47047

Toial assets increased ¥87 9 tuilon to ¥4 704 7 bilkon due to 1mong other faclors the weak yen effect which partially offset the decrease in goodwill with
weak local currency effect (vs US$) and investment property

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Debt and Equity)

(pdhons of yen)

March 31 2014 46168

Trade and other payables I - -

Boncs 5 -5 % . o

Borowings - +104

Tobacco excise iax payabies atc _ +1033

Other liabiilias I

Setained samings I - (2o ¢
Sxtinge o an v W T e
Other equity total | +01

March 31 2014 47047

Total habilitres increased ¥61 5 billion to ¥2082 2 billion mainly due to the increase in tobacco excise tax payables and the weak yen wnich was parUally off-set
by decrease n Interest beanng debis

Total equiny increased ¥26 4 bilion 10 ¥2 6§22 5 billion due to the iIncrease in retained earmings but parhally oifsel by the decrease in exchange diflerences

on trans'ation of foreign operations
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4 Dwidends

The year-end dividends for FY2014 were ¥50 per share
The total annual dividends per share, including the
interim dividends per share of ¥50 per share, were ¥100
per share, with a consolidated payout ratio of 50 1%

The year-end dividends related to the current year
are recognized n the following year for accounting
purposes The year-end dwidend related to FY2013
(record date of March 31, 2014) and the interim
dividends for FY2014 (record date of September 30,
2014} are recorded in the financial statements for
FY2014 For more details, please refer to Note 24 1o
the consolidated financial statements “Dividends”

5 Capital management

The JT Group’s management principle 1s pursuit of the
"4S" mode! ensuring that in all our activities, we satisfy
and fulfill cur responsibilines towards our consumers,
shareholders, employees and wider society, while
balancing the interest of these key stakeholder groups

The JT Group beleves that sustainable profit growth
In the mid- to long-term based on this principle will
increase the JT Group's value in the mid- to long-term,
and 1s consequently in the best interest of all
stakeholders, including our shareholders

In order to achieve sustainable growth, the JT Group
understands that financing capacities sufficient enough
to make agile business investments when there are
opportunities, such as the acquisition of external
resources for business growth are required For that
reason, the JT Group aims to maintain a well-balanced
capital structure by ensuring sound and flexible financial
condrtions for future business investment as well as an
appropriate return on equity

The JT Group manages net interest-bearing debt, where
cash and cash equivalents are deducted from interest-
bearing debt, and capital (the part attnibutable to the
owners of the parent company) The amounts as of
each year-end are as follows

(Bilions of yen}

As of

As of March Decamber 31,

31 2014 2014

Interest-bearing debt 3759 2282

Cash and cash eguivalents {253 2} {385 B)

Net interest-bearning debt 1227 (157 86)
Capital (equity attnbutable to

owners of the parent company) 25056 2,5368

Note Netinterest bearing debt on Dacember 31 2014 is the net amount of cash and
cash aquivalants after deduclung interest bearing dabt

Share buy-back.

A repurchase of our shares requires cash cutlays As
of December 31, 2014 we held 182,443,388 shares of
common stock as treasury stock, amounting to 9 12%
of totai number of shares 1ssued

In order to repurchase our shares in a flexible manner,
we amended the Articles of Incorporation at the general
meeting of shareholders held on June 24, 2004 so that
we could make repurchase based on a resolution made
by the Board of Directors

We may continue to hold the repurchased shares as
treasury stock or use them for other purposes Stock
repurchase provides our management with an additional
option for increasing flexibility and speed in capital
management in order to adopt to a rapidly changing
business environment

MIIAIH TVIONYNIH l

On February 5, 2015 the Company’s Board of Directors
resolved to acquire up to 36 million shares of s
outstanding common stock for a total amount up to
¥100 billion during the period between February 9, _—
2015 and June 9, 2015 Based on this resolution, the
Company acquired 26,896,200 shares of 1its common
stock for a total acquisition pnce of ¥99,999,695,750
during the period between February 9, 2015 and
March 18, 2015 (contract basis), and has completed
the acquisiion of its common stock as resolved by

the Board of Directors

6. Financial activities

Our Group Treasury Division provides Group-wide
support to enable secure and efficient financing
activities JT Group 1s exposed to financial risks (credit
nsks, hquidity risks, foreign exchange risks, interest rate
risks, and market price fluctuation nsks) Treasury
operations are conducted pursuant to a set of group-
wide financtal nsk management polictes and results
are reported to the CEOQ and the Board of Directors

of JT on a regular basis For more detalls on financal
risk management, please refer to “(2) Financial Risk
Management” to “(7) Market Pnce Fluctuation Risk”
of Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
“Financial Instruments”

(1} Cash Management Systems

To maximize the total group cash efficiency, we give first
priority to utihzing nternal financing mainly by the Cash
Management Systems (CMS) within our Group, where
legally permissible and economically viable
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Financial RCViEW confimued

Analysis of the Results continued
FY2014 Resuits for the hiscal vear ended December 31 2014

{2) External financing

Short-term working capital needs are basically financed
through short-term borrowings from financial institutions
or through commercial paper, or a combination of both
Mid-to long-term capital needs are financed through
long-term borrowings from financial institutions, bond

or equity, or a combination of those previously stated

We continue to diversify our financing method and
correspandent financial institutions to secure stable and
efficient funding sources through activities such as the
establishment of commutted facilities The condition of
the Group's wide external debt i1s reported to the CEQ
and the Board of Directors of JT on a regular basis

(3) External investments

Cur financial iInvestments are always made taking into
account safety, iquidity and aptimal yield Speculative
dealings in pursuit of profit margin are not allowed
The results of the financial investment are reported

to the CEO and the Board of Directors of JT on
aregular basis

7 Results of cash flows

FY2013 and FY2014

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FY2014
increased by ¥132 6 billion from the end of FY2013
to ¥385 8 billon Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of FY2013 were ¥253 2 billion

Nate Tobacco excise tax s paid monthly one month in arrears at the end of each
month In Japan since December 31 2014 was a holiday for financial insttutions in
Japan we did not pay the tobacco excise tax for the previous month s tobacco sales in
Japan an that fiscal year end The amounts of excise taxes paid on the business day
immediately following the end of tha previous yaar was ¥136 8 bilhon

Cash flows from {used in} operating activities

Net cash flows from operating activities during

FY2014 were ¥543 7 billlon The main factors were

the generation of a stable cash infiow from the tobacco
business As a result of holidays for financial insttutions,
the amount of national tobacco excise tax paid for the
prior year in Japan was for 13 months, while the amount
for FY2014 in Japan was for 8 months Net cash flows
from operating activities were ¥396 5 billion for FY2013

Cash flows from (used n) investing activities
Net cash flows used in investing activities during
FY2014 were ¥49 1 bilion This was mainly due to the
proceeds from sale of iInvestment property but partially
offset by the payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment Net cash flows used in investing
activities were ¥163 5 billion for FY2013
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Cash flows from {used in) financing activities

Net cash flows used in financing activities during

FY2014 were ¥388 9 billon This was mainly due to !
the increase of dividends per share and repayment

of bonds Net cash flows used in financing actvities

were ¥145 2 bilion for FY2013

8. Liquidity

We have histonically had, and expect to continue to
have, significant cash flows from operating activities
We expect that cash generated from operating activities
will continue to be stable and cover funds needed for
ordinary business activities On December 31, 2014,
we had Yen 386 5 bilhon commutted facilities for both
domestic and international major financial insututions,
of which 100% was unused In addition, we have a
domestic commercial paper program, uncommitted
facihties and a domestic bond shelf registration

(1) Long-term debt

Bonds issued {including the current portion) as of

March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2014 accounted

for ¥303 5 billion and ¥140 0 billion respectively and
long-term bomrowings as loans from financial institutions
{(including the current portion) accounted for ¥36 3
bithon and ¥41 O bilhon respectively Annual interest rates
applrcable to long-term borrowings outstanding as of
March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2014 ranged from

0 43% to 5 90% and 0 43% to 5 90% respectively
Long-term lease obligations accounted for ¥ 7 billion as
of March 31, 2014 and ¥15 3 bilion as of December 31,
2014 Matunties of mterest beanng debts are shown in
the tabie below

As of December 31, 2014, our long-term debt was rated
Aal by Moody's Japan K K (Mocody's), AA- by Standard
& Poor’s Ratings Japan K K {S&P), and AA by Rating and
Investment Information Inc {R&H), with a “stable”
outlook from Moody’s, a “stable” outlook from S&P and
a "stable” outlook from R&1 These ratings are among
the highest ratings for international tobacco compantes

These ratings are affected by a number of factors

such as developments in our major markets, our
business strategies and general economic trends that
are beyond control The ratings may be withdrawn or
revised at any ime Each rating should be evaluated
separately from other ratings Under the Japan Tobacco
Inc Act, the bondholders of JT can enjoy statutory
preferential rights over unsecured creditors 1n seeking
repayment, with the exception of national and local
taxes and other statutory obligations




{2) Short-term debt

Short-term barrowings totaled ¥21 9 bilion as of March 31, 2014 and ¥27 6 billon as of December 31, 2014 There
was no commercial paper outstanding as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2014 Annuai interest rates applicable
to short-term borrowings ranged from 0 45% to 13 00% as of March 31, 2014, and from 0 43% to 10 00% as of
December 31, 2014 Short-term lease obligations totaled ¥4 4 billion as of March 31, 2014 and ¥4 3 billion as of

December 31, 2014

[Billions of yen)

Dua after Due after Due after Due after

1 year 3 years 3years 4 years
Due within through 2 through 4 through 4 through 5 Due aftar &
Book Value 1 year years years years years years
Short-term borrowings as loans 276 276 - - - - -
Short-term lease obligations 43 43 - - - - -
Long-term barrowings as loans (current portion} 399 399 - - - - -
Bonds {current portion} 400 400 - - - - -
Long-term borrowings as loans 10 - 01 01 02 01 05
Bonds 1000 - - 200 603 - 200
Long-term lease obligations 153 - 36 28 18 07 64
Total 2282 mas 37 229 623 08 269
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Japan Tobacco ing and Consclidated Subsidiasies
FY2014: Nine months ended December 31 2014

Millions of yen

Y2013 FY2014
(As of March 31 2034) {As of December 31 2014}
Assets Restated®
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents [(Note 7} ¥ 253219 ¥ 385,820
Trade and other recewvables (Note 8) 440 210 448,402
Inventones [Note 9) 550987 587,849
Other financiat assets (Note 10} 17 333 43,907
Other current assets {(Note 11) 226,012 230,530
Subtotal 1487 761 1,696,507
Non-current assets held-for-sale (Note 12) 1952 367
Total current assets 1489713 1,696,874
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment {Notes 13 19 779987 756,127
Goodwill {(Note 14} 1 584 432 1,539,376
Intangible assets (Note 14) 385 101 364,912
Investment property {(Note 16) 61421 17,870
Retrement benefit assets {Note 22) 16 530 35,402
Investments accounted for using the equity method 106,107 76,825
Other financial assets (Note 10} 92 596 91,959
Deferred tax assets (Note 17} 100,880 125,361
Total non-current assets 3,127 053 3,007,832
Total assets ¥4,616 766 ¥4,704,706

Pleasa refer to Note “3 Significant Accountuing Policres ™
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Millions of yen

F¥2013 FY2014
{As of March 31 2014} |As of Docamber 31 2014)
Liabilities and equity Restated®
Liabilihies
Current labilities
Trade and other payables (Note 18) ¥ 360,025 ¥ 419,764
Bonds and borrowings (Note 19) 195 562 107,562
Income tax payables 77,168 64,942
Qther financial lkebliues (Note 19) 9,491 14,463
Provisions (Note 20} 7,362 9,200
Other current habilites {Note 21) 606,161 754,169
Subtotal 1255 759 1,360,098
Liabilitres directly associated with non-current assets held-for-sale (Note 12) 75 -
Total current habdities 1255 834 1,360,098
Non-current habilities
Bonds and borrowings (Nots 19) 166,165 101,001
Qther financial labilities (Note 19) 17,731 18,617
Retirement banefit labilities (Note 22} 340,462 351,915
Provisions (Note 20) 5,241 25,425
Other non-current labilites (Note 21} 126,539 121,792
Deferred tax labihzies (Nota 17) 108 703 103,356
Total non-current habilities 764,842 722,106
Total habities 2,020,675 2,082,204
Equity
Share capital {Note 23) 100 000 100,000
Capital surplus (Note 23} 736 400 736,400
Treasury shares (Note 23} (344 463} (344,447)
Other components of equity {Note 23) 251 167 142,425
Retained earnings 1 762 566 1,902,460
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company 2505610 2,536,838
Non-controlling intergsts 90,481 85,665
Total equity 2 596 091 2,622,503
Total habihities and equity ¥4 616,766 ¥4,704,706
Please refer 10 Note “3 Significant Accounung Palicies *
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Consolidated Statement of Income

Japan Tobacco Inc and Consolidated Subsidiaries
FY2014 wine months ended December 31 2014

Miilions of yen

FY2013
(Year ended March 31 2014)

FY2014
{Nine months ended
December 31, 2014}

Revenue {Notes 6, 25} ¥2,399 841 ¥2,153,970
Cost of sales (Notes 14, 22) {979,975) {886,267}
Gross profit 1 419 866 1,267,703
Other operating income {Note 26} 55634 47,651
Share of profit in invesiments accounted for using the equity method 1702 7.812
Selling general and administrative expenses (Notes 12, 13, 14, 18, 22, 27, 32} (828,942) {823,410)
Operating profit (Note 6} 648 260 499,757
Financial income {(Notes 28 33) 8351 13,847
Finaneial costs (Notes 22, 28, 33} {20,408) {11,304
Profit before iIncome taxes 636 203 602,299
Income taxes (Note 17) {200 912) {133,673)
Profit for the penod ¥ 435291 ¥ 368,626
Artrtbutable to

Owners of the parent company ¥ 427987 ¥ 362919

Non-controlling interests 7304 5,708

Profit for the period ¥ 435 291 ¥ 368,626
Earmnings per share

Basic (Yen) (Note 30) ¥ 23548 ¥ 19967

Diluted (Yen} {Note 30} 235 35 199 56
Reconciliation from "Operating profit” to “Adjusted operating profit”

Millions of yen
FY2013 Y2014

(Year ended March 31 2034)

{Nina months ended
December 31 2014}

QOperating profit ¥648 280 ¥499,757
Amortization cost of acquired intangibles 25984 29,465
Adjustment items (Income) (47 047} (44,302}
Adjustment items {cosis) 14 580 103,641

Adjusted operating profit {Note 6) ¥641 777 ¥588,561
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Japan Tobacco Inc and Consolidated Subsidiaries
FY2014 nNine months ended December 31 2014

Millions of yen

FY2013
{Y¥ear enced March 31 2014}

FY2014
{Nine months ended
December 31 2014)

Profit for the perod ¥435,291 ¥ 368,626
Other comprehensive income
Items that wall not be reclassified to profit or loss
Net gain {loss) on revaluation of financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income {Notes 29 33) 4725 3,725
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (Notes 22 29) 8824 {14,164)
Total of nems that will not ba reclassified to profit or lass 13 549 {10,429}
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or foss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (Note 29) 400,941 (114,242)
Net gain {loss} on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges {Note 29) 481 922
Total of items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 201,421 {113,319)
Other comprehensive income {loss) net of taxes 414,970 {123,759)
Comprehensive income {loss) for the penod ¥850 261 ¥ 244,868
Attnbutable to
QOwners of the parent company ¥B842,867 ¥ 240,363
Non-controlling interests 7394 4,505
Camprehansive income {loss) for the penad ¥850Q 261 ¥ 244,868
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Japan Tobacco Inc and Consolidated Subsidianes

FY2014 nine monihs ended December 31 2014

Milbons ot yar

Equity attnbutable 10 ownars of the parsnt company

Other components of aguity

Exchange
dittarences on
wansianon ot

Nat gain (loss}
on revabsation of
hnancal assats
measurad at fan
value through

Net gain {lozs}
on denvatives

Subscnpbon forespn designated a3 other comprehan

Shars cap:.al Capital surphus Treasury shams nghs to shares OpOFalons  Cash flow hedges Sve Income

Asof Apnl 1 2013 ¥100 000 ¥736 414 ¥(344,573) ¥1274 ¥{i71341) ¥ {1879 ¥14 835
Profit tor the period - - - - - - -
Other comprehensive :ncoma {loss) — - - - 401 331 481 4 663
Comprehensive income {loss) far the penod - - - - 401334 481 4683
Acquisition of Teasury shares (Note 23) - - (0} - - - -
Oisposal of treasury shares {Note 23) - 1 110 {81) - - -
Share based payments {Nata 32} - - - 251 - - -
Dmwadends {Nota 24} — - - - - - -

Changes in the ownership interest i a subsidiary
without a loss of control - - - - - - -
Transfer from gther components of equity 10 retained garmings - - - - - - 118
Other increase [decrease) — — - — - - -
Total transactions with the gwners - 4R} 1190 69 - = (118)
As of March 31 2014 100 000 736 400 {344 463} 443 229990 293 19 38¢
Prafit for the period - - - - - - -
Other comprehansive income {loss) — - - - (112,972} 922 3,753
Comprehensive income (loss) for the penod - - - - (112 972} 922 3,753
Acqursition of treasury shares (Nota 23) - - — - - - -
Dhsposal of treasury shares {Note 23) - - 16 {14} - - -
Share based payments (Note 32) - — — 202 - - —
Dividands (Note 24) - - - - - - -
Changes i the awnership interest in a subsidary

without a loss of control - - - - {5971 - -
Transfer fram other components of equity to retasned earnings - — — - - - 23
Qther increase {decrease) - - - - - - -
Total transactions with the owners - - 16 188 (597 - 23
As of Dacember 31, 2014 ¥100,000 ¥736,400 ¥(344,447) ¥1 631 ¥ 116,421 ¥1,215 ¥23,156

Millions ot yan

Equity attnbutable to cwners of the parent company

Otrer companents of equity

Remsasuramants

ot defingq Retaned Nor-controlling
benraft plans Total aarmnings Total INtArasts Total aquity
Asof Apnl 1 2013 ¥ - ¥(155 420) ¥1 470125 ¥1 806 543 ¥a5 887 ¥1 8924
Profit for the period - - 427 987 427 987 7304 435 291
Other comprehensive income floss) 8 405 414 880 - 414 880 90 414 970
Comprehensive income (loss) for the pariod 8405 414 880 427 987 847 867 739 850 261
Acquisition of lreasury shares [Note 23} - - - 0 - W}
Disposal of treasury shares (Note 23) - 81) 18} 0 - Ju]
Share based payments {Note 32) - 251 - 251 - 251
Omdends (Note 24) - - {152 668} (152 669) (3179 {155 849)
Changes i the ownership interest in a subsidiary
without a loss of control - - o 0o {2 509) 13 520)
Transfer from other components of equity Lo retained earmings {8 405) 8520 8523 — - —
Other ncreasa [decrease) - — 9629 9629 2883 12517
Total wransatuons with the owners 18 405) {8 353) 11305 546} {143 800 |2 801% 1145 601}
As of March 31 2014 - 251107 7 762 566 2505610 90 481 2 596 09
Proiit for the penod - - 362,919 382918 5,708 368,626
Other comprehensive iIncoma {loss) 114,258) {122,556) — {122,556} 1,203} (123,759}
Comprehensive income {loss) for the period (14,259 {122 556) 362,919 240,363 4,505 244,868
Acquisibion of treasury shares {Note 23) - - - - - -
Disposal of treasury shares (Note 23) - {14} (3} o - o]
Share based paymants (Note 32) - 202 - 202 - 202
Dridends (Note 24} - - {181,755} (181,755) 12,736} {184 451)
Changes in the gwnership nterest in a subsidary
without a {oss of control - {597) {26 985} (27,581) {7,623 {35,204}
Transter from other components of equity to retanad earmings 14 259 14,282 {14,282) - - -
Other increase [decrease) — — - — 1,038 1039
Toial transactions with the owners 14 259 13,874 1223,025) (209,135) 19,321) 218,455}
As of December 31, 2014 ¥ - ¥ 142,425 ¥1,902,460 ¥2 536,318 ¥85,665 ¥2,622,503
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Japan Tobacco Inc and Consolidated Subsidianes
FY2014: Nire months ended December 31 2014

Muillions of yen

2013 FY2014
(vear ended March 31 2014 {Nine months anded
Rastatad™ December 31 2014)
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income taxes ¥ 636 203 ¥ 502,299
Depreciation and amortization 132,921 122,171
Impairment losses 2 446 21,877
Impairment losses of iInvestments in associates 9717 -
Interest and dividend income 17.933) (13,560)
Interest expense 8612 4,651
Share of profit in investments accounted for using the equity method {1,702) {7.812)
{Gains} losses on sale and disposal of property, plant and equipment
intangible assets and investment property 38,800} {31,315)
{increase) decrease i trade and other receivables (13,631) {12,130)
{increase) decrease in mventornes {15,530) {16,808)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables 11,085 83,885
Increase (decrease) in retirement benefit habilites (17,681} (25,736)
{Increase) decrease in prepaid tobacco excise taxes 14,274) (23,963)
Increase (decrease) in tobacco excise tax payables (103,515) 103,651
Increase (decrease) in consumption tax payables (5,148) 37,550
Qther (2,013} {37,055)
Subtotal 530,748 707,703
Interest and dividends received 9,614 22,569
Interest paid (8,489} {7,050)
income taxes paid {185,298} {179,526)
Net cash flows from operating activities 396,496 543,696
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of securities (8,880) (3,280)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of secunties 23,718 4,769
Purchase of property plant and equipment {132,256} (106,655)
Proceeds from sale of investment property 56,159 85,653
Purchase of intangible assets {18 263} (7,749)
Payments into tme deposits {798) {852)
Proceeds irom withdrawal of time deposits 4,744 778
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries - 20,977
Purchase of iInvestments In associates (74 801) -
Other {13,095) {800}
Net cash flows from invasting activities (163 473) {49,110}
Cash flows from financing activities
Divdends paid to owners of the parent company (Note 24) (152 570) {181,635)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests {3 195) (2,663)
Capital contributton from non-controlling interests 59 44
Increase {decrease) in short-term borrowings and commercial paper 8,936) 6,373
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 70 -
Repayments of long-term borrowings (20 558) {1.225)
Proceeds from i1ssuance of bonds 49,395 -
Redempuon of bonds - {170,670}
Repaymenis of finance lease obligations 14,992) {3.837)
Acquisition of treasury shares {0) -
Payments for acquisiion of interests in subsidiaries from non-controlling interests 4 462) {35,246)
Other 0 0
Net cash flows fram financing activities {145 189} (388,859)
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 87,834 105,727
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the penod 142,713 253,219
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 22 672 26,874
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the penod (Note 7) ¥ 253 219 ¥ 335,820
Please rafer 10 Na e 3 Sigmificant Accounung Polcias ™
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Japan Tobacco inc and Consolhdated Subsidiares

FY2014 Mine months ended December 31 2014/ FY2013 Year ended March 31 2014

1 Reporung Enuty

Japan Tobacco Inc thereinafter referred to as the Company”) 1s
a joint stock corporation under the Companies Act of Japan, pur-
suant to the Japan Tobacco Inc Act with its principal places of
business located 1n Japan since its incorporation The addresses
of the Company s registered head office and pnncipal business
offices are avaitable on the Company s website (http /iwww |t
coipl

2 Basis of Preparation

The detads of businesses and principal business acuvines of
the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the
Group ) are stated In 6 Cperating Segments
The Group s consolidated financial statements for the ning
menths ended December 31 2014 were approved on March 20
2015 by Mitsuomi Kotzumi, President and Chief Executive Officer

{1) Comphance with IFRS

The Group s consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{hereinafter referred to as "IFRS")

(2) Basis of Measurement

Except for the financial instruments, stated in 3 Signuficant
Accounting Policies the Group’s consolidated financial state-
ments are prepared on the historical cost basis

(3) Functional Currency and Presentation
Currency

The Group’s consolidated finangial statements are presented in

Japanese yen, which s the functional currency of the Company

The units are in mithons of yen and figures less than one million

yen are rounded to tha nearest mullion yen

{4) Early Adoption of New Accounting Standards
The Group has early adopted {FRS 9 Financial Instruments
{revised 1n October 2010} (heremnafter referred to as ‘IFRS 8"} from
Apnl 1 2011

IFRS 9 replaces 1AS 33 Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement * (hereinafter referred to as 1AS 39 ) and pro-
vides two measurement categones for financral instruments
amortized cost and farr value Changes in fair value of financial
assets measured at fair value are recognized in profit or loss
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However, changes in fair value of investments in equity instru-
ments except for eguity Instruments held for trading purposes
are allowed to be recogruzed in other comprehensive income

(5) Change of Fiscal Year End
In this fiscal year the Company and its subsidraries with fiscal
year ends other than December 31 have changed their fiscal year
ends to December 31 for the purpose of unifying the fiscal year
end with overseas consclidated subsidiaries of the Group which
will enhance and improve the efficiency of the closing and
management systems

As a consequence cf this change of fiscal vear end fiscal year
2014 was a nine-menth pered from April 1 2014 to December
31,2014

In addition the fiscal year end date of JT International Holding
BV and its subsidiaries which operate the Group’s international
tobacco business continues to be December 31 as before hence
the Group consolidates financial results of ihe JTIH Group for the
twelve-month penod from January 1 2014 10 December 31 2014
Into the Group s consehdated financal resulis for the nine months
ended December 31 2014

For the consolidated staterment of Income assuming that the
fiscal year of the Group bad been the twelve-month period from
January 1, 2014 to December 31 2014 please refer to Note ‘39
Consolidated Statement of Income (2014 January — December)




3. Significant Accountung Policies

(1) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include financial statements
of the Company and its subsidianes, and interests in Investments
in associates and joint arrangements

A Subsidianes
A subsidiary 15 an entity that s controlled by the Group and the
Group has contsol over the entity of 1t 1s exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from 1ts Involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through 1ts power over the investee
The acquisiton date of a subsidrary is the date on which the
Group cbtains control of the subsidiary and the subsidiary (s
included in the consolidation from the date of acquisiion untl
the date on which the Group loses control

In cases where the accounting policies applied by a subsidiary
are different from those applied by the Group adjustments are
made to the subsidiary s financial statements, If nacessary

Allintergroup balances transactions income and expenses
are eliminated on consclidation

Comprehensive income for subsidiaries 1s atirtbuted 10 owners
of the parent company and non-controlling interests even if this
resuits in the non-controling interests having a defieit balance

B Associates

An associate 1s an entty over which the Group has significant
influence The Group has significant influence over the entity If
It has the power 1o participate 1n the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but 1t does not have control or
Joint control over the investee Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method from the date on which
the Group has the significant influence until the date on which it
ceases to have the significant influence

C Joint Arrangements

A Joint arrangement 15 a contractual arrangement of which two

or more parues have |oint control Depending upon the nghts and
cbhgations of the parues to the arrangement, the Group classifies
a Joint arrangement nie a joint operation whereby the Group has
rights to the assets and obligatiens for the labilities relating to the
arrangement, and a joint venture whereby the Group has rnights

to the net asseis of the arrangement only The Group recognizes
the assets, habiities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest
In & joint operation while a joint venture 1s accounted for using the
equity method

{2) Business Combmnation

Business combinauons are accounted for using the acguisition
method Consideration transferred in a businegss combinabion 1s
measured as the sum of the acquisiton-date fair value of the

assets transierred, the habilities assumed and equity instrurments
1ssued by the Company in exchange for control over an acguires
Any excess of the consideration of acquisition over the fair value
of idenbfiable assets and habilities 1s recogrized as goodwill In the
consoldated statement of financial position If the consideration
of acquisition 1s fower than the fair value of the idenufiable asseis
and liabilities, the difference 1s immediately recognized as profit

n the consol dated staterment of income If the armouni of 1nitial
acccunting for a business cominnation 1 not determined by the
end of the reporting period in which the combination cccurs the
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting s
incemplete are reperted and are adjusted during the measurement
pertod, which I1s one year from the acquisition date Acquisition-
related costs incurred are recognized as expenses The additional
acquisttion of non-controlling interests after obtaining control 13
accounted for as a capital transaction Any difference between the
armount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusteg and
the fair value of the consideraton paid or received is recognized
directly in retained earnings and no goodwiil 1s recognized with
respect 10 such transaction

(3) Foreign Currency Transiation
Consohdated financial statermenis of the Group are presented In
Japanese yen which 1s the functional currency of the Company
Each company tn the Group specifies its own functional currency
and measures transacuons based on nt

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of trans-
actions or an approximation of the rate Monetary assets and
habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
the ‘unctional currency at the rates of exchange prevailling at the
fiscal year end date Differences arising from the translaton and
settlement are recognized as profit or loss Howevaer, exchange
differences ansing from the translaton of financial instruments
designated as hedging instruments for net investrment «n foreign
operations (foreign subsidianes) financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive iIncome and cash flow
hedges are recognized as other comprehensive income

The assets and lrabiities of foreign operations are translated
into Japanese ven at the rates of exchange prevailing at the fiscai
year end date, while income and expenses of foreign operations
are translated into Japanese yen at the rates of exchange prevall-
Ing at the dates of transactions or an agproximauon o the rate
The resulting translation differences are recogmized as other com-
prehensive income In cases where foreign operations are dis-
posed of, the cumulative amount of translation differences related
to the foreign operations 1s recognized as profit or loss in the
penod of disposition
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(4) Financial Instruments
A Financial Assets
(" Immal Recognitron and Measurement
Financial assets are classified into financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss fair value through other compre-
hensive Income ana amertized cost The Group determines the
classtfication at imitial recognition
Financial assets are classified as financial assets measured
at amortized cost if both of the following condiions are met
Otherwise they are classified as financial assets measured at
fair value
* The asset I1s held within a bustness model whose objective 1s to
hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
* The centractual terms of the firancial asset give nse on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of pnincipal and
interest on the principal amount gutstanding
For financial assets measured at farr value each egquity instru-
ment 1s designated as measured at far value through profit or loss
or as measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
except for equity instruments held fer trading purpeses that must
be measured at fair value through profit or loss Such designa-
tions are appled consistently
All financiat assets are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attnbutable to the financial assets except for the
case of being classified in the category of financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss
{n} Subsequent Measurement
After imuial recogniton financral assets are measured based
on the classificatuon as follows
{a} Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost
Financial assets measured at amortized cost are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method
|b} Other Financial Assets
Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are
measured at farr value
Changes n the fair value of financial assets measured at farr
value are recognized as profit or loss
However changes in the fair vatue of equity Instruments
designated as measured at fair value threugh other comprehen-
sive Income are recognized as other comprehensive income and
the amount in other comprehensive iIncome s transferred o
retained earrmings when equity instruments are derecognized or
the decline In 1ts fair value compared to its acquisition cost 1S
significant Dividends on the financial assets are recognized In
profit or loss for the year
{in) Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognized when the nights to recewve
benefits from them expire or are transferred or when substantially
all the risks and rewards of the ownership are transferred
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B Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance wath IAS 32 the Group assesses at the end of
each reporung penod whether there is any objective evidence
that “inancial assels measured at amortized cost are impaired
Evidence of impairment includes significant financial difficulty of
the borrower or a group of borrowers a default or debinguency
In interest or principal payments and bankruptey of the borrower

The Group assesses whether cbjective evidence of impatrment
exists Individually for financial assets that are indviduatly signifi-
cant and collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant

If there I1s cbjective evidence that impairment losses on finan-
cial assets measured at amortized cost have been incurred the
amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated fuiure
cash flows

When impairment 1s recognized, the carrying amcunt of the
financiat asset 1s reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts
and impairmeni losses are recognized in profit or loss The carry-
ing amount of financial assets measured at amortized cost 1s
directly reduced for the impairment when they are expected to
become uncollecuible in the future and all collaterals are imple-
mented or transferred to the Group If 1n a subseguent perniod
the amount of the Impairment loss provided changes due to
an event occurring after the tmpairment was recognized, the
previcusiy recognized imparrment losses are adjusted through
the allowance ‘cr doubtiul accounts

C Financial Liabibties
{1t Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial habilities are classified inte financial abilities measured
at fair value through profit or loss and financial iabiities measured
at amortized cost The Group determines the classfication at initial
recognition

All financial habilities are measured at fair value at inibal recog-
mtion However financial labiities measured at amortized cost
are measured at cost after deducting transaction costs that are
directly attributabte to the finangaal habihties
{n) Subsequent Measurement
After inital recognition financial habilties are measured based on
the classification as follows
{a} Financial Liabihities Measured at Fair Value through Profit

or Loss
Financial iabihitres measured at fair value through profit or loss
include financial habilities held for trading and financial habilities
desgnated as measured st fair value through orofit or loss at
initial recogniton
{b) Financial Lrabllities Measured at Amortzed Cost
After inttial recogaiion financial kabihities measured at ameruzed
cost are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method Amortization under the effective interest method and




gains or losses on derecognition are recogrized as profit or loss
n the consclidated statement of income
After initial recogmtion financial guarantee contracts are
measured at the higher of
» The best estimate of expenditure requirea to settle the obhgation
as of the end of the fiscal year and
* The amount initially recognized less cumulative amortization
{in} Derecogmition
Financial iabihties are derecognized when the obligation 18
discharged canceled or expired

D Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial iabilities are offset and presented as
a net amount in the consolidated statement of financial position
only when there 1s a legally enforceable right to set off the recog-
nized amounts and the Group Intends either to settle on a net
basis or to realize the asset and settle the labiity simultaneously

E Derivatives and Hedge Accounting
The Group utihzes derivatives, including forward foreign exchange
contracts and interest rate swap contracts to hedge foreign
exchange and interest rate risks These denvatives are inimally
measured at farr value when the contract 1s entered into, and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value Changes in the far value
of denvatives are recognized as profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of iIncome However the gans or losses on the hedging
instrument relating to the effective poriicn of cash flow hedges
and hedges of net iInvestment In foreign cperatons are recegnized
as other comprehensive iIncome In the consolidated statement of
comprehensive Income

At the iInception of the hedge, the Group formaliy designates
and documents the hedging relatonship to which hedge account-
ing 15 apphed and the objectives and strategies of sk manage-
ment for undertaking the hedge The documentation includes
identufication of hedging instruments, the hedged items or trans-
actions the nature of the nsks being hedged and how the hedg-
ing instrument s effectiveness Is assessed In offsetung the
exposure to changes in the hedged item s fair value or cash flows
attnibutable to the hedged nisks Even though these hedges are
expected to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value
or cash flows they are assessed on an ongoing basis and deter-
mined actually to have been highly effective throughout the finan-
ctal reporung penods for which the hedges were designated

Hedges that meei the stringent requirements for hedge
accouning are classified in the following categones and
accounted for in accordance with IAS 39
{y Far Value Hedge
Changes 1n ihe fair value of derivatives are recognized as profit
or loss in the consolidated staterment of income Regarding
changes 1n the fair vatue of hedged items attributable to the

hedged risks, the carrying amount of the hedged item (s adjusted
and the change 1s recognized as profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of Income
{u} Cash Flow Hedge
The effective portion of gains or losses on neaging instruments 1s
recognized as other comprehensive income In the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income while the ineffective portion
15 recognized immediately as proftt or foss In the consolidated
statement of iIncome

The amounts of hedging instruments recogrized In other
comprehensive income are reclassified 10 profit or loss when the
transactions of the hedged items affect profit or loss In cases
wherg hedged itams result in the recognitton of non-financiai
assets or habliies the amounts recognized as other comprehen-
stve Income are accounted for as adjustments to the onginal
carrying ameunt of nor-financial assets or habiites

When forecast transactions or firm commitments are ne longer
expected to cccur any related cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognized in equity as other comprehensive income is reclas-
sified to profit or loss When hedging instruments expire are sold
terminated ¢r exercised without the replacement or rollover of other
hedging instruments or when the hedge designation 1s revoked
amounts that have been recognized in other comprehensive
income are continued to be recognized in other comprehensive
Income untt! the forecast transactions or firm commitments occur
{m} Hedge of Net investment in Foresgn Operations
Translation differences resulting from the hedge of net investment
in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to a cash flow
hedge The effective poruon of gains or losses on hedging mstru-
ments 15 recognized as other comprehensive income in the
censoiidated staiement of comprehensive income while the inef-
fective portion I1s recognized as profit or loss 1n the consolidated
statement of Income At the time of the disposal of the foreign
operations any related cumulauve gain or loss that has been
recognized In equity as other comprehensive Income is reclassi-
fied to profit or loss

F Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active finan-
cial markets at the fiscal year end refers to quoted prices or dealer
quotations

|f there 1s no active market fair value of financial instruments 1s
determined using appropriate valuation models

(5) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand
deposits and short-term investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and subject i¢ iInsignificant nsk of change
In value and due within three months from the date of acquisttion
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(6) Inventories
The cost of inventones includes all costs of purchase costs of
converstan and other costs incurred in bringing the inventones to
their present location and condition

Inventones are measured at tne lower of cost or net reahizable
value and the costs are determined oy using the weighted-average
method Net realizable value 1s determined as the estimated selling
price i the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and esumated costs necessary 10 make the sale

Leaf tobacco which is stored for more than 12 months before
being used for preduction s included In current assets since 1t 1s
held withan the normal operating cycle

(7) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment s measured by using the cost
model and 1s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses

The acquisition cost includes any costs directly attributable to
the acguisition of the asset and dismantlerment, removal and resto-
ranon ¢costs as well as borrowing costs eligible for capitaizavon

Except for assets that are not subject to depreciation such as
land, assets are depreciated using the straight-ine method cver
ther estimated useful ives The estimated useful lives of major
asset items are as fcllows
* Buildings and structures 38 to 50 years
* Machinery and vehicles 10 to 15 years

The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed at each fiscal year end and if there are any changes
made to the esumated useful ives and depreciation method
such changes are applied prospectively as changes 1in estiimate

{8) Goodwill and Intangible Assets
A Goodwili
Goodwill 1s stated at acquisition cost less accumulated mpair-
ment losses

Goodwill 1s not amartized [t 1s allocated to cash-generating
units that are identified according to locations and types of busi-
nesses and tested for impairment annually or whenever there
Is any indication of impairment Impairment losses on goodwill
are recognized in the consolidated statemeant of incerne and no
subsequent reversal s made

B Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are measured by using the cost model and are
stated at cost less accumulated amorbization and accumulated
impairment losses

Intangible assets acquirec separately are measured at cost at
the initial recognition and the costs of intangible assets acquired
through busingss combinations are recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date Expenditures oninternally generated intangible
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assets are recognized as expense in the pertod when incurred
except for development expenses that satisiy the capitalization
critena

Intang:ble assets with finite useful ives are amortized using
the stratght-ine method over ther estimaled useful ves and are
tested for imparrment whenever there Is any indication ot impair-
ment The estimated usefuf hives and amortizaiion method of
intangible assets with finite useful ives are reviewed at each fiscal
year end, and the effect of any changes m estmate would be
accounted for on a prospective basis

The esttimated useful ives of major intangbie assets with finite
useful lives are as follows
» Trademarks 20 years
s Software 5 years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets that are not ready to use are not amortized but they are
tested for imparment indmdually or by cash-generating umit
annually or whenever there s any indication of impairment

(9) Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are transferred to
the Group All other leases are classified as operating teases

In finance lease transacttons leased assets and lease obliga-
tiens are recognized In the consolidated statement of financial
posinon at the lower of the fair value of the leased property or the
present value of the minimum lease payments each determined
at the inception of the lease Lease payments are apporuoned
between the financial cost and the reduction of the lease obliga-
tiens based on the effective interest method Financial costs are
recegnized In the conschdated statement of iIncome Leased
assets are depreciated using the straght-ine method owvar their
estimated usefu! ives or lease terms, whichever 1s shorter

In operating lease transactions lease payments are recognized
as an expense using the straight-line method over the lease terms
In the ccnsolidated statement of iIncome Contingent rents are
recognized as an expense In the penod when they are incurred

Determiming whether an arrangement 1 or contains a lease 1$
based on the substance of the arrangement in accordance with
IFRIC 4 Determuning Whether an Arrangement Contains & Lease,’
even If the arrangement does not take the legal form of a lease

{10} Investment Property
Investment property I1s property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation cor both

Investment property 15 measured by using tne cost model and
15 stated at cost tess accumulated deprecizucon and accumulated
impairment losses




(11) impairment of Non-financial Assets
The Group assesses for each fiscal year whether there 1s any
indication that an asset may be impaired If anv such :ndicauon
exists or In cases where the impairment test is reguired to be
performed each vear the recoverable amount of the asset 1s esti-
mated In cases that tne recoverable amount cannot be estimated
for each asset 1t I1s estimated by the cash-generanng unit to
which the asset belongs The recoverable amcunt of an asset or
a cash-generaung unit 1s determined at the hegher of its fair value
less costs of disposal or 1ts value in use |If the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit exceeds the recoverable amount
impairmant losses are recogmzed and the carrying amount Is
reduced to the recoverable amcunt In determining the value In
use estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present
value using pretax discount rates that reflect current market
assessments cf the tme value of money and the nsks specific to
the asset In determining the fair value less costs of disposal the
Group uses an appropnate valuation model supported by avalable
farr value indicators

The Group assesses whether there 15 any (ndication that an
impawrment loss recognized in prior years for an asset other than
goedwill may no longer exist or may have decreased such as any
changes in assumptions used for the determinatton of the recover-
able amount (f any such indication exists the recoverable amount
of the asset or cash-generaung unit I1s esttimated In cases that the
racoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit impairment losses are reversed up 10 the
lower of the estimated recoverabie amount or the carrying amount
{net of deprectation} that would have been determined f no
impairment losses had been recognized in pnior years

{12) Non-current Assets Held-for-Sale

An asset or asset group for which the value 15 expected to be
recovered through a sales transactron rather than through continu-
Ing use 1s classified mto a pon-current asset or dispesal group
held-for-sate when the following conditions are met 1t 1s highly
probable that the asset or asset group will be sold within one vear,
the asset or asset group Is availlable for immediate sale in its pres-
ent conditicn and tha Group management commits 1o the safe
plan In such cases the non-current asset 18 not depreciaied or
amortized and 1s measured at the lower of its carryting amount

or 1ts fair value less costs of disposal

{13) Post-employment Benefits
The Group sponsers defined benefit plans and defined contribu-
tion plans as empioyee retirement benefit plans

The Company is obligated to bear pension expenses for a
mutuai assistance association incurred with respect 1o services In
or before June 1956 (prior to the enforcement of the Act on the
Mutual Aild Association of Pubhic Corperation Employees) Such
obhgations are calcutated and included in habilities related to the
retirement benefits

For each plan, the Group calculates the present value of
defined benefit obligations related curent service cost and past
service ¢ost using tne projected unit credit method For a discount
rate, a discount penod I1s determined based on the penod untd
the expected dale of beriefit paymant in eacn fiscal vear and the
discount rate 1s determined by reference to market yields for the
penod corresponding to the discount penod at the end of the
fiscal year on high quality corporate bonds or governmeni bonds
Liabilities or assets for defined benefit plans are calculated by the
present value of the defined benefit obligation decucting the fair
velue of any plan assets (ncluding adjustments for the asset
celling for defined benefit plan and minimum funding require-
ments, if necessary} Expected interest ¢osts and inierest income
are recognized as financial costs

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans are recogmized In
full as other comprehensive income in the period when they are
incurred and transterred to retained earnings immediately Past
service costs are recognized as profit or loss in the peried when
incurred

The cost for retirement benefits for defined contnbution plans
15 recognized as an expense at the ume of contribution

{14) Share-based Payments

The Company has & share opuon plan as an equity-settled share-
based payment plan Share opuons are estimated at farr vaive
at grant date and are recognized as an expense over the vesting
penod in the consclidated statement of income after considering
the number of share options that are expected to be eventually
vested The corresponding ameunt is recognized as an Increase
in equity In the consolidated statement of financial positicn

(15) Provisions
The Group has present obligaticns (legal or constructive) resulting
from past events and recognizes provisions when it 15 probable
that the obligations are required to be settled and the amount of
the obligatons can be estimated reliably

Where the effect of the time value of money 1s matenal the
amount of provisions 1s measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected 1o be required to settle the cbligations In
calculatng the present value the Group uses the pretax discount
rate reflecong current market assessments ¢f the time value of
money and the risks specific to the habihity

In accordance with 'AS 37 “Prowisions Contingent Liabilhties
and Contingent Assets, the Group recognizes a provision for
restructuring when 1t has a detailed forma! plan for the restructur-
ing and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that «t will
carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or
announcing Its main scheme to those affected by it Restructuning
provisions include only the direct expendiiures ansing from the
restructuring which meet both of the following criteria
* necessarly entalled by the restructuring
= not assoctated with the ongoing activities of the entity
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(16) Revenue
A Sale of Goods
The Group mamnly engages 11 the sale of tobacco products pre-
scripton drugs beverages and processed foods Revenue from
the sale of these goods 1s recegrized when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods transfer to the buyers
the Group retains neither continuing ranagenial iInvolvement nor
effective control over the goods sold 111s probable that the future
aconomic benefits will flow o the Group and the amount of
revenue and the corresponding costs can be measured rehably
Therefore, revenue 1s usually recognized at the time of delivery
of goods to customers in addition revenue ts recognized at fair
value of the consideration recerved or receivable less discounts,
rebates and taxes, tncluding consumption taxes

Since the amount of wrnover where the Group 1s involved as an
agency including tobacco excise taxes, s deducted from revenue
the Group recognizes anly the econormic benefit inflow exciuding
such amount as revenue In the consclidated statement of income

B Interest Income
Interest income Is recognized using the effective interest rate
method

C Dmidend Income
Dwvidend income 1s recognized when the shareholder s right to
receve payment s established

D Royalties
Royalties are recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with
the substance cf the relevant agreement

{17) Government Grants
Government grants are recognized at fair value when there 1s a
reascnabie assurance that the Group will comply with the condi-
tions attached to them and receive the grants

In case that the government grants are related to expense
items they are recognized in profit or loss on a systemanc basis
over the penod in which the related costs for which the grants
are intended 10 compensate are recogrized With regard to gov-
ernment grants for assets the amount of the grants 1s deducted
from the acquisition cost of the assets

{18} Borrowing Costs

With respect to assets that necessarily take a substanual period
of ume to get ready for thew sniended use or sale ihe borrowing
costs that are dwectly attributable to the acquisition construction
or production of the assets are capitalized as part of the acguisi-
non cost of the assets Other borrowing costs are recognized as
an expense In the peried when they are incurred
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(19} Income Taxes
Income taxes in the consolidated statement of iIncome are
presented as the total of current income taxes and deferred
INCome taxes

Current income taxes are measured at the amount that 1s
expected to be paid to or refunded from the taxaton authorities
For the calculaton of the tax amount, the Group uses the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the eng of the fiscai year The current income taxes are recognized
in profit or loss except for taxes ansing from items that are recog-
nized (n other comprehensive income or directly in equity and
taxes arising from business combinatons

Deferred iIncome taxes are calculated based on the temporary
differences between the tax base for assets and liabiites and the
carrying amount at the fiscal year end Deferred tax assets are
recognized {or deductible ternporary differences, carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be avalable against which
they can be utilized Deferred tax labilities are recogrized for
taxable temporary differences

The deferred tax assets or habiities are not recognized for the
following temporary differences
* the iniual recogrition of goodwill
= the inival recognition of assets or labilities 1in transactions that
are not business combinatons and at the time of transaction
affect neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or tax loss
deductible temporary differences ansing from investments in
subsidiaries and associates and interests in joint venture to the
extent that it 1s probable that the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference in the foreseeable future and it 1s not prob-
able that future taxable profits will be avallable against which
they can be utilized
taxable temporary differences arising from investments in sub-

stdiaries and associates and interests in joint venture to the

extent that the uming of the reversal of the temporary difference

15 controlled and that it1s probable the temporary difference wall

not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets and labrities are measured at the tax rates

that are expected io apply to the fiscal year when the asset 1s
realized or the liabihty 1s settled, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the fiscal year end

{20) Treasury Shares

Treasury shares are recognized at cost and deducted from equity
No gain or loss 1s recogmnized on the purchase, sale or canceliation
of the treasury shares Any difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration pawd 1s recognized In capital surplus




{21) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit or loss
attrnibutable to ordinary shareholders of the oarent company by the
weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year adjusted by the number of treasury shares Diluted earn-
Ings per share are calculated by adjusting the effects of dilutive
potental ordinary shares

{(22) Dwvidends

Dividend distributions to the shareholders of the Company are
recognized as labilities In the period in which for year end divi-
dends the Annual Sharehalders Meeting approves the distribu-
tion and for intenm dividends the Board of Directors’ Meeting
approves the distnbution

{23) Contingencies

A Contingent Liabilities

The Group discloses contingent liabilites in the notes to consoli-
dated financial statements If it has possible obligations at the
fiscal year end, whose existence cannot be confirmed at that date
or If the cbligations de not meet the recognition criteria of a prowt-
sion described in 20 Prowisions "

B Contingent Assets

The Group drscloses contingent assets 1n the notes to consofidated
financial statements if an inflow of future economic benefits to the
Group 1s probable, but not wirtually certain at the fiscal year end

4 Sigmficant Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Preparation of consolidated financial statements of the Graup
requires management estimates and assumptions (n order to
measure Income expenses assets and habiities and disclose
contingencies as of the fiscal year end date These estimates and
assumpuons are based on the best Judgment of management In
light of historical experience and varnious factors deemed to be
reasonable as of the fiscal year end date Given their nature
actual results may differ from those estimates and assumptions

The estimates and assumptions are continuously reviewed by
management The effects of a change in estimates and assump-
tiens are recognized in the perted of the change or the penod of
the change and future penods

Amang the above estimaies and assumptions the following
are items that may have a matenal effect on the amounts recog-
nized 1n the consolidated financial statements of the Groun

(24) Adjusted Financial Measures
The adjusted financial measures are calculated by adding certain
adjustment items to the non-agjusted nnancial data or by deduct-
Ing the items from the non-agjusted financial data

The adjustment items are determined by management s judg-
ment, taking into consideranon the nature and frequency of the
income and costs stuch that they provide effective comparative
information on the Group performance and that they reflect the
way of managing our business appropriately Adjusted financiat
measures are presented in the consoiidated statement of income,

8 Operating Segments " and 30 Earnings per Share

The adjusted hnancial measures are not defined under IFRS and

are not comparable wath equivalent indicators for other entinies

{Changes in Accounting Pohcies)

The Group has adopted the following new accounting standards

amended standards and new interpretations from the fiscal year

ended Decermber 31 2014

IFRS Descnpuon of new standards and amendments

1AS39  Fnancal Requirements for continuation of
Instruments hedge accounting in certain circum-
Recogmition and  stances in which there is a change in
Measurement counterparty to a hedging instrument

IFRIC 21  Levies Clanifying the accounting for levies

The effect of the above standards on the conschdatee financial
statements 1s Immaterial

Regarding IFRIC 21 mentioned above, the comparative infar-
mation was retrospectively adjusted in accerdance with the transi-
tional provisions

SINIWILYLS TVIONYNIS

A Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment, Goodwill,
Intangible Assets and Investment Properties
With regard tc property, plant and equipment geodwill, intangible
assets and investment properties 1f there 15 any indication that the
recoverable amount declines below the carrying amounts of the
assets the Group performs an impairment test
Tne imporiant indications include significant changes with
adverse effect on the resulis of past or projected business perfor-

mance significant changes in the use of acquired assets or in
overall business strategy and significant detenorations in industry
trends and economic trends With regard to goodwill the impair-
ment test 1s conducted at least once a year, regardless of any
indication of the imparment 1n order to ensure that the recover-
able amount exceeds the carrying amount
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The impairment test 1s performed by companng the carrying
ameunt and the recoverable amount of assets If the recoverable
amcunt declines below the carrying ameunt imparment icsses
are recognized The recoverable amount 1s mainly calculated
based on the discounted cash flow model Certain assumpticns
are made for the useful lives and the future cash flows of the
assets discount rates and long-term growth rates These assump-
tions are based on the best estimates and judgments made by
management however there s a possibility that these assump-
tons may be affected by changes in uncertain future economic
conditions which may have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in future pericds

The method for calculating the recoverable amount is
described wn 13 Property Plant and Equipment 14 Goodwill
and Intangible Assets and 16 Investment Property With regard
to gocdwill the sensitivity analysis 1s described tn * 14 Goodwill
and Intangible Assets ”

B Post-employment Benefits
The Group has vanous types of returement benefit plans including
defined benefit plans tn addition, the mutual pension benefits
plan of the Company 1s one of the public pension systems under
the junsdiction of the government of Japan and the Company s
legally obiigated to bear a part of the pension costs of the plan

The present value of defined benefit chigatiens on each of
these plans and the related service costs are calculated based on
actuanal assumptions These actuanal assumptions raquire esti-
mates and judgments on variables such as discount rates and
inflation rate

The Group cobtains advice from external pension actuaries with
respect to the appropnateness cf these actuaral assumptions
including these variables

The actuanal assumptions are determined based on the best
estimates and jJudgments made by management howaver, there is
a possibility that these assumpuons may be affected by changes
in uncertain future economic conditions, or by the publication
or the amendment of related laws which may have a matenal
impact on the consolidated financial statements in future periods

These actuanal assumptions and rejated sensitivity analysis are
described in ‘22 Employee Benefits ”

C Provisions
The Group recognizes various provisions Including prowvisions for
asset rettrement obligatons and restructuning In the consolidated
statemeni of financial position

These provisions are recogruzed based on the best estimates of
the expenditures required to settle the obligations taking risks and
uncertainty refated to the obligations inio account as of the fiscal
year end date
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Expenditures required to settle the obligations are catculated
by taking possible results into account comprehensively however
they may be affected by the occurrence of unexpected events or
changes in conditions which mav have a materal tmpact on the
consclidated financial statements in future periods

The nature and amount of recognized provisions are described
in "20 Provisions *

D Income Taxes
The Group operates business activities around the world and 1t
recognizes current tax labihities and income taxes as the esti-
mated amounts (¢ be paid 10 the tax authorites based on the
estimation in accordance with their laws and regulations

Calculating current tax habiltties and 1income taxes requires
estimates and judgment on various factors, including the interpre-
tation of tax regulations by taxable entittes and the tax authonty
In the Junsdiction or the experience of past tax audits

Therefare, there may be differences between the amount
recognized as tax kabilities and iIncome taxes and the amount of
actual tax habilties and income taxes These differences may have
a material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
future periods

In addition deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that 1t 15 probable that taxable income will be avallable against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilized

In recognizing the defesred tax assets, when judging the pos-
sibihty of the future taxable income, we reasonably estimate the
uming and amount of fulure taxabie Income based on the bus:-
ness plan

The uming when taxable income anses and the amount of
such income may be affected by changes in uncertain future
econcmic conditions Therefore this may have a matenal impact
cn the consolidated financial statements in future periods

The content and amount related to income taxes are described
in 17 Income Taxes

E Contingencies
With regard to contingencies, any items that may have a material
impact on business in the future are disclosed in hght of all the
avallable evidence as of the fiscal year end date and by taking Into
account the probability of these contingencies and their impact on
financial reporting

The content of contingencies 1s descnbed in 37 Contingencies




5 New Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted by the Group

By the date of approval of the consohdated financial statemenits,

new accounting standards amended standards and new nierpre-
taticns that have been 1ssued but have not been early aaopted by

the Group are as follows

The imphcatons from adoption of these standards and inter-
pretations are assessed by the Group however we evaluate that
none of them will have a matenal impact on our operating results

and financial condrtion

Mandatory adoption To be adopted
IFRS {From the year beginning} by the Group Descrniption of new standards and amendmeants
IFRS 2 Share based Payment July 1, 2014 Fiscal year ending  Amendments to the defimtion of vesting conditions
December 2015
IFRS 3 Business Combinations July 1, 2014 Fiscal year anding  Amendments 1o accounting treatment for contingent consideration
December 2015 In a businass combination
July 1 2014 Fiscal year ending  Clanfying scope exceptions for joint arrangements under IFRS 3
December 2015
IFRS 5 Mon-current Assets Held  January ¥ 2016 Fiscal year ending  Clanfying accounting treatment n cases where the critena to classify
for Sale and Discontinued Decembper 2016 a non-current asset as held for distribution to owners are no longer
Operauons met or cases where a non current asset (s reclassified from held for
sale to held for distibution to owners
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments January 1 2016 Fiscal year ending  Clanfying the critenia on whether a sarvicing contract I1s conunuing
Disclosures December 2016 involvement In a transferred financial asset
Clanfying the applicabiiny of the offset disclosure of financial assets
and financial habibties to condensed interim financial statements
IFRS 8 Operating Segments July 1 2014 Fiscal year ending  Adding disclosure requirements for aggregation of eperating
December 2015 segments and clanfying rules relating to segment assats
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments January 1, 2018 Fiscal year anding  Amendments to hedge accounting
December 2015
January 1 2018 Fiscal year ending Limited changes ta classification and measurement of financial
Oecember 2018 assets and intreduction of an expected credit foss impairment model
IFRS 114 Joint Arrangements January 1 2016 Fiscal year ending  Modifications of accounting for the acquisibion of an interest in a joint
December 2016 aperation In circumstances 11 which the acuvity of the joint operation
consttutes a business as defined (n IFRS 3
IFRS 13 Far Value Measurement  July 1 2014 Fiscal year ending  Clanfying a scope exception for measuring the far value of a portioho
December 2015
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral January 1 2016 Fiscal year ending  lssuance of requiraments for accounting treatment for regulatory
Accounts December 2016 deferral accounts for rate-regulated acuvities
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts  January 1 2017 Fiscal year ending  Amendments to accounting treatment for recogmizing revenue
with Customars December 2017
IAS 1 Presentation of January 1, 2016 Fiscal year ending  Clanifying disclosure requirement regarding materality considerationg
Financiai Statements December 2016
1AS 16 Property Plant July 1 2014 Fiscal year ending  Amendments te accounting treatment for the revaluation model!
and Equipment December 2015
1AS 19 Employee Benefits July 1 2014 Fiscal year ending  Clanfying accounting treatment for contributions from employees
December 2015 or third parues as required in the terms of defined baneit plans
January 1 2016 Fiscal year ending  Clanfying the method to determing the discount rate for post-
December 2016 empioyment banefit obligations
1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures  July 1 2014 Fiscal year ending  Clanfying that a management entity that provides key management
December 2015 personnei services 1o a reporting entity 1s desmed to be identihed as
a related party
IAS 27 Separate Financial January 1 2018 Fiscal year ending  Amendments to accounting treatment far Investments In subsidianes
Statements Dacember 20186 jornt venturas and associates In separate financial statements
IAS 34 Interim Financial January 1, 216 Fiscal year ending  Clanfying disclosure requirement for information “elsewhera in the
Reporting December 2016 intenm financial report
IAS 38 Intangible Assets July 1 2014 Fiscal year ending  Amendments to accounting treatment for the revaluation model
Dacambar 2015
1AS 40 Investment Property July 1 2014 Fiscal vear anding  Clanfying the interrelationsivip of IFRS 3 and IAS 40 when classifying
December 2015 property as investment property or owner-occupied property
IFRS 10 nvestment Entities January 1 2016 Fiscal year ending  Claniying exceptions for applying consclidation and the equity
\Fas 12 December 2016 method for investment entities
1AS 28
IFRS 10 Sale or Coninbuten of January 1 2036 Fiscal year ending  Amendments to accounting treatment for sale or contribution of
1AS 28 Assets between an December 2016 assets between an investor and its associale or jont venture
Investor and 1ts Associate
or Joint Venture
1AS i6 Clanfication of January 1 2016 Fiscal year ending  Clarifying that a revenua-based method 1s not considered to be an
1AS 38 Acceptable Methods of December 2016 acceptable method of depreciation and amortization in principla
Depreciation and
Amortization
1AS 16 Agniculture January 1 2016 Fiscal year ending  Provisions of accounting treatment for bearer plants
IAS 41 December 2016
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6 Operating Segments

{1) Outline of Reportable Segments
The reportable segments of the Group are determined based on
the operating segments that are components of the Group about
which separate financial information 1s available and are evaluated
regularly by the Board of Directors in deciding how to allocate
resources and In assessing performance

The Group 1s mainky engaged in the manufacture and sale of
tobacco products, prescription drugs beverages and processed
foods With respect to tobacco products, operaticns are man-
aged separately for domesuc and overseas markets The report-
able segments of the Group are composed of five segments

Domestic Tobacco Busmess  “nternational Tobacco Business ”

"Pharmaceutical Business, Beverage Business and “Processed
Food Business They are determined by types of products
charactenistics and markets

The Domestic Tobacco Business manufactures and sells
tobacco products in domestic areas {which include duty-free
shops in Japan and markets in China Hong Kong and Macau
where the Company's China Division operates} The International
Tobacco Business manufactures and sells tobacco products

FY2013 Year ended March 31, 2014

overseas mainly through JT internaticnal S A, which controls
manufactunng and sales operations The '‘Pharmaceutical
Business consists of research and development and the manu-
facture and sale of prescription drugs The "Beverage Business”
consists of the manufacture and sale of beverages The
“Processed Food Business consists of the manufacture and
sale of frozen ang room-temperature processed foods, bakery
products and seasonings

(2) Revenues and Performances for
Reportable Segments
Revenues and performances for reportable segments are as fol-
lows The Board of Directors assesses the segment performance
and determines resource allocation after reviewing revenues and
adjusted operating profit Since financial income, financial costs
and Incocme taxes are managed by the Group head office this
income and these expenses are excluded from the segment
performance Transactions within the segments are based manly
on the prevailing market price

Millions ¢f yen
FY2013
Reportabla Segments

Dormestc International Processed

Tobacco  Tobacco ™e=2  PhamaceJbcals Beverage Food Total Other™=* Elminaton Consolidated
Revenue

External revenug et ¥710299 ¥1270020 ¥64448 ¥184506 ¥156920 ¥2,386 194 ¥ 13648 ¥ — ¥2,399,841
Intersegment revenue 23770 36 902 - 100 760 61,5632 10014 (71 546) -
Total revenue ¥734 069 ¥1306922 ¥64,448 ¥184,607 ¥157 680 ¥2447,725 ¥ 23662 ¥(71,546) ¥2 399 841

Segment profit (loss}
Adjusted operating

profip Newe ¥257,687 ¥ 410,847 ¥(3,008) ¥ {2097} ¥ 563 ¥ 657,993 ¥(16277) ¥ 61 ¥ 641777
Cther items

Depreciation and

amoriization ¥ 444711 ¥ 63,745 ¥ 3624 ¥ 10761 ¥ 8903 ¥ 120444 ¥ 3787 ¥ (310) ¥ 132,921
Imparrment losses on

other than financial assets 427 1748 - — 28 2,202 244 - 2446
Reversal of impairment

losses on other than

financial assets — 157 - — — 157 — - i57
Share of profit {loss) m

investments accounted for

using the equity method 47 7613 - - {2) 1,657 44 — 1702
Capital expenditures 49,101 78 527 3859 14 643 4 300 151,029 5129 — 156 158
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FY2014 Nine months ended December 31, 2014

Millions of yen

FY2014
Reportable Segments
Comestic Internatignal Processed
Tobacco  Tobacco ™= Pharmaceutcals Beverage Food Total  Other “==?  Elrmination Conseclaaled
Revenue
External revenug Mote ® ¥505,602 ¥1,328,005 ¥47,555 ¥139,519 ¥122,919 ¥2,143,600 ¥ 10,370 ¥ - ¥2,153,970
Intersegment revenue 13,899 39,445 - 63 454 53,861 7,184 (61,645) -
Total revenue ¥519,501 ¥1,367,450 ¥47,555 ¥139,582 ¥123,373 ¥2,197,461 ¥ 18,154 ¥{61,645) ¥2,153,970
Segment proft {loss}
Adjusted operating
profit tNore ¥172,235 ¥ 447,053 ¥ ({6,914) ¥ 153 ¥ 1,259 ¥ 613,786 ¥{25,266) ¥ 41 ¥ 588,561
Other 1tems
Depreciation and
amortization ¥ 33475 ¥ 69940 ¥ 3,283 ¥ 8,182 ¥ 5135 ¥ 120,016 ¥ 2,383 ¥ (228) ¥ 122,1M
impairment losses on other
than financial assets 4,926 16,842 - - 110 21,877 - - 21,877
Reversal of impairment
losses on other than
financial assets - 33 - - - 33 - - 33
Share of profit {loss) in
investments accounted for
using the equrty method 114 7.671 - - {26) 7,758 54 - 7.812
Capital expenditures 27,915 74,244 2,856 8,321 3,615 116,951 3,818 - 120,769
Reconcihation from Adjusted operating profit tc “Profit before income taxes”
FY2013 Year ended March 31 2014
Milhons of yen
FY2013
Reportable Segments
Domestc Internatronal Processed
Tobacce  Tobacco ™7  Pharmaceuticals Beverage Food Total Other ™3  Eimnation  Censclidated
Ad)usted operating
profit Mew ¥257,687 ¥410,847 ¥(9008 ¥2097) ¥ 583 ¥657 993 ¥(16277) ¥61 ¥641,777
Amortrzation cost of
acquwed intangibles - {25 284) - - - {25 984} - - {25 984)
Adjustment items
(income) tNow sl 1,122 303 - - 244 4 397 42 650 — 47,047
Adsustment items
[Cogtg) Nee st (712) {14,477} — - {1.002) (13,181 (1 389} — (14,580)
Operaung profit (loss) ¥258 098  ¥376,416 ¥{9,008) ¥(2,097} ¥ (195) ¥623215 ¥ 24984 ¥61 ¥648,260
Financial income 8,351
Financial costs {20 408}
Profit before income taxes ¥636 203
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FY2014 Nine months ended December 31, 2014

Mithons of yen

FY2014
Reportable Segments
Domes ic International Processed
Tooacco  Tobacco ™2  Pramaceyttals Beverage Foad Total CQther ™=  Elimination Consolidated
Adjusted operating
profit Mate 1 ¥172,235 ¥447,053 ¥(6,914) ¥153 ¥ 1,259 ¥ 613,786 ¥{25,266) ¥41 ¥ 588,561
Amortization cost of
acquired intangibles - {29,465) - - - (29,465} - - {29,465)
Adustment items
(Income)j Mer=5) 76 4,221 - - 3 4,300 40,002 - 44,302
Adjustment items
{costg) Mot 5 {56,680) {42,351) — - (2,215}  {101,246) {2,395) - {103,641)
Qperating profit (loss) ¥115,631 ¥379,458 ¥(6,914) ¥153 ¥ {953) ¥ 487,375 ¥ 12,341 ¥41 ¥ 499,757
Financial income 13,847
Financial costs {11,304)
Profit beforg iIncome taxes ¥ 502,299

{Note 1) For adjusted operating profil. amoriization cost of acguired intangibles and adjustmant items (iIncome and costs) are excluded from oparaung profit {loss)
In addition tha kay performance indicator of the Group has changed from “adjusted EBITDA™ 10 “Adjusted operating profit™ since the quarter ended June 30 2014
Accordingly the sagment informatian of the cormparative psnod was ratrospactively ad;usted

{Note 2) The faraign subsidiaces group which ingludes the core company af JT Iternauional § &  that is part of the “Internauonal Tobacce Business” segrmant continues 1o have
Dscsmber 31 as its fiscal year end date and tha profit or 10ss for the perod from January 1 to Decembar 31 1s included in the yaar anded March 31 2014 and in the nine
months ended December 31 2014 respectively

[Note 3) “Other” includes business activities ralating to rent of real asiate and corporate expensas relaung & cosparale communicatian and operahon of the head office

(Note 4) Care revenue as part of the "Domestic Tobacco Business™ and tha "International Toebacce Business” 1s as follows

Milhons of yen

FY2013 FY2014

(Yaar anded March 31 2014) [Nine manths anded Dacember 31 2014}

Domestic tobacco ¥ 67617t ¥ 478,692
Internationai tobacco 1,200,684 1,258,176

[Nate 5) “Adjustment items (incorne)” include restruc unng ncome of gains on sale of real estate
“Adjustmant items (costs)” include restructunng costs of the closing down of a factory and impairment losses of invastments 1 associates
The breakdawn of rastructunng income 1s described i “28 Other Operating Income  Aestructunng costs inclided 1n “Cost of salas were ¥70 millon for the mine months
anded Oecember 31 2014 Aestructunng costs included i “Selling general and admuristrative expgnses” wera ¥4 862 milign and ¥:00 335 milion for the vear ended Marcn
31 2014 and for the nine months ended Dacamber 31 2014 raspactively The breakdown of rastructuring costs in "Seling genaral and administrativa expensas 13 descrbed
n 27 Seling General and Admimistrative Expenses
The breakdown of “Adjusiment items (costs)” for sach liscal year 1s as follows

Millions of yen

Fr2il FY2014

(Yaar endad March 31 2G14})  (Nine months ended December 31 2014}

Restructunng costs ¥ 4862 ¥100,405
Impairment losses of investments in associates 9717 -
QOther - 3,236
Adjustment items (costs) ¥14 580 ¥103,641

Restructunng costs for the mine months ended December 31 2014 mainly releie to costs of measures to strengthen the competutiveness
of ‘Domestic Tobacco Business and restructunng of manufacturing facihities it Europe n the ’Internationat Tabacco Business
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(3) Geographic Information
The regional breakdown of non-current assets and external revenues as of each fiscal year end 13 as follows

Non-current Assets
Milhons of yen

FY2013 FY20$14

{As of March 31 2014) {As of December 31 2014)

Japan ¥ 687,768 ¥ 522920
Overseas 2223173 2,155,365
Consolidated ¥2,810,941 ¥2,678,285

{Note} Non-current assats exclusive of hnancial instrumants daferred tax 2ssets and retrement benefits assets are segmented by the locaton of the assets

External Revenue

Milhons of yen

FY2013 FY2014

(Yoar snced March 31 2014) (Nina rmonths anded December 31 2014)

Japan ¥1100874 ¥ 801,752
Qverseas 1,298 967 1,352,218
Consolhdated ¥2 399 841 ¥2,153,970

(Note} Revenua 1s segmented by the sales destination

{4) Major Customers Information

The Internaticnal Tobacco Business of the Group sells products to the Megapohs Group that engages in distnbution and whelesale
business in Russa and other countnes The external revenues from the Megapolis Group were ¥357 980 mullion (14 9% of censoldated
revenue) for the year ended March 31 2014 and ¥335 448 million (15 6% of consolidated revenue) for the nine months ended December
31 2074

7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The breakdown of “Cash and cash equivalents as of each fiscal year end 15 as follows

Millions of yen

Fy2013 Fyzt14

{As of March 31 2014) (As of Decembar 31 2014)

Cash and deposits ¥238 859 ¥297,000
Shaort-term investments 14 260 88,820
Total ¥253,219 ¥385,820

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as financial assets measured at amortzed cost
Cash and cash egquivaients include ¥42 139 million (IRR 12 055 billion) as of March 31 2014 and ¥49 884 milhon (IRR 14 566 billian)
as of December 31, 2014 held by the Group's lranian subsidiary, JTI Pars PJS Co Due to international sanctions and other factors
impeosed on Iran the subsidiary’s ability to remit funds outside of Iran is restricted
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8. Trade and Other Receivables

The breakdown of Trade and other recevanles” as ot each fiscal year end Is as follows

Milions of yen

FY2013 FY2014

fAs of March 31 2014) (As of December 31 2014)

Note and account receivabies ¥430 211 ¥435,824
Other 12,326 14,487
Allowance for doubtful accounts {2327) (1.910)
Total ¥440( 210 ¥448,402

Trade and other recevables are presented net of allowance for doubtful accounts in the consolidated statement of financial position

Trade and other receivables are classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost

9. Inventories

The breakdown of Inventaries as of each fiscal year end 1s as foliows

Milltons of yen

FY2013 FY2014

A1 ot March 31 2012) {As of Dacernber 31 2014)

Merchandise and fimnished goods New ¥ ¥160 248 ¥163,436
Leaf tobacco Nate 2t 334 318 367,991
Cther 56 420 56,422
Total ¥550,887 ¥587,849

[Note 1) For imported tebagco products (merchandise) that are sold by TS Network Co  Ltd  a subsidigey of the Company commuissions solely from whaolesale are included in revenue
The amount of i/mported tobacco products (merchandise) that the campany holds at the end of each fiscal year i1s inciuded in invantories and prasented as Maearchard:se and

finished goods *

{Nore 2] Leat tobaceo includaes those products that will be used after 12 men he ‘rom the and of each fiscal yaar but they are included v invan ornas sinca they ara hald within tha

normal oparating cycle

10. Other Financial Assets

{1) The breakdown of Other financial assets as of each fiscal year end 1s as follows

Mifons of yen

FY2013 FY2014

{As ot March 31 2014) {As of Docernber 31 2014)

Denvative assets ¥ 8,800 ¥ 31,837
Equity secunties 53705 59,355
Debt securities 7177 8,787
Time deposits 1,538 1,044
Other a7 202 43,530
Allowance for doubtful accounts {8 293) {8,685)
Total ¥109 929 ¥135,866
Current assets ¥ 17333 ¥ 43,907
Non-current assets 92 596 91,959
Total ¥i09,929 ¥135,866

Other financial assets are presentea net of allowance for doubtful accounts in the consolidated statement of financial positian
Dervative assets are classified as financiat assets measured at fair value through profit or loss excluding those hedge accounting s
apphed to eqguity secunties are classified as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive iIncome, and time

deposiis and debt securiies are classified as Tinancial assets measured at amaortized cost
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{2) Names of major securiues held as financial assets measured at farr value through other comprehensive iInceme and thenr fair values as
of each fiscal year end are as follows

Milions of yen

FY2013 FY2014

Cnmnam name iAs ot Maren 31 20041 iAo ot Decernber 31 2012)
KT&G Corporation ¥22,163 ¥23,939
Seven & | Holdings Co, Lid 3373 3,728
Mizuho Financial Group inc 2,609 2,590
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group Inc 2,043 2,394
DOUTOR+NICHIRES Holdings Co , Lid 2426 2,314
Japan Airport Terminal Co  Ltd 1,072 1,914

Equity secunues are held mainly for strengthening relationships with investees Therefore they are designated as financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive iIncome

In order to pursue the efficiency of assets held and to use thern effectively sales of financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive iIncome have been carried out {derecogrnition)

The fair valug at the tme of sale and cumulative gain or loss that 1s recogmized in equity through other comprehensive income for
each fiscal year 15 as follows

Milons of yen

FY2013 FY2014

{Year ended March 31 2014) (Nirs moiths ended Decambet 31 2014)

Fair Value ¥ 286 ¥227
Cumulatve gain or loss recognized in equity as other comprehensive Income Hotl {118} 23

{Notwe) Tha hgura represents the amount transfarred to ratained earnings
The cumutanve gain or loss recognized In equity as other comprehensive Incoma Is ransferred to retaned earnings when an equity Instrument 1s sold or the decline i s fair
value comparad to its acquisition cost 1s signicant

11 Other Current Assets

The breakdown of Other current assets” as of each fiscal year end is as follows

Millions of yen

FY2013 FY2014

{As of Mareh 31 2014) (Az of December 31 2014}

Prepaid tobacco excise taxes ¥176,277 ¥180,160
Prepaid expenses 16,636 16,914
Consumption 1ax recevables 12 5627 12,818
Other 20,572 20,637
Total ¥226 012 ¥230,530

12. Non-current Assets Held-for-Sale

The breakdown of ‘Non-current assets held-for-sale” and Liabiliues directly associated with non-current assets held-for-sale” as of each
fiscal year end 15 as follows

Breakdown of Major Assets and Liabilities
Millions of yen

Fr2013 FY2014
(A3 of March 31 2014) (As of Decembar 31 2014)
Non-current assets held-for-sale

Property plant and equipment ¥ 221 ¥115
Invastment property 1730 252
Total ¥1952 ¥367

Liabiities directly associated with non-current assets held-for-sale
Guarantee deposits ¥ 68 ¥ -
Long-term guarantee deposiis 6 -
Total ¥ 75 ¥ —
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“Non-current assets held-for-sale’ as of March 31 2014 are
mainly rental preperties and idle properties which are currently
acuvely marketed for sale Guarantee deposits and long-term

Non-current assets held-for-sale” as of December 31 2014

are mainly rental properties and (dle nronerties which are currently
actively marketed for sale

guarantee depasits related to the rental properties are included

in ‘Liabiliues directly associated with non-current assets
held-for-sale

With regard to such assets ana assets sold imparment losses

of ¥400 million are recognized in - Selling, general and administra-
uve expenses in the consolidated statement of income for the

year ended March 37 2014

13 Property, Plant and Equipment

With regard to such assets and assets sold impairment losses
of ¥46 million are recognized 1n Selling general and adminstra-
tve expenses In the consohdated statement of income for the

{1) Schedule of Property, Plant and Equipment

The schedules of the carrying amount acquisition cost and accumulated deprectaucn and accumulated impairment losses of "Property

plant and equipment’ are as follows

nine months ended December 31, 2014

Millions of yen

Land buldings Machinery Tools furriture Construction
Carrying Amount and slructures and vehicles and fixtures N progress Tota!
As of Apnl 1 2013 ¥307,332 ¥271 207 ¥ 65 256 ¥ 28,622 ¥672 316
Individuzl acquisition 14 255 50,973 21 750 50 371 137,349
Capitalization of borrowing costs o - - - 287 287
Transfer to Investment property {1623) {4) (5 — {1,633)
Depreciation {15,892) {50 521} (22 387) — (88 801)
Impairment losses 27) {922) {2) {282) {1,233)
Reversal of impairment losses - 57 - - 157
Saie or disposal (1612) (3914) (363) 1 {6 000}
Exchange differences on translauon of foreign operations 16,204 28 189 3438 6,201 54 031
Other 12672 16 764 1024 (16 947) 13,514
As of March 31 2014 331,308 311928 68,710 68 041 779987
Indiaidual acguisition 15,646 33,818 16,944 42,215 108,623
Caprtalization of borrowing costs Nete! - - - 141 141
Acguisitton through business combinations 4 1 10 - 15
Transfer to investment property {2,627) n {5} - {2,633)
Depreciation {13,545) (48,444) (18,086) - (80,075}
Impairment losses (7.552) {10,663) {(177) {653) {19,045)
Reversal of impairment losses - 33 - - 33
Sale or disposai (655) (7.867) (461) {444) (9.427)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (3.070) {11.808) {1,086) {4,480} {20,443)
Other 6,385 25,406 774 {33,614) {1,050)
As of December 31, 2014 ¥325,895 ¥292,404 ¥ 66,622 ¥ 71,206 ¥756,127

(No e) The capitahzation rates calculating the borrowing costs far capitahization were 4 3% far the year ended March 31 2014 ang 4 6% for the nina manths ended December 31 2014

raspectivaly

Miligns of yen

Land buidings Machinery Tools furriture Cons.rucuon
Acquisiion Cost and structuras and vehicles and hxtures n progress Total
As of April 1 2013 ¥615,682 ¥720,165 ¥171 351 ¥28,5622 ¥1,5356719
As of March 31, 2014 654 008 811078 187 959 68 041 1721087
As of December 31, 2014 661,172 804,276 188,732 71,206 1,725,386
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Milions of yen

Land buildings Machinery Tools furniture Constructicn
Accumulated Depreciation and Accumulated lmpairment Losses and structures &~d wehicles and fixtures N progress Total
As of Apnl 1, 2013 ¥308,350 ¥448,958 ¥106 095 ¥ - ¥ 863403
As of March 31 2014 322700 499 150 119250 - 941,099
As of December 31, 2014 335,277 511,872 122,110 - 969,259

The carrying amount of property plant and equipment as of each fiscal year end includes the carrying amount of the following

leased assets

Millians of yen

tand buildings Machinery Teols furmiture
ang stuciures and vahiclas and fixtures Toual
As of Aprit 1, 2013 ¥1,378 ¥3 364 ¥6,798 ¥11 540
As of March 31 2014 1335 5,015 6763 13,113
As of December 31, 2014 6,910 5,250 6,766 18,926

{2) Impairment Losses
The grouping of property plant and eguipment for impairment test
1s the smallest cash-generating unit that iIndependently generates
cash inflow
The Group recogmzed impairment losses of ¥1,233 million for
the year ended March 31 2014 and ¥19 045 million for the mine
months ended December 31 201410 Selling, general and admin-
istrative expenses " In the consolidated statement of Income
Impairment losses recogrized 1n the year ended March 31
20174 represent the losses Incurred to reduce the carrying amounts

14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

{1} Schedule of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

10 the recoverable amounts of the bulldings structures machinery
and vehicles due to individual selection for demolition

The recoverable amounts ¢f these assets are calculated mainly
by their values in use, which are set at ‘zero ”

Impairment losses recognized In the nine months ended
December 31, 2014 represent the losses incurred to reduce the
carrying amounts 1o the recoverable amounts of the bulldings
structures machinery and vehicles due to decision of closing
down of a {actory

The recoverable amounts of these assets are calculated mainiy
by their values in use which are set at zerg

The schedules of carrying amount acguisition cost, and accumulated amoruzauon and accumulated impairment losses of ‘Goodwill and

‘Intangible assets ' are as follows

Miltions of yen
Carrying Amount Goodwill Trademarks Software Other Total
As of Aprit 1, 2013 ¥1,316,476 %287 522 ¥ 31 869 ¥28 321 ¥1 665 283
Indwidual acquisition 24 388 6573 11287 18 271
Amortization tNowel — {25 378) {11,093) (5 336} (41,807}
impairment losses - - 2) {713} {715}
Sale or disposal - {1} {137) {66) {203}
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 266 105 60 164 693 783 327 745
Other 1,828 (1 562} 6,462 {5 775) 953
As of March 31 2014 1584 432 321234 34,366 29 501 1 969 532
Individual acquisiticn 49 256 5,176 6,354 11,836
Acquisition through business combinations 29,615 376 4 - 29,995
Amaortization Nete! - (27,326} 9,457) {4,299) (41,082}
Impairment losses - (2,672) [1:]] - (2,678)
Sale or disposal - - 87) {148) (234)
Exchange differences on translauon of foreign operatons {74,720) 10,085 977 76 63,281)
Other — 7 4,882 {4,688) 201
As of December 31, 2014 ¥1,539,376 ¥301,960 ¥ 35,856 ¥27,096  ¥1,904,288

(Note] The amortization of intangible assets s ncluded in Cost of sales and ~Seling general and administrative expenses” in the consolida.ed stalement of incoma
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Millions of ven

Acquisition Cost Goodwill Trademarks Softwarg Other Toial
As of Apnl 1 2013 ¥1 316,476 ¥733,745 ¥119 640 ¥87 671 ¥2,249,631
As of March 31 2014 1 584,432 824,669 123940 92 853 2 625 893
As of December 31, 2014 1,539,376 845,499 132,309 92,280 2,609,465

Milhons of yen
Accumulated Amoruzation and Accumuiated Impairment Losses Goodwill Trademarks Software Qther Total
As of Apnl 1 2013 ¥ - ¥446 122 ¥79770 ¥58,350 ¥584,242
As of March 31, 2014 — 503 435 89,574 63,352 656 361
As of December 31, 2014 - 543,539 96,453 65,184 705,177

The carrying amount cf intangible assets as of each fiscal year end includes the carrying amount of the following leased assets

Millions of yen

Software

As of April 1, 2013
As of March 3t 2014
As of December 31, 2014

¥5
3
1

(2) Matenal Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill and ntangible assets recognized in the consohdated
statement of financial position are mainly composed of goodwill
and trademarks in the JT!H Group The carrying amounts of
goodwill as of March 31, 2014 and December 31 2014 were
¥1,641,904 million and ¥1 496 799 millon respectively The carry-
ing amounts of trademarks as of March 31, 2014 and December
31, 2014 were ¥318 671 mullion and ¥299 502 million respectively

The mgenty of the gocdwill and trademarks was recognized as
a result of acquisitions of RJR Nabisco's non-U S tobacco opera-
tions 1n 1999 and Gallaher in 2007

The trademarks are amortized using the straight-line method
and the remaining amortization penod s mainly 12 years

(3) Impairment Test for Goodwill

For the nine months ended December 31 2014, the carrying
amount of the majorty of goodwilt 1s allocated to the international
tobacco cash-generating unit of ¥1 496 798 million (¥1 541 304
milon for the year ended March 31, 2014) and the processed
focd cash-generating unit of ¥25 368 million {¥25,368 millign

for the year ended March 31 2014} Deratls of the result of
impairment tests are as follows

A International Tobacco Cash-generating Unit
The recoverable amount 1s calcuiated by the value in use based
on the three-yoar business plan that was propared by reflecung
past experiences and external information and that was approved
by management After the three-year business plan the Group
sets a growth rate that decreases gradually from 5 1% n the
fourth year {(FY2013 6 0%) 1o 3 9% n the ninth year (FY2013
4 4%), and the same growth rate as the runth year from the tenth
year as a continued growth rate for inflation

The discount rate before taxes s 11 1% (FY2013 10 7%}
The vatue in use sufnciently exceeds the carrying amount of the
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cash-generating unit Therefore, even in cases where the discount
rate and growth rate used in calculatng the value in use fluctuate
within reasonable ranges, the Group assumes that the value In
use will not become less than the carrying amount

B Processed Food Cash-generating Unit

The recoverable amount 1s calculated by the value in use based on
the three-year business plan that was prepared by reflecting past
experiences and external information and that was approved by
management After the three-year business plan the Group sets a
growth rate that decreases gradually from 2 8% in the fourth year
(FY2013 3 1%) to 2 1% n the minth year (FY2013 2 1%) and the
same growth rate as the ninth year issued from the tenth year as
a continued growth rate for \nflation The discount rate before
taxes s 3 9% (FY2013 3 6%) The vaiue in use exceeds the carry-
ing amount If the discount rate tncreases by 2 1%, impairment
losses would be recognized In case that growth rate fluctuates
within a reasonable range, the Group assumes that the velue In
use will not become less than the carrying amount

(4} Impairment losses
Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-generatng units that are idenufied
according te locations and types of businesses The grouping
of intangible assets for impairment test is the smaltest cash-
generating unit that independently generates cash inflow

The Group recognized impairment losses of ¥2 678 milken for
the ming months ended December 31, 2014 in  Selling general and
administrative expenses 1n the consolidated statement of tncome

Impairment losses recognized in the nine months ended
December 31 2014 represent the losses incurred to reduce the
carrying amounts to the recoverahte amounts of trademarks
and software as the recoverable amounts were lower than the
carrying amounts

The recoverable amounts of these assets are calculated mainly
by their values In use




15 Lease Transactions

The Group leases factory sites, vehicles vending machines and other assets as a lessee Some of the lease contracts have renewal
options or escalavon clauses There are ne restricuions on addittonal debt and further leasing imposed by the lease arrangemenis

(1) Present Value of Finance Lease Obligations

The total of future minimum lease payments for leased assets recognized based on the finance lease contracts, their present value and

future financal costs as of each fiscal year end are as follows

Mithons of yan

FY2013
[As of March 31 2014)

FY2014
(A3 of Dacomber 31 2014}

Not later than 1 year

Total of future minimum lgase payments ¥ 4,831 ¥ 4,675
Future financial costs 392 357
Present value 4,439 4,318
Laier than 1 year and not later than five years
Total of future minimum lease payments 9,666 10,071
Future financial costs 620 1,168
Present value 9045 8,802
Later than 5 years
Total of future mimmurm (ease payments 708 10,447
future financial costs 38 4,015
Present value 670 6,432
Total
Total of future minimum lease payments 15 204 25,192
Future financial costs 1,080 5,540
Present value 14 154 19,652
(2) Future Minimum Lease Payments under Non-cancellable Operating Leases
The total of future minimurn lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as of each fiscal year end 15 as follows
Milhons of yen
FY2013 FY2014
iAs ot March 3. 2014) {As of Decemnber 31 2014)
Not later than 1 year ¥ 8521 ¥ 8,250
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 13,804 9,957
Later than 5 years 7908 7,996
Total ¥30 233 ¥26,203

{3) Total of Mimimum Lease Payments and Contingent Rents
The total of mimimum lease payments and contingent rents of operating lease contracts recogmzed as an expense for each fiscal year s

as follows
Millions of yen
FY2013 FY2014
{Year anded March 31 2014} (Nsna montiva anded Decombar 31 20144
Total of minimum lease payments ¥11 266 ¥12,059
Contingent rents 1028 773
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16. Investment Property

(1) Schedule of Investment Property
The schedule of the carrying amount of lavestment prooerny * for each fiscal yeer s as follows

Milhons of yen

Y2013 FY2014

iYear ended March 31 2014} {Nine months ended December 31 2014)

Balance at the beginming of the penod ¥ 58,995 ¥ 61,421
Expenditure after acquisition 244 77
Transfer from property plant and equipment 1,633 2,633
Transfer to non-current assets held-for-sale {4,114) (44,381)
Transfer to property plant and equipment {6,339) -
Cepreciation (2,313) (1,014)
Impairment losses (98} {108}
Sale or disposal (1,513) (760)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 18 0
Other 14 408 2
Balance at the end of the period ¥ 61,421 ¥ 17,870
Acguisition cost at the beginning of the perrod ¥127 493 ¥108,831

Accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
at the beginning of the period 68,498 47,410
Acquisition cost at the end of the penod 108 831 46,084
Accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses

at the end of the period 47,410 28,214

(2} Fair Value

The farr value of tnvestment property 1S determined based on a valuation conducted by an external real estate appraiser The valugtion is
made N accordance with the appraisal of the country where the investment property is located and based on market evidence of transac-
tien prices for similar assets

The fair vatue hierarchy of investment property is categonzed from Level 1 to Level 3 as follows
Lovel 1 Fair value measured at the aquoted price tn the active market
Level 2 Farr value that s calculated using the observable price other than categortzed in Level 1 directly or indirectly

Level 3 Fair value that 1s calculated based on valuation techrmigues which include inputs that are not based on observable market data

The fair value of investment property based on the far value hierarchy as of each fiscal year end 15 as follows

Millsons of yen

FY2013 |As at March 31 2054)

Level i Level 2 Lavel 3 Total

Investment property ¥ — ¥112 070 ¥2,387 ¥114 457
Milions of yen

FY2014 (as of Dscernber 31 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Total

Investment property ¥ - ¥44,687 ¥1,986 ¥46,674

The carrying amount of investment property as of each fiscal year end)s as follows

Milhons of yen

FY2013 FY2014
As of March 31 2014) (As of Dacamber 31 2014)
Investment praperty ¥61 421 ¥17.870

104 JAPAN IOBALCO INL ANNUAL REPORT FY20i4




{3} Income and Expenses from investment Property
The rental income from investment property and direct operating expenses for each fiscal year are as follows

Millions of yen

FY2013 FY2na

(Yaar engeo March 31 2014)  [Mine momhs snded Decernber 31 2014)

Rental income ¥7.915 ¥3,796
Direct operating expenses 6106 2,674

(4) Impairment Losses
The grouping of investment properties for impairment iest s
based on the smallest cash-generating un: that independently
generates cash inflow impairment test for 1dle properties is
carned out individually

The Group recognized umpawment losses of ¥98 mulhon for the
year ended March 31 2014 and ¥108 millon far the mine months
ended December 31, 2014 10 Selling, general and administrative
expenses n the consolidated statement cof Income

Impairment losses racogrized for the year ended March 31
2014 represent the difference between the recoverable amount
and the carrying amount of land and bulldings as idle properties
were Indmdually selected for demohuon

17. Income Taxes

The recoverable amount I1s calcutated based on value in use
basis which is zero for bulldings due to the decision of demol-
tion and the recoverzble armcount of other properties 1s caiculatad
by the fair value less costs of disposal

impatrrment osses recognized for the nine months ended
December 31 2014 represent the difference between the recover-
able amount and the carrying amount of land and buildings as idle
properties were individually selected for demolition

The recoverable amount 1s calculated based on value in use
basis, which 1s zero for buiidings due to the decision of demgli-
tion and the recoverable amount of other properties Is calculated
by the fair value less costs of disposat

a}
=
T Tz
{1) Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities g
The breakdown and schedule of Deferred tax assets and Deferred tax labilites” by majer causes of therr occurrence for each fiscal ;
vear are as follows E
g
FY2013 Year ended March 31, 2014 m
Millions of ven (_f;
Recognized in
As of Recogrized in other compre As of
Deferrad Tax Assels Apal 1 2013 profit ar loss hensive income Qther e March 31 2014
Fixed assets Wore2 ¥ 43075 ¥ {6,138) ¥ - ¥ 5826 ¥ 42,763
Retrement benefits 99,362 {7 435) {3,953) 6127 94 101
Carryforward of unused tax losses 65572 (11 451} - 5248 59,369
Other 79 462 {3113} 1,891 7 946 86 186
Subtotal 287,472 (28,136} (2 062) 25,146 282 420
Valuation allowance {71 829) 11,23) 97 {4 409) (64,911}
Total ¥ 216,642 ¥(16 806} ¥(1,965) ¥ 20,737 ¥ 217 508
Millions of yen
Aecogrized In
As of Recogmzed in other compre As of
Deferred Tax Liabiliues Apnl 1 2013 profit or loss hensive Income Other No= 1 March 31 2014
Fixed assets Wae? ¥(118 937) ¥ 2,954 ¥ - ¥({15,030) ¥(131,013)
Retirement benefits (3.440) 3182 (410) (2 745) (3,403)
Other {57 297) (17,923} (4 249) (11,447) {90 916)
Total ¥(179 675} ¥(11,776) ¥(4,659) ¥(29,222) ¥{225,332)
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FY2014 Nine months ended December 31 2014

Millions of ven

Recognized in As of
As af Recognized in other compre- December 31,
Deferred Tax Assets Aprii o 2014 prefit or loss hensive Income Qther thna 2014
Fixed assets Nete 2 ¥ 42,763 ¥ 2,051 ¥ - ¥ 414 ¥ 45,228
Reurement henefits 94,101 22,786 6,550 893 124,330
Carryforward of unused tax losses 593 369 3,401 - 280 63,050
Qther 86 186 {10,195) 6,628 3,064 85,684
Subtotal 282 420 18,043 13,178 4,651 318,292
Valuation allowance (64 911) {144) 11 {1.433) (66,478)
Total ¥217 508 ¥ 17,898 ¥13,189 ¥ 3,218 ¥251,814
Millions of ven
Recogrized in As of
As of Recognized in other compre Decembear 31,
Beferred Tax Liabilives Apnt 1 2014 profit or loss hensive iIncome Other ™ot 2014
Fixed assets oo ¥(131,013) ¥ 15715 ¥ - ¥(455} ¥{115,753)
Retirament benafits {3 403) (2,043) (1,968) 80 {7,334)
Other {90,916) {10,636) (5.753) 583 {106,722}
Total ¥(225,332) ¥ 3,035 ¥{7,721) ¥ 209 ¥(229,809)
{Note 1) “Other” includas axchange differances an trenslaaon of foreign operanons
{Note 2} “Fixed assets” include property plant and equipmant goodwill iIntangible assets and invasiment property
The deferred tax assets are recegnized by taking taxable tem- after five years} as of December 31 2014 Tax credits, for which
porary differences, future taxable profits plan and tax planning the deferred tax assets arg not recognized were ¥728 million
into account The carryforward of unused tax losses, for which (including ¥46 million for which the carryforward expires after
the deferred 1ax assets are not recognized was ¥46 162 mullion five years} as of March 31, 2014 and ¥606 million {including
tincluding ¥30 707 million for which the carryforward expires ¥192 mihion for which the carryforward expires after five years)
after five years) as of March 31 2014 and ¥50 549 milhon as of December 31 2014
{including ¥23 962 milhon for which the carryforward expires
{2) Income Taxes
The breakdown of Income taxes for each fiscal year is as follows
Millions of yen
Fy2013 FY2014
{Yaar enctad March 31 2014} (Mo moniths erled Decamber 31 2014}
Current Income taxes ¥172 230 ¥154,608
Deferred income taxes 28682 {20,933}
Total Income taxes ¥200,912 ¥133,673

Deferred income taxes decreased by ¥1 667 milhon and increased by ¥82 million for the year ended March 31 2014 and for the nine
months ended December 31 2014 respectively, due 1o the effect of changes 1n tax rates in Japan and other countries
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{3)

Reconciliation of the Effective Tax Rate

The breakdown of major items that caused differences between the effective statutory tax rate and the average actual tax rate for each

fiscal year is as follows

The Company I1s subject mainly to corporate tax inhabitant tax and enterprise tax The effective statutory 1ax rates calculated based
on these taxes were 37 78% and 35 41% for the year ended March 2014 and for the nine months ended December 2014 respectively
Special Corporation Tax for Reconstruction has been abolished in this fiscal year Foreign substcharies are subject to income taxes at ther

locations
%
FY2013 FY2014
{¥ear endad March 31 2014) {Nine months ended Decernber 31 2014}
Effective statutory tax rate 3778 3541
Different tax rates apphed to foreign subsidiaries (1098} {13 28)
Non-deductible expenses 371 190
Undistributed earnings of subsidianes 320 200
Qther 213) 058
Average actual tax rate 31 58 26 61
18. Trade and Other Payables
The breakdown of “Trade and other payables as of each fiscal year end 15 as follows
Millions of yen
FY2013 FY2014
tAs ot March31 2014) (As of Decarnber 31 2014}
Accounts payatie ¥190 408 ¥188,674
Other payables 78,662 147,918
Other 90 255 83,173
Total ¥360,025 ¥419,764
Trade and other payables are classified as financial habihres measured at amortized cost
19 Bonds and Borrowings (including Other Financial Liabilities)
(1) Breakdown of Financial Liabilihes
The breakdown of Bonds and berrowings and "Other financial hlabiliies™ as of each fiscal year end 15 as follows
Milhons of yen %
Average
F¥2013 FY2014 Interest rate
(A5 of March 31 20141 (A of Decamber 31 2014) Hera 1 Due
Dernwvative habilities ¥ 4,856 ¥ 10,010 - -
Shart-term borrowings 21,936 27,632 147 —
Current partion of long-term borrowings 1225 39,930 033 -
Current portion of bonds Mew 2 172,401 40,000 — -
Long-term borrowings 35,034 1,046 444  2016-2028
Bondg Nee2 131131 99,954 - -
Other 22,366 23,070 - -
Total ¥388 949 ¥241,642
Current habilities ¥205 053 ¥122,024
Non-current habilites 183,895 119,618
Total ¥388,949 ¥241,842
{Note 1) The average Interest rate is calculated using the interest rate and outstanding balance as of December 31 2014
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Derivative iabihties are classified as financial abiines measured at fair value through prefit or loss excluding those hedge accounting
1s appled to and bonds and borrowings are classiiied as financial liabilties measured at amortized cost

There are no financial covenants that have a signihicant impact on the Group on bonds and borrowings

{Note 2} The summary of the 1ssuing condiuions of the bonds 1s as follows

Milhens of yen %
FY2013 Fr2014 intarest
Company Nama of bond Date of 1ssuance {As ol March 11 2014)  [Aa of Decamber 3% 2014) rata Collateral Date of matunty
Japan Tobacco  5th Domestuc June 3 2009 ¥ 99,993 ¥ - 113 Yes June 3 2014
inc straight bond {99 993)
Japan Tobacco  6th Domestic December 8, 2010 40 000 40,000 053 Yes December 9, 2015
inc stratght bond {40,000}
Japan Tobacco  7th Domesuc December 9 2010 20 000 20,000 084 Yes December 8 2017
inc straight bond
Japan Tobacco  8th Domestic December 8 2010 20,000 20,000 130 Yes Decemeoer 9, 2020
inc straght bond
Japan Tobacco  Straight bond July 23 2013 51131 59,954 210 Yes July 23, 2018
inc in USD [USD 500 mil | [USD 500 mil ]
JT1 (UK} Finance Straight bond QOctober 2 2006 72 408 — 4 50  Non Apnl 2 2012
Plc in EUR (72 408)
[EUR 500 rmul |
Total ¥ 303 532 ¥139,954
{172 401) {40,000)

{Note 1) The figure 1n parentheses () reprasents the amaount of the current portion of the bond
{Noa 2) The figure n parentheses | | reprasents the amount of foreign currency-denaminated bond

{2) Assets Pledged as Collateral for Liabilities

A Pursuant to the provisions of Article & of Japan Tobacco Inc Act the Company s properties are pledged as generat collateral for bonds
1ssued by the Company Bondholders are entitted 10 claim sausfaction in preference to unsecured creditors of the Company properties
{with the exception of naticnal and local taxes and certain other statutory obligations)

B Assets pledged as collateral by some subsidianes and their corresponding debts as of each fiscal year end are as follows

Assets Pledged as Collateral

Milhions of yen

Frz013 FYzo14

(As of March 31 2014) {Aa of Decembar 31 2014}

Land butdings and structures ¥5,838 ¥ -

QOther 114 125

Total ¥5,952 ¥125

Corresponding Debts

Milhens of ven

FY2013 Y2014

{As ot March 31 2014} (As of December 31 2014)

Current portion of long-term borrowings ¥1072 ¥ -

Other 156 125

Total ¥1,227 ¥125
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20 Provisions

The breakdown and schedule of "Provisions for gach fiscal year are as follows

FY2613 Year ended March 31, 2014

Millions of yen
Asset retiremant Restructuring Provistons for Other
provisions provisions sales rebates provisions Total
As of Apnl 1 2013 ¥1895 ¥ 450 ¥ 4073 ¥3,824 ¥10043
Provisions 72 1,910 4288 557 6827
Interest cost associated with passage of tme 19 — - - i9
Prowisions used (92} {309) (3 958) {185) {4 544)
Provisions reversed - {202) {116} (360) (678)
Exchange differences on transfation of foreign operations — 206 — 730 936
As of March 31, 2014 ¥1,695 ¥2 055 ¥ 4,288 ¥4 566 ¥12,603
Current habilities ¥ 5 ¥2,055 ¥ 4288 ¥1,014 ¥ 7362
Non-current liabilities 1,690 — — 3 552 5241
Total ¥1 695 ¥2 055 ¥ 4 288 ¥4 566 ¥12 603
FY2014 Nine menths ended December 371 2014
Milhons of ven
Asset relirement Restructiuring Prowvisians for Other
provisions provisions sales rebates provIsions Total
As of Apni 1 2014 ¥1,695 ¥ 2,055 ¥4,288 ¥4,566 ¥ 12,603 ]
Provisions 1,110 31,154 3,994 969 37.227 %
Interest cost associated with passage of time 28 - - - 28 6
Provisions used (@1) {10,902) {4,148) {247) {15,388) ﬁ
Prowvisions reversed - {462) {140} {800 (1,402) g
Exchange ditferences on translation of foreign operations - 1,110 - 447 1,557 2
As of December 31 2014 ¥2,742 ¥ 22 954 ¥ 3,994 ¥4,935 ¥ 34,624 o
Current Labdites ¥ - ¥ 3,950 ¥3,994 ¥1,256 ¥ 9,200 a
Non-current liabilities 2,742 19,004 - 3,679 25,425
Total ¥2,742 ¥ 22,954 ¥ 3,994 ¥4,935 ¥ 34,624

A Asset Ratwrement Provisions

In order to settle the obligation of restoning and of removing

The tming of the payment may be affected by future business

plans

hazardous substances from plant faciities and premises that the

Group uses the probable amount to be paid 1in the future s recog-
nized based on past performances These expenses are expected
to be paid after one year or mere however they may be affected

by future business plans

B Restructuring Provisions

C Provisions for Sales Rebates
These provisions are for contracts which reward the customers
with discounts when the sales voiume or sales amount In a given

penod exceeds specified volume or ameunt They are expected to
be pad within one year

These prowisions are mainly related to business iniegration and
measures for the rationalizaton of international tobacco business

JAPAN IOBACCO INC ANWNUAL RIPORI FY2014

109



21. Other Liabilines

The breakdown of Other current habihites and "Other non-current laoiiues as of each fiscal year end 1s as follows

Milors of yen

FY2013 FY2014

[Aa of March 31 2014) (As of Decemnber 31 2014)

Tobacco excise tax payables Mo ¥291 372 ¥325,171
Tabacco special excise tax payables Mo 9 945 14,758
Tobacco local excise tax payables Now 121 474 186,197
Consumption tax payables 91,733 138,810
Bonus to employees 52618 45,982
Employee s unused paid vacations habiites 21,521 21,173
Other 143 987 143,869
Total ¥732,700 ¥875,960
Current habihties ¥606 161 ¥754,169
Non-current habilities 126,539 121,792
Total ¥732,700 ¥875,960

(Nate) Tabacco excise 1ax payables tobacco speciat excise tax payables and tobacco local excise 1ax payables include those unpaid on December 31 2034 due to bank holiday

22. Employee Benefits

{1} Post-employment Benefits
The Group sponsors funded or unfunded defined benefit plans and
defined contribution plans as employee retirement benefit plans
The benefits of defined benefit plans are predetermined based on
condiions such as points employees have ganed in compensa-
tion for each year of service the payment rate years of service
and average salaries in their final years of service before
retirement

The Company is cbhigated to bear pension costs for a mutual
assistance association incurred with respect Lo services In or
before June 1956 (prior to enforcement of the Act on the Mutual
Aud Association of Public Corporation Employees) Such obiiga-
tions are recognized as liabiities at their present value using the
actuar:al valuation method and are included In retirement benefit
liabilities

Special termination benefits may be provided to employees
cn thewr early reurements under certain circumstances

The funded defined benefit plans are administrated by the
Group or the fund that 1s legally separated from the Group in
accordance with statutery requirements The Group, or the board
of pension fund and the trustee of the ptan are required by law to
act in the best interests of the plan participants and are respon-
sible for managing the plan assets in accordance with the desig-
nated investment strategy
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The Group s main defined benefit plans expose the Group to
actuanal nsks, such as investment nsk, interest rate rnsk, inflation
nsk and longevity nsk

N Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligations 1s calculated
using 8 discount rate set with reference to a yteld on high guality
corporate bond or government bond If the return on the plan
assels 15 below this yield there 1s a possibiity that the plan is
underfunded

{n) Interest rate risk

A decrease in a yield on high qualty corperate bonds or govern-
ment bonds will increase the presens value of the defined benefit
obligations However this will be parally offset by an increase
In the fair value of the debt instruments (plan ussets)

{m} Inflation risk

The level of benefit for cernain defined benefit plans of the Group
15 inked to inflation  Accordingly, a nse in inflanon will increase
the present value of the defined benefit obligations

(v} Longewity risk

Scme defined benefit plans of the Group provide a ifetime annu-
ity and the Group 1s obhigated 10 provide pension benefits 1o the
plan participants for the rest of their Iives after their reirements
The present value of the defined benefit obligaticns s calculated
by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan partici-
pants during or after employment Anincrease in average life
expectancy of the plan paructpants will increase the defined
benefit cbligations




A Schedule of Defined Benefit Obligations
The schedule of the defined benefit obligations 1s as follows

Millions of yen

Japan Weedl Overseas Total
As of April 7, 2013 Nawes 2 ¥335312 ¥364 893 ¥700 205
Current service cost 12377 7,755 20132
Past service cost and gains and lesses on settlement - 2627 2 627
Interest expense 3046 14,972 18 018
Contributions by plan parucipants — 972 972
Special termination benefits - 37 37
Remeasurement gains and losses
Actuarial gains and losses ansing from changas in demographic assumptions 4 4,211 4215
Actuanial gains and losses ansing from changes in financial assumptions {679) 1173 494
Actuanal gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments (86} 3.029 2 943
Benefits pad (30 703) (17 871) {48,574)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - 88,196 88 196
Other 308 237 545
As of March 31, 2014 News 1 2 319579 470,230 789 809
Current service cost 9,957 9,028 18,984
Past service cost and gains and losses on settlement 590 (1,293) {703}
Interest expense 2,135 18,102 20,236
Contributions by plan participants - 1,156 1,156
Remeasurement gains and losses
Actuanal gains and losses ansing from changes in demegraphic assumptions (4) 3,120 3,116
Actuanal gains and losses ansing from changes in financial assumptions 5,539 47,891 53,430
Actuanal gains and icsses ansing from experience adjustments {2,57%) {5,648} (8,219)
Benefits paid (43,044) {21,829) {64,872)
Exchange differences on transtation of foreign operations - 31,249 31,249
Other {42) - {42)
As of December 31, 2014 Noss1 2 ¥292,138 ¥552,006 ¥844,144

{Nota 1} The Group s waighted average duratron of the defined benefit obligations 13 8 1 years far Japan and 15 4 years for overseas {(FY2013 7 6 years for Japan and 14 5 years

tor overseas)
{Note 2} Tha Group s breakdown of the defined benefit obiigation by plan parucipant Is as ‘allows

Milhons of yen

FYZ2013 (As ot March 21 2014) FY2014 (As of Docember 31 2014

Japan Owverseas Total Japan Overseas Tonal

Active members ¥200,292 ¥187,191 ¥387 483 ¥183,381 ¥214,855 ¥398,236
Deferred members 14,7H 49 900 64,691 14,542 68,165 72,707
Pensioners 104,497 233139 337,635 94,216 278,986 373,202
Total ¥319 679 ¥470,230 ¥789,809 ¥292,138 ¥552,006 ¥844,144

{Note 3) The scheculs of muzual pension benefits obhigauons included in tha category of Japan s as folfows

Millions of yen

Fr2013 FY2014

{Year ended March 31 2014) (Nina months andad Decembar 31 2014)

Balance at the beginning of the period ¥76,814 ¥67,825
Interest expense 461 254
Remeasurement gains and losses {1 070) (3,748)
Benefits paid {8 380) (5,140}
Balance at the end of the period ¥67,826 ¥59,191
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B Schedule of Plan Assets
The schedule of the plan assets is as foliows

Millions of yen

Japan Qverseas Total
As of Apnl 1 2013 ¥107,590 ¥264 835 ¥372 425
Interest income 1065 11116 12181
Remeasurement gains and losses
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in mterest income} 4 363 16 391 20 754
Coninbutions by the employgr Nate:? 2 4 453 11 890 16 342
Contnbutions by plan participants - 972 972
Benefits paid {8 293) (13378} {21 671)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - 64,357 64,357
Other 306 210 516
Ag of March 31 2014 109,484 366,392 465,876
Interest income 821 14,003 14,823
Remeasurement gatns and losses
Return on plan assets (exctuding amounts included 1n interest income) 3,592 26,027 29,618
Contrnibutions by the employer iNewess 2 3,087 9,433 12,519
Contributions by plan participants - 1.156 1.156
Benefits paid 5,425) {15,743) (21,168)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - 26,811 26,811
Other {43} {1,962) {2,005}
As of December 31, 2014 ¥111,515 ¥416,117 ¥527,631

{Note 1) Pursuani to laws and regulations the Group and the pension fund reviaw tha financial condition of the penswon plan regularly and recalculate contnbutions for allocating future

benefit and keaping the balance of the pension financing when the plan s undartunded

{Nate 2) The Group plans 1o pay contribunons of ¥14 350 milian in the year anding December 31 2015

C Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligations and Plan Assets

The reconciliation of the defined benefit cbligations and plan assets to the net defined benefit habilties (assets) recogruzed in the consoli-

dated statement of financial positon as of each fiscal year end 15 as follows

FY2013 As of March 31, 2014

Milllons of yen

Fyzin3
Japan Overseas Total
Present value of the funded defined benefit obligations ¥ 115,400 ¥ 358 842 ¥ 474 24?2
Fair value of the plan assets (109 484) (356 392) (465 876)
Subtotal 5,916 2 450 8 365
Present value of the unfunded defined benefit obligations 204 179 111,388 315,568
Net defined benefit habilities (assets) recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position ¥ 210,095 ¥ 113838 ¥ 323 933
Retrement benefit habilities ¥ 210,096 ¥ 130 366 ¥ 340 462
Retirement benefil assets {1} (16,529) {16,530}
Net defined benefit labilities {assets) recognized in the consohdated statement of
financial position ¥ 210,095 ¥ 113838 ¥ 323 833
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FY2014 As of December 31, 2014

Miliions of ven

FY2014
Japan Chvarseas Total
Present vaiue of the funded defined benefit obugations ¥ 115,668 ¥413,149 ¥ 528,817
Fair value of the plan assets {111,515) {416,117) (527,631)
Subtotal 4,154 (2,968) 1,186
Present vaiue of the unfunded defined benefit obligations 176,470 138,858 315,327
Net defined benefit liabilities {assets) recogmzed in the consolidated statement of
finangial positian ¥ 180,624 ¥ 135,889 ¥ 316,513
Reurement benefit habilines ¥ 181,548 ¥ 170,367 ¥ 351,915
Retirement benefit assets (924) {34,477) (35,402}
Net defined benefit labihties (assets) recognized in the consoldated statement of
financial position ¥ 180,624 ¥ 135,889 ¥ 316,513
D Major Breakdown of Plan Assets
The breakdown of plan assets by major category as of each fiscal year end s as follows
Japan
Milligns of yan
FY2013 (as of March 31 2014 FY2014 (As of Dacamber 31 2014
Market price in Market prica in
&n actve markat an active market
Quoted Unguoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 8524 ¥ - ¥ 8524 ¥24,172 ¥ - ¥ 24,172
Equity instruments 18,238 - 18,238 7,946 - 7.946
Japan 8 369 - 8 369 4,668 - 4,668
Overseas 9,869 — 9,869 3,278 - 3,278
Debt instruments 20,483 - 20,483 15,383 - 15,383
Japan 18,248 — 18,248 12,820 - 12,820
Overseas 2,235 - 2,235 2,563 - 2,563
Real estate 60 - 60 75 - 75
General accouni of ie Insurance companigs New — 61,330 681 330 - 63,023 63,023
QOther a6 803 850 84 830 914
Total ¥47 351  ¥62 133 ¥109 484 ¥47,662 ¥63,853 ¥111,515
Qverseas
Millions of yen
FY2013 a2 of March 31 2014 FY2014 (As of December 31 2014}
Markat price in Market price In
an acuve markat an active market
Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unguoted Total
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 18313 ¥ - ¥ 19 313 ¥ 18725 ¥ - ¥ 18,725
Equity instruments 139,446 - 139 446 142,301 - 142,301
United Kingdom 50,670 - 50 670 49,318 - 49,318
North America 42 537 - 42,637 39,859 - 39,859
Other 46 238 - 46 238 53,124 - 53,124
Debt instruments 167,683 4,623 172 305 218,662 5518 224,180
United Kingdom 108,883 - 108 883 136,578 - 136,578
North Amenca 28,553 — 28 553 45,413 - 46,413
Other 30,246 4623 34 869 35,671 5,518 41,189
Real estate 5479 1,199 6679 6,225 1,051 7,276
Other 4763 13,886 1B 649 7,360 16,275 23,635
Total ¥336,684 ¥19708 ¥356 392 ¥393,272 ¥22.844 ¥416,117
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Total

Millians of ven
FY2013 (As ot March 31 2014) FY2014 {As of December 31 2014

Market price in Market price in

an acbive market an active market
Cuoted Unquoted Total Quoied Unguoted Total
Cash and cash equivalenis ¥ 27837 — ¥ 27,837 ¥ 42897 ¥ — ¥ 42,897
Equity instruments 157 684 - 157 684 150,247 - 150,247
Debt instruments 188 166 4623 192,788 234,046 55618 239,563
Real estate 5539 1,199 6738 6,300 1,081 7.351
General account of ife insurance companigs N2 — 61330 61330 - 63,023 63,023
QOther 4,810 14,689 19 499 7.444 17.105 24,549
Total ¥384 035 ¥81 841 ¥485 876 ¥440,934 ¥86,697 ¥527,631

(Nata 1) The far value of the plan assers 1s providad for each of quated and unquatad markat pace In an active marke! as dafined in IFRS 13 "Far Valug Measurament ~
{Note 2) A certain interest rate and principal tor tha general accaunt ot lite Insurance are guarantaed by life Insurance companias

The investment strategy for the Group's major plans is as follows
{Japan)
The Company s pension fund is managed 1n accordance with the
internal policy for secuning stzble profits in the rmiddle- and long-
term 1n order to ensure the redemption of the ptan liability
Concretely by setung a target rate of return and composition ratio
of plan assets by asset category within the nsk telerance that 1s
annually assessed the Company invests plan asseis consistently
with the composition ratc When reviewing the composition ratio,
the Company considers introducing an asset investment which
has a high correlation with the habifity

In the case where an unexpected situation occurs in the
market envirgnrnent 1115 temporaniy allowed to make an adjust-
ment gn the weight of nsk agsets complying with the policy

E Matters Related to Actuanal Assumptions

{Overseas)
The investment strategy for the foreign subsidiaries funded pen-
sion plans 1s decided properly by the trustee of the plan or the
management of averseas subsidianies according to local legisla-
tiens The Company's cbjective for the foreign subsidiaries’ funded
pension ptans 15 ¢ manage nisks ansing from its defined benefit
obligation and meanwhile to achieve a return on asseis In excess
of the movement In the value of the defined benefit obligation
The majonty of the plan assets have been allocated to hability
matching bonds and the remaining parts of the plan assets are
mainty invasied In eguities targeting long-term return

The major iems of actuanal assumptions as of eacn fiscal year end are as follows

Ya

FY2013 (as of March 31 2018) FY2014 (As of Docembar 31 2014}

Japan Cwnerseas Japan Qverseas

Discount rate 09 39 07 29

Inflation rate — 26 - 24
FY2013 As of March 31, 2014

‘Years

FY2013

Japan Overseas

Males Females Males Females

Average |ife expectancy at retirement el
Current pensicners

23 4t 29 3o 21 2Nend 23 gt

Future pensioners 22 GiNcuwd 26 1 Note 4)
FY20124 As of December 31, 2014
Years
FY2014
Japan Overseas
Malas Femalas Males Fernales
Average life expectancy at retirement e
N 3 iNote 31
Current pensioners 99 4w 29 3wan 21 7 ot 24 1 Now
Future pensioners 29 1 thoed) 25 §iNote &)
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{Nota 1) The average ‘e expectancies underlie the valuas of the defined benefil obligalions an major plans Assumphons regarding future mortality rate are based on publishad stancs
and martality 1ables

(Nota 2) Life expectancy for a pensioner currentlv aged 60 Regardless of the plan parpopant s current age the Graup performs ac uanal calculadons based an the assumption that hfe
axpeciancy remains the sama

{Note 3) Life axpectancy ‘or a pensioner currently aged 65

{No.e 4) Life expactancy at the age ol 65 for an actrve member ¢urrently aged 50

{No e 5} The vak.a ran of de‘ined benefi obliga.uons reflects a judgment on uncertain futura events The sensimvities of detined benefit abligations due t© changes in major assumpuans
as of each fiscal year end are as follows Each of these sens:tivities assumas that other vanablas remain fixed however n fact they da not always change independantly
Negatvae figuras show a decrease in pension plan obligatons while positiva figures show an increase

Millions of yen

FY2013 (as of March 31 2014) FY2014 (As of Dacamber 31 2014

Change 1 assumplions Japan Qvarsess Japan Overseas
Discount rate Increase by 0 5% ¥(11 5b5) ¥(32 618) ¥(11,283) ¥(40,281)
Decrease by 0 5% 12,394 36,585 12,081 44,274

Inflation rate Increase by 0 5% - 23784 - 28,231
Decrease by 0 5% - 21 928) - (26,185)

Mortality rate Extended 1 year 7094 15870 6,441 17,700
Shortened 1 year (6,970} (14 384) (6,317) {17.698)

F Breakdown of Defined Benefit Cost
The breakdown of defined benefit cost for each fiscal year 1s as follows

F¥2013 Year ended March 31, 2014

Millions of yen

FY2013

Japan Overseas Totat
Current service cost ¥12 377 ¥ 7,755 ¥ 20132
Past service cost and gains and losses on settlement — 2,627 2627
Interest expense (Income) 1981 3856 5,836
Special termination benefits — 37 37
Defined benefit cost through profit or loss 14 358 14 275 28,632
Actuanal gains and losses ansing from changes in demaographic assumptions 4 4211 4215
Actuanal gains and losses ansing from changes in financial assumptions (B678) 1,173 494
Actuanal gains and logses arsing frem expenence adjustments 86) 3029 2943
Return on plan assets lexcluding amounts included in interest income) (4 363) {16 381} (20,754}
Defined benefit cost through other comprehensive income ¥ (5,1258) ¥ (7878) ¥(13,103)
Total of defined benefit cost ¥ 9233 ¥ 6,297 ¥ 15,530

FY2014 Nine months ended December 31, 2014

Milhons of yen

FY2014

Japan (verseas Total

Current service Cost ¥ 9,957 ¥ 9,028 ¥ 18,984
Past service cost and gaing and losses on settlement 590 {1,293) (703}
Interest expense {iIncome) 1,314 4,099 5,413
Defined benefit cost through profit or loss 11,861 11,834 23,695
Actuanal gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumpuions {4) 3,120 3,116
Actuanal gains and losses ansing from changes i finangial assumptons 5,539 47,891 $3,430
Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustments {2,571) ({5,648) {8,219)
Return on plan assets (excluding ameounts included 10 interest income) {3,592) (26,027) (29,618}
Defined benefit cost through other comprehensive income ¥ (628) ¥ 19,336 ¥ 18,708
Total of defined benefit cost ¥11,233 ¥ 31,170 ¥ 42,403

{Note 1) The net amount of interast axpensa and interest INcome 15 included in "Financial costs ™ Qther expanses are included n “Cost of sales™ and “Selbng genaral and administra
trve gxpansas ”

{Nota 2} Contributions to the defined contnbution plans were Y6 224 million ‘or the year anded March 31 2014 and ¥6 833 million for the ming manths anded December 31 2014
and ware not included in tha tabla above
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{2} Other Employee Benefit Expenses

The employee benefit expenses other than post-empioyment benefits that are included in the consolidated statement of income for each

fiscal year are as tollows

Milhions of yen
EY2013 FY2014
Year snded March 31 2014) {Nine months enced Dacamber 31 2014)
Remuneration and salary ¥247,730 ¥231,254
Bonus to employees 70 066 55,648
Legal weifare expenses 45,994 45,544
Welfare expenses 26,696 30,660
Termination benefits (242} 61,621
23 Equity and Other Equuty [tems
{1) Share Capital and Capital Surplus
A Authonzed Shares
The number of authorized shares as of March 31, 2014 and as of December 31 2014 15 8,000 000 thousand ordinary shares
B Fully Paid Issued Shares
The schedule of the number of 1ssued shares and share capital 1s as follows
Thousands of shares Millions of yen
Number ¢f ordinary
1ssuad shares Share capital Capital surplus
As of April 1, 2013 2,000,000 ¥100 000 ¥736411
Increase (decrease) - — (11)
As of March 31, 2014 2,000,000 100 000 736,400
Increase (decrease) - — =
As of December 31, 2014 2,000,000 ¥100,000 ¥736,400
[No1g} The shares 1ssued by tha Company are non par value ordnary shares that have na restriction on any content of nghis
{2) Treasury Shares
The schedule of the number of treasury shares and i1ts amount as of each fiscal year end 1s as foliows
Thousands of shares Mitkons of yen
Number of shares Amount
As of April 1, 2013 182 510 ¥344,573
increase (decreaseg) Woes? (58) {110}
As of March 31 2014 182 452 344 463
Increase (decrease) Wow 2 {9 {16)
As of December 31, 2014 182,443 ¥344,447

{Note 1) The Company adapts share option plans and utilizes treasury shares for delvary of shares due 1o 15 exarcise Contract condinons ang amount are descrised in

“32 Share based Paymants "
(Note 2) The decrease of .reasury shares 1s due to the exercise of share eption

{3) Other Components of Equity

A Subscription nghts to shares

The Company adepts share option plans and 1ssues sunscnption
nghts to shares based on the Companes Act Contract conditions
and amount are descrnibed in ‘32 Share-based Payments ”

B Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Exchange differences on translation of foreyn operations are
cemposed of foreign currency translation difference that occurs
when consolidating financial statements of foreign subsidianes
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prepared in foreign currencies and the effective portion of net
gain {loss) on the hedging instrumenis designated as hedge of
net investment

C Net gain {loss) on denvatives destgnated as cash flow
hedges

The Company uses derivauves for hedging to avord the nsk of

fluctuation in future cash flows This 1s the effective portion of

changes in the fair value of derivative transactions designated as

cash How hedges




D Net gain {loss) on revaluation of financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income

This 1s the valuation difference in the fair value of financial assets

measured at far value through other comprehensive tncome

E Remeasurements of defined bensfit plans

Remeasuraments of defined benefit plans comprise actuanal gams
and losses, the return on plan assets excluding amounts included

24. Dividends

ininterest income, and any change in the effect of the asset ceil-

ing excluding amounts ncluded In interest income In addition
actuanzal gains and losses are the effects of differences between
the actuanal assumptions at *he beginning of the year and what
has actually occurred and the effects of changes In actuanal
assumptions Remeasurements are recogruzed as other compre-
hensive income when occurred and are transferred immedately
from other components of equity to retained earnings

Divtdends paid for each fiscal year are as follows

FY2(313 Year ended March 31, 2014

Fy2013

Class of shares

Milions of yen

Yen

Totat dvidends

Dividends per share

Basis date

Effective date

{Resclution}
Annual Shareholders Meeting

(June 21 2013} Ordinary shares ¥69 065 ¥38 March 31 2013 June 24, 2013
Board of Directors
{October 31 2013} Ordinary shares 83 605 48 September 30, 2013 November 29, 2013
FY2014 Nine months ended December 31, 2014
FY2014
Millions of yern Yen

Class of shares

Total dividends

Dwidends per share

Basis date

Effective date

{Resolution)

Annual Shareholders Meeting
(June 24 2014)

Board of Directors
{October 30 2014)

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

¥90,877

90,878

¥50

50

March 31, 2014

September 30, 2014
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June 25, 2014

December 1, 2014

Dividends for which the effective date falls in the fellowing fiscal year are as follows

FY2013 Year ended March 31 2014

FY2013

Class of shares

Miltions of yen

Yen

Total dvidends

Dmidends per share

Basis date

Effecuve date

{Resolution)
Annuat Shareholders Meetng

{June 24 2018) Ordinary shares

¥80,877

¥50

March 31 2014

June 25 2014

FY2014 Nine months ended December 31, 2014

Fy2014

Class of shares

Milhons of yen

Yen

Total owvidends

Dmgends per share

Basis dete

Effective date

{Resolutian)
Annual Shareholders Meeting

{March 20 2015} Ordinary shares

¥90,878

¥50

December 31, 2014

March 23, 2015
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25 Revenue

The reconciiation from Gross turnover” to ‘Revenue for each fiscal year 15 as follows

Milhons of yen

FY2013 FY2014
{vear anced Marcn 31 2014 (Nine months snded Decamber 31 2014}
Gross turnover ¥ 7442722 ¥ 6,577,993
Tobacco excise taxes and agency transaciion amount {5,042 881) {4,424,023)
Revenue ¥ 2 399,841 ¥ 2,153,970
The tobacco excise taxes and other transacuons in which the Gross turnover 1s an item that the Group discloses voluntaniy
Group 15 Involved as an agency are excluded from revenue The and 1s not 'Revenue as defined by IFRS
inflow of economic benefits after deducting the tobacco excise
taxes and other transactions 15 presented as ‘Revenue ' In the
consohdated statement of iIncome
26 Other Operating Income
The breakdown of Other operating income” for each fiscal year 1s as follows
Millions of yen
FY20i3 FY2014

(Year anced March 31 2014)  (Mine months ended Decambar 31 2014)

Gains on sale of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets

and investment propertigs Wotes 1 21 ¥44,954 ¥40,917
Other iNow 21 10,680 6,734
Total ¥55,634 ¥47.651

(Nc @ 1) Mainly fram sales of old factory sites and rentai properies
{Nate 2) The amount of restrug unng incoma included in each account for sach fiscal yvear 1s as follows

Miilons of yen

Y2013 FY2014
(Year endad March 31 2014)  {Nine months sndad December 31 2014)

Gamns on sale of property plant and equipment intangible assets

and Investment properties ¥43 877 ¥40,005
Other 138 669
Total ¥44 016 ¥40,674
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27. Selling, General and Administrauve Expenses

The breakdown of Selling, general and administrative expenses for each fiscal year 1s as follows

Milhons of yen
FYz013 FY2014
(Year enoeda March 31 2014} (i months ended December 31 2014)
Advertising expenses ¥ 21,736 ¥ 21,258
Promotion expenses 147,793 129,998
Shipping warehousing expenses 27,089 21,092
Comimission 49,294 46,136
Employee benefit expensegg (Voo 2 275 831 321,410
Research and development expenses Mew ! 57 103 43,998
Depreciation and amortizaticn 68 767 63,092
Impairment losses on gther than financial assets Weed 2 448 21,877
Impairment losses of investments in associates 9717 -
Losses on sale and disposal of property, plant and equipment, intangible assels
and investment property e 2 9 467 14,077
QOther tNete 2} 159 699 140,471
Total ¥828 942 ¥823,410
(Note 1] All research and development expenses are included n "Seling gereral and administrative expanses
(Note 2) The amount of restructunng costs included 1n each account 1S as tollows
Milhons of yen
FY2013 FY2014
(Ysar encien March 31 2014} (Nine months ended December 31 2014)
Employes benefit expenses ¥ (205) ¥ 66,814
Impatrment losses on cther than financial assets 668 18,078
Losses on sale and disposal of property, plant and equipment intangible assets
and investment property 1,650 511
Qther 2,749 10,333
Total ¥4,862 ¥100,335
28. Financial Income and Financial Costs
The breakdown of ’ Financial iIncome and Financial costs ' for each fiscal year 1s as follows
Millions of yen
FY2013 Fyaqa

Financial Income

{¥ear andad March 31 2014)

(Nine moeths sndec] Dacember 31 2014)

Dividend income

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ¥1520 ¥ 69
Interest Income
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Deposits and bonds 6413 12,870
Qther 418 287
Total ¥8 351 ¥13,847
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Financial Costs

Millons of yen

Fy2013

(Year ended March 31 2014)

FY2014

{Ntr ot ended December 31 2014}

Interest expenses
Financial labihties measured at amortized cost

Bonds and borrowings "2 ¥ 8144 ¥ 4,293
Cther 468 357
Foreign exchange losses Wete ! 4728 426
Employee benefit expensges hote 3 5836 5413
Other 1233 815
Total ¥20 408 ¥11,304

(Note 1) Valuation gam {loss) of currency derivatives 1s inciuded in the foreugn exchangs
{Note 2) Valuauon gain {loss) of interest rata deriva ives Is included in interest expenses

(Nete 3) The employee benefit axpenses ara the net amount of Intarest cost and interest income related (0 employee benefits

29 Other Comprehensive Income

lossas

Amount ansing during vear reclassification adiustments to profit or loss and tax effects for each component of Other comprehensive

income  for each fiscal year are as follows

FY2013 Year ended March 31, 2014

Milkons of yen

FY2013
Raclassification Beiora 1ax Net of
Amaount ansing adjustments effocts Tax effects tax effects
items that wall not be reclassified to profit or loss
Net gain (loss) on revaluaten of financial assets measured
at fair value through cther comprehensive income ¥ 7,235 ¥ — ¥ 7235 ¥(2,509) ¥ 4725
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 13,103 - 13103 {4 279) 8,824
Total of items that will not be rectassified to profit or loss ¥ 20,337 ¥ - ¥ 20337 ¥(6,788) ¥ 13549
Items that may be rectassified subsequenily to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations ¥400,578 ¥ (32) ¥400 546 ¥ 395 ¥400 941
Net gain {loss) on denvatives designated as cash flow hedges 4,444 {3 700) 744 {264) 481
Total of items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss ¥405,022 ¥(3 733) ¥401 290 ¥ 1N ¥401 421
Total ¥425 360 ¥(3,733) ¥421 627 ¥(6 657) ¥414,970
FY2014 Nine months ended December 31, 2014
Mitkons of yen
FY2014
Reclassificaton Before tax Net of
Armount ansing adjustments effects Tax effecls tax effects
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Net gain (loss) on revaluation of financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income ¥ 5,895 ¥ - ¥ 5895 ¥2,171) ¥ 3,725
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans {18,708) - {18,708) 4,544 {14,164)
Total of 1itams that will not be reclassified to profit or loss ¥ (12,813) ¥ - ¥ {12,813) ¥ 2374 ¥ (10,439)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently 1o profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations ¥117,734) ¥ (122) ¥{117,856) ¥3,614 ¥(114,242)
Net gan (foss) on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges 10,998 {9,5670) 1,428 (5086} 922
Total of items that may be reclassified subseguently to
profit or loss ¥(106,736) ¥{9,693) ¥116,428) ¥ 3,109 ¥(113,319)
Total ¥(119,548) ¥{9,693) ¥{129,241) ¥ 5,483 ¥(123,759)
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30. Earnings per Share

(1) Basis of Calculating Basic Earnings per Share
A Profit Attnbutable te Ordinary Shareholders of the Parent Company

Millions of yen

FY2013 Fy2014

[Year anaed March 31 2014) {Nine ronths ended December 31 2014}

Profit attnbutable 10 owners of the parent company ¥427.987 ¥362,919
Profit not attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent company - -
Profit used for calculation of basic earnings per share ¥427 987 ¥362,919

B Waeighted-average Number of Ordinary Shares Outstanding During the Penod

Thousands of shares

Fr2013 FY2014

{Year anoed March 31 Z014) {Nine montha snded Dacember 31 2014)

Weighted-average number of shares during the period 1,817 507 1,817,553
(2) Basis of Calculating Diluted Earmings per Share

A Profit Attnbutable to Diluted Ordinary Shargholders

Milliong of yen

FY2013 FY2014

[Yeat snaed March 31 2014)  {Nine momths snded Decernber 31 2014)

Profit used for calculation of basic earmings per share ¥427,987 ¥362,919

Adjusiment — -

Profit used for calculation of diluted earnings per share ¥427,987 ¥362,919

B Waighted-average Number of Diluted Ordinary Shares Outstanding Dunng the Period

Thousands of shares

FY2013 Fr201a

(¥ear andad March 31 20141 {Nine months ended December 31 2014}

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares dunng the period i 817,507 1,817,553
Increased number of ordinary shares under subscription rights to shares 1014 1,048
Weighted-average number of diluted ordinary shares during the penod 1,818,621 4,818,601

{3) Adjusted Diluted Earmings per Share

Millrans of yen

FY2013 FY2014

(Year enced March 31 2014) {Nine months anded Decenber 31 2014)

Profhit used for calculation of adjusted diluted earnings per sharg ¥4727 987 ¥362,919
Adjustment items {income) {47 047y (44,302}
Adjustment items (costs) 14 580 103,641
Adjustments on Income taxes and non-controltng interasts 11,856 {13,534)
Ad|usted profit for the period ¥407,377 ¥408,724
Adjusted diluted earnings per share {yen) ¥ 22402 ¥ 22475

31. Non-cash Transactions

Sigmificant Non-cash Transactions

The amoun: of assets acquired under finance leases was ¥5 835 million for the year ended March 31 2014 and ¥9,199 million for the

nine months ended December 31, 2014 respectively
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32 Share-based Payments

The Company adopts share opuon plans Share cptions are
granted by the resclution of the Board of Directors based on the
approval at the Annual Shareholders Meeting

The cutline of the share option plan s as follows

(1)

Positions of persons granted

Share Option Contract Conditions
Directors and Executive
Officers

Settlement Issuance of share

Effective penod of granted share option 30 vears after the date
of grant

Vesting conditions None

(2) Changes in the Number of Share Options

Condiions related o the exercise of share options are as

follows

{a) The subscription nghts to shares become exercisable when a
hoider of a subscription right to shares no longer holds a posi-
tion as a director, an audit & supervisory board member or an
aexecutive officer In the subscription rights to shares allocatnon
contract with hotders of such rights 1t 15 provtded for that the
rights become exercisable from the date following the date on
which one year has elapsed after feaving their positions (how-
ever the rights become exercisable even within one year after
leaving ther pasittons only In the case where the Board of
Directors find 1t to be unaveidable)

(b} In the case where any holders of subscription nghis to shares
waive such rights, they cannot exercise them

Shares

FY2013 (Yaar endec March 31 2014)

FY2014 (Nine months endad Dacanbar 31 201d)

Executive Executive

Directors QOfficers Total Directors Officers Total
Balance at the beginring of the penod 324 400 644,600 969 000 351,000 659,800 1,010,800
Granted 42,000 58,000 100 000 35,600 33,200 68,800
Exercised — (58 200) {58 200} - (8,600) 8,600}
Transfer {15,400) 15,400 - {110,800} 110,800 —
Balance at the end of the period 351 000 659 800 1,010,800 275,800 795,200 1,071,000
Exercisable balance at the end of the pernod — 332 800 332 800 - 341,000 341,000

{Note 1) The number of share opuions 1s presaented as the number af underlying shares
{Note 21 All share ophons are granted with an exercise pnice of ¥1 per share

{Note 31 Share options wera granted 10 7 directors and 19 executive officers for the year ended March 31 2014 and 8 directars and 19 executive officers far the nine months ended

Decernber 31 2014

"Transtar” included in the “Changas w the Number of Share Opltions” represents the number of shara opuons for persons gran ed whose management pasition changed

dunng the penod

{Note 41 The waighted average fair values par share of shara optians granted during the penod were ¥Z 5687 and ¥2 416 or the year ended March 31 2014 and *or *he nine months

endad Decamber 31 2014 respaciively

{Noe 5] The weighied average share pricas of share aptions at the ume of exercisa dunng the period wera ¥3 445 and ¥3 600 for the year ended March 31 2014 ang for tha nine

months ended December 31 2014 respectively

{Na §) The weighted average ramaining contract year of unaxarcised share options at the end of sach penod was 26 7 years and 26 2 yaars for the year ended March 31 2014

and lor the nine months ended Cecermber 31 2014 respectively

{3} Method of Measuring Fair Value of Share Options Granted During the Period

A Valuation Model
Black-Scholes Model

B Mam Assumptions and Estimation

FY2013 FY2014

(¥aar ended March 31 20141 {Mine maonths ended December 31 2014)

Share price ¥3 450 ¥3,603
Volatility of share pricg ol 36 1% 34 6%
Estimated remaining perod N2 15 years 15 years
Estimated dividends Nowed ¥68/share ¥96/share
Risk free interest rate Mo ¥ 10% 093%

{Nate 1} Calculated based on daily share pnces quo ed ‘or (he past 15 years

(Nate 2} With ditficulty in reasonable asamation due to insufficient data the remairing penod 18 esdmated based on the assurnption that share option nghts woutld be exercised at

a mdpoint of the exercisa penod
{Mo1s 3} Basad on the lates dividends paid
{Nois 4) The yield on government bands for a penod of the expected remaming pencd
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{4) Share-based Payment Expenses

The costs for share options inciuded In Selling general and adrministrative expenses in the consclidated statement of income were
¥251 milion for the year ended March 31 2014 and ¥202 million for the nine months ended December 31 2014

33. Finanaal Instruments
(1} Capital Management
The Group 5 management prncigle 1s pursuit of the 45 model
batancing the interests of consumers shareholders employees
and wider society and fulfiling our responsibiliies tewards them
aiming to exceed therr expectations

The Group believes that sustainabie profit growth in the mid-
to long-term based on this principle will increase the Group s
value In the mid- to long-term, and I1s conseguently in the best
interest of all stakehotders, including cur shareholders

The Group understands that 1t 1s inevitable to maintain a suf-
ficient financing capacity in order 10 make agle business invest-
menis which ink to sustainable growth such as acquisitions of
external resources For that reason, the Group aims to maintain a
well-balanced capital structure that ensures an approprate return
on eguity and to maintain a sound and flexible financial condition
for future business investments

The Group manages net interest-beanng debt where cash and cash eguivalents are deducted from interest-bearing debt, and capitat
{the part attributable to the owners of the parent company) The amounts as of each fiscal year end are as follows

Millions of yen

FY2013 FY2014

iAs ot March 31 2Q14) A% of Decembar 31 2014}

Interest-bearing debt ¥ 375881 ¥ 228214
Cash and cash equivalents (263,219} {385,820)
Nel interest-beanng debt New 122 662 {157,605)
Capital {equity attributable to owners of the parent company) 2,505,610 2,536,838

{Note) Tha figure in parentheses ( ) represents the net amount of cash and cash equivalaents after deducting inerast beanng debt

There are specific rules for shares of the Company under the
Japan Tobacco Ing Act as follows

The Japanese governmant shail hold more than one-third of
all of the shares issued by the Company {exclugng the wype of
shares for which 1t 15 stipulated that voung rights may not be
exercised on any matters that can be resolved by Annual
Shareholders Meeting) (Arucle 2 {1})

In cases where the Company intends te solicit persons to
subscnbe for sheres to be i1ssued or subscnption nights 1o shares
or where the Company intends to deliver shares (excluding trea-
sury shares), subscription rights to shares (excluding subscnption
right to own shares) or bonds with subscription night to shares
{excluding bonds with subscniption nghts to shares) when
exchanging wath shares the Company shall obtain the approval
of the Miruster of Finance (Article 2 (2})

Disposal of shares owned by the Japanese government shall
be within the mits on the number of shares decided by the Diet
in the relevant annual budget {Arucle 3)

The Group monitors financial indicators in order 1o mawntan a
well-balanced capital structure that ensures an appropnate return
on equity and a sound and flexible financial condiuon for future
investment We monitor credit ratings for financial soundness
and {lexibility and ROF {return on eguity} for profitabihty whrle
focusing on changes in the domestic and overseas environment

(2) Fenancial Risk Management
The Group is exposed to hinancial risks (credit risks, hquidity nisks
foreign exchange risks interest rate risks and market price fluc-
tuaton nsks) m the process of 1ts managernent acuvites and 1
manages risks based on a specific policy in order to avoid ¢r
reduce said nsks The results of nsk management are regularly
reported by the Treasury Division to the president and the Board
of Directors of the Company

The Group policy imits dervatives to transactions for the
purpose of miugating nsks from transactions based on actual
demand Therefore, we do not transact denvatives for speculation
purposes or trading purposes

(3) Credit Risk
Recelvables, such as note and account receivables, acquired from
the operating activities of the Group are exposed to customer
credit nisk

The Group nolds mainly debt secunties for surplus investmant
and equity secunties of customers and suppliers to strengthen
relauonsnips with them, those securities are exposed 10 the 1ssu-
er s credit nsk In adaon through denvative transactions that the
Group conducts n order to hedge foreign exchange fluctuation
nsks and interest rate fluctuanon risks we are exposed to the
credit nsk of the financial Insututions which are counterparues tQ
these transactions
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In principle the Group sets credit ines or transaction condi-
tions wath respect to trade recevables for counterparties based on
the Credit Management Guidelines in order to ¢ontrol the credit
nsk relaung to counterparties In addition the recevable balances
of counterparties with high credit nisk are monitored The Treasury
Drvision of the Company regularly morutars the status of the
occurrence and collection of bad debts, and reports them to
the president and the Board of Directors of the Company

With regard to the investment of cash surpluses and denva-
uves the Group mvests in debt securities and other financial

insiruments with a cenain credu rating and transacts with finan-
cial institutions with a hugh credit rating in principle in order to
prevent credit risks from occurring and based on the Group
Financial Operation Basic Policy In addition the Treasury Dwision
of the Company regularly moniters the performances of these
transactions and reports the results 10 the president and the Board
of Directors of the Company

The maximum exposure pertaining to credit nsks for financial
assets 1s the carrying amount after considening impairment in
the consolidated firancial statements

The analysis of the aging of financial assets that are past due but not impaired as of each fiscal year end date 15 as follows
The financial assets inctude amounts considered recoverable by credit Insurance and collateral

Y2013 As of March 31 2014

Millions of yen

FY2013

Amount past dug

Qver 30 days Cver 80 davys
Total Within 30 days within 60 days wathin 30 days Over 90 days
Trade and other receivables ¥6 271 ¥5 353 ¥612 ¥140 ¥165
Gther financial assets 86 — — — 86

FY2014 As of December 31, 2014

Milttons of yen
FY2014
Amount past due

Over 30 days Qver 60 days
Tatal Within 30 cays within 60 days within 90 days Qver 90 days
Trade and other recevables ¥2,518 ¥1,515 ¥636 ¥252 ¥55
Qther financial assets 86 - - — 86

The Group reviews collectability of trade recaivables depending on the credit conditions of counterparties and recognizes allowance for
doubtiui accounts The schedule of the allowance of doubtful accounts 1s as follows

Milhons of yen

FY2013 FY2014

{Yaar andad March 31 2014) (Nir morths ended Decomber 31 2014)

Balance at the beginning of the penod ¥10 681 ¥10,620
Addition 1,486 782
Decrease {intended use) (1 609) {616)
Decrease (reversal) {480) {378)
QOther 541 187
Balance at the end of the pernod ¥10,620 ¥10,595

(4) Liquidity Risk
The Group raises funds by borrowings commercial paper and
bonds however tnese hkabihiles are exposed te the liquidity nsk
that we would not be able to repay habilives on the due date due
to the detencration of the financing environment

In accordance wath the Group Financiat Operation Basic Policy
the Group establishes a finance ptan based on the annual
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ousiness plan and the Treasury Division of the Company regularly
monitors and cellects information on the balance of hquidity-
in-hand and interest-beanng debt and reporis It {o the presigent
and the Board of Directors of the Company |n addiion the Group
xeeps necessary credit facilities to manage hquidity nisk by having
commitment lines with several financial msututions




The financial hability balance {including denvative financial instruments) by maturity as of each fiscal year end is as follows

FY2013 As of March 31, 2014

Millilons of ven

Due aftar Dua after
WO vesrs three years
through through

three yesrs four years

FY2013
Buae sfter
four years
thraugh Due after
five years five years
¥ - ¥ -
135 539

51460 20 000

¥ — ¥ -
131 133
- 20,000
13 20 133

51595 20,539

Carrying
amaoung

Non-derivative financial iabilities
Trade and other payables ¥360 025
Short-term borrowings 21,938
Current portion of long-term borrowings 1225
Long-term borrowangs 35,034
Current portion of bonds 172 401
Bonds 131131
Subtotal 721752

Derivative financial iabilities

Foreign exchange forward contraci 4 681
Interest rate swap 17%
Subtotal 4 856
Total ¥726,608

¥131  ¥20,133

¥51,585  ¥20 539

FY2014 As of December 31, 2014

Millans of yen

Due after Due after
LW yaars three years
through through
three years faur years
¥ - ¥ -
149 151

20,000 60,279

20,149 60,426

FY2014
Due after
four years
thraugh Due after
five yesrs five years
¥ — ¥ -
97 503
= 20,000
97 20,503

Carrying
amount

Non-derivative financial habihues
Trade and other payables ¥419,764
Short-term borrowings 27,632
Current portion of long-term borrowings 39,930
Long-term borrowings 1,046
Current portion of bonds 40,000
Bonds 99,954
Subtotal 628,326

Denvatve financiat habihties

Foreign exchange forward contract 9,901
Interest rate swap 109
Subtotal 10,010
Total ¥638,336

¥20,149  ¥60,426

¥97  ¥20,503

The total of commutment hnes and withdrawal as of each fiscal year end are as follows

Milkans of ven

FY2013 FYzoa

IAs of March 31 2014) [As of Decarmbar 31 2014)

Total commutted line of credit ¥364,828 ¥386,492
Withdrawing - -
Unused balance ¥364 826 ¥386,492
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{(5) Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operates businesses globally and, therefore 1s exposed

to the following nisks due io foreign exchange fluctuation

0} The nsk where the profit or loss and cash flow in each func-
uonal currency of the Group 15 influenced by foreign exchange
fluctuation as a result of external transactions and intergroup
transactions Including the payment and receipt of dividends,
In currencies that are different from each functional currency
of the Group

{1 The nsk that the equity of the Group 1s influenced by foreign
exchange fluctuaticn when equity denominated 1 each func-
yonal currency of the Group Is translated into Japanese yen
and consclidated

{m) The nsk that the profit or loss of the Group 15 influenced by
foreign exchange fluctuation when proiit or loss denominated
in gach functional currency of the Group 1s translated into
Japanese yen and consolidated

The breakdown of currency derivatives Is foliows

(1) Denvative transactions to which hedge accounting 1s not apphed

The Group hedges against nisk {t) using dervatives or foreign
currency-denominated interest-neanng debts for example when
future cash flow is projecied or when receivables and payables
are hixed

The Group hedges against nisk {u) using foraign currency-
denominated interest-bearing debts for example, and part of these
are designated as net investment hedges The Group dces not
hedge against risk (i} in principle

in order to miugate nisks mentioned above resulting from
the foreign exchange fluctuation, in accordance with the Group
Financial Operation Basic Policy the Group establishes a foreign
currency hedge policy based on the current conditiens and fore-
cast of the foreign exchange market wmplement the aforemen-
toned hedges under the supervision of the Financial Risk
Management Committee of the Company and the Treasury
Division of the Cempany regularly reports the performances to
the president and the Beard of Directors of the Company

Millions of yen
FY2013 (As ot March 31 2014} FY2014 [As of Decermnber 31 2014)
Centract amount Over one vear Fair value Contract amount Qver one year Fair valua

Foreign exchange forward contract
Buying ¥269,718 ¥ — ¥ 764 ¥293,425 ¥ - ¥15,797
Selling 307,880 — (1937) 285,503 = (9.419)
Total ¥577 598 ¥ — ¥(1173) ¥578,928 ¥ - ¥ 6,379

{n) Dernvative transactions to which hedge accounting 1s apphed

Miliigns of yen

FY2013 (Az of March 31 2014)

FY2014 (A of Dscambar 31 2014}

Contract amount Over ane year

Fair value ™o Contract amount Over one year Fair value Mo

Foreign exchange forward contract

Buying ¥14,122 ¥ -

¥505 ¥13,950 ¥ - ¥1,899

Total ¥14 122 ¥ -

¥505 ¥13,950 ¥ - ¥1,899

(Nota) Cash flow hedge or farr value hedge 1s apphed and denvativa transacluons ara recogrized at far value in the consclidated statament of finangial position

Foreign currency-denominated interest-bearing debts for example are designated as hedging instruments for the Group n order to
reduce fluctuation nisk of foreign currency translatron differences that are incurred by translating net investment in foreign operations Into

the reperuing currency

Bonds designated as hedging instruments as of each fiscal year end are as follows

Milhons of yen

FY2013 (As of March 31 2014) FY2014 (As of December 11 1014}

Carrying amouni Due Carrying amount Due

Bonds in EUR ¥64,448 2014 ¥ - -
Bonds in USD 33,120 2018 38,858 2018

foreign Exchange Sensitivity Analysis
In cases where each currency other than the functional currency
that denominates the financial instruments held by the Group as
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of each fiscal year end increases by 10% in value against the
functional currency, the impact on profit before Income taxes In
the consclidated statement of iIncome 1s as follows




The impact from the translaton of functional currency-
denominated financial instruments, and assets habilines, income
and expenses of foreign cperations intc Japanese yen 1§ not
included Also 1t 1s based on the assumption that currencies other
than the currencies used for the calculation de not fluctuate

Millions of yan

FY203 Fyzma
(As of March 31 2014] {An of Docamber 31 2014)
Profit before iIncome taxes ¥({4 262) ¥(3,255)

The descriptions of interest rate dervatives are as follows

(3 Denvative transactions to which hedge accounting ts not applied

(6) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk within the Group arises from interest-bearing
debts after deducting cash equivalents Borrowings and bonds
with floating rates are exposed to interest rate fluctuatron nsk

In accordance with the Group Financial Operation Basic Policy
the Group establishes an interest rate hedging policy based on the
current condition and the forecast of the interest rates to reduce
the interest rate fluctiuaucn nsk related to borrowings and bonds
implement the hedges using denvatives under the supervision of
the Finanaatl Risk Management Commuittee of the Company and
the Treasury Diasion of the Company reports the performances to
the president and the Board of Directors of the Company

Miliions of yen
FY2013 jas of March 31 2044) FY2014 (As of Dacomber 31 2014)
Contract amount Over one year Farr valua Contract amount Qver ona year Fair value
Interest rate swap

Floating rate receipt and fixed rate payment ¥2,607 ¥2,607 ¥(175) ¥2,880 ¥2,880 ¥{109}
Total ¥2,807 ¥2,607 ¥(175}) ¥2,880 ¥2,880 ¥{109}

{) Dernvative transactions to which hedge accounting 1s applied
Millions of yan

FY2013 (as of March 31 2034)

FY2014 (a3 of December 31 2014}

Contract amount QOver ono year Fair valug Wote)

Contrect amount Qver one year Ferr vglug Ne=

Cross currency swap

Floating rate receipt and fixed rate payment ¥30,000 ¥30 000 ¥3 866 ¥30,000 ¥ - ¥ 9731
Fixed rate receipt and fixed rate payment 17,439 17 439 721 17,439 17,439 3,927
Total ¥47,439 ¥47 439 ¥4 587 ¥47,439 ¥17,439 ¥13,658

{Note} Cash ‘flow hedge 1s appled and denva wé transactions are raecognized at fair value in tha consolidated statarnant of financial posiwon

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

In cases where the interest rate of financial instruments held
by the Group as of each fiscal year end increases by 100bp
the impact on profit before income taxes in the consohdated
staterment of income 15 as follows

(7} Market Price Fluctuation Risk

The analysis 1s subject o financial instruments affected by
interest rate fluctuation and based on the assumption that other
factors including the impacts of foreign exchange fluctuation
are constant

Miltions of ven

FY2013 FY2014

(A% of March 3t 2014) {As of Decernber 31 2014)

Profit before iIncome taxes ¥(634) ¥1,589

With respect o securities the Group regularly assesses the fawr value and financial conditions of the 1ssuers and each relevant depart-
ment reviews the portfolio held by taking inte account the relationship with counterparty entities as necessary
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{8) Fair Value of Financiai Instruments
The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments 1s categorized from Leve! 1 to Level 3 as follows

Level 1 Fair value measured at the quoted price in the active market
Level 2 Far value that 1s calculated using the observable price other than categonzed in Level 1 directly or indirectly

Level 3 Fair value inat I1s calculated based on valuation technigues which include inputs that are not based on observable market data

{1 Financial instruments measured at amorbzed cost
The carrying amount and fair value hierarchy of financial mstruments measured at amortized cost as of gach fiscal yvear end are as follows

FY2013 As of March 31, 2014

ilhons of yen

FY2013

Fair value

Carrying amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Long-term borrowings e ¥ 36259 ¥ — ¥ - ¥36 259 ¥ 36 259
Bonds Vot 303 532 309,025 — - 309,025

FY2014 As of December 31 2014

Millions of yen

Fr2014

Fair value

Carrying amouni Lavel 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Total

Lang-term borrowings N ¥ 40,876 ¥ - ¥ - ¥40,976 ¥ 40,976
Bonds Ve 139,954 142,586 = — 142,586

[Note) Current portion 1s included

With regard to short-term financial assets and short-term financial habiities measured at amortized cost therr fair value approximates
the carrying ameunt

The fair value of long-term borrowings is calculated based on the present value which 1s obtained by discounting the total of the
principal and mterest by the interest rate assumed 1n a case where the same loan I1s newly made

{1} Financial instruments measured at fair value
The farr value hrerarchy of financial Instruments measured at fair value 1s as follows

FY2013 As of March 31, 2014

Milians of ven

FY2013

Leve! 1 Level 2 Leve] 3 Mol Total

Denivative assets ¥ - ¥8,600 ¥ — ¥ 8600
Equity securtties 49 8039 - 3,896 53,705
Qther 201 — 1,333 1534
Total ¥50 011 ¥8,600 ¥5 229 ¥63,840
Derivative lizbihities ¥ - ¥4 B56 ¥ - ¥ 4,856
Total ¥ — ¥4 856 ¥ - ¥ 4 856

128 JAPAN TOBAGCO INC ANNLAL REPORT FY2014




FY2014 As of December 31, 2014

Millions of ven

FY2014

Level 1 Level 2 Leval 3 N Total

Dervative assets ¥ - ¥31,837 ¥ - ¥31,837
Equity securities 55,489 - 3,856 59,355
QOther 279 - 1,555 1,834
Tosal ¥55,778 ¥31,837 ¥5,411 ¥93,025
Derivative habilities ¥ - ¥10,010 ¥ - ¥10,010
Total ¥ - ¥10,010 ¥ - ¥10,010

{Note) The schedule of financial instruments that are classified in Level 3 1s as follows

Milhons of ven

FY2013 FY2014

[Year enge0 March 31 2014) (N montha ended Decambier 31 2014)

Balance at the beginning of the period ¥4 8625 ¥5,229

Total gain (loss}

Profit or logg tNoe 289 294
Other comprehensive income Note 2 258 212
Purchases 89 -
Sales {32) (324)
Balance at the end of the penod ¥5,229 ¥5,411

{Note 1) Gains and losses included in proht or loss for he year ended March 31 2014 and for the nine menths ended December 31 2014 ara related to financial assets measured
at lair value through profit ot loss as of the fiscal year end date These gains and losses are included in “Financial income” and  Financial costs

(Note 2) Gains and losses included 1n other comprehensive income for the year anded March 31 2014 and for the nine months anded ODacember 31 2014 are ralated o financial
assets measured at fair valua through other comprahensive income as of the fiscal year end date These gains and lossas are included i Net gan {lass) on revaluaton of

financial assets maasured at farr volue through other comprebensive iIncoma ™

34. Related Parues

Based on the Japan Tobacco inc Act, the Japanese governmant shall hold more than ore-third of all of the shares issued by the Company
{exciuding the type of shares for which 1t1s stpulated that voting nghts may not be exercised on any matiers that can be resolved by
Annual Shareholders Meeting} As of December 31, 2014, the Japanese government held 33 35% of all outstanding shares of the Company

{1) Related-party Transactions
Related-party transactions are conducted under the same conditions as regular business transactions

The Company's revenue from CJSC TK Megapolis the local Russian distribution affiliate for the nine months ended December 31
2014 was ¥309 519 mullion The Company held trade receivables of ¥47 393 million and ¥33 302 mullion from CJSC 7K Megapohs as of

March 31 2014 and December 31 2014 respectively

{2) Remuneration for Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members
Remuneration for directors and audit & superviscry board members for each fiscal year 15 as follows

Milhons of yen

FY2013 FY2014

{Year enced March 31 2014) {Nine months erded Decamber 31 2014}

Remuneraton and bonuses ¥814 ¥526

Share-based payments 107 84

Total ¥921 ¥610
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35 Subsidianies, Associates and Others

(The compasition of the Group}

The composition of the Group by reportable segment as of each fiscal year end 1s as follows

FY2013 tAs of March 31 2014) FY2014 {As of Decamber 31 2014}

Number of envues Number of entives

Number of accounted for using Number of acceunted for using

Raportable Segments subsidianes the equity method ™= subsicaries the equity method o=
Domaestic Tobacco 14 2 t4 2
International Tobacco 148 7 145 6
Pharmaceuticals 3 - 3 -
Beverage 17 — 17 -
Processed Food 28 3 28 3
Other 8 1 8 1
Total 218 13 215 12

{Nota) No associates or joint ventures are considared 1o ba material to the Group

There I1s no significant change In the compasiton of the Group for the nine months ended December 31 2014
Regarding the restrictions on 1ts ability to use the assets of the Group, please refer te Note “7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

36. Commitments

(1} Commitments for the Acquisition of Assets

Commitments for the acquisition of assets after each fiscal year end date are as follows

Milltons of yan

FY2013 FY2014

{As of March 31 2014) (As of Dacomber 31 2014)

Acguisition of property plant and equipment ¥62,670 ¥64,832
Acquisition of intangible assets 934 2,612
Total ¥B63,605 ¥67.,444

{2) Procurement of Domestic Leaf Tobacco
With regard to the procurement of domestuc leaf tobacco by the
Company based on the Tohacco Business Act the Company
enters intc purchase contracts with domestic leaf tobacco grow-
ers every year and the contracts deterrmine the area under

37 ContmgenCles

Contingent Liabilities
The Company and some of 1ts subsidianes are defendants in
lawsuits Provisicns are not accounted for in matters 1t is not
pracucable to reasonably estimate the final ouicomes

The Company and its subsidianes who are detendants in such
lawsuits, oelieve that our defenses asserted in these jawsuits are
based cn substantial evidence and impiements the systemn for
the response 1o action with the assistance of external lawyers

{1} Smoking and Health Related Liigation

The Company and some of 1ts subsidianes are defendants in
lawsuits filed by plainuffs seeking damages for harm allegedly
caused by smoking, the marketing of tobacco products, or expo-
sure (o tobacco smoke As of December 31, 2014 there were a
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cultivation by type of tobacco and the prices by type and quality
of tobacco leaf Under the contracts the Company 1s obligated to
purchase all domestic leaf tobacco produced pursuant o such
contracts except for any domestic leaf 1obacco not swied for the
manufacture of wobacco products

total of 19 smoking and health related cases pending 1n which
ane or more members of the Group were named as a defendant
or for which the Company may have certain indemnity obligations
pursuant to the agreement for the Company s acquisition of RJR
Nabisce Inc ‘s overseas (non-U 5 ) tobacco operations

The major ongoing smoking and health related cases are
as follows
a Indmnadual Claim
There 1s one individual case brought against the Company's
indemnitee In South Africa
South Africa Indiadual Claim {Joselowiiz)
The indiwvidual claim was brought against the Company s indemni-
tee in South Africa in Cctober 2000 Plainuff seeks compensaiory
and punitive damages, alleging that the Company’s indemnitee




marketed products which it knew to be dangerous to health
manipulated nicotine content to foster addiction, faled to comply
with South Afncan labeling reguirements and participated 1n a
clandesune worldwide operation tc encourage children to smoke
This case has been dormant since February 2001

In addition, there 1s one individual case {which 1s currently
dormant} brought against the Company's subsidiary in Ireland
b Class Actions
There are eight cngoing ¢lass actions in Canada against the
Company’s subsidiary and/or indemnitees
Canada QOuebec Class Action {Cecilta Letourneau)
This class action was brought in September 1998 against three
Canadian tobacco manufacturers including JTI-Macdenald Corp
{herernafter referred to as  JTI-Mac ‘), the Company s Canadian
subsidiary Plaintiffs are seeking a total of approximately ¥475 8
bilhon {appreximately CAD 4 6 bihion) tn compensatory damages
an amount for which all the defendanis would be jointly and sever-
ally kable Plaintffs are seeking an addwional amount of approxi-
miately ¥475 8 billion (approximately CAD 4 6 billan) in punitive
damages to be dvided among all the defendants based on their
respective market shares The class was certified by the court in
February 2005 The trial commenced in March 2012 The defen-
danis filed a third-pary ctaim against the Government of Canada
seeking contribution and indemnity on the grounds that the
Canadian government was highly involved in the tobacco industry
in respect of smoking and health related matters The Court of First
Instance denied the Government of Canada s motion to dismiss
such third-party claim in February 2012 The Court of Appeal there-
after granted the Government of Canada s appeal of the decision
of the Court of First Instance in November 2012 The defendants
did not apgpeal that decision, which dismissed the Government of
Canada as a defendant in the case The Court of First Instance
granted piaintiffs’ motion to amend therr claims in March 2014
and thereby the claim amount currently sought Is as set out above
Canada Quebec Class Action [Consell Quebecais sur le tabac et
la sante)
This class action was brought in November 1938 against three
Canadian tobacco manufacturers including JTI-Mac Planuffs are
seeking a total of approximately ¥1 288 & billion (approxmately
CAD 12 4 billion) in compensatory damages an amount for which
all the defendants would be jointly and severally hable Plaintffs
are seeking an additional amount of approximately ¥84 billion
{approximately CAD Q 8 bilhon) in punitive damages o be divided
among &ll the defendants based on their respective market shares
The class was certified by the court in February 2005 The tnal
commenced in March 2012 The defendants filed a third-party
claim against the Government of Canada seexing contnibution
and indemmity on the grounds that the Canadian government was
highly invoived 1n the tobacco (ndustry in respect of smoking
and health related matters The Court of First Instance denied the
Government of Canada s motion to dismuss such third-party claim
in February 2012 The Court of Appeal thereafter granted the
Government of Canada s appeal of the decision of the Court of
First Instance in November 2012 The defendants did not appeal

that decision, which dismissed the Government of Canada as a
defendant in the case The Court of First Instance granted plain-
tffs' motion to amend their claims in March 2014, and thereby
the claim amaount currently sought is as set out above

Canada Saskatchewan Class Action {Adams)

This class action was brought against tobacco industry members
including JTi-Mac and the Company's indemnitees in June 2009
Plaintiffs are seeking unspecified compensatory and punitive
damages on behalf of class members whe allege to be or have
been addicted to the nicotine contamned in cigarettes manufac-
tured by the defendants The preliminary motions are pending
The case is currently dormant

Canada Manitoba Class Action (Kunta)

This class action was brought against tobacco industry members
including JTI-Mac and the Company's indemnitees in June 2009
Plainuffs are seeking unspecified compensatory and punitive
damages on behalf of class members who allege to be or have
been addicted to the nicotine contained n cigarettes manufac-
tured by the defendants The statement of claim was served on
the Company s indemnitees but not on JTI-Mac The class acuon
1s currently dormant

Canada Nova Scotia Class Actron (Semple)

This class action was brought against tobacco industry members
including JTI-Mac and the Company’s sndemnitees in June 2009
Plasnuffs are seeking unspecified compensatory and punitive
damages on behalf of class members who allege to be or have
been addicted to the nicotine contained in cigareties manufac-
tured by the defendants The statement of claim was served on
the Company's indemnitees but not on JTI-Mac The class acton
15 currently dormant,

Canada Briush Columbia Ciass Action (Bourassa)

This class action was brought against tobacco industry members
including JTI-Mac and the Company's indemnitees in June 2010
Plaintiffs are seeking unspecified compensatery and punitive
damages for class members The preliminary motions are pending
The pre-tnial process 1s ongoing A tnal date 1s not yet scheduled
Canada Brtish Columitna Class Action (McDermud)

This class action was brought against tobacco sndustry members
including JTI-Mac¢ and the Company s iIndemnitees in June 2010
Plaintffs are seeking unspecifred compensatory and punitive
damages for class members The preliminary motions are pend-
ing The case 1s currently dormant

Canada Ontano Clags Achion (Jackin)

This class acton was brought against tobacco indusiry members
including JTI-Mac and the Company's indemnitees in June 2012
Plaintiffs are seeking unspecified compensatory and punitive
damages for class members The class action has been dormant
since the date it was served on defendants

¢ Health-Care Cost Recovery Lihgation

There are nine ongeing heaith-care cost recovery cases mn Canada
pending against the Company’s subsichary and indemnitees
brought by the Provinces of Briish Columibia New Brunswick
Ontarto, Newfoundland and Labrador Manitoba Quebec Alberta,
Saskatchewan and Prince Edward Island These provinces filed
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lawsuits under therr own provincal legislation which was enacted
exclusively for the purpose of autherizing the provinciat govern-
rment to file a direct action against tobacco manufacturers to
recoup the health-care costs the government has incurred and
will incur, resulting from  wbacco relaltea wrongs '

Canada British Columbia Health-Care Cost Recovery Ligaton
This health-care cost recovery litigation was filed by the Province
of Bnush Columbta in January 2001 against tobacco industry
members including JTI-Mac and the Company's indemnitees
based on its provincial legislation, the Tobacce Damages and
MHealth-Care Costs Recovery Act
fied In 2001 several defendants challenged the legistation s con-
sututonahty, which was ultmately rejected by the Supreme Court
of Canada in September 2005 The action remains pending in

the first instance The defendants further filed a third-party claim
against the Government of Canada seeking contnbution and
indemnity on the grounds that the Canadian government was
highly involved in the tobacco industry in respect of smoking and
health related matters In July 2011 the Supreme Court of Canada
ulumately dismissed the defendants’ third-party claim agatnst the
Government of Canada The pre-tnal process i1s ongeing A trial
date s not yet scheduled

Canada New Brunswick Health-Care Cost Recovery Litigation
This health-care cost recovery liugaticen was filed by the Province
of New Brunswick in March 2008 aganst tobacco industry mem-
bers including JTI-Mac and the Company's indemnitees based

on {egislaton similar 1o ihat introduced in the Province of British
Columbia The ctaim amount 1s unspecified The pre-trial process
15 ongoing A tnal date I1s not yet scheduled

Canada Ontario Health-Care Cost Recovery Litigation

This health-care cost recovery htigation was filed by the Province
of Ontario In September 2002 against tocbacco industry members
including JTI-Mac and the Company’s indemnitees based on
legislation sirmular t¢ that introduced In the Provinge of British
Columbia The statement of claim contains allegations of joint and
several iabilities amang all the defendants but does not spectfy
any mndmdual amount or percentages within the total clarmed
amount of ¥5,181 & bilhion {CAD 50 Q billion} The pre-trial process
1s ongoing A trial date I1s not yet scheduled

Canada Newfoundland and Labrador Health Care Cost Recovery
Litrgation

This heaith-care cost recovery liugation was filed by the Province
of Newfoundland and Labrador i February 2011 against tobacco
industry members including JTI-Mac and the Company s indemni-
tees based on legislation simular to that introduced 1n the Province
of Briush Columbia The claim amount 1s unspeciiiec The pre-trial
procass I1s cngoing A trnal date 15 not yet scheduled

Canada Maritcba Health-Cara Cost Recovery Litigation

The claim amount 1S UNSpPeci-

This health-care cost recovery liigation was filed by the Province
of Manitoba in May 2012 against tobacco industry members
including JTI-Mac and the Company's indemnitees based on
legislaticn similar to that introduced in the Province of British
Columbia The claim amount is unspecified The pre-tnal process
15 ongoing A tnal date 1s not yet scheduled
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Canada Quebec Health Care Cost Recovery Litgation

This health-care cost recovery liigation was filed by the Province of
Quebec i June 2012 against tobacco industry members including
JTI-Mac and the Company's indemnitees based on legislation simi-
lar to that introduced n the Province of Bnush Columbia The state-
ment of claim in this case coniains allegations of joint and several
llabilities ameng all the defendants but does not specify any inde-
vidual amount or percentages within the total amount of the claim
approximately ¥6 285 9 bithon {approximately CAD 60 7 billion)
The pre-trial process 1s engoing A tnal date 1s not yet scheduled
Canacla Alberta Health-Care Cost Recovery Litigation

This health-care cost recovery litigation was filed by the Province
of Atberta in June 2012 aganst tobacco industry members includ-
ing JTI-Mac and the Company's indemnitees based on the legisla-
tion stmilar te that intreduced in the Province of Briush Columbia
The statement of claim in this case contains allegations of joint
and several rabtities ameng all the defendants but does not spec-
ify any individual amount or percentages within the total clamed
amount of at least ¥1 036 3 tullion {CAD 10 0 bithon) The pre-tnal
process Is ongoing A trial date s not yet scheduled

Canada Saskatchewan Health Care Cost Recovery Litigation

Thus health-care cost recovery litigation was filed by the Province
of Saskatchewan in June 2012 against tobacco ingustry members
Including JTI-Mac and the Company's indemnilees based on
legislation similar to that introduced in the Province of British
Columbia The claim amount s unspecified The pre-trial process
Is ongaing A tnal date 1s not yet scheduled

Canada Prince Edward Island Health-Care Cost Recovery Litigation
This health-care cost recovery htigaton was filed by the Province
of Prince Edward Island in September 2012 aganst tobacco
industry members including JT1-Mac and the Company s indemnt-
tees based on legislation similar o that introduced in the Province
of Briush Columbia The clarm amount 1s unspecified The pre-trial
process Is ongamng A inal date 1s not yet scheduled

{2) Other Litigation

The Company and some of Its subsidianes are also named as
defendants in other iugation such as commercial and tax dis-
putes One major case 15 pending

Commercial Litigation

Japan Compensatory Damages Claim

In February 2010 a former President & CEQ of Kawkichi Co  Lid
filed a claim against TableMark Holdings Co  Ltd (renamed aiter
acquisition of Katokichi Co  Ltd by the Company} and its subsid-
1ary seeking damages allegedly incurred by the plainuff from an
asset purchase agreement between the plaintiff and Katekichs Co
Lid and a Jjoint and several guarantee provided by the plaintiff
The plainuff argues the invalidity of the asset purchase agreement

[Nota) The amount of damages sought denominated 1n faraign curences 1s ranstated
into Japanese yer at tha rates of 31 December 2014




38. Subsequent Events

(1) Legal Matter (3) Acquisition of Own Shares

Subsequent to December 31 2014 the following health-care cost As a supplemental measure for the adjusted EPS growth at con-

recovery litigation was filed stant FX in the mi- 1 long-term in the framewaork of sharehoider

return the Company s Board of Directors made a resolution on

Canada Nova Scatia Health Care Cost Recovery Litigation February 5 2015 for the Company to acquire its own shares

Trus health-care cost recovery htigation was filed by the Province according to the particulars stated below pursuant to the provision

of Nova Scoua on January 2 2015 against tobacco industry mem- of Arcle 158 of the Companies Act as applied by replacing the

bers in¢luding JT!-Mac and the Company s indemnitees based on relevant terms pursuant to the Act s provision of Articte 165,

its provincial legislation the “Tobacco Damages and Health-Care paragraph 3

Costs Recovery Act  The Province of Nova Scoua (s seeking to & Class of shares to be acquired Common stock

recoup the health-care costs the province has incurred and will b Number of shares to be acquired  Up to 36,000,000 shares

incur resulting from tobacco refated wrongs  The claim amount ¢ Total payment amount to

1s unspecified The pre-tnal process 1s ongoing A tnal date 1s not acquire shares Up to ¥100,000 milhon

yet scheduled d Period of share acquisition From February 9 2015

toJune 9 2015

(2) Withdrawal from the Manufacture e Method of acquistiion Purchase on the stock
and Sale of JT Beverage Products exchange via a trust bank

The Company decided by resolution at a meeting of the Board of Based on this resolution the Company acquired 26 896 200

Drrectors held on February 4, 2015 to withdraw from manufacture shares of Its commaon stock for a total acquisition price of

and sale of JT beverage products in the beverage business The ¥100 Q00 million during the period between February 8 2015 and

manufacture and sale of JT beverage products conducted by JT s March 18 2015 {contract basis), and has completed the acguis-

beverage business dnnsion and JT Beverage Inc 15 expected to be tian of 1ts common stock as resclved by the Beard of Directors

discontinued by the end of September 2015 The impact of the
decision on the consclidated financial statements for fiscal year
ending December 31 2015 has not been confirmed at present

39. Consolidated Statement of Income (2014 January-December)

Consclidated statement of income assuming that the fiscal year of the Group had been the twelve-maonth pericd from january 1 2074 1o

Decermnber 31, 2014 15 as follows
Milions aof yen

2014
(January-December)
Revenue ¥2,433,463
Cost of sales (987,231)
Gross profit 1,446,232
Other operating income 50,477
Share of profit in Investments accounted for using the equity method 7,812
Selling general and admimistrative expenses {932,754)
Qperating profit 571,767
Financial income 14,773
Financial costs {12,976}
Profit before income taxes 573,565
income taxes (177,857}
Profit for the year ¥ 395,708
Attributable to
Owners of the parent company ¥ 389,065
Non-controlling interests 6,643
Profit for the year ¥ 396,708
Earnings per share
Basic (Yen) ¥ 21406
Diluted {Yen) 21394
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Reconciliatton from “Operating profit” to “Adjusted operating profit”

Milhans of yen

2014

{Jantery Decemnber)

Operating profit ¥571,767

Amortization cost of acquired intangibles 29,465

Adjustment 1tems (tncome) (46,113)

Adjustment tems (costs) 104,980

Adjusied operating profit ¥660,099

Consolidated Supplementary Information

A Quarterly Information for the Nine Months ended Decamber 31, 2014

Millions of ven

Y] Qz FY2014

From Apnl 1, 2014
to June 30 2014

From Apal 1 2014
ta September 30 2014

From Apnt 1, 2014
to December 31 2014

Revenue ¥556,448 ¥1,174,450 ¥2,153,970
Profit before iIncome taxes for the penod {year) 147,516 302,952 502,299
Profit for the penod {year} 107,796 223,149 368,626
Basic earnings per share for the penod {year) lyen} 58 42 120 68 199 67

01 QZ 0317'_!!

From Apnl 1, 2014
to June 30 2014

From July 1 2014
to Saptember 30 2014

From October 1, 2014
to December 31 2014

Basic earnings per share for the quarter {yen) ¥58 42

¥62 26

¥79 00

(Noia] The penod from October 3 2014 to Decembar 31 2074 consists of financial results of the Company and its subsidianes whesa fiscal year end was March 31 for the three
month penod from October 1 2014 o Cecernber 31 and financial results of the JTiH Group for tha six month periog from July 1 2014 10 December 31 2014

B Significant Lawsuits

The significant lawsuits of the Group are as stated in ‘37 Contingencies’ and “38 Subseqguent Events n the notes to consolidated

financial statements
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e o I tte ® Detaitie Touche Tohmatsu LLC

Shinagawa Intercity

2-15-3 Konan

Minato-ku Tokyo 108 6221
lapan

Tel +81(3)6720 8200
Fax +81 (3)}6720 B205
www deloitte comip

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Japan Tobacco In¢

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of finanaial position of japan Tobacco
Inc {the "Company®) and 1ts consolidated subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014, and the related
consohidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes 1n equity, and cash flows for
the fiscal year from Apnil 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014, and notes to consolidated financial
statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentatton of these consohdated financial
statements 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as management determines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor's Responsibility

Cur responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit We conducted our audit 1n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 1n Japan
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from matenal misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disciosures 1n the consolhidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the
audhitor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those nsk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements 111 order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropnateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated finanaial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropnate to provide a basts
for our audit opinuon.

Opinon

In our opinion, the consclhidated financtal statements referred to above present fairly, 1n all matenial
respects, the consolidated financial position of Japan Tobacco Inc and its consolidated subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2014, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for
the fiscal year then ended 1n accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed 1n "2 Basis of Preparation-—(5) Change of fiscal year end,” the Company has changed
its fiscal year end from March 31 to December 31 QOur opinion 1s not qualified 1n respect of this
matter

@MZ&MA-LC’

March 20, 2015

Member of

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Shareholder Information

{As of Decermber 31 2014)

Common Stock
Nota A 200 for 1 stock spht was completed an July 1 2012

Authonzed 8,000,000,000
Issued 2,000,000,000
Number of shareholders 147546

Admunistration of the Registry of Shareholders
The Mitsubisht UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation
4-5, Marunouch: 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

Stock Exchange Listings
First Sections of Tokyo Stock Exchange

Principal Shareholders

Name Shares held
The Minister of Finance 666 930,000
The Master Trust Bank of Japan Lid {Trust Account) 48,016 600
Japan Trustee Services Bank Ltd (Trust Account) 44 042,200
JPMorgan Chase Bank 380055

{Standing proxy Mizuho Bank Lid Settlement Sales Department) 40614 441
State Street Bank and Trust Company

{Standing proxy The Hongkong and Shanghal Banking Corporation Limited Tokyo Branch) 37725319
State Street Bank and Trust Company 505223

{Standing proxy Mizuho Bank, Ltd, Settlement Sales Department) 37,079 564
Trust & Custody Services Bank, Lid as trustee for Mizuho Bank Ltd Retrement Benefit Trust Account re-entrusted by

Mizuho Trust and Banking Co , Ltd 33,800,000
State Street Bank and Trust Company {Standing proxy Mizuho Bank Ltd Settlement Sales Department) 33,575,126
HSBC Bank plc A/C The Chitdren s Investrment Master Fund

{Standing proxy The Hongkong and Shanghal Banking Corporation Limited Tokyo Branch) 28 362 300
JPMorgan Chase Bank 385632 (Standing proxy Mizuho Bank Ltd Settlement Sales Department} 16 560 688

Compaositicn of Shareholders
(%)

500 500 500

20:0 2011 2032 2013 2014 2094
Mar31  Mar 31 Mar 3t Mar 21 Mar 3!  Dec 1
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Offering JT Shares by Government

1st Offenng

Method Offering by Bids Ofrering by non-Bids

Offer Price Bid Price From ¥1362,000to ¥2110000  ¥i 438,000

{Pricing Date} Weighted Average Price ¥1,438,000 {August 31 1994)
{August 29 1994} ) B

Number of 229,920 shares 164 356 shares

Offering shares

Oifering Term

From August 15 to 18 1994

From September 2t0 8 1994

Note
The Listing date

Octobar 27 1994 First Sections of Tokyo Stock Exchanga

2nd and 3rd, 4th Offering

2nd Offenng

3rd Offering

4th Offering

Method Offering by Book-Building formula Oftering by Book-Building formula Offerng by Book-Building formula
Offer Price Bid Price ¥815 000 ¥843,000 ¥2,949 (March 11 2013}
{Pricing Date} {June 17 1996) {June 7, 2004)

Number of
Qftfering shares

Japan 237 390 shares
International 35,000 shares
{Total 272,390 shares}

Japan 198,334 shares
International 91,000 shares
{Total 289 334 shares)

Japan 145,625 500 shares
Internatonal 107 636,300 shares
{Total 253 261,800 shares}

Offering Term

From June 1810 19 1996

From June 8to 10 2004

From March 12 to 13 2013

Stock Price Chart
[Yan)

{Paints)

All Tima High

4000 November 4 2014 ¥4 193 4000
Ay o
1
3500 1 kl\‘l’ . 1 3500
. sl
aparr '
ML | l[ il
3000 T ] || || I 3000
ol I"Jh. |

2500 N I || 2500

i i

| b4 ” l]i 'li

" t '
1 | ! - 2000
1 500
Raterence 1000
TOPIX (nghty
600 All Time Low 500
Apell 7 2003 VE44
{Pra splt ¥128 800}
10853 83 73 .83 ¥l k] 03 ®a a3 M3 D-3) 083 @3 [+ :F] ®3 103 113 123 133 LLR ) )

Nota
Due 10 a 5 for-1 stock spliton Apnil 1 2006 and a 200 for T stock spliton July 1 2012 steck pnices reflect post sphit levels
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History of the JT Group

Before 1985

JT’s hastory n_Japan dates back to 1895, when the
Government formed a monopoly bureauw to operate the
excluswve sale of domestic tobacco leaf

The JT Group's overseas history began with the
founding of Austra Tabak in 1784 Roughly 70 years
later, Tom Gallaher started out in business in Northern
Ireland, laying the foundations for the Gallaher Group
Meanwhile, R J Reynolds Tobacco Co (RJR}, which
would subsequently create the Camel and Winston
brands, was established in 1874 inthe U S fn this
manner, the current JT Group can trace its ongins to
many different countnes and regions such as Austria,
Northern Ireland, the U S and Japan The JT Group
has a long history and extensive experience In the
tobacco business

History in Japan from the early 20th century

to 1984, when the Japan Tobacco Inc Act

was enacted

Our history i Japan dates back to 1898, when the
Government formed a monopoly bureau to undertake
the exclusive sale of domestic leaf tobacco In the
early 1900s, the Japanese government extended this
monopoly to all tobacco products in Japan and to the
domestic sait business On June 1, 1949, the bureau
was established and duly named the Japan Tobacco
and Salt Public Corporation, or JTS This corporation
helped to ensure the stable supply of tobacco and
secure fiscal revenues for the Government

The growth in demand for cigarettes in Japan began

to stow in the mid-1970s as a result of demographic
trends and growing concern about health nsks
associated with smoking This trend continued, such
that growth In Industry sales essentially stopped In
addrtion to the structural change, the domestic tobacco
market opened up substantally to foreign suppliers,
tnggenng competition between domestic and foreign
tobacco products in Japan
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Foreign countries stepped up pressure on Japan to take
further measures to open the market that were difficult
to implement within the framework of the monopoly
tobacco sales system Amud such pressure as well as
moves toward the reform of Government-run public
corporations, a Government panel was established

in March 1981 10 conduct research into the public
corporation system In its third report {July 30, 1982),
the panel proposed drastic reform of the monopoly
and public corporation systems |n response to this
proposal, the Government conducted a comprehensive
review of these systems and drafted bills to

* Abolish the tobacco monopoly law to hberalize
tobacco imports and establish a tobacco business
law to make necessary adjustments related to the
tobacco business

* Abolish the JTS law, reorgamze JTS as a jomnt stock
corporation so as to enable it 1o pursue rational
corporate management as much as posstble and
establish the Japan Tobacco Inc Act, which provides
for a necessary mimmum level of regulation 1n light
of the corporation’s need to compete with foreign
tobacco companies on an equal footing In the
domestic market following the liberalization of
tobacco imports

These bills were enacted on August 3, 1984.n
the 101st session of the Diet and promulgated on
August 10 of the same year in Apnl 1985, JT was
founded as an entity that took over the whole of
the business operations and assets of JTS




JT s a yoint stock corporation that was
mcorporated in April 1985 wnder the Commercial
Code of Japan, pursuant to the Japan Tobacco

Inc Act, or the JT Act

1784

Austria Tabak 13 founded by
Emperor Joseph Il

1857

Tom Gallaher sets up his
business in Londonderry
Northern Ireland

1874

RJR 15 founded by Richard
Joshua Reynolds in
Winston North Carolina

1879

Sobranie 1s registered in
London 0 become one of
the cldest cigarette brands
in the world

1891

The Moscow-based Ducat
factory 1s founded

1398

The Japanese Monopaoly
Bureau 1s established for
the sale of domesuc leaf
tobacco

1913

Camel s launched

1931

Cellophane 15 introduced by

RJR in order to preserve
the freshness of tchacco

1949

The Monopoly Bureau
becomes the Japan
Tohacco and Salt Public
Corporation

1969

Seven Stars s launched
featunng Japan s first
domestically produced
charcoat filter

1977

Mild Seven 15 launched
{Japan)

1981

Mild Seven is launched
intarnationally

1954

Winston 1s launched

1955

Benson & Hedges 1s
acquired by Gallaher

1956

Salern s launched

1957

HOPE {10) 15 launched as
Japan s first domesucally
produced filter cigarettes

1964

Silk Cut s launched

1968

Gatlahar 1s acquired by
the Amencan Tobacce
Company

1984

Japan Tobacco [ne Act
1s enacted
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History of the JT Group cntnued

In and after 1985

1985

Apnl

Japan Tobacco Ing 15
establshed (Japanese
tobacco market opened
to Fareign tebacco
manufacturers}

The Business Development
Division 1s established to
promota new businesses

The Business Development
Dhvssion is later reorganized
into operational divisions
engaged in the food and
pharmaceutical businasses,
frushing in July 1980

Apnl
Import 1anffs or imported
cigarettes are abolished

October
JT communication pame
15 introduced

1992

Acquisition of Manchester
Tobacco Company Ltd
Acquisition of AS-Petrg
{Russra)

1993

Septamber

The Centrat Pharmaceutical
Research Institute 1s
established to enhance
in-house research
capabilities

1994

October

Govarnmaent releasss first
tranche of outstanding JT
shares for initial public
offering (394 276 shares
offered a1 ¥1 438 000
apiece)

JT stock 1s isted on the first
sections of stock exchanges
in Tokyo, Osaka and Nagoya

November

JT stock s hsted on the
stock exchanges in Kyoto
Hiroshima Fukuoka
Nugata and Sapporoe

Acguisition of
Yelets (Russia)

1995

May

Head office 1s moved back
to Minato-ku from
Shinagawa-ku following
completion of new head
office bullding

Peter | s launched (Russia}

1996

June

Government releases
second tranche of
outstanding J¥ shares
{272 390 shares offered
at ¥815 000 apece)

Acquisition of Tanzanian
wobacco production facility

1997

Aprit

JT ends its salt monaopoly
business in fina with
abolition of the salt
monopoly system

The Tobacco Mutual
Aid Pension schame
15 mntegrated into the
Employees Pension
scheme

Amencan Brands spins off
Gallaher which becomes
Gallaher Group Plc and 1s
Iisted on the Londen and
New York stock
exchanges
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1998

Aprit

JT signs an agregment with
Ururmnat Corporation
{currently, Japan Beverage
Holdings Inc ) on a tie up
regarding beverage
business JT later acquires
a majonty stake in Unmmai

Decamber

JT acquires a majority stake
in Joru Pharmaceutical Co
Ltd through a 1ender olfer

2004

June

Government releases third
tianche of outstanding JT
shares (289 334 shares
offered at ¥843 060
apiece} reducing is stake
i JT to the minimuem level
allowed undaer law

November-March 2005
JT repurchases 38 184 of
its own shares to increase
(ts management options

1999

JT acquires the non-U S
iobacco business of RIR
Nabrsco Inc

July

JT acquires the food
business of Asah) Kasel
Corporaton including
Agahi Foods and seven
other subsidianes

October

Under a business tie-up
between JT and Tom
Pharmaceutcal Co Ltd
the two compantes’ R&ED
operatons related to
medical pharmaceuticats
arg concentrated at JT
while their promaotion
aperatons are combined at
Taru Pharmaceutical

LD launched {Russ:a)

2000

Acqursition of Liggett-
Ducat (Russia)

2001

Acquisition of
Austnia Tabak

2003

October

JT repurchases 45 800 of
Its own shares to increase
1§ management Options

2005

JTtermunates a hcensing
contract under which it had
exclusive nghts to produce
and sell Marlboro brand
proctucts in Japan and use
the Marlboro trademark

tn the country

June

Acquisition of CRES Neva
Lid {Russia} Glamour is
launched {Russia, Lkratne
Kazakhstan)

2006

Apnl

JT mplements a five-for
one stock sphitin order to
expand the investor base,
effecuve Apnl 1 2006

May

Acquisition of AD
Duvanska industrja Senta
n Serbia

2007

Apn)
JT acquires all outstanding
shares of Gallaher Group Pic

2008

January

JT acguires a majority stake
i Katokichi Co  L1d
thzough a tencer offer

Apnl
JT acquires a majority stake
n Fuji Foods Corporation

July

JT concentrates its
pracessed food operaticns
ncluding frozen food and
seasonings operaiions at
the Katokich Group




2009

May
JTt celebrates its
10th anniversary

June
JTI Leaf Services (US )
LLC 1s established

Octobar

Acquisition of leaf supphers
Kannenberg & Cia Lida
{Brazil) and Xannenberg,
Barker, Hail & Cotton
Tabacos Lida (Brazil)

November
Acquisition of leaf suppliers
Tnbac Leaf Limited (UK)

2010

January
Katokichi Co Lid

is rtenamed TableMark
Co Ld

May

Smokeless tobacce
product Zerostyle
Mint 1s l[aunched

2011

March

JT repurchases 58 630
of its own shares as
oart of s sharcholder
return measures

November

Acquisiuon of Haggar
Cigarette & Tobacco
Factory Ltd (North Sudan)
and Haggar Cigaretie

& Tobacco Factory | td
{South Sudan)

2012

July

For the purpose of
enlarging Company s
investor base a 200 for 1
stock-split 15 conducted
At the same tme, JT
adopts the share unit
system, settng a share
trading unit at 100 shares

August
Acguisiion of Gryson NV
a Belgium Fine Cut make”

2013

February
The name change of Mild
Saven to MEVIUS i Japan

Government refeases
fourth tranche of
outstanding JT
shares (333 333 200
shares offered}

On February 27, JT
repurchases 86 805 500
shares through
ToSTNAT-3 including
80 071 400 shares from
the Government

Excluding the share
repurchased by JT,
253 261 800 shares
are oftered by the
Government In March

March

Acquisition of Al Nakhia
Tobacco Company S A E
and Al Nakhla Tobacco
Company - Free Zone

S AE, aleading Egyptian
waler-pipe company

May

Launch of a novel ant-HIV
drug ' Stribild Combination
Tablets” in Japan
containing our onginal
compound (elvitegrawvir}

December

JT acquires a minority
interest In Megapohs the
leading Russian distribution
company

2014

Apnl
TableMark establishes a
holding company

October

Launch of Cedatoren
sublingual drop Japanese
Ceder Pollen  a sublingual
Immunotherapy Drug for
Japanese Ceder Pollinosis

Novamber
Acquisiion of e-cigareties
company 2andera Ltd {UK)

The corporate history of JT 1s summanzed in the table
tc the left For the international tobacco business,

the history before JT's acquisitions of RJR Nabisco's
non-US tobacco operations and Gallaher 1s included

The operating environment for JT changed drastically
In Just two years after the foundation of the Company,
with the yen's strong appreciation following the Plaza
Accord in 1985, a tobacco tax hike in 1986 and the
abolition of tariffs on imported cigarettes in 1987

Amid the yen's upsurge, a price increase for JT products
due to the tobacco tax hike, coupled with price cuts for
imported cigarettes atinbutable to the tanff abolrtron,
elimmnated the price advantage of JT products over
imported products, which had stood at around ¥60

to ¥80 when JT was founded in 1985 As a result,
compettion between JT and foreign tobacco makers
intensified in the Japanese market, leading to a dechne
in JT's market share from 97 6% n fiscal 1885 to 80 2%
in fiscal 1987

To cope with the rapid detenoration of the operating
environment, JT implemented rationahzation measures
to enhance its cost-competitiveness and pursued
diversification while taking measures to strengthen

its marketing capability In the 1990s, JT's competition
with foretgn rivals in the Japanese market intensified
further Furthermore, overall cigarette demand in
Japan peaked in the latter half of the 1990s due

to a contraction of the adult population and growing
concerns with health problems associated with smoking
Amid the increasingly difficult operating environment
for the Japanese domestic tobacco business, JT took
additional rationalization steps, pursued consolidation
of operations 1n its areas of business diversification and
expanded the International tobacco business, thereby
strengthening its business foundation

JT significantly strengthened the international tobacco
bustness by acguinng RJR Nabisco's non-U S tobacco
operations in 1999 and Gallaher m 2007 With its
international sales volume exceeding Its domestic sales
volume, the JT Group continues to grow as a global
tobacco company The international tobacco business
15 the engine of the JT Group's profit growth through
s comprehensive brand portfolio which includes
Winston, Camel , Mild Seven — MEVIUS and LD as well
as Benson & Hedges, Silk Cut, Sobranie and Glamour

* Topscs of RJR Nabisco & non US opetations balore participating in the J7 Group
** Toptes of Gallaher batore participating 1n the JT Group

JAPAN [ OBACCO INC ANNLAL RFPORT FY2014 145

NOILYIWHOAN! HAHL0 |



Regulation and Other Relevant Laws

Tobacco business

Regulation in the international markets

In international markets where JT Group's tobacco
products are sold, World Health Organization (WHO)
adopted the Framework Convention on Tobacco Control
{"FCTC") at 1ts 56th World Health Assembly held in May
2003 Mt came into force in February 2005 (Government
of Japan accepted it in June 2004} Since then, there
has been a nsing trend n regulations regarding sales
promations, packages and outer wrappers, marketing
of tobacco products and smoking

The purpose of the FCTC 15 to continuously and
substantively control the prolferation of smoking

Its provisions include, among others, price and tax
measures to reduce tobacco demand, non-price
measures to reduce the demand for tobacco (such as
protection from exposure to tobacco smoke, regulation
of contents and emissions of tobacco products,
regulation of disclosure of tobacco products, regulations
on packaging and labeling of tobacco products,
regulations on tobacco advertising, promotion and
sponsorship, among others). and measures relating

to the reduction of the supply of tobacco (such as
prevention of ilhert trade, prohibition of sale of tobacco
products to minors, among others) In addition,
descrniptive expressions such as “mild” and “light” are
stipulated by some provisions as numerous steps are
being taken Moreover, iIn November 2012, the protocol
to elminate illicit trade in tobacco products was adopted
at the fifth session of the Conference of the Parties

As general obligation, signatores to the protocol are

to formulate, adopt, penodically update and review
strategies, plans and programs for tobacco regulation
However, the content, scope and method of specific
controls undertaken in these nations are ultimately
legislated by each respective nation

Regulation by country or region

tn May 2014, the "EU Tobacco Product Directive (EU
TPDY, revised from the earlier Directive promulgated

N July 2001, entered into force This revised Directive
includes, among others, strengthening of packaging and
labeling regutations, restrictions on the use of additives
including menthol for cigarettes and fine cut, and
regulations related to electronic cigareties All EU
member states are required to establish ther domestic
laws, regulations and ordinances to conform the revised
directive This revised Directive will be implemented
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{except some measures such as prohibrting menthol
products} by May 2017, through legislation of each EU
member state by May 2016

One of the most notable regulations adopted recently 1s
the plain packaging legislaton in Australia [n Austraha,
indvidual packages of tobacco products must be of a
prescnbed color, and product names must be displayed
on the packages in a prescrbed location, font size, color
and style In addrion, visual warning labels must take
up 75% of the front side and 90% of the back side of
packages The legislation was passed in 2011 and

came Into effect in December 2012 The plain packaging
legislation in Ireland was also enacted in March 2015

A number of other countnes are considering the
implementation of similar measures

In the UK, one of our key markets, the plain packaging
regulation was enacted in March 2015 in addition, laws
including “Restrictions on the in-store display of tobacco
products” and “Ban on sale of tobacco products through
vending machines” are already enforced in the UK

In Russia, another of our key markets, legislation was
passed in February 2013, which inctudes protection from
exposure to tobacco smoke and other matters related to
tobacco consumption The legislation came into effect,
starting from June 2013 and 1s being implemented 1in
steps through up to 2017 It contains a number of
provisions ncluding display ban, restrictions on sales

of tobacco products in certain retail stores, ban on
advertising, sponsorship and promotions, Introduction

of mnimal pncing and ban on smoking In public places

Although 1t 15 impossible to predict the content of
future laws, regulations and industry guidelines
relating to sales activities, marketing and smoking,

the JT Group expects regulations like the above and
new regulations (including those of local governments)
to diffuse across Japan and other countries where the
group sells its products




Regulation in Japan

The Tobacco Business Act, related acts and statutes and
voluntary standards set forth the regulations for the sale
and promotion activities of tobacco products in Japan
that include the indication of warning labels on tobacco
product advertisements and packages that urge caution
over the relationship between the consumption of
tobacco products and health

In November 2003, the Ordinance for Enforcement

of the Tobacco Business Act was rewised including the
wording of the cautions over the relationship between
the consumption of tobacco products and health
indicated on tobacco product packages and, starting
July 2005, all tobacce products sold in Japan have been
In conformity to the revised regulations In addition, the
Japanese Minister of Finance has indicated a “Guideline
for Advertising of Tobacco Products” based on the
Tobacco Business Act whrch, in March 2004, was
revised with tougher language The Tobacco Institute
of Japan has established voluntary standards regarding
the advertising and sales promotion activities for
tobacco products All member companies, including
JT, comply wath these standards Recently in Japan
from the perspective of passive smoking prevention,
cases where smoking in public areas including
restaurants and office bulldings has been restricted

by laws and regulations and the like are on the rise
Moreover, from the perspective of labor protection,

a number of initiatives are being iImplemented and
promaoted by the government and governing bodies,
while revision of the law 1s also being considered

We expect this trend to continue in the future

Tobacco Business Act

Importers and wholesalers of tobacco products must
register with the Minister of Finance and, retallers of
tobacco products must obtain the hcense of the Minister
of Finance The retailers of tobacco products are required
to sell the tobacco products manufactured by JT and
imported tobacco products at the fixed retall pnce
which I1s approved by the Minister of Finance The
Minister of Finance must approve the filed retall sales
prices unless otherwise considered unfairly prejudicial

to consumers The Tobacco Business Act requires JT

to annually enter into purchase contracts with tobacco
growers regarding the aggregate cultivation area for
specific varieties of leaf tobacco and the prices for leaf
tcbacco by variety and grade JT must purchase all leaf
tobacco produced pursuant to such contracts, except
for any not suited for the manufacture of tobacco
products When JT decides the aggregate cultivation

area and the prices of leaf tobacco for its contracts with
tobacco growers, it is required to respect the opinton of
the Leaf Tobacco Deliberative Council {hatabako shings
kai), which consists of members appointed by JT with
the approval of the Minister of Finance from among the
representatives of domestic leaf tobacco growers and
academic appointees Much hke many other agricultural
products in Japan, production costs for domestically-
grown leaf tobacco 1s higher than those of foreign-
grown leaf tobacco to the extent that the purchasing
price for the former (before re-drying) 1s approximately
three times that of the latter (after re-drying)

In November 2003, the Ordinance for Enforcement of
the Tobacco Business Act was revised and the wording
of warnings concerning tobacco consumption and
health indicated on the tobacco product package was
changed In addition, the Ordinance stipulated that
when wording Iike "mild” and “hght” 1s used on the
package, they must be accompanied by a warning
that clarfies that such words do not mean that the nisk
to their health 1s lower than other tobacco products so
as to prevent consumers from rmisunderstanding the
relationship between the consumption of tobacco
products and health JT has been adhenng to this

rule since July 1, 2005

Self-regulation on marketing

Prevention of youth smoking

Youth smoking prevention is an 1ssue which must be
addressed by society as a whole The JT Group has a
voluntary code, ‘Global Tobacco Products Marketing
Standard’, to govern its business and marketing activities
in support of youth smoking prevention We are working
with government and other relevant organizatrons to
take steps towards preventing youth smoking In the
countries in which we operate For further details,
please refer to the following website pages

Inmiatives taken in Japan
http //iwww Jti co Jp/corporate/enterprise/tobacco/
responsibilities/activity/index html

Inthiatives taken in the international markets
http www it com/how-we-do-business/product-
regulationfyouth-smoking-prevention/
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Regulation and Other Relevant Laws conunued

Global Tobacco Products Marketing Standards

The JT Group complies with all the naucnal regulation
and has implemented a 'Global Tobacco Products
Marketing Standard', a self-regulatory code, which
governs the marketing of 1ts tobacco products in every
country The key provisions nclude “Strict minimum
guidelines applicable to advertse tobacco products’,
and ‘'Indication of heaith warmings in ads and other
media’, ‘Restrictions on sponsorships’, among others

Please refer to the following link for more information
regarding the Global Tobacco Product Marketing
Standards of JTI

http fiwww Jti com/how-we-do-business/product-
regulation/jti-global-marketing-standard/

Pharmaceutical Business

The pharmaceutical industry operates in a highly
regulated environment In many countries, R&D,
manufacturing and sales activities are strictly

regulated Moreover, In recent years, the approval
process for new drugs has been tightening due to the
increased requirements to prormote public health and
safety Today, compared to the past, pharmaceutical
companies are required to spend more time to examine
pharmaceutical safety issues and conduct a greater
number of chinical tnals on subjects to collect more data
on the efficacy of new pharmaceuticals Consequently,
chinical trials are growing In scale, cost and time

In Japan, the marketing of pharmaceutical products

1S subject to the supervision of the Ministry of Health,
Labor and Welfare, or MHLW, primarily under the

Act on Secunng Quality, Efficacy and Safety of
Pharmaceuticals, Medical Devices, Regenerative

and Cellular Therapy Products, Gene Therapy Products,
and Cosmetics, while part of its supervisory authority 1S
undertaken by the relevant prefectural governcr Under
the act, in order to conduct the marketing business of
pharmaceuticals, a person 1s required to obtain from
the relevant prefectural governor a renewable, generally
five-year marketing business license In addrion, under
the act, in order to market pharmaceuticals, it ts
necessary to obtain marketing approval from the
MHLW for each kind of product
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The national heatth insurance system covers virtually
the entire Japanese population To sell a pharmaceutical
product in Japan, a marketing business license holder
of pharmaceutical products must first have a new
pharmaceutical product listed on the National Health
insurance Pharmaceutical Price List for coverage under
the national health insurance system Generally, prices
on the price list are subject o revision once every two
years as part of the government’s policy to control
health-care spending

Processed Food Business

As a producer and seller of food products, the

JT Group's processed food business Is subject to
regulations mamnly under the Food Safety Basic Act,
the Food Sanitation Act and the JAS Act

The Food Safety Basic Act requires food-related
companies to take necessary measures to ensure food
safety in each process of the supply chamn, as well as

to make efforts to prowde accurate information about
foeds and food-related goods In an appropriate manner
The Food Sanitation Act concentrates on prevention of
sanitary problems ansing from consumption of foods
and beverages This Act requires food companies to
take necessary measures under theirr own responsibility
to ensure the safety of foods, additives, appliances and
packages The measures discussed in the Act include
the acquisition of knowledge and skills, assurance of the
safety of raw maternals and voluntary inspection The
JAS Act sets the quality labeling standards which define
the labeling requirements to indicate quality-related
items such as materials and the ongin Manufacturers
and others must comply with the standards in prepanng
their product labels

The JT Group 1s striving to estabiish a high teve! of
food safety control from the above-mentioned four
perspectives — "food safety”, "food defense”, "food
gualty” and “food communication” —in addition to
complying with these laws and regulations and
ensunng thorough awareness about them




Litigation

JT and some of wis subsidianies are defendants in
lawsurts filed by plainuffs seeking damages for harm
allegedly caused by smoking, the marketing of tobacco
products, or exposure 1o tobacco smoke As of the fiscal
year-end date, there were a total of 19 smoking and
health-related cases pending in which one or more
members of the JT Group were named as defendant

or for which JT may have certain indemnity obligations
pursuant to the agreement for JT's acquisition of RJR
Nabisco Ing ‘s overseas {non-U S) tobacco operations
We believe 1t i1s possible that other similar smoking and
health-related lawsurts may be filed in the future

In additton, JT and some of its subsidiaries are also
defendants in lawsuits other than the smoking and
health-related cases Please refer to “Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements (Contingencies
-Contingent Liabitities) for major lawsuits to which JT
and some of 1ts subsidianies are named as defendants
Similar lawsuits involving us may be filed and contested
in courts in the future

To date, we have never lost a case or paid any
settlement award in connection with smoking and
health-related Iigation However, we are unable to
predict the outcome of currently pending or future
lawsuits If a court rulng 1s unfavorable for us, in
such cases whether lawsuits are smoking and health
related or not, cur financial results, production, sales
and importsfexports of tobacco products may be
adversely affected

In recent decades, numerous, large-scale, smoking and

health-related cases have been brought against tobacco
product manufacturers in the United States of America,

and some of the cases resulted in verdicts with massive
damage awards

As of the fiscal year-end date, there are nine ongoing
health-care cost recovery cases in Canada pending
against JTI-Macdonald Corp and JT's indemnitees {RJR
Nabisce Inc s affiliate), brought by Canadran provinces
In addition, there are etght pending class actions In
Canada, in which plaintffs are seeking damages for
harm allegedly caused by smoking of cigarettes
Damages claimed in some of these cases reach sums in
the mult-bilthon dollar range We will continue to take all
appropriate actions to defend such ¢laims wigorously,
and believe there are a number of valid defenses

In recent decades, numerous, large-scale, smoking and
health-related cases have been brought against tobacco
product manufacturers in the United States of Amenca,
and some of the cases resulted In verdicts with massive
damage awards JT and ts subsidiaries are not
defendants in any of these lawsuits, nor are they subject
to any indemnity claims The tobacco business which JT
acquired from RJR Nabtisco inc did not include brands
in the United States of America, and even now, our
historic and current tobacco business scale in the United
States of America remains very small Accordingly, we
consider its exposure to smoking and health-related
Iitigation in the United States of America to be low, and
we thus befieve that situations under the liigation in the
United States of Amenca will not matenaily affect our
businesses in the near future

As a tobacco product manufacturer, we continue
to monitor closely the developments and trends of
Iiigation involving tobacco companies in the United
States of America, Canada, and elsewhere, with
particular interest and attention
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Members of the Board, Audit & Supervisory Board
Members, and Executive Officers

{As of March 20 2015)

Members of the Board

Executive Officers

Chairman of the Board
Yasutake Tango

Representative Directors
Mitsuormi Koizurmi

Yasushs Shingae

Nonaki Okubo

Aksra Saeki

Members of the Board
Hidek: Mryazaks

Motoyuks Oka

Main Kohda”

*  Qutside Direcrors under the Companies Act of
Japan

Audit & Supervisory
Board Members

Futoshi Nakamura
Tomotaka Kopma
Yoshinon lmai”
Hiroshi Ohbayashi’

* Qutside Audit & Supervisory Board Membars under
the Companas Act of Japan

President
Mitsuorm Koizumi
Chief Execuiive Officer

Executive Deputy Presidents
Yasushi Shinga:

Comphance, Strategy HR General
Admimstration, Legal and Operation
Review & Business Assurance

Nonaki Okubo
Pharmaceutical, Beverage, and
Processed Food Business

Alara Sasks
President, Tobacco Business

Hidela Mriyazaka
CSR Finance and Communicatons

Senior Executive Vice Presidents
Kenpy hyma

Chief Markeung & Sales Officer

Tobacco Business

Ryoy Chynuwa
Comphance and
Chief General Affairs Officer

Mutsuo lwar
Chief Strategy Officer

Executive Vice President
Kazuhito Yamashrta
Head of China Division, Tobacco Business
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Senior Vice Presidents

Jumchr Fukuchr

Chief Corporate Scientific & Regulatory
Affarrs Officer, Tobacco Business

Yasuyuki Yoneda
Chief R&D Officer Tobacco Business

Masahiko Sato
Head of Manufactuning General Division
Tobacco Busingss

Kiyohide Hirowatan
Head of Tobacco Business Planning
Division, Tobacco Business

Yasushi Hasegawa
Head of Domestic Leaf Tobacco
General Oivision, Tobacco Business

President Pharmaceutical Business

Shigencrn Ohkawa
Head of Central Pharmaceutical Research
Institute Pharmaceutical Business

1
|
Muneaki Fupmoto I

Goichi Matsuda
Head of Beverage Business

Ryoko Nagata
CSR

Takeahiko Teutsul
Business Development and Corporate
Strategy

Chito Sasaki
Chief Human Resources Officer

Naohwro Minami
Chief Financial Officer

Yuka Maada
Chief Communicauons Officer

Haruhiko Yamada ‘
Chief Legal Officer ‘




Members of JTT Executive Committee

{As of Aprd 1 2015)

Thomas A McCoy
President and Chief Executive Officer

Masamichi Terabatake
Deputy CEQ Executive Vice President
Emerging Products & Corporate Strategy

Eddy Pirard

Executive Vice President Business
Development Corporate Affairs and
Corporate Communications

Jorge da Motta
Regional President Central Europe

Bruno Duguay
Senior Vice President Compliance and
Corporate Social Responsibility

Stefan Fitz
Regional President Asia Pacific

Roland Kostantos
Senior Vice President Finance, Information
Technology and Chiefl Financial Officer

Paul Neumann
Senior Vice President Global Leaf

Howard Parks
Senicr Vice President
Marketing & Sales

Fadoul Pekhaznis
Regional President Middle East, Near East,
Africa Turkey and World Wide Duty Free

Michel Poiner
Regional President Americas

Jorg Schappe
Senicr Vice President Human Resources

Bill Schulz
Senior Vice President Global Supply Chan

Takehisa Shibayama
Senior Vice President Research &
Development

Kevin Tomlinson
Regional President CIS+

Vassihs Vovos
Regional President Western Europe

VWade Wright
Senior Vice President Legal &
Regulatory Affarrs
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Glossary of Terms

Unless otherwise stated terms and numbers reported in ths glessary are in accardance with IFRS

Adjusted Operating Profit Operating profit + Amortization cost of acquired mntangibles + Adjusted items {Income
and costs)’

¥ Adjusted ilems (income and costs) = impairment iesses on goodwill & restruciunrg incoma and ¢osis & others

Adjusted EPS (Profit or loss attributable to owners of the parent company + adjustment tems (income and costs)'
+ tax and minonty interests adjustments) / {weighted-average common shares + increased number of

ordinary shares under subscription rights to shares)
= Adjustment items (income and costsl = )/mpairment losses an goodwil! & restructuring income and costs = others

Adjusted Profit Profit for the year {profit attributable to owners of the parent company) + adjustment tems
{income and costs)” x (tax and minority interests adjustmenits)

*  Adstment iams {Income and castsl impairment losses on goadwille restruciunng meome and costs + others

BnU: Bilhon Unnis
CAGR. Compound annual growth rate

Contraband Genuine products smuggled from abroad Genuine products diverted from the legitimate supply chain
and sold in a country different from the intended market of retall sale and without domestic duty paid in that country

Constant Exchange Rates Constant exchange rates measures are computed by restating current year results at
the previous year's foreign currency exchange rate Results at constant raies of exchange should be considered in
addition to, not as a substitute for, results reported in accordance with IFRS

Core revenue {International Tobacco Business): Includes revenues from waterpipe tobacco and emerging
products, but excludes revenues from distribution, contract manufactuning and other penipheral businesses

Core Revenue {Japanese Domestic Tobacco Business) Excludes revenue from the distnbution business
of imported tobacco

Counterfeit Fake products appearing to be a genuine brand Products protected by intellectual property nights
which are manufactured without authonzation from the rights’ owners and with the intent to copy the genuine
brand to deceve the consumer, aiso sold without duties being paid

FCF {Free Cash Flow): Cash flow from operating activities + Cash flow from investing actvities excluding the

following tems

¢ Cash flows from interest and dividends received and its tax eifect / interest paid and its tax effect in
operating activities

* Cash flows from purchase of short-term investment securities, proceeds from sale and redemption of short-
term investment secunties, purchase of iInvestment securities, proceeds from sale of investment securities,
payments into time deposits, proceeds from withdrawal of time deposits and others in investing activities
{those from purchase/sale of securities held for business operation are not included herg)

GFB Global Fiagship Brands (Winston, Camel, MEVIUS, LD, Benson & Hedges, Glamour, Silk Cut and Sobrarie)
FY2014: Results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014

In FY2014, the Company and its subsidiaries with fiscal year ends other than December 31 have changed therr fiscal
year ends to December 31

The fiscal year end for international business continues to be December 31 as before, hence the Group consolidates
financial results of International business for the twelve-month period from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 into
the Group's consolidated financial resuits for the nine months ended December 31, 2014 (Reported basis)

Far the purpose of farr comparnson of business performance, we are providing figures for the twelve-month peniod
from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 (Like-for-Like basis} with regard to all business segments
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Results for Nine months ended December 31, Jan  Apr  Jul Oct Jan  Apr  Ju Oat
Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec

2014 {Reported basis)
Domastic I

For domestic businesses consolidated nine-month | -
nternatronal ]

results from Apnl 1 to December 31, 2014

FY2013 FY2014
For international business consolidated twelve-month

results from January 1 to December 31, 2014

Results for Jan-Dec 2014 (Like-for-Like basis): Jan  Apr Jul Oct Jan Apr Jul  Oct

Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec

For the purpose of fair comparison of business

performance, we also provide figures with regard to

all business segments for January — December 2014,

In companson to resuits for the twelve-month penod

for January — December 2013

= Revenue, operating profit, adjusted operating
profit and profit attnbutable to owners of the parent
company for January - December, 2014 would be
disclosed in the Financial Statements and Notes,
which would be audrted

® For the purpose of fair companson and reference,
the same accounting methods were applied to both
financial results of January - December 2013 and
2014 Financial results of January — December, 2013
would not be audited

Domestic ‘

International

2013 Jan - Pac 2014 Jan - Dec

Results for the year ended December 2015. 3;" JAEF'I é:' g:“: :j:r JAfr: é‘;’ 8:::
With regard to the forecast for FY2015, the figures are s .
presented on a January to December basis

Domestic
International

Fy2014 FY2015

lilicit whites Legitimately manufactured brands intentionally sold on the ilhcit market Brands manufactured
legitmately in one country but smuggled into another country to provide consumers with cheap brands, also
without duties being paid

IFRS: International Financial Reporting Standards

JPY BN: Bilhon Japanese Yen

Restated: See ‘Constant Exchange Rates’

Revenue Excluding tobacco excise taxes and revenue from agent transactions

Profit: Profit attrbutable to owners of the Parent

TableMark Resferences to “TableMark” are to TableMark Holdings Co Ltd, TableMark Co Ltd

Total Shipment Volume {International Tobacco Business} Includes fine cut, cigars, pipe tobacco and snus but
excludes contract manufactured products, waterpipe tobacco and emerging products

Total Sales Volume (Japanese Domestic Tobacco Business} Excludes sales volume of domestic duty free and
the China business

Us$ MM. Milhion US Dollars
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Corporate Data

Head Office

2-1 Teranomon 2-chome
Minato-ku Tokyo 105-8422 Japan
Tel 81-3-3582-3111

Fax 81-3-5572-1441

URL www |t com

Date of Establishment

Aprl 1 1985

Paid-in Capital

¥100 billion

JT International S.A.

1 Rue de la Gabelle CH-1211 Geneva 26
Switzerland

Tel +41{0)22-703-0777

Fax +41(0)22-703-0789

URL www ti com
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Japan Tobacco Inc.

2-1 Toranomaon 2-chome
Minato-ku Tokyo 105-8422 Japan
Tel (81} 3-3582-3111

Fax (81) 3-5572-1441

URL http /www |t com/
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